Panhandle Workforce
Development Consortium’s
Governing Body
Meeting Agenda

February 23, 2023



PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
CONSORTIUM’S GOVERNING BODY
2023 Meeting Calendar

I want to thank you for your dedication and commitment to the people of the Texas Panhandle
and know that I am very honored and grateful to be a part of the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board!

We are providing you with the 2023 Consortium’s Governing Body meeting schedule. The Body
must meet a minimum of four times this year. However, there may be a rare occasion that
necessitates having an additional meeting. This would only occur when a board action is

necessary and time is a factor.

As always if you ever have questions or wish to discuss issues and opportunities, please give me
a call.

Thank You!

Marin

February 23, 2023

May 25, 2023

August 24, 2023

December 7, 2023 (Tentatively)




PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4 B COMMISSION

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body will be held
at 11:30 a.m. on Thursday, February 23, 2023. Due to the current COVID-19 crisis this meeting
will be held by in a hybrid format of both in-person and videoconference pursuant to Texas
Government Code Section 551.127.

Under the hybrid format, Board members and individuals from the public may access the meeting
in person at 415 S.W. 8th Avenue, Amarillo, Potter County, Texas.

Board members and individuals of the public interested in attending this meeting by
videoconference may do so by logging onto:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82625166025?pwd=K2FNL2NvSXpCVWxOL 1 dnNIMrTXAzZz09
(Meeting ID: 826 2516 6025 - Passcode: 358743)

Or may participate by phone (346) 248-7799 (Meeting ID: 826 2516 6025 - Passcode: 358743).

A copy of the full agenda packet for this meeting can be found on the PRPC’s website at:
http://www.theprpc.org

The Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body shall provide an
opportunity for oral comments from the public during the meeting. Each person wishing to make
a public comment shall be limited to three (3) minutes and limited to speaking once per comment
period. Comments shall be directed to the Body as a whole. Individual Body members will not
respond to questions. In the event that a group of persons supporting/opposing the same position
desires to be heard, in the interest of time, a spokesperson shall be designated to express the group’s
position.
AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

3. MINUTES

Consider the approval of the minutes of the December 8, 2022 meeting of the Governing
Body.

4. CURRENT MEMBERSHIP LIST

Informational item only. No action by the Body is required.

415 South West Eighth Avenue
P. O. Box 9257

Amarillo, Texas 79105

(806) 372-3381

(806) 373-3268 (fax)

www.theprpc.org


http://www.theprpc.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82625166025?pwd=K2FNL2NvSXpCVWxOL1dnNlMrTXAzZz09
http://www.theprpc.org/

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBER TO THE PANHANDLE WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Consider the appointment of an individual to serve on the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board.

ITEMS CONSIDERED AT THE LAST MEETING OF THE PANHANDLE
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (PWDB)

Review of agenda items presented and concurrence with actions taken at the February 22,
2023 meeting of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board:

6a. MINUTES

e Minutes from the Board’s meeting held on December 7, 2022. No action by
the Body is required.

e Minutes of the January 18, 2023 meeting of the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board’s Cybersecurity Council.

6b. REPORTS ON GRANTS

A review of reports on the Panhandle’s grants for October 1, 2022 — December 31,
2022 will be presented. No action by the Body is required.

6c. APPOINTMENT TO THE CYBERSECURITY COUNCIL

Members will be asked to consider a volunteer to the Cybersecurity Council.

6d. NEW AND UPDATES TO PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
BOARD (PWDB) CYBERSECURITY POLICES

Members will be asked to consider the recommendations of the PWDB Cybersecurity
Council on three (3) proposed PWDB Cybersecurity policy updates and one (1) proposed
new policy:

a) Acceptable Use of Information Technology Resources - Update

b) Secure Configuration - Update

c) Risk Assessment and Mitigation - Update

d) Incident Response - New

6e. PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD PLAN
MODIFICATION

Members will be asked to consider approval of a two-year modification of the 2021-2024
PWDB Plan as required by the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC). A draft copy of
the Plan modification may be found on the PRPC website under the Workforce
Development Program at:

http://www.theprpc.org/Programs/WorkforceDevelopment/default.html

Public comment opportunity and Member vote will be recognized.

6f. LOCAL MONITORING REPORT

Members will be provided with an update on monitoring activities. No action by the
Body is required.


http://www.theprpc.org/Programs/WorkforceDevelopment/default.html

6g.

6h.

6i.

6k.

6l.

CHILD CARE QUALITY PURCHASES

A review of several recent Child Care Quality purchases will be presented. No action
by the Board is required.

WORKFORCE CAREER AND EDUCATION OUTREACH SPECIALIST
PROGRAM

Members will be asked to consider the addition of a workforce career and education
outreach specialist program and the purchase of virtual reality career exploration tools.
TWC SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND (SDF) APPLICATION

Members will be asked to consider authorizing the Workforce Development Director
to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for a PWDB partnership with
Plains Dairy; and completing and submitting an application for a TWC SDF grant for
the purpose of developing and implementing site-specific, customized, “upskilling”
training for approximately 100 Plains Dairy employees.

CONTRACTOR’S REPORT ON WORKFORCE ACTIVITIES

Huxford Group, LLC President and WSP Director, Mr. Trent Morris, will discuss
recent and upcoming regional workforce activities. No action by the Body is required.
DIRECTOR’S REPORT ON WORKFORCE ACTIVITIES

Workforce Development Director, Mr. Marin Rivas, will discuss recent and upcoming
regional workforce activities. No action by the Body is required.

CURRENT PWDB MEMBERSHIP LIST

Informational item only. No action by the Body is required.

FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

ADJOURN

PUBLIC NOTICE

This notice complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 551, Open Meetings Act, Section 551.041 (Notice of Meeting Requirements); Section
551.043 (Time and Accessibility of Notice Requirements); and Section 551.053 (Notice Requirements of a Political Subdivision Extending into
Four or More Counties). The notice has been filed at least 72 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting with the Secretary of State's Office,
the Potter County Clerk's Office and has been posted in the Administrative Office of the Panhandle Regional Planning Commission.

Posted this 17" day of August 2022, at 415 Southwest Eighth Avenue, Amarillo, Texas, at 12:00 p.m.

Leslie Hardin

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER / PROGRAM
Auxiliary aids and services are available
upon request to individuals with disabilities
Relay Texas: 711



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 3
CGB Minutes



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING
COMMISSION

PANHANDLE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body
Minutes
December 8, 2022

A meeting of the Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body was held on
Thursday, December 8, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. Due to the current COVID-19 crisis this meeting was
held by videoconference pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.127, and in person at
Amarillo ISD’s AmTech Career Academy, AmTech Conference Room, 3601 Plains Blvd, Amarillo,
Potter County, Texas.

Judge D J Wagner, Chair, presided.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

e Dan Looten, County of Carson ¢ Cindy Irwin, County of Hutchinson
e D J Wagner, County of Deaf Smith e Terri Carter, County of Sherman

e Chris Porter, County of Gray e Harold Keeter, County of Swisher
MEMBER ABSENT:

e (Ginger Nelson, City of Amarillo

OTHERS PRESENT:
Phillip Flores, and Trent Morris, Workforce Solutions Panhandle

STAFF PRESENT:

Gracie Aragon, Kathy Cabezuela, Yvette Gaytan, Ana Gonzalez, Rosie Gonzalez, Leslie Hardin,
Jolene Ortega, Heather Reid, Marin Rivas, and Trenton Taylor

1. CALL TO ORDER

Judge Wagner called the meeting to order, noting that a quorum was present.

2. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

None.

3. MINUTES

Members considered the minutes from the August 25, 2022 meeting of the Governing Body.
Judge Irwin moved for approval. Judge Carter seconded the motion; the motion carried.



4. CURRENT MEMBERSHIP LIST

This item was for informational purposes only.

5. ITEMS CONSIDERED AT THE LAST MEETING OF THE PANHANDLE WORKFORCE

DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Members were asked to review agenda items presented and consider concurrence with actions
taken at the December 7, 2022 meeting of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board:

5a.

5b.

5c.

5d.

Se.

5t

MINUTES

Minutes from the PWDB meeting held on August 24, 2022. No action by the Body was
required.

INTRODUCTIONS

Introduction to the Panhandle Workforce Development Board’s new Board members and
staff. No action by the Body was required.

ORIENTATION TO AMTECH CAREER ACADEMY

Mr. Jay Barrett, Principal of AmTech Career Academy, discussed the history and mission
of the new learning center. No action by the Body was required.

BOARD ATTESTATION & COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT

Mr. Phillip Flores, Business Services Representative with Workforce Solutions Panhandle
(WSP), discussed topics included in the Board Attestation & Community Impact
Statement submitted last month to the Texas Workforce Commission’s (TWC), as part of
the Panhandle Workforce Development Board’s 2022-23 Board Oversight Capacity. No
action by the Body was required

REPORTS ON GRANTS

A review of reports on the Panhandle’s grants for October 1, 2021 — September 30, 2022.
No action by the Body was required.

UPDATES TO PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (PWDB)
POLICIES

Members were asked to consider proposed updates to seven current local PWDB policies
for:

(1) In-Demand Industries, In-Demand Occupations, and Target Occupations;
(2) Child Care Services;

(3) Customer Incentives;

(4) Policy Waiver Requests;

(5) Supportive Services

(6) Non-Custodial Parent (NCP) Choices, Case Closure; and

(7) Information Technology (IT) Security, Systems and Computer Access.

Judge Looten moved to approve the updates. Judge Keeter seconded the motion; the motion
carried. There were no public comments.



Sg.

Sh.

Si.

5.

5k.

LOCAL MONITORING REPORT

An update on monitoring activities. No action by the Body was required.

2023 WORK PROGRAM AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET

Mr. Trenton Taylor, PRPC’s Finance Director, presented an overview of the Workforce
Development Division’s Fiscal Year 2023 Work Program and Expenditure Budget from the
PRPC 2023 Strategic Work Program and Budget. No action by the Body was required.
CONTRACTOR’S REPORT ON WORKFORCE ACTIVITIES

Mr. Trent Morris, Huxford Group, LLC President and Workforce Solutions Panhandle
Director, discussed recent and upcoming regional workforce activities. No action by the
Body was required.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT ON WORKFORCE ACTIVITIES

Mr. Marin Rivas discussed recent and upcoming regional workforce activities. No action by
the Body was required.

CURRENT MEMBERSHIP LIST

This item was for informational purposes only. No action by the Body was required.

. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

None.

. ADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Body, Judge Carter moved that the meeting
adjourn. Judge Porter seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned.



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 4
CGB Membership List



PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT CONSORTIUM’S GOVERNING BODY
CURRENT MEMBERSHIP
JULY 1, 2022 - JUNE 30, 2023

CITY OF AMARILLO

The Honorable Ginger Nelson
Mayor, City of Amarillo

P. O. Box 1971

Amairillo, Texas 79105-0001
(806) 378-3013 / (806) 679-0911
(806) 378-9394 fax
ginger.nelson@amarillo.gov

AREA | (DALLAM, HARTLEY,
MOORE, OLDHAM AND
SHERMAN COUNTIES)

The Honorable Terri Carter
Judge, County of Sherman
P. O, Box 165

Stratford, Texas 79084-0165
(806) 366-2021

(806) 366-3011 fax
cojudge@co.sherman.tx.us

AREA |l (BRISCOE, CASTRO,
DEAF SMITH, PARMER AND
SWISHER COUNTIES)

The Honorable Harold Keeter
Judge, County of Swisher
119 South Maxwell

Tulia, Texas 79088

(806) 995-3504

(806) 995-2214 fax
h.keeter@swisher-tx.org

AREA V (CHILDRESS, COLLINGSWORTH,

DONLEY, GRAY, HALL AND
WHEELER COUNTIES)

The Honorable Chris Porter
Judge, County of Gray

205 N. Russell

Pampa, Texas 79065

(806) 669-8007

(806) 669-3048 fax
chris.porter@graycch.com

PY2022

AT- LARGE

The Honorable DJ Wagner *
Judge, County of Deaf Smith
235 E. 39 Rm 201

Hereford, Texas 79045
(806) 363-7000

(806) 363-7022 fax
judgewagner@wtrt.net

AREA Il (HANSFORD, HEMPHILL,
HUTCHINSON, LIPSCOMB, OCHILTREE AND
ROBERTS COUNTIES)

The Honorable Cindy Irwin **
Judge, County of Hutchinson
P.O. Box 790

Stinnett, Texas 79083

(806) 878-4000

(806) 878-4048 fax
judgeirwin@hutchinsoncnty.com

AREA IV (ARMSTRONG,
CARSON, POTTER AND
RANDALL COUNTIES)

The Honorable Dan Looten
Judge, County of Carson
P.O. Box 369

Panhandle, Texas 79068
(806) 537-3622

(806) 537-2244 fax
dan.looten@co.carson.tx.us

* Chairman
** Vice-Chairman

2/23/2023


mailto:ginger.nelson@amarillo.gov
mailto:h.keeter@swisher-tx.org
mailto:judgewagner@wtrt.net
mailto:judgeirwin@hutchinsoncnty.com
mailto:chris.porter@graycch.com

PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 5
PWDB Appointment



APPOINTMENT
TO THE PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

— NEW APPOINTMENT —

Private Sector — City of Amarillo

Ms. Amy Moran, Director of Human Resources Strategy and Operations
Consolidated Nuclear Security, LLC (CNS) - Pantex
Amarillo, Texas
Term Expires: June 30, 2025



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
n PLANNING
4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6(a) (1)
WDB Minutes



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4 ™ COMMISSION

PANHANDLE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Panhandle Workforce Development Board

Minutes
December 7, 2022

The regular meeting of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board was held at 12:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, December 7, 2022. Due to the current COVID-19 crisis this meeting was held in
hybrid format by videoconference pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.127. Board
members and individuals from the public who desired to attend in person, accessed the meeting
at Amarillo ISD’s AmTech Career Academy, Banquet Hall, 3601 Plains Blvd, Amarillo, Potter
County, Texas.

Ms. Michelle Griffin, presided.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Jay Barrett, Amarillo Area Center for Academic

Learning

Norman Bearden, Texas Workforce
Commission

Ryan Bradley, Hunting Titan

Texas “Tex” Buckhaults, Clarendon College
Kevin Caddell, Furniture Fashions, LTD
Tamara Clunis, Amarillo College

Michelle Griffin, Amarillo National Bank-
Borger Branch

Crystal Hermesmeyer, Shamrock Economic
Development Corporation

Lisa Lillard, Texas Health and Human
Services Commission

Jahnel McClain, Goodwill Industries of
Northwest Texas

David Parker, Harwell & Cook
Orthodontics

Amy Rambo, BSA Health System

Charlie Rivas, Rivas Environmental
Consultants, Inc.

Paul Salazar, West Texas Electrical Joint
Apprenticeship & Training Committee

Michael Wright, Moore County News -
Press

Magi York, Panhandle Community
Services



MEMBERS ABSENT:

Francisco Apodaca, Apodaca Brothers e Art Martinez, Whiteface Heating & Air, Inc.

Betty Bara, La Fiesta Grande e John Roberts, Central South Carpenters

Heather Freeman, CNS Pantex Regional Council

Kristi Hanes, Night & Day, Care & Play
Inc.
Jason Henderson, Bell Helicopter, Textron e Lisa White, Amarillo Public Library

e Geneva Tiller, Texas Workforce Solutions
Vocational Rehabilitation Services

OTHERS PRESENT:

David Hall, and Linda Munoz, Amarillo College; Nikki Thurman, Texas Veterans Commission;
Kelsey Pratt, The Barfield; and Phillip Flores, Ray Flores, Trent Morris, Shelby Sillivent, April
Slatter, and June Sliter, Workforce Solutions Panhandle.

STAFF PRESENT:

Gracie Aragon, Kathy Cabezuela, Yvette Gaytan, Ana Gonzalez, Rosie Gonzalez, Leslie Hardin,
Julie Lyles, Jolene Ortega, Heather Reid, Marin Rivas, and Trenton Taylor.

L.

CALL TO ORDER

Ms. Griffin called the meeting to order noting that a quorum was present.

INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Mr. Bearden provided a tribute honoring National Pearl Harbor Remembrance Day.

MINUTES

Members considered approval of the minutes from the Board’s August 24, 2022 meeting. Mr.
Caddell moved to approve the minutes as presented. Mr. Wright seconded the motion; the motion
carried.

INTODUCTIONS

New Board Members, Ms. McClain, Ms. Rambo, and Mr. Salazar; and new PWDB staff, Ana
Gonzalez, Rosie Gonzalez, and Jolene Ortega were introduced to the group. No action by the
Board was required.

ORIENTATION TO AMTECH CAREER ACADEMY

Mr. Barrett, Principal of Amarillo ISD’s AmTech Career Academy, provided an orientation to the
new learning center where the meeting was being held. No action by the Board was required.

BOARD ATTESTATION & COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT

Mr. Phillip Flores, Business Services Representative with Workforce Solutions Panhandle
(WSP), discussed topics included in the Board Attestation & Community Impact Statement
submitted last month to the Texas Workforce Commission’s (TWC), as part of the Panhandle
Workforce Development Board’s 2022-23 Board Oversight Capacity. No action by the Board
was required.




10.

I1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

REPORT ON GRANTS

Staff presented reports on the Panhandle’s grants for October 1, 2021 — September 30, 2022. No
action by the Board was required.

UPDATES TO PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (PWDB)
POLICIES

Members were asked to consider proposed updates to seven current local PWDB policies for:

a) In-Demand Industries, In-Demand Occupations, and Target Occupations;
b) Child Care Services;

c) Customer Incentives;

d) Policy Waiver Requests;

e) Supportive Services

f) Non-Custodial Parent (NCP) Choices, Case Closure; and

g) Information Technology (IT) Security, Systems and Computer Access.

Mr. Charlie Rivas moved to approve the updates. Mr. Bearden seconded the motion; the motion
carried.

LOCAL MONITORING REPORT

Members were updated on monitoring activities. No action by the Board was required.

2023 WORK PROGRAM AND EXPENDITURE BUGET

Mr. Trent Taylor, Finance Director with PRPC, presented an overview of the Workforce
Development Division’s Fiscal Year 2023 Work Program and Expenditure Budget from the
PRPC 2023 Strategic Work Program and Budget. No action by the Board was required.

CONTRACTOR’S REPORT ON WORKFORCE ACTIVITIES

Mr. Trent Morris, Huxford Group, LLC President and Workforce Solutions Panhandle Director,
discussed recent and upcoming regional workforce activities. No action by the Board was
required.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT ON WORKFORCE ACTIVITIES

Mr. Marin Rivas discussed recent and upcoming regional workforce activities. No action by the
Board was required.

CURRENT MEMBERSHIP LIST

This item was for informational purposes only.

FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

None.

ADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Bearden moved that the meeting
adjourn. Mr. Charlie Rivas seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned.



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6(a) (2)

Cybersecurity Council Minutes



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4 ™ COMMISSION

PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Cybersecurity Council

Minutes
January 18, 2023

A meeting of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board’s Cybersecurity Council was held at
11:45 a.m. on Wednesday, January 18, 2023. Due to the current COVID-19 crisis this meeting
was held in hybrid format by videoconference pursuant to Texas Government Code Section
551.127. Board members and individuals from the public who desired to attend in person,
accessed the meeting at 3120 Eddy Street, Amarillo, Randall County, Texas.

Mr. Michael Wright, presided.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:

e Texas “Tex” Buckhaults, Clarendon e Michael Wright, Moore County News -
College Press

COUNCIL MEMBER ABSENT:

e Magi York, Panhandle Community Services

STAFF CYBERSECURITY COMMITTEE PRESENT:

Kathy Cabezuela, Ana Gonzalez, Leslie Hardin, and Marin Rivas, Panhandle Regional Planning
Commission (PRPC); Trent Morris and Andrew Thompson, Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP).

OTHERS PRESENT:

Paul Salazar, West Texas Electrical Joint Apprenticeship & Training Committee.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Wright called the meeting to order noting that a quorum was present.

2. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
None.
3. MINUTES

Members considered approval of the minutes from the Council’s May 13, 2022 meeting. Mr.
Buckhaults moved to approve the minutes as presented. Mr. Wright seconded the motion; the
motion carried.




4. CYBERSECURITY COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP FOR 2023-2025

Members considered selection of a new Cybersecurity Council member for the upcoming
term. Panhandle Workforce Development Board (PWDB) member, Mr. Paul Salazar
volunteered to serve. Mr. Buckhaults moved to approve recommending Mr. Salazar’s
membership to the PWDB in its upcoming February 22, 2023 meeting. Mr. Wright seconded
the motion; the motion carried.

** AT THIS POINT IN THE MEETING, MEMBERS ENTERED A BRIEF CLOSED SESSION **
as per Texas Government Code §551.089, which does not require a governmental body
to conduct an open meeting to deliberate:
(a) security assessments or deployments relating to information resources technology;,
(b) network security information as described by §2059.055(b) ; or
(c) the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security personnel,
critical infrastructure, or security devices.

5. PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (PWDB) CYBERSECURITY
POLICIES

Members were presented with three (3) proposed PWDB Cybersecurity policy updates and one
(1) new policy for discussion and input. No action by the Council was taken in the closed
session.

a) Acceptable Use of Information Technology Resources - Update

b) Secure Configuration - Update

c) Risk Assessment and Mitigation - Update

d) Incident Response - New

** AT THIS POINT IN THE MEETING, MEMBERS RETURNED TO THE OPEN SESSION*#*

6. VOTE ON PWDB CYBERSECURITY POLICIES

Mr. Wright, as Chair, made a motion to recommended tabling the vote on policies considered
in the closed session above until the next meeting of the Council to be held just prior to the
February 22 PWDB meeting. Mr. Buckhaults seconded the motion; the motion carried. The
record of the vote will be recognized in the PWDB meeting on February 22", 2023.

7.  OPEN DISCUSSION

Members had the opportunity to discuss topics of interest. No action by the Council was
required.

8. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

None.

9. ADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Buckhaults moved that the
meeting adjourn. Mr. Wright seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned.



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6(b)

Report on Grants



PANHANDLE

REGIONAL
PLANNING
4 ™ COMMISSION
MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 22, 2023
TO: Members of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board and the Panhandle Workforce

Development Consortium’s Governing Body
FROM: Marin Rivas, Workforce Development Director
SUBJECT: Reports on the Panhandle Workforce Development Area’s Grants

Attached are reports that provide the basic information needed to assess how well we served our customers,
met performance expectations, and utilized available grant funding.

The charts on page 4, provides figures on the workers and families who have utilized services funded
through one or more of our grants, during first quarter our Board Contract year 2023, which runs from
October 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. These services are delivered through our Workforce Solutions
offices and the website, which are operated by the Huxford Group LLC under contract with PRPC.
Assistance is provided by local staff of the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) and Texas Veterans
Commission (TVC).

The charts on page 5-8 show the Board’s twenty-two contracted measures. The End of Year reports are for
the Board Contract year 2022, which began October 1, 2021 through September 31, 2022.

Page 9 provides budget and expenditure data for separate grants, and is broken out into two groups. Shown
first are the administrative and operating costs for PRPC and the Huxford Group, including those associated
with personnel and facilities. Shown second are training and supportive services costs, which include all
payments to participants, employers, training institutions, and vendors providing assistance to eligible
clients. The fiscal report represents the first quarter our Board Contract year 2023, which runs from October
1, 2022 through December 31, 2022.

The ratio of expenditures to budgeted funds varied to some extent by grant, but was generally consistent
with expectations. Staff will discuss performance and review fiscal variances at the meeting.

Please contact us at (806) 372-3381 or (800) 477-4562 if you have questions or comments.



The grants included in this report are provided to us for different purposes, come with different expectations,
and are subject to different rules and regulations. A brief description of each grant follows:

The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance/Employment and Training grant provides case management and
assists recipients of Food Stamps assistance to transition from public assistance to work through
participation in work-related activities, including job search and job readiness, education, training activities,
and support services. Clients are generally required to participate in one or more of those activities.

The Temporary Assistance to Needy Families/Non-Custodial Parent Employment Services grant
provides case management and assists low-income unemployed or underemployed noncustodial parents
who are behind on their child support payments and whose children are current or former recipients of
public assistance. Clients are required to participate through a court order in Workforce work-related
activities, including job search and job readiness, basic skills training, education, vocational training, and
support services.

The Temporary Assistance to Needy Families/CHOICES grant provides case management and assists
applicants, recipients, non-recipient parents, and former recipients of TANF (cash assistance) to transition
from welfare to work through participation in work-related activities, including job search and job
readiness, basic skills training, education, vocational training, and support services. Parents are generally
required to participate in one or more of those activities.

The Trade Adjustment Assistance grant provides additional training resources and relocation assistance to
dislocated workers affected by trade-related layoffs. Trade Adjustment Assistance for Workers is a
federally funded program, with no costs to employers, that helps workers who are adversely affected by
foreign imports or job shifts to a foreign country. Assistance is provided to eligible workers in the form of
reemployment services, training, job search, relocation, and support benefits.

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act - Adult, Youth, and Dislocated Worker grants fund case
management, training, job search and placement, and supportive services for eligible clients. The
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) program provides workforce development activities
designed to enhance the employability, occupational attainment, retention and earnings of adults, dislocated
workers and youth. WIOA improves the quality of the workforce, reduces welfare dependency, and
enhances the productivity and competitiveness of the Texas economy.

Our Child Care/Formula and Federal Match grants fund day care services for children from eligible
families. Resources obtained from local contributors are required in order to access matching federal funds.
Resources to purchase services for children in foster care are provided through our Family and Protective
Services grant. The Child Care/Quality Improvement grant supports professional development for child
care providers and staff. The Child Care Automated Attendance grant supports systems that link children’s
attendance to provider payments.

The Wagner-Peyser Employment Services, Reemployment Assistance and Veterans Services grants pay
for costs associated with the TWC and TVC employees who are housed in our facilities. The Employment
Service program provides comprehensive recruiting, job search, and related services to businesses and job
seekers to connect employers and job seekers. ES coordinates job openings between states and administers
the unemployment insurance (UI) work test to verify that individuals receiving Ul benefits are registered
for work and are actively seeking employment.



Panhandle YTD December 31, 2022 Report

Participant Data by Grant
Information on the grants below is for workforce program participants receiving staff-assisted training and/or supportive services.
Participants may be served by more than one grant.

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance/Employment and Training

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families/Non-Custodial Parent Employment Services

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families/CHOICES

Trade Adjustment Assistance

Workforce Investment Act/Workforce Innocation & Opportunity Act - Dislocated Worker

O Total Participants Served
Workforce Investment Act/Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act - Youth B Exited
xite

O Currently Enrolled

Workforce Investment Act/Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act - Adult

0 50 100 150 200 250




BOARD SUMMARY REPORT - CONTRACTED MEASURES

BOARD NAME: PANHANDLE

BOARD CONTRACT YEAR 2022 YEAR END REPORT

With Positive Meeting With Negative .
Status Summa % +P & MP
v Performance {+P). |Performance (MF):| Performance (-F):
Contracted Measures 16 5 1 95.45%
Source % Current | Current EQY Current Prior Year 2 Years YTD Num
Tiotes Measure Status Target Target Target Perf, End Ago YE YTD Den QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 |From| To
WIOA Outcome Measures
DouC Employed Q2 Post Exit - Adult +P | 109.17% | 75.10% | 75.10% | 81.99% 81.16% 86.36% 191 73.68% | 74.07% | 56.84% | 57.93% | 7i20 | 6/21
(DOL) E
DOL-C Employed Q4 Post Exit— Adult B | 11372% | 75.10% | 75.10% | 85.40% 75.58% 80.58% LA 91.18% | 78.95% | 86.84% | 85.19% | 1/20 |12/20
(DOL) a7
DOLC Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit — Adult =P | 148.38% |[$6.500.00|36.500.00| $9.644.68 | $9.233.14 | s1073323 1"“31 $9,493.16(511,920.54|$8.005.46|$10,520.85| 7/20 | &/21
(DOL) E]
DoL-C Credential Rate — Adult +P | 114.69% | 76.90% | 76.00% | 83.20% 89.10% 85.00% :1 95.20% | 87.10% | 86.10% | 85.20% | /20 122
[DOL) 5
DOL-C Measurable Skills Gains - Adult 2 | 11070% | se20ew | 6E200 | 7o.30% 70 30% 60 60% LS I I [ I 7121 | &I22
' ([DOL) 217
DoC Employed Q2 Post Exit —DW MP | ©652% | 8580% | 65.80% | 82.81% | 9231% | 88.36% = 50.00% | 100.00% | 94.44% | 72.00% | 7/20 | 621
[DOLI =
DoLC Employed Q4 Post Exit—DW P | s528% |2210% [8210% | 7000% | 9167% | 2864% = 66.67% | 6667% | 50.00% | 80.00% | 1/20 |12/20
(DOL) 30
DOLCl Median Farnings Q2 Post Exit - DW +P | 107.84% |$2.600.00|38.600.00| 5927303 | $713452 | 1252421 1z $8,204.90|$12.466.76 |38 938.34|59,354.05| 7/20 | 6121
[DOL) 52
DoLC Credential Rate —DW MP | 10937% | 8750% | 87.50% | 9570% | 10000% | 100.00% 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 92.30% | 1/20 |12/2
[DOL) 73
DOL-C Measurable Skills Gains - DW «P | 108.43% | 70.00% | 70.00% | 7590% | 7590% | 75.00% =i NI S T 7121 | 6122
' [DOL) =
DOLC|  Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit — Youth MP | 9582% | 76.80% | 76.830% | T74.26% 81.67% 80.58% 28 BET1% | 66.67% | 62.50% | 72.73% | 720 | 621
(DOL) =
DOL-C|  Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit—Youth <P | 12003% | 72.10% | 72.10% | 86.54% 77.92% 80.51% 25 100.00% | 88.24% | 85.71% | 50.00% | 1/20 |12/20
(DOL) g2
DOL-C Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit - Youth <P | 251.23% [$3.300.00|33.200.00| $6,230.69 | S5.481.43 | §4,757.20 L] $6,408.84(59,228.83|59.251.05|512,951.79| 720 | &/21
[DOL) =
DoLC Credential Rate - Youth +P | 14544% | 6250% | 6250% | 9090% | 8650% | 79.00% 83.30% | 9090% | 90.90% | 100.00% | 1/20 |12/20
([DOL)
DOL-C Measurable Skills Gains - Youth +P | 186.60% | 50.00% | 50.00% | 83.30% 83.30% 66.10% N (R (U (R (] — 7121 | 622
: (DOL) =
L8+ |  Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit — C&T MP | 101.97% | 83.30% | 63.30% | &4.55% B5.56% 72.45% 4,304 58.33% | 84.53% | 69.40% | 70.20% | 7/20 | 621
Participants 8,513
LE8-K| Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit - C&T <P | 106.50% | 80.25% | 80.25% | 8554% 80.80% 26.02% 4,258 83.87% | 26.08% | 86.41% | 86.00% | 1/20 [12/20
Participants 4975
LEEH Credential Rate — C&T Participants +P | 126.01% | 70.10% | 70.10% | 88.33% 87.50% 82.84% :Q“ 92.11% | 88.89% | £8.24% | 84.78% | 1/20 [12/20

1. AllBCY22 yearend targets were adjusted in accordance with WIOA statutory requirements and DOL policy guidance with the same statistical adjustment model used to negotiate the targets originally and including individual
Board adjustments during those negotiations. UPDATE: These targets have been corrected after initial publication on 12/20/22; in addition, we had made some corrections to the performance coding over the past few months
(primarily fixing M5G but also making sure Median Earnings captured supplemental wages correctly) so performance has changed slightly.

Page 41 of 58




BOARD SUMMARY REPORT - CONTRACTED MEASURES

BOARD NAME: PANHANDLE BOARD CONTRACT YEAR 2022 YEAR END REPORT

Source| % Current | Current EOY Current Prior Year 2 Years YTD Num
Measure Status

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 |From| To

Motes. Target Target Target Perf. End Ago YE ¥TD Den

Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures

WNC | Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks | -p | 115.64% | 53.84% | 59.84% | 69.80% 66.95% 63.81% ,,'923 7202% | 6327% | 66.07% | 69.01% | 7/21 | 622
|
TWE % of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistancel ~p | 15785 | 2244 | 2244 2,508 2,085 2,063 —— 1530 | 1500 | 1420 | 1086 [10021| oi22

2. Yearend targets were adjusted to update the “TWC-only portion” of the target as prescribed by Commission-approved methodology. All Boards that met their local targets met performance expectations.

Program Participation Measures

WC |Choices Full Engagement Rate - All Family Totall .o | 124.34% | 5000% | 50.00% | 6242% | 1272% | 40.18% : 59.60% | 61.85% | 75.40% | 52.63% [10/21| 9i22
':C Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined MP 06 .6239% 2048 2 043 1983 1.934 2 161 5115;48 1,919 1,802 2,030 2,060 [10/21] 922
3 26

3. Given the confusion over the shift to a new standard CC denominator to use every year of 262, we have reloaded the CC data using the 261 denominator and will be locking at this issue going forward for BCY23 to reduce
confusion.

Page 42 of 58




AT-A-GLANCE COMPARISON - BOARD CONTRACTED MEASURES
Percent of Target

[Green = <P |[White =MP | [Vellow = MP but AtRisk |[Red =P ] BOARD CONTRACT YEAR 2022 YEAR END REPORT

WIOA OQutcome Measures
Adult oW Youth

Median Measurable Median Measurable | Employed/ | Employed/ Median Measurakle
Employed Q2 |Employed O | £amings 02 | Credential | Skills Gaing [EMPloved Q2 |Employed Q4 | Eamings Q2 | Credential | Skills Gains Emrolled 02 | Envolled 04 | Eamings Q2 | Credental | Siile Gain
Board ostBat | FostBat | pogi it Rate | (YTD-Only) | FPost®et | Post&xit | PostBt Rate | (YTD-Only) | PostExit | PostExt | PostExit Rate | (¥TD-Oniy)
Alamo 97.48% | 104.19% | 137.11% | 95.01% | 10554% | 91.89% | 9962% | 12202% | 100.91% | 142.68% | 9257% | 106.26% | 13121% | 169.12% _ 108.80%
Borderplex 111.25% | 121.74% | 199.39% | 116.37% | 169.02% | 100.44% | 10471% | 10493% | 117.41% | 8357% | 110.80% | 119.89% | 101.37% | 108.47% | 112.00%
Brazos Valley 106.65% | 105.67% | 110.38% | 126.30% | 108.31% | 92.65% | 9135% | 0868% | 10246% | 142.86% | 9640% | 110.06% | 23324% | 10246% | 316.67%
Cameron 109.96% | 109.32% | 14038% | 11245% | 9924% | 10878% | 12398% | 11489% | 119.47% | 13693% | 10815% | 12836% | 20997% | 21219% | 159.40%
Capital Area 10147% | 9530% | 18734% | 8065% | 119.03% | 10673% | 11931% | 13827% | 10025% | 14250% | 11942% | 10657% | 109.09% | 137.76% | 322.37%
Central Texas 117.20% | 106.68% | 179.18% | 10206% | 128.87% | 10142% | 10107% | 11844% | 8672% | 116.71% | 99.01% | 11816% | 117.44% | B8000% | 23947%
Coastal Bend 104 26% | 9503% | 13050% | 9343% | 11556% | 10366% | 9901% | 0900% | 102.00% | 13946% | 9362% | 10351% | 10411% | 15053% | 168.80%
Concho Valley 11962% | 9950% | 13405% | O174% | 12753% | 119.02% | 10582% | 18772% | 0349% | 107.14% | 104 17% | 10532% | 158.17% | 234.04% | 80.00%
Dallas 88.58% | 87.07% | 11552% | 106.11% | 123.04% | 9183% | 0441% | 117.17% | 116.46% | 96.00% | 99.32% | 109.03% | 150.27% | 124.90% | 112.20%
Deep East 117.91% | 0063% | 9460% | 14127% | 147.61% | 11565% | 9021% | 14631% | 03.02% | 164.82% | 120.34% | 10246% | 0835% | 154.32% | 316.86%
East Texas 06.23% | 107.04% | 109.70% | 102.00% | 9069% | 91.63% | 10665% | 14025% | 112.45% | 134.46% | 100.56% | 101.86% | 144.46% | 210.53% | 145.20%
Golden Crescent 11542% | 0641% | 14108% | 10666% | 6616% | 9465% | 10372% | 17224% | 12600% | 151.79% | 6510% | 110.06% | 10542% | 4000% | 184.65%
Gulf Coast 10079% | 0183% | 10583% | 0985% | 13423% | 9820% | 9927% | 12100% | 101.00% | 14107% | 100.00% | 10643% | 12261% | 17595% | 88.80%
Heart of Texas 115.35% | 109.79% | 165.63% | 111.07% | 100.76% | 11661% | 8526% | 187.47% | 114.29% | 110.71% | 126.76% | 10463% | 11510% | 11257% | 54.82%
Lower Rio 106.58% | 105.21% | 107.19% | 100.73% | 123.26% | 105.00% | 100.92% | 138.37% | 104.92% | 160.00% | 100.41% | 9584% | 137.20% | 194.04% | 125.00%
Middle Rio 114.38% | 100.66% | 156.08% | 8540% | 180.31% | 11655% | 121.80% | 112.76% | 142.86% | 163.75% | 93.66% | 112.02% | 10239% | 106.93% | 4386.60%
North Central 9207% | 9199% | 11608% | 10138% | 8323% | 9607% | 9230% | 11809% | 10758% | BB00% | 104 16% | 9682% | 14978% | 12877% | 122.00%
North East 116.64% | 10804% | 14941% | 10278% | 147.04% | 11504% | 10437% | 10250% | 11543% | 13014% | 117.19% | 11836% | 15613% | 15301% | 16260%
North Texas 94.12% | 108.64% | 158.86% | 93.47% | 113.90% | 109.27% | 120.16% | 12241% | 127.00% | 14554% | 153.37% | 12244% | 109.38% | 162.07% | 438.60%
Panhandls 109.17% | 113.72% | 148.38% | 114.69% | 119.79% | 96.52% | 8526% | 107.84% | 109.37% | 108.43% | 96.82% | 120.03% | 251.23% | 14544% | 166.60%
Permian Basin 108.65% | 11127% | 179.07% | 101.99% | 11358% | 10323% | 11079% | 17013% | 114.76% | 13679% | 9163% | 90.15% | 10317% | 13509% | 103.80%
Rural Capital 107.74% | 10552% | 156.13% | 107 50% | 96.83% | 10008% | 92.12% | 159.09% | 110.86% | 102.00% | 114.00% | 10268% | 18451% | 124.16% | 358.33%
South Plains 12402% | 11145% | 13020% | 10133% | 13977% | 10851% | 11650% | 14167% | 9943% | 14286% | 11979% | 11888% | 16722% | 12304% | 166.60%
South Texas 115.96% | 95.97% | 87.31% | 120.92% | 167.86% | 111.78% | 133.51% | 165.04% | 114.29% | 139.83% | 111.60% | 115.19% | 120.91% | 162.07% | 404.82%
Southeast 87.40% @ 9247% | 11293% | 137.92% | 11511% | 103.07% | 102.00% | 12358% | 9143% | 10271% | 09967% | 89.29% | 11830% | 168.42% | 253.95%
Tarrant 100.28% | 10069% | 13743% | 10345% | 127.72% | 102.14% | 10291% | 11983% | 97.11% | 133.93% | 10893% | 10484% | 13406% | 24755% | 22368%
Texoma 11817% | 11356% | 18336% | 107.68% | 13423% | 10101% | 9135% | 109.14% | 11429% | 131.00% | 11191% | 10669% | 18756% | 9600% | 158.40%
West Central 12671% | 118.26% | 14582% | 12431% | 14340% | 10450% | 108.76% | 13241% | 11429% | 11429% | 10061% | 9377% | 11367% nia 246 26%

+P 18 6 26 9 22 10 7 24 14 23 12 11 23 21 24

MP 6 21 0 17 3 13 19 4 13 3 11 16 5 4 1

P 4 i 2 2 3 5 2 0 1 2 5 1 0 2 3

% MP & +P 86% 6% 93% 93% 89% 82% 93% 100% 6% 93% 82% 06% 100% 03% 89%

From 7120 120 720 1720 7121 7120 1720 7120 1720 7721 7120 1720 7120 120 7121

To 621 12120 6/21 12120 6/22 621 12120 621 12120 6122 621 12720 6/21 12/20 6122

Page 1 of 2



Percent of Target

IGF-EEH:"'P II White = MP IIYE”OW:MP but At RiSk”REd=-P I BOARD CONTRACT YEAR 2022 YEAR END REPDRT
WIOA Outcome Measures (cont.) | Reemployment and
Employer Participation Total Measures
CAT Participants Engagement
Employed/ Employed/ RL:EIrT:I:;- E;;E::i? Average # Children 3F"
Enjrclled QQ Enrolled 02_— Credential ment within | Warkfarce Choices Full Ser:u\ed jgr Day- &
Board ost-Exit | Q4 Post-Exit Rate 10 Weeke | Assictance | Engagement Rate Combined o mel el e
Alamo 096.48% 106.09% 78.70% 101.29% 104.44% 111.28% 96.62% 9 |10 3 [B86%
Borderplex 100.88% 106.42% 1M11.77% 98.47% 101.22% 106.34% 81.53% 12| 8 2 | 91%
Brazos Valley 09.67% 106.08% 109.09% 102.09% 100.94% 110.40% 100.56% 11|10 1 | 95%
Cameron 103.63% 100.90% 126.11% 102.90% 096.29% 75.48% 96.50% 147 1 | 95%
Capital Area B8 .96% 107 31% 91.84% 104 .51% 103.60% 75.26% 97 14% 1|7 4 |82%
Central Texas 098.31% 103.54% 100.70% 104.26% 94 85% 89.28% 96.13% 8 |10 4 |82%
Coastal Bend 05 B85% 104.72% 82 77% 104 .84% 106.95% 90.06% 98.90% 6 |13 3 [86%
Concho Valley 101.71% 107.13% 96.39% 117.72% 97 47% 127.74% 94.32% 119 | 2 |91%
Dallas 98.70% 104.41% 106.29% 98.57% 87.52% 115.80% 99.93% 9 9 4 |82%
Deep East 98.61% 103.07% 106.16% 102.01% 101.46% 107.14% 96.09% 1110 | 1 | 95%
East Texas 05 51% 103.60% 9382% 108.45% 107.24% T8.92% 89.73% 9 a 5 | TT%
Golden Crescent 106.87% 109.30% 103 .54% 103.81% 102.59% 114 56% 94 .08% 11| 6 5 | 7T%
Gulf Coast 92.97% 103.22% 94.45% 98.23% 66.04% 79.06% 102.86% 6 |11 & | T
Heart of Texas 101.93% 109.55% 96.75% 105.53% 107.68% B85.26% 95.00% 13| 6 3 | 86%
Lower Rio 100.73% 98.93% 110.09% 103.48% 101.15% 117.42% 103.37% 10 [ 12 | 0 [100%
Middle Rio 100.24% 93 74% 82 77% 102.32% 90.97% T972% 101.98% 10| 6 6 | 73%
Horth Central 95 62% 106.08% G98.30% G99.57% 105.25% 95 40% 76.12% T |11 4 |82%
North East 101.50% 103.73% 1M7.10% 99 87% 106.38% 73.90% 97 26% 13| 8 1 | 95%
North Texas 105.86% 109.00% 128 .93% 108.81% 98 72% 102.40% 101.32% 16 | 5 1 | 95%
Panhandle 101.97% 106.559% 126.01% 116.64% 115.78% 124.84% 96.83% 16 | 5 1 | 95%
Permian Basin 96.41% 104.30% 105.32% 104.43% 97.86% 79.14% 95.06% 1010 2 [91%
Rural Capital 096.54% 108.93% 96.66% 106.25% 108.10% 79.50% 94.21% M9 2 |[91%
South Plains 103.70% 105.69% 109.02% 116.06% 97 22% 94 48% 96.91% 16 | 5 1 | 95%
South Texas 101.04% 97 56% 142 65% 100.99% 113.49% 110.14% 103.20% 16| 5 1 | 95%
Southeast 06 87% 103.71% 104 .94% 109.11% 106.85% 102.10% 97 .36% 9 |11 2 [91%
Tarrant 97.01% 105.15% 102.77% 101.54% 102.74% 76.58% 90.99% 9 |11 2 [91%
Texoma 099.87% 109.52% 119.20% 102.00% 101.59% 85.18% 104.80% 121 9 1 | 95%
West Central 92 21% 103.03% 127 .23% 110.16% 103.32% 88.16% 97.82% 1217 | 2 |90%
+P 2 14 14 9 9 10 0 308
MP 23 13 8 19 15 3 21 238
P 3 1 ] 0 4 15 7 69
% MP & +P 9% 96% 79% 100% 86% 46% 75% 89%
From Ti20 1720 1720 [iral 10721 10121 10421 From
To 6/21 12/20 12/20 6/22 9/22 9/22 9/22 To




EEPORT ON THE PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA'S
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT GRANTS FOE. THE FERIOD
OCTOBER. 1, 2022 - DECEMEER. 31, 2022

Panhandle YTD December 2022 Report

Administration and
Service Delivery Costs Training and Support Total
Total Total Percent Total Total Percent Total Total Percent
Budgeted Expendad Expendad Budestad Expendad Expended Budestad Expended Expendad
GRANTS FROVIDING SERVICES TO LOW-INCOME ADULTS/YOUTH AND DISLOCATED WORKERS
Waorkforce Innovation & Opportunity Act/Adult 336,930 107 921 200 350,000 48159 14% 286,930 156,080 18%:
Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act/Youth 364 449 78,796 : 125,000 23457 19%% 480 440 102 253 21%
Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act/Youth - Work Experience 40,000 32,664 120,723 17,201 14%% 160,723 49 366 3%
Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act/DLW 409 987 08876 125 000 - 0r¥e 334,987 08,376 18%
Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act/Rapid Response 19475 - 0% - - 0% 19473 - (%)
Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act/ National Dislocated Worker Grant 83,389 48,582 7% 200,000 15,832 0% 283,589 64 434 23%
Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment 193,879 41,309 21% - - %% 193,879 41,309 21%
Trade Adjustment Assistance 2300 1 166 1% 0000 2,868 e 11300 10,034 80
GRANTS PROVIDING SERVICES TO PUBLIC ASSISTANCE RECIPIENT S, NON-CUSTODIAL PARENTS AND OFFENDERS
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families/ CHOICES 291914 239938 26% 70,000 3,142 4% 1,061 914 263 080 25%
Temporary Assistance to Neady Families/NCP 139 846 37937 0% 135,000 1472 10%% 154 846 39409 25%
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Employment & Training - General Population 180,363 33,736 19%: 45 000 9703 22% 225,363 43439 19%
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Employment & Training - ABAWD 43208 29289 61% 3000 3,796 6% 33208 33083 62%
GRANTS PROVIDING CHILD CARE SERVICES TO LOW-INCOME FAMILIES AND OTHER ASSISTANCE TO CHILD CARE PROVIDERS
Child Care Formula / MMatch 2,291 348 541 810 24% 13235076 3,380 006 25% 13 546 424 3021816 25%
Child Care SIF. Funds - - 0% 443 874 120,360 43% 443 874 190,560 43%
Child Cars Quality Improvement 70,000 3467 12% 345,000 30,612 e 613,000 39078 10%%
Child Care Quality Ientor and Assessor 407,000 71,333 1%% - - e 407,000 71,333 1%%%
Child Care Quality Child Care Industry Support 129,836 - 0% - - e 129,836 - e
Child Care Quality CERSA TES Incentives - - 0% 284 590 2,155 1% 284 590 2,155 1%
CCP - Family and Protective Services 75 000 10,401 14% 025000 208.013 22% 1000000 218 414 22%
GRANTS PROVIDING SUPPORT FOR WORKFORCE CENTER OPERATIONS AND FACILITIES
Wagner-Peyser Employment Service 160413 88 368 35% - - 0r¥e 160413 88 368 35%
Veterans Employment Service 18259 3,833 1% - - 0¥ 18259 3,833 1%
GRANTS PROVIDING SUPPORT FOR TEXAS WORKFORCE COMMISSION SPECIAL INITIATIVES AND OTHER. PROJECTS
Workforce Commission Initiatives - TVLP 3,037 770 25% - 0¥ 3,057 770 25%
Workforce Commission Initiatives - Youth Carser Fair 35,000 690 2% - e 35,000 600 2%
Workforce Commission Initiatives - Hiring Red, White and You! 1,650 1,530 03% - e 1.650 1,530 93%
Workforce Commission Initiatives - Child Care Services Program 1,212 - %% - - %% 1212 - %%
Hireability Mavigater 113,000 30,778 2% - e 113,000 30,778 2%
High Demand Job Training Grant 300,000 - 0% - 0 300,000 - 0
TOTAL 6618714 1,534 304 23% 16,518 263 3962997 24% 23136977 5497 301 24%




PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING
COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (c)

Appointment to Cybersecurity Council



The Cybersecurity Council will be comprised of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and, at least one
additional member with an interest and/or expertise in IT and cybersecurity-related issues, who are willing
to serve on the Cybersecurity Council, and are elected by the Panhandle Workforce Development Board
(PWDB) in an Open Public Meeting. At the discretion of the Chairperson, the Council may act on behalf
of the PWDB on matters requiring such prompt action that the Board cannot be convened for a special
meeting. Such actions will be subject to ratification by the Board.

PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
CYBERSECURITY COUNCIL

FOR FEBRUARY 22, 2023 — JUNE 30, 2025

PRIVATE SECTOR (AREA I - DALLAM, HARTLEY,
MOORE, OLDHAM AND SHERMAN COUNTIES)
Mr. Michael Wright *

Publisher
Moore County News - Press
Dumas, Texas

POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION
Mr. Texas D. “Tex” Buckhaults **
President
Clarendon College
Clarendon, Texas

LABOR ORGANIZATIONS
Mr. Paul Salazar

Training Director, JATC
West Texas Electrical Joint Apprenticeship & Training Committee
Amarillo, Texas

COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS
Ms. Magi York
Executive Director
Panhandle Community Services

Amarillo, Texas

* Denotes the member selected to serve as Chairperson
** Denotes the member selected to serve as Vice Chairperson



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (e) (1)
Board Plan draft



Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan

Program Years 2021-2024

Updated for 2023 Two-Year Board Plan Modification

Table of Contents

Contents
T o [ ol o 1o T U 3
Part 1: Board Vision ANd SEtrAteQies ............eeeuueereeeenerreeeeiiireeeiirreeeniireeneessseneisssenssesssesssesssmnssssssnssssssennns 4
B. Board Strategies (WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(A)(6)) .....c.euuueeeeerrereereunnnecerrrererennnsneeesnennenns 6
C. High-Performing Board (WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17)) .......cccvuuvreriririsisisinnnneessnnnnans 10
Part 2. Economic and WOrKforce ANGIYSIS .........uueuueeeeeeueeeeeeneeeeeeeniereeeeiesseesissseessssseeasssssenssssssenssssssnnns 11
A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(1)) 11
B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2)).......ccccceevvvvrrrrrrrrrrnrnn. 23
C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends (WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3)) .....eeeveeuuecererunenrenes 24
D. Workforce Development Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))........c.cceeuuerererrrnnen 26
PArt 3: COIE PrOGIOMS........ccuuvveeiiineienneirisesisesirsussrsusissssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsss 27
A. Workforce Development System (WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1)).......cccceeerrrrreruunneraaanns 27
B. Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access
(WIOA §108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(D)(2)) .......ceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiisisisssssssssssssssssss s ssss s s s s s s s s s s s s s e 29
Part 4: ONe-Stop Service DEIIVErY ...........ccvveuueiriruiiiiierusiisisniiissisnisisiesuisssesisissssnsssssssssessssssssssssssssssnsns 31
A. One-Stop Service Delivery System (WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5)) .....ceeeeerrrireruunneiiaenns 31
B. Cooperative Agreements (WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))........ceuueuuerreeneerreeneereennnnns 38
C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program
Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3)) ....ccevuuuerieerriirermnnniisissinnernnnssssssssensssnnnsnnns 39
D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services (WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))................... 40
E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management (WIOA §108(b)(21); 20 CFR
§679.560(D)(20)) ...ttt s aaa e e s e s e s e s anan 41
Part 5: Workforce INVeStmMeNnt ACLIVIties............cceeeueeeeeeeneereeeuniereeenseesennniessenessessenssssssenssssssnnssssssnssssssennns 41
A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities (WIOA §108(b)(5);
20 CFR §679.560(D)(4)).....cccnuuuuunriiiiiiiiiiiiuntiniitiinsissssssstessss s ssssses s s s ssasse s s s s s s s s s saaana s e s e s e nas 41
B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7)) ........ccccevvvvveeeeeens 42
C. Youth Activities and Services (WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8)).........ccccovrrreruuuusssirerenenes 423

D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs (WIOA §108(b)(10);
20 CFR §679.560(D)(9)).cceueueeeiiiiiiieruniiiiiiiiiirienesisiississtsnsnssssssssisessnssssssssssssssnnssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssns 45



E. Child Care and Early Learning (40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services) ..............ccceeenn. 46

F. Transportation and Other Support Services (WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10)) .............. 48
G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) .......ccuueeeireereeemennceeieeenerennnseessseneernnnssssesanenns 48
Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, ANd YOULR S@IVICES ..........eeueeeueeeeeeieeeieeeiresirereeesseesressmsssmsessseessennees 51
A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training .......ccccceiieuiiiiieniciiinniciinenie, 51
B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals ..........cccoeeiriienniiniennninnnenen. 51
Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and CONLIACES ...........c..eeeeeeereenieeeeniereeerriniereecernsserressessessesesssssnnes 54
WO LYot 1. Y= o | 54
B. Sub-Grants and CONEracts .........cieeieeuuiiiiiiiiiiieiin s s 54
Part 8: PErfOrMANCE........cuuueevveveniiiiieeniiniinnnisssissssissssssssisssssmsssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 55
A. Board Performance Targets.....ccciiiuiiiiiiuiiiiinnieiiimmieiienmsieiirmssieiesmssiesmsistsessssssssssssssesssssssessssssses 55
Part 9: Training GNM SEIVICES ........ccoveuureirrieeuiiiiivrniisiissssisssmsmsiississmsissssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 56
A. Individual Training ACCOUNTS (ITAS) ...ccceereeuuciiirieiereneneeeereeeeeransssceesseeeesnnssssessssessennnssssssessesssnnnnnns 56
B. ITA LIMItatioNns......cciiiiiiimeeiiiiiiiiiiieiiiinirrrreeiciin et erenesasses s s e e e sssessssssseesssssssssesssene 56
Part 10: APPIrentiCESRIP.........ceeeeeeeeneereurerenneereueerenserensserensseressesssssessnssesssssssnssesenssessnssssnssesensas 57
A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs........cciiveiiiiinuieiiinniiniinnnieiinmieiimmsiiesmseiiesmssmsssesesssssses 57
B. APPrentiCeShiPTeXaS.  cciiiiiuiiiiiieiiiiieniiiiieniiiiiesiiriessieriessistiesssstiessssstssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssennes 57
Part 11: PUBliC COMMENT .......ccceeueirrieeniiirriniiiiiiinnnsiisssssssisssssmsssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 57
Modification Form — WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 1................ccovvvuueirrvvvnriirrnvenisssnennsssssssnansonns 60
Texas Workforce Investment Council REQUIr€MENTS...........ceeeeeeeeenereeneerenneeeenrerensserenseesensesennnens 66
Demonstrating Alignment with Texas’ Strategic Plan — WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 2........... 70
FOCUS ON EMPIOYEIS ....eeeeiiiieeiiiieeeeiiieeeerreeaesesrennssesrennssssrenssssseenssssseensssssennsssssennsssssennsssssennssssnennns 70
ENgAage in Partnerships..ccccciiieciiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiieniiniieniniiesiiieesiiiiesseiiessisiiesssssisessssssssssssssssssssssannes 71
ALIgN SYStem Elements....cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieiirieiessseiesassestessssestesssssssessssssesssssssesssssssensssssses 73
Improve and INtegrate Programs.......c.ivcceiiiiieeiiiiiineiiiiieniiniiesiiniiesisisessssisssssssiesssssssessssssssssssssssnes 75

Strategic Opportunities to Drive Local Implementation .........c.ccceceiiiieiiiiieeieriieeccrreeeecsreeeseesrennnenns 76



Introduction

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 [20 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) §679.500-580], each Local Workforce Development Board is required to develop and submit
to the state a comprehensive four-year Board plan that identifies and describes policies and procedures
as well as local activities which align with the following:

e The Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan FY 2016-FY 2023 2020 Update
https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf

e Texas Workforce Consolidated 2021-2025 Strategic Plan
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-to-2025-twc.pdf

e  WIOA Combined State Plan Program Years 2020-2023 Two Year Modifications

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission_meeting_material 02.15.22 item8b_
wioa_csp_2020-2023_2yr mod_I-1I_strategic elements.pdf

e Adult Education and Literacy Strategic Plan Fiscal Years 2021 to 2026

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/adult-education-and-literacy-strategic-plan-2021-
2026-twc.pdf

e Texas Early Learning Council Early Learning Strategic Plan, 2020-2025
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/tx-early-learning-strategic-plan-twe.pdf
e House Bill (HB) 619 Child Care Workforce Strategic Plan 2023-2025

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission-meeting-materials-12.20.22-item7b-hb619-
strategic-plan-twc.pdf

Two years after the development of an initial Workforce Development Board Plan, Boards are
required to then submit a modification which reflects labor market changes, economic conditions and
other factors affecting plan implementation. Texas Government Code requires that the Board Plans
are aligned with the Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan, specifically the FY 2016-FY 2023,
2020 Update.

This document begins with the initial Board Plan for the Panhandle Workforce Development Area
(PWDA) and builds upon it with the modification information.

The Panhandle Workforce Development Board (PWDB) is a business-led group, the majority of
which is comprised of employers from the private sector, as well as representatives from community-
based organizations, labor, economic development, secondary and post-secondary education, adult
and continuing education, literacy, vocational rehabilitation, public employment services, and the
State department of human services. The PWDB is appointed by local elected officials, and oversees
workforce program services provided in the 26-county region of the Texas Panhandle. The PWDB
and its partners together implement the Board Plan, which directs local entities in their efforts to
build a labor force that sustains local communities and supports a positive economic climate.

In 2018, Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) announced its intention to divest itself of ownership
of'its buildings statewide, which included the Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP) facility at 1206
S.W. 7th Avenue, in Amarillo, where the PWDB has been delivering workforce development

3


https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-to-2025-twc.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission_meeting_material_02.15.22_item8b_wioa_csp_2020-2023_2yr_mod_I-II_strategic_elements.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission_meeting_material_02.15.22_item8b_wioa_csp_2020-2023_2yr_mod_I-II_strategic_elements.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/tx-early-learning-strategic-plan-twc.pdf

services for decades. During the same period, TWC began planning to integrate its Texas Workforce
Solutions Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) Services staff into the WSP operations in the Panhandle.
Over the following years, the PWDB facilitated a relocation of WSP and VR services and staff,
opening in a remodeled facility located at 3120 Eddy Street in Amarillo, in March, 2021. The move
from a State-owned building, provided to the PWDB at a nominal cost, into a privately-owned facility
requiring commercial leasing costs, has added a considerable infrastructure burden to the PWDB’s
Service Delivery capabilities, with an increase in Operating Costs of nearly 185%, and required a
shifting of funding.

Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies

A. Vision and Goals (WIOA §108(b)(1)(E); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(5))

The vision of the PWDB is to establish and enhance a workforce delivery system that serves the
needs of area employers, job seekers, and constituents with efficient and effective services by
promoting collaboration among stakeholders, creating partnerships with other community
organizations, and focusing on workforce issues. The PWDB also supports regional economic growth
and economic self-sufficiency that will guide the development and provision of services.

e Through engagement with employers, education and training providers, the PWDB collaborates
in career and technical education design, content, and delivery options that are aligned with
industry needs. In alignment with TWC’s System Goal Area 1 — Focus on Employers, the PWDB
will continue:

v Expanding the number of apprentices in underserved populations;

v" Developing training opportunities toward industry-based certifications to expand the number
of work-ready individuals in high demand occupations;

v" Increasing the number of employers who participate in work-based learning programs;

v Engaging industry representatives to collaborate with community colleges in new program
development that incorporates national industry-based certifications into programs of study;

v’ Assisting with aligning the Texas Education Agency (TEA) Texas Essential Knowledge and
Skills (TEKS) to Industry-based certifications, where applicable. (Reference:
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-
skills); and

v’ Assisting with aligning with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) in
identifying and implementing relevant industry-based certifications and licenses, and
incorporating the occupational information into statewide career and technical education
programs.

e Through collaborative and transparent processes, the PWDB and its partners focus on outcomes
that improve the employability of program participants, from across a wide spectrum of
capabilities and experiences, to meet employer needs. In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 2,
Engage in Partnerships, the PWDB will continue to expand partnerships with system partners
and stakeholders to promote collaboration, joint planning, and enhanced participant outcomes by:
v Improving rehabilitation employment outcomes by establishing additional partnerships with

secondary and postsecondary entities, and employers;

v’ Increasing access to, referral between, and outcomes of adult education programs and
services;

v' Implementing a coordinated approach, with Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), to serving
employers, and to identifying opportunities and strategies for improved coordination and
enhanced participant outcomes;

4


https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills

v’ Participating in regional discussions with the Texas Education Agency about career pathway

expansion opportunities for high school students;

Implementing case management that integrates data among multiple programs;

Collaborating with State and community agencies for enhancing services to foster youth;

Connecting more ex-offenders with adult education programs through better developed

referral processes and appropriate short-term integrated training options; and

v Promoting the importance of community and technical colleges to targeted adult education
services that transition adult learners to higher education.

ASRNEN

e By improving transitions, aligning programs, and ensuring portability and transferability, the
workforce system improves access and the ability of all students to complete programs of study,
earn credential(s), transition to further education, and gain critical employability skills. Through
the implementation of a common technical core curriculum that is recognized statewide,
programs of study can enhance delivery efficiency, dual-credit effectiveness, and improve student
outcomes and transitions. Employers are better positioned to find and hire the employees they
need through an enhanced education and training pipeline. In alignment with TWC’s System
Goal 3, Align System Elements, the PWDB will continue to:

v Improve and enhance services, programs, and policies to align with programs of study in
community and technical colleges with secondary programs;

v Enhance transition services for students and youth with disabilities to competitive integrated
employment or to postsecondary education and training followed by competitive integrated
employment, aligning with the Pathways to Careers Initiative (PCI);

v' Develop and implement policies and processes for career and technical education
opportunities for dual credit; and

v' Seek input from business and industry to identify the essential knowledge, skills, and abilities,
that they require.

¢ By addressing high-priority programmatic needs through an integrated strategy, decision-making,
at the system, partner, and participant levels, is improved and system service delivery is enhanced.
In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 4, Improve and Integrate Programs, the PWDB will
continue to:
v" Identify and implement new, relevant technology and service delivery options to expand
program and service outcomes;
v" Increase competitive integrated employment outcomes by increasing awareness of Vocational
Rehabilitation (VR) services and better serving underserved populations;
v Enhance quality of increased access to quality child care, to support parents in obtaining and
retaining employment;
Support professional development opportunities for child care providers;
Promote increasing the number of child care providers certified as meeting Texas Rising Star
(TRS), or other recognized quality rating and improvement system standards, in the child care
system;
Provide rural service delivery options through the use of mobile units and affiliate sites;
Direct students to available training and career path options with onsite support at public
middle and high schools;
v Expand the use of technology for providing online services such as job fairs, eligibility
determination, and other interactions; and
v' Improve service delivery methods to increase effectiveness of service delivery and
achievement of employment outcomes for underserved populations.

AN

AN



e PWDB goals for preparing an educated and skilled workforce, including early education services,
and services for youth and individuals with barriers to employment include:

v

v

v

Supporting a regional workforce system where individuals are empowered to embark on
career pathways leading to increased educational, occupational, and adult literacy skill levels,
attainment of recognized credentials, employment with self-sufficiency earnings, and
employment security, while meeting the immediate and future skills needs of employers;
Increasing the number of customers engaged in career services and short-term training that
leads to employment in high-wage, in-demand occupations;

Meeting local employers’ demand for skilled workers with an educated, highly skilled, and
well-qualified labor force;

Implementing effective employment placement and retention of veterans, individuals with
disabilities, individuals who have exhausted unemployment insurance benefits, dislocated
workers, the underemployed, and high-risk population groups such as welfare recipients,
disconnected youth and adults who have barriers to employment, including Foster Youth, and
for those individuals who are basic skills deficient;

Increasing the number of low-income customers and individuals who have barriers to
employment who engage in short-term training leading to employment; and

Creating new employment opportunities by motivating skilled workers to remain in or return
to the Panhandle Region.

e PWDB goals relating to the performance accountability measures based on performance
indicators described in WIOA §116(b)(2)(A) include collaboration with workforce system
partners to align, leverage, and combine local communities’ workforce resources by:

v
v
v
v
v

v

Identifying and effectively serving local employers’ skill needs and hiring expectations;
Meeting job seekers’ employment needs for placement, retention, and earnings;

Leveraging resources with education partners to address skill gaps including adult literacy
skills deficiencies;

Outreaching and re-engaging Out-of-School Youth and Older Youth in work-based training;
Increasing short-term occupational training opportunities leading to attaining recognized
credentials; and

Assisting students to successfully complete training which results in measurable skills gains,
recognized credentials, entered employment, retention, and earnings gains.

B. Board Strategies (WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(6))

The PWDB’s strategy to work with entities carrying out the core programs and with required partners
to align resources available to the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA), and to achieve
the vision and goals, includes developing and actively supporting dynamic industry partnerships. By
aligning and sharing resources through existing collaborations, such as the Board’s Business
Advisory Committee, comprised of Board and non-Board members, private sector employers, area
college representatives, PWDB staff, and WSP staff, the PWDB is assisted in designing and
delivering services based on business and industry needs, thus enhancing employer engagement.

e Continued collaboration with required partners in local business and education, and with local
community organizations, will enhance the PWDB’s workforce system capacity for delivering
effective employment and training services, while meeting required performance. Successfully
aligning resources and responding to expected shortages of workers in skilled trades and technical
occupations due to the skills gap created by employee turnover, combined with the increasing
demand for a highly-technically skilled workforce, are essential. WSP Career Services utilize

6



LinkedIn, the business and employment-focused social media platform that works through
websites and mobile apps, to connect with employers and potential job seekers. This platform
has proven effective in allowing job seekers to apply directly with companies, such as Cacique
Cheese, a leading Hispanic foods company expecting to open their new dairy facility in April
2023, in recruiting engineers and other key positions.

The PWDB continues to engage a Student HireAbility Navigator to fulfil the stated purpose of
this position “To improve access to employment and training services and increase employment
opportunities for job seekers with disabilities”. The Panhandle’s Student HireAbility Navigator
is fully involved in serving as a resource in the PWDA by “supporting, expanding, and enhancing
the provision of pre-employment transition services that are provided by VR”, co-located in the
WSP office in Amarillo. Through active participation in numerous relevant local committee
meetings, attending local job fairs and transitional fairs, reaching more employers and service
providers as well as educators, the Navigator continually identifies and reaches out to crucial
partners who have shared goals and objectives to bring to the table. The Navigator is also focusing
on building a knowledge base by attending statewide workforce events such as the TWC Annual
Workforce Conference, presenting information at the Texas Business Conference about hiring
students with disabilities, including discussing the possibility of creating HireAbility Workshops
in Amarillo, and participating in the collection and completion of information for a resource guide
for employers in hiring individuals with disabilities. The Navigator promotes the Texas
HireAbility Campaign at meetings with educators, employers and community partners to increase
the awareness of the benefits of hiring people with disabilities as well as increasing access to pre-
employment transition services.

WSP has created a new staff position of Child Care Business Coach under a new Child Care
Industry Support Division. This staff will assist Child Care Provider owners and managers, as
needed, to increase quality and capacity of existing businesses, in creating new business and in
connecting to resources available to help increase the likelihood of success.

Work continues to encourage and support local partners to pursue skills development grant
opportunities to apply for and obtain grants such as TWC’s Jobs and Education for Texas (JET),
and the High Demand Job Training (HDJT) grants. HDJT’s $150,000 annual Grant Application
opportunities have provided, to-date, over $1,040,000 which were matched by the EDCs, for the
PWDA. The PWDB plans to continue requesting these WIOA Activities funds which have
supplemented Career & Technology Education (CTE) training programs throughout the PWDA.

Identifying and developing effective career pathways, creating data-driven career choices that
align with demand, and delivering appropriate workforce services for Adults, Youth, and
Dislocated Workers under WIOA, are critical to achieving the PWDB’s workforce goals and
objectives. Utilizing resources such as CareerOneStop.com, a U.S Department of Labor (DOL)
tool which pulls datasets from DOL’s Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), and Employment and
Training Administration (ETA), which includes its trademark Occupational Information Network
(O*NET), the PWDB is building career pathway “roadmaps” for occupations on its Target
Occupations List. Where training gaps exist, options such as Local Activity Fund, Wagner-Peyser
grants available through the Governor’s office, and TWC Skills Development Fund (SDF) Grant
projects, may be pursued to fund curriculum development that initiates instructional availability.

To promote Apprenticeship programs between regional businesses, Independent School Districts
(ISDs) and community colleges, the PWDB maintains Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs)
with the Independent Electrical Contractors (IEC) of the Texas Panhandle, the Plumbers &

7



Pipefitters Local 404, the United Brotherhood of Carpenters Local 665, the West Texas Electrical
Joint Apprenticeship & Training Committee (JATC) and the International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 602. These MOUs formalize the responsibilities of the parties
to:

v" Provide information on apprenticeship and training opportunities to PRPC and WSP;

v Make employers and individuals seeking training aware of WSP resources and services and
provide appropriate referrals.

v’ Market the apprenticeship programs to businesses in the PWDA as a means to recruit and

train qualified workers;

Refer WSP customers to the apprenticeship programs;

Provide workforce center space to the apprenticeship providers for use in interviewing,

testing and conducting informational meetings associated with apprenticeship and training

opportunities; and

v' Provide automated links to apprenticeship-related websites through WSP public-use
computers.

Amarillo College (AC) is the PWDA’s Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) Service Provider,
which helps adult students gain the basic skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high
school equivalency, or enter college or career training. AC is developing a new digital customer
referral tool, MyOneFlow, to enhance the collaboration with the PWDB and WSP, in performing
intake, determining program eligibility, assisting with enrollment in classes, coordinating
supportive services as needed, and facilitating the process of connecting customers in order to
provide English language, math, reading, and writing instruction to help students acquire the
skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high school equivalency, or enter college or
career training.

AN

In alignment with the Jobs for Veterans Act, the PWDB and WSP provide priority service to
veterans and spouses of certain veterans for the receipt of employment, training, and placement
services in any job training program directly funded, in whole or in part, by the U.S. Department
of Labor (DOL).

WSP continues to identify gaps in service to veterans and advance strategies to enhance their
education and employment opportunities to ensure seamless transition into the workforce.

WSP continues to host Texas Panhandle Region Employer hiring events at Fort Hood, connecting
Military Separation service members with employers from the PWDA, to potentially attract the
transitioning soldiers to the Panhandle. Most recently, employers traveled to the Lone Star
Convention Center and participated in the Fort Hood Mega Career Fair on January 10, 2023. The
employers included Albers Aerospace, Amarillo Economic Development Corporation,
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 602, International Aerospace
Coatings, Pantex, Talon LPE, and Valero.

The PWDB and WSP also utilize Wagner-Peyser Employment Services (ES) funding to support:

v TWC’s Panhandle Region Hiring Red, White & You! Annual Job Fairs in partnership with
the Texas Veterans Commission (TVC). The most recent event was held on November 11,
2022, hosted at WSP in Amarillo, with TWC’s Executive Director, Mr. Ed Serna, presiding.
A total of 35 employers participated in this event. Job seeker registration was at 141 job
seekers, with 35 veterans in attendance.

v TWC’s Texas Veterans Leadership Program (TVLP), which connects returning veterans

8



with the resources and tools needed to lead productive lives and enjoy the benefits of the
society they have served. The Regional manager for the program serves on the PWDB, is
provided access to resources in the WSP office in Amarillo, and assists WSP’s Business
Services team by referring new employers wanting to post job listings on WorkInTexas.com,
the comprehensive online job search resource and matching system developed and
maintained by TWC.

Foster youth are a priority population. TWC funds transition centers serving both current and
former youth. The centers address critical life barriers facing youth who have or will soon age
out of the foster care system. They provide access to education, employment training and
services, life skills classes, mentoring opportunities, and appropriate support services. WSP and
the PWDB continue to develop and nurture successful partnerships with the Amarillo Foster
Youth Transition Center, at Buckner Children and Family Services, to improve and enhance the
collaborative process of connecting with foster youth and provide comprehensive workforce
services, including career exploration and occupational training or work-based training.
Discussions continue with Amarillo Children’s Home and the Turn Center, the only private, non-
profit, 501(c)(3) organization in the federal Medically Underserved Area (MUA) of the 26-county
Texas Panhandle, to create pathways that support Foster Youth who often have developmental
delays or undiagnosed disabilities transition from school into employment preparation and
traming.

Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP) provides training and employment
services to low-income job seekers age 55 and older to assist them in securing unsubsidized
employment in the public and private sectors. Program participants earn while they learn, gaining
competitive job skills and refining existing skills through paid, part-time, on-the-job training
assignments at non-profit organizations and government agencies. During training, participants
earn minimum wage and provide valuable community services. Utilizing designated office space
in WSP in Amarillo, Motivation Education & Training, Inc. (MET), serving as the Sponsor
Agency for the Senior Service America (SSAI), and as the Panhandle’s SCSEP grantee, provides
training, counseling, employment assistance, and paid, part-time community service assignments
designed to move older workers into unsubsidized employment, which ensures that job seekers
identified by WSP, are likely to benefit from services.

Motivation, Education and Training, Inc. (MET), referenced above, also serves as the Panhandle
region’s National Farmworker Jobs Program (NFJP) contractor, which includes mutual referrals
for services, coordination of the delivery career and intensive services co-enrollment of
individuals eligible for WIOA and NFJP who would benefit from the services of both programs.
Partnering activities, with WSP, include joint case management and employment planning, and
joint staff training.

The WSP Director engages in the local No Limits/No Excuses (NL/NE) program initiative,
Panhandle Community Partnership, with more than 26 community partners dedicated to “Making
pathways to post-secondary credentials and living wage employment accessible for all
individuals”. Working with business and industry, the chief aims of Panhandle Community
Partnership are to connect curriculum and training, create internships, and develop partnerships
with education, community, and employers, to provide living wage jobs that will keep talent in
the PWDA.

Through collaboration with the Texas Panhandle Rural Alliance, a group of vital partners from
different sectors, who strive to create a common agenda, and to apply the concept of “collective

9



impact” as an effective approach for solving specific community social problems, effective
private and public partnerships are being utilized for many endeavors including increasing and
improving workforce development in the PWDA.

Panhandle Community Services (PCS) continues their partnership with the PWDB and WSP, to
enhance employment services to their customers. PCS identifies customers who need assistance
with workforce services to obtain full-time employment or complete short-term training leading
to self-sufficiency and makes referrals to WSP, to begin the process of determining an
individual’s career pathway. PSC’s work-based services include subsidized work experience
arrangements and referrals, when appropriate, to WSP, for short-term training. The partners
collaborate on the provision of supportive services to referred customers who are eligible to
participate in these activities, and job search assistance is provided when customers are job-ready.

C. High-Performing Board (WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17))

The PWDB continues refining ongoing “Best Practices” to remain a high-performing Board,
consistent with the factors developed by the Texas Workforce Investment Council (TWIC). Board
staff work closely with the WSP Contractor on a proactive basis to pinpoint performance shortfalls
and develop effective strategies to improve performance in targeted measures. These efforts
including implementing strategies to increase program spending by appropriate and allowable
methods, including:

Proactive analysis and implementation of state and federal rules and regulations;

Complete review/update of current Board policies compliant with WIOA requirements;
Development and implementation of clear, concise, and substantive new local policies;
Provision of guidance for achieving state mandated program performance standards;
Development of media directed opportunities for job seekers to access workforce services;
Enhancement of the WSP website and development of more effective user interfaces;
Development and implementation of innovative and productive ways to utilize the mobile
workforce units and expand workforce services to rural customers;

Maximization of opportunities through VR Services integration to provide the complete package
to job seekers who have disabilities, and eliminate barriers to employment;

Development and implementation of creative plans to engage disconnected youth, remove
barriers to employment, and produce successful career pathways;

Increase in short term work-based training opportunities leading to employment;

Continuation of improvement of business services team capabilities to assess employers’ skill
needs and match capable workers with job openings;

Engagement with local business leaders on a personal level to pinpoint employment needs;
Reinvigoration of alliances with educators, economic developers and community partners to
further mutual goals including developing apprenticeship initiatives;

Further cultivation of partnerships and collaborations with local colleges and universities, and
pool resources for occupational skills training opportunities;

Collaboration with existing programs and funds to provide increased Adult Education and
Literacy (AEL) skills;

Encouragement, creation, and support of labor market driven decisions for developing skills
training and addressing labor force challenges;

Strengthening of PWDB monitoring oversight focus to identify and address high risk areas;
Sustainment of efforts to effectively place veterans, individuals with disabilities, and high-risk

10



population groups in employment and to retain employment;

e Identification of emerging In-Demand Industries and Occupations, and Target Occupations in
local job markets;

e Continuation of maintaining and improving two-way open lines of communication with WSP
management and staff;

e Provision of active support to WSP management and staff including technical assistance, training,
and guidance and clarification for PWDB policies;

e Communication to foster creative approaches to existing challenges and encourage inventive,
unique ideas;

e Deliverance of WSP staff training that is timely, current, and relevant; and

e Obtainment of training for PWDB staff to fill in program management and knowledge gaps.

In accordance with 40 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §802.62, monitoring activities should
ensure that programs achieve intended results, resources are efficiently and effectively used for
authorized purposes, and resources are protected from waste, fraud, and abuse.

The PWDB continues to ensure that the TWC Subrecipient Monitoring Division of Fraud Deterrence
and Compliance Monitoring is able to place reliance in the Panhandle’s Fiscal and Program (WIOA,
Child Care, and NCP) functions through a subcontracted external Fiscal Monitor and an internal
Program Monitor, and has re-certified the monitoring functions for the Board.

A benefit of the internal Program Monitor not being outsourced is that, in additional to overseeing
the specified attributes shared by TWC, this PWDB staff is able to extend the oversight to encompass
more in-depth review of additional WSP actions, and is able to provide Technical Assistance on a
continuous basis, which provides for proactive and not reactive, faster resolution of issues.

Part 2. Economic and Workforce Analysis

A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR
§679.560(a)(1))

e With regards to the economic conditions of the Panhandle, the issue most likely to affect the
PWDB?’s ability to accomplish its goals is the availability of public funding. Consistently low
unemployment compared to other regions in Texas and declining rural populations have resulted
in reduced State allocations. Additional federal budget cuts and reauthorization of legislation that
funds workforce programs may generate a lower level of resources for local use, especially if
States gain greater flexibility for the distribution of those resources.

Due to past funding limitations, all but two of the region’s rural WSP offices were closed,
affecting much of the 26 counties in the Texas Panhandle, and requiring significant changes in
business practices to facilitate continued services to these areas. Although a limited rural presence
has been reinstated, the Board’s continuing challenge is to ensure that employers, job seekers and
students in rural communities continue to access needed workforce services, despite the lack of
a constant, or limited physical presence.

According to the Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC), tremendous
opportunities for employment growth exist due to the Centerport Business Park, being developed
in downtown Amarillo, designed to be the region’s epicenter for manufacturing and distribution.
With eight initial tenants and a combined workforce of over 850 employees providing products
for global customers, the venture will support businesses that create and sustain a diversified local
economy. Investments in rail and road infrastructure make the park uniquely equipped for

11



continued development as Amarillo continues to serve as a truck and rail transportation hub.

A multitude of healthcare providers, facilities, and agencies offer broad range of medical services
and continue to serve as a major source of employment in the region. Continuing efforts to
identify and collaborate with these entities on innovative and successful skills development
initiatives, such as a Skills Development Fund Grant Partnership with TWC and two Amarillo
hospitals, which increased training for incumbent worker skills, are producing a highly qualified
and well-compensated workforce to administer care to patients throughout a multi-state region.

New home building has been steadily high, as business expansion and new business ventures in
hotels, retail, and restaurants keep construction activity elevated. Increased food production,
processing, and meat packing facilities offer opportunities for jobs involving industrial
mechanical repair. A large immigrant population primarily employed in the meat processing
sector of this industry presents unique challenges to provide basic literacy services, including
English as a Second Language (ESL), that offer opportunities for increased wage-earning
potential.

PWDB staff and WSP Business Services staff gather information on local labor market
developments and formulate recommendations on industries and occupations on which to focus
workforce resources. Small, medium and large employers, economic developers, chamber of
commerce representatives, educators, local elected officials, and other interested parties and
stakeholders have input.

The WSP Business Services Unit specialized division is tailored to meet employer's workforce

needs. The WSP Business Service Representatives (BSRs) work with employers and offer

customized business consulting services, such as addressing human resource challenges and

identifying the skills sets needed by industry. Workforce and Labor Market Information (LMI) is

essential to the Texas Panhandle’s economy, providing for the efficient operation of labor markets

by supplying quality labor market intelligence. Accurate, objective, relevant, timely, and

accessible workforce and LMI is critical for:

v Building a skilled workforce that spurs business competitiveness and economic growth;

v' Strengthening career pathways and guiding skill attainment for good jobs, economic
opportunity, and career growth;

v' Understanding the rapidly changing nature of work and how it impacts the workforce and
the area’s economy; and

v' Spending workforce training and education funds effectively.

WSP BSRs worked closely with Economic Development Corporations (EDCs), Colleges,
Universities, and employers. The largest consumers of WSP’s LMI Services were the Amarillo
EDC (9 total LMI projects), Amarillo College (LMI presentations at each campus throughout the
Texas Panhandle), Frank Phillips College and Clarendon College (both utilized LMI to choose
new educational programs at area campuses).

WSP Business Services staff, in cooperation with the Panhandle Community Partnership began
work on creating an interactive website to clearly visualize career pathway maps. This tool
features Target Occupations from the PWDA, including wage, education requirements, and up-
to-date LMI.

Data analysis on all information collected is used to identify high-growth and high-priority
industries. PWDB staff and WSP staff seek the information from representatives of those
industries about their businesses, and economic development professionals including: industrial

12



and occupational trends; education and training preferences; employee recruiting methods; and
specific gaps in employees’ skills.

PWDB In-Demand Industries and Associated Target Occupations

NAICS Code* In Demand Industry Associated Target Occupations**
Chemical Equipment Operators and Tenders
2111 0il & Gas Extraction Maintenance Workers, Machinery
Petroleum Pump System Operators, Refinery
Operators, and Gaugers
2381 Foundation, Structure, and Building Carpenters
Exterior Contractors Welders, Cutters, Solderers, & Brazers
Electricians
2382 Building Equipment Contractors Heating, Air Conditioning, & Refrigeration Mechanics
and Installers
Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters
3116 Animal Slaughtering & Processing Industrial Machinery Mechanics
3327 Machine Shops, Turned Product, and | Machinists
Screw, Nut, and Bolt Manufacturing Production Workers, All Other
Agriculture, Construction, Indust.rl'al Machinery Mechanics
3331 & Minine Machi Machinists
Manuf;tltrlfin achinery Production Workers, All Other
& Welders, Cutters, Solderers, & Brazers
. . Aircraft Mechanics & Service Technicians
336411 Aircraft Manufacturing Production Workers, All Other
. . . Bus & Truck Mechanic & Diesel Engine Specialists
4342 Specialized Freight Trucking Heavy and Tractor Trailer Truck Drivers
Accounting, Tax Preparation, Accguntants
412 Bookkeeping, and Payroll Services Auditors
PINg Y Bookkeeping, Accounting, & Auditing Clerks
. Computer User Support Specialists
5415 (S:e(:)rr\lflli I:Ser Systems Design & Related Information Security Analysts
Network & Computer Systems Administrators
Accountants & Auditors
Bookkeeping, Accounting & Auditing Clerks
. Food Service Managers
5511 %ﬁzagﬁgzm of Companies & General & Operations Managers
i Paralegals and Legal Assistants
Project Management Specialists and Business
Operations Specialists, All Other
Bookkeeping, Accounting & Auditing Clerks
S611 Office Administrative Services Project Management Specialists and Business
Operations Specialists, All Other
Elementary School Teachers, Except Special Education
. Food Service Managers
Elementary, Mlddle’ & nd Secondary Middle School Teachers, Except Special and
6111 Schools, Public & Private . .
Career/Technical Education
Secondary School Teachers, Except Special and
Career/Technical Education
6211 Offices of Physicians Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses

Medical Assistants

13




PWDB In-Demand Industries and Associated Target Occupations

NAICS Code*

In Demand Industry

Associated Target Occupations**

Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Radiologic Technologists and Technicians

Registered Nurses

6213

Offices of Other Health Practitioners

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants

Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Radiologic Technologists and Technicians

6214

Outpatient Care Centers

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Registered Nurses

6216

Home Health Care Services

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Registered Nurses

6219

Other Ambulatory Health Care
Services

Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics

6221

General Medical & Surgical
Hospitals,
Public & Private

Food Service Managers

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Pharmacy Technicians

Physical Therapist Assistants

Radiologic Technologists and Technicians

Registered Nurses

Respiratory Therapists

6233

Continuing Care Retirement
Communities and Assisted Living
Facilities for the Elderly

Food Service Managers

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Registered Nurses

6244

Child Day Care Services

Childcare Workers

8111

Automotive Repair & Maintenance

Automotive Body and Related Repairers
Automotive Service Technicians & Mechanics

14




PWDB In-Demand Industries and Associated Target Occupations

NAICS Code* In Demand Industry Associated Target Occupations**

Bus & Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine Specialists
Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics, Except Engines

Commercial and Industrial Control and Valve Installers and Repairers, Except
8113 Machinery and Equipment (except Mechanical Door
Automotive and Electronic) Repair Industrial Machinery Mechanics
and Maintenance Production Workers, All Other
Correctional Officers and Jailers
9000 Government: Federal, State, & Local | Firefighters

Police & Sheriff’s Patrol Officers

* North American Industry Classification System
** While only listed once above, some PWDB Target Occupations are associated with multiple PWDB In-Demand Industries.

In-Demand occupations meet the following criteria: Texas Workforce Commission projects 10 or
more annual openings, or 100 or more openings over the next 10 years. The Panhandle WDA includes
the following counties: Armstrong, Briscoe, Carson, Castro, Childress, Collingsworth, Dallam, Deaf
Smith, Donley, Gray, Hall, Hansford, Hartley, Hemphill, Hutchinson, Lipscomb, Moore, Ochiltree,
Oldham, Parmer, Potter, Randall, Roberts, Sherman, Swisher, and Wheeler.

PWDB In-Demand Occupations
881C)EPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE zgﬁékL
OPENINGS
45-2093 Farmworkers, Farm, Ranch, and Aquacultural Animals 2,047
35-3023 Fast Food and Counter Workers 1,257
41-2011 Cashiers 970
41-2031 Retail Salespersons 944
37-2011 Janitors and Cleaners, Except Maids and Housekeeping Cleaners 730
53-7065 Stockers and Order Fillers 589
53-3032 Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers 588
35-3031 Waiters and Waitresses 573
43-9061 Office Clerks, General 540
53-7062 Laborers and Freight, Stock, and Material Movers, Hand 521
11-1021 General and Operations Managers 354
35-2014 Cooks, Restaurant 351
43-4051 Customer Service Representatives 299
51-3023 Slaughterers and Meat Packers 285
47-2061 Construction Laborers 270
37-2012 Maids and Housekeeping Cleaners 260
49-9071 Maintenance and Repair Workers, General 258
51-3022 Meat, Poultry, and Fish Cutters and Trimmers 258

15



PWDB In-Demand Occupations

881C)EPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 1(1\)1;%11;L
OPENINGS
35-1012 First-Line Supervisors of Food Preparation and Serving Workers 257
41-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Retail Sales Workers 254
43-6014 Secretaries and Administrative Assistants, Except Legal, Medical, and 251
Executive
43-3031 Bookkeeping, Accounting, and Auditing Clerks 245
25-3031 Substitute Teachers, Short-Term 239
53-3033 Light Truck Drivers 217
29-1141 Registered Nurses 196
47-2111 Electricians 178
37-3011 Landscaping and Groundskeeping Workers 178
53-7051 Industrial Truck and Tractor Operators 173
47-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Construction Trades and Extraction Workers 172
39-9011 Childcare Workers 166
25-2021 Elementary School Teachers, Except Special Education 166
25-9045 Teaching Assistants, Except Postsecondary 165
43-6013 Medical Secretaries and Administrative Assistants 159
13-2011 Accountants and Auditors 157
31-1131 Nursing Assistants 153
51-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Production and Operating Workers 148
35-9021 Dishwashers 143
47-2073 Operating Engineers and Other Construction Equipment Operators 142
43-4171 Receptionists and Information Clerks 142
53-7064 Packers and Packagers, Hand 137
41-4012 Sales Representatives, Wholesale and Manufacturing, Except Technical and 136
Scientific Products
53-7061 Cleaners of Vehicles and Equipment 134
47-5071 Roustabouts, Oil and Gas 133
25-2031 Secondary School Teachers, Except Special and Career/Technical Education 125
35-3011 Bartenders 123
35-2012 Cooks, Institution and Cafeteria 121
45-2091 Agricultural Equipment Operators 120
33-3012 Correctional Officers and Jailers 117
35-2021 Food Preparation Workers 116
31-9092 Medical Assistants 116
41-3091 Sales Representatives of Services, Except Advertising, Insurance, Financial 115
Services, and Travel
51-9061 Inspectors, Testers, Sorters, Samplers, and Weighers 112

16




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

881C)EPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE XgﬁékL
OPENINGS
47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 110
33-9032 Security Guards 110
49-3023 Automotive Service Technicians and Mechanics 109
43-4081 Hotel, Motel, and Resort Desk Clerks 105
29-2061 Licensed Practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses 104
41-2022 Parts Salespersons 104
49-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Mechanics, Installers, and Repairers 97
51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers, and Brazers 96
13-1198 Project Management Specialists and Business Operations Specialists, All Other 94
33-3051 Police and Sheriff's Patrol Officers 92
35-9031 Hosts and Hostesses, Restaurant, Lounge, and Coffee Shop 90
25-2022 Middle School Teachers, Except Special and Career/Technical Education 90
39-9032 Recreation Workers 90
53-3058 Passenger Vehicle Drivers, Except Bus Drivers, Transit and Intercity 88
11-9021 Construction Managers 87
43-3021 Billing and Posting Clerks 82
47-2031 Carpenters 77
49-3031 Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine Specialists 76
43-3071 Tellers 72
49-9051 Electrical Power-Line Installers and Repairers 71
21-1093 Social and Human Service Assistants 71
43-5061 Production, Planning, and Expediting Clerks 66
43-5071 Shipping, Receiving, and Inventory Clerks 64
51-4041 Machinists 59
45-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Farming, Fishing, and Forestry Workers 57
41-3021 Insurance Sales Agents 57
51-6011 Laundry and Dry-Cleaning Workers 57
51-9111 Packaging and Filling Machine Operators and Tenders 57
11-3031 Financial Managers 55
39-5012 Hairdressers, Hairstylists, and Cosmetologists 55
51-9198 Helpers--Production Workers 55
49-3042 Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics, Except Engines 55
41-2021 Counter and Rental Clerks 54
27-2022 Coaches and Scouts 50
29-2053 Psychiatric Technicians 50
31-9091 Dental Assistants 48

17




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

8SSEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE ng%kL
OPENINGS
13-1071 Human Resources Specialists 47
47-2141 Painters, Construction and Maintenance 47
25-3097 Tutors and Teachers and Instructors, All Other 47
119111 Medical and Health Services Managers 45
11-9141 Property, Real Estate, and Community Association Managers 45
15-1232 Computer User Support Specialists 44
51-9011 Chemical Equipment Operators and Tenders 43
23-2011 Paralegals and Legal Assistants 43
47-5013 Service Unit Operators, Oil and Gas 43
21-1021 Child, Family, and School Social Workers 42
21-1012 Educational, Guidance, and Career Counselors and Advisors 42
29-1171 Nurse Practitioners 42
11-9032 Education Administrators, Kindergarten through Secondary 41
29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians 40
41-9022 Real Estate Sales Agents 40
45-2041 Graders and Sorters, Agricultural Products 39
49-9021 Heating, Air Conditioning, and Refrigeration Mechanics and Installers 39
13-1151 Training and Development Specialists 39
33-2011 Firefighters 37
11-9051 Food Service Managers 37
51-9124 Coating, Painting, and Spraying Machine Setters, Operators, and Tenders 35
15-1256 Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 35
53-4011 Locomotive Engineers 34
13-1161 Market Research Analysts and Marketing Specialists 34
43-5052 Postal Service Mail Carriers 34
41-3031 Securities, Commodities, and Financial Services Sales Agents 34
51-9161 Computer Numerically Controlled Tool Operators 33
29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians 33
53-7081 Refuse and Recyclable Material Collectors 33
47-3013 Helpers--Electricians 32
49-9099 Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Workers, All Other 32
53-4031 Railroad Conductors and Yardmasters 32
43-6011 Executive Secretaries and Executive Administrative Assistants 31
13-2072 Loan Officers 31
41-9099 Sales and Related Workers, All Other 31
25-2011 Preschool Teachers, Except Special Education 30

18




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

8SSEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE XgE%kL
OPENINGS
49-3093 Tire Repairers and Changers 30
45-2011 Agricultural Inspectors 29
43-9041 Insurance Claims and Policy Processing Clerks 29
43-4031 Court, Municipal, and License Clerks 28
37-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Housekeeping and Janitorial Workers 28
33-9092 Lifeguards, Ski Patrol, and Other Recreational Protective Service Workers 28
29-2098 Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists, and Health Technologists 28
and Technicians, All Other
11-3071 Transportation, Storage, and Distribution Managers 28
53-6031 Automotive and Watercraft Service Attendants 27
43-3011 Bill and Account Collectors 27
47-2051 Cement Masons and Concrete Finishers 27
49-9098 Helpers--Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Workers 27
25-9031 Instructional Coordinators 27
43-5032 Dispatchers, Except Police, Fire, and Ambulance 26
49-3041 Farm Equipment Mechanics and Service Technicians 26
35-3041 Food Servers, Non-restaurant 26
33-9098 School Bus Monitors and Protective Service Workers, All Other 26
35-2015 Cooks, Short Order 25
11-3051 Industrial Production Managers 25
13-1111 Management Analysts 25
29-2012 Medical and Clinical Laboratory Technicians 25
51-9199 Production Workers, All Other 25
51-8031 Water and Wastewater Treatment Plant and System Operators 25
13-2098 Financial and Investment Analysts, Financial Risk Specialists, and Financial 24
Specialists, All Other
43-4131 Loan Interviewers and Clerks 24
49-3021 Automotive Body and Related Repairers 23
51-3093 Food Cooking Machine Operators and Tenders 23
13-1041 Compliance Officers 22
29-2041 Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics 22
15-1244 Network and Computer Systems Administrators 22
51-8093 Petroleum Pump System Operators, Refinery Operators, and Gaugers 22
11-2022 Sales Managers 22
43-4199 Information and Record Clerks, All Other 21
25-2012 Kindergarten Teachers, Except Special Education 21
49-9043 Maintenance Workers, Machinery 21

19




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

gg]C)EPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE ng%kL
OPENINGS
49-9012 Control and Valve Installers and Repairers, Except Mechanical Door 20
51-3099 Food Processing Workers, All Other 20
47-4051 Highway Maintenance Workers 20
11-9081 Lodging Managers 20
19-5011 Occupational Health and Safety Specialists 20
31-9096 Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 20
25-2032 Career/Technical Education Teachers, Secondary School 19
17-3023 Electrical and Electronic Engineering Technologists and Technicians 19
51-3092 Food Batchmakers 19
21-1092 Probation Officers and Correctional Treatment Specialists 19
49-2098 Security and Fire Alarm Systems Installers 19
11-9151 Social and Community Service Managers 19
39-3091 Amusement and Recreation Attendants 18
17-2051 Civil Engineers 18
19-2041 Environmental Scientists and Specialists, Including Health 18
37-1012 First-Line Supervisors of Landscaping, Lawn Service, and Groundskeeping 18
Workers
41-1012 First-Line Supervisors of Non-Retail Sales Workers 18
31-9099 Healthcare Support Workers, All Other 18
17-2141 Mechanical Engineers 18
43-3051 Payroll and Timekeeping Clerks 18
31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants 18
51-7011 Cabinetmakers and Bench Carpenters 17
13-1051 Cost Estimators 17
49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics 17
25-1072 Nursing Instructors and Teachers, Postsecondary 17
43-5031 Public Safety Telecommunicators 17
41-4011 Sales Representatives, Wholesale and Manufacturing, Technical and Scientific 17
Products
47-2021 Brickmasons and Blockmasons 16
15-1211 Computer Systems Analysts 16
33-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Correctional Officers 16
17-2171 Petroleum Engineers 16
53-3051 Bus Drivers, School 15
51-9192 Cleaning, Washing, and Metal Pickling Equipment Operators and Tenders 15
33-9091 Crossing Guards and Flaggers 15
49-2094 Electrical and Electronics Repairers, Commercial and Industrial Equipment 15

20




PWDB In-Demand Occupations
8SSEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE XgE%kL
OPENINGS
17-2071 Electrical Engineers 15
13-1081 Logisticians 15
11-9179 Personal Service Managers, All Other; Entertainment and Recreation 15
Managers, Except Gambling; and Managers, All Other
29-1126 Respiratory Therapists 15
25-2052 Special Education Teachers, Kindergarten and Elementary School 15
53-7011 Conveyor Operators and Tenders 14
11-9033 Education Administrators, Postsecondary 14
43-4061 Eligibility Interviewers, Government Programs 14
43-4071 File Clerks 14
21-1022 Healthcare Social Workers 14
29-1051 Pharmacists 14
47-2221 Structural Iron and Steel Workers 14
25-1121 Art, Drama, and Music Teachers, Postsecondary 13
11-1011 Chief Executives 13
13-1031 Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and Investigators 13
47-4011 Construction and Building Inspectors 13
13-2041 Credit Analysts 13
51-9032 Cutting and Slicing Machine Setters, Operators, and Tenders 13
47-3015 Helpers--Pipelayers, Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 13
25-4022 Librarians and Media Collections Specialists 13

Occupations designated as “Target” must meet specific criteria established by the PWDB including

the following:

1) Offer training completion within a two- to three-year timeframe,
2) Provide an average entry level hourly wage of $12 or more, and
3) Achieve total annual average job openings of 10 or more.

PWDB Target Occupations

SOC* Code | Target Occupation SOC* Code Target Occupation
13-2011 Accountants and Auditors 49-9043 Maintenance Workers, Machinery
493011 Aircraft Mechanics and Service 31-9092 Medical Assistants
Technicians
493021 Automotlve Body and Related 292012 Medlcgl'and Clinical Laboratory
Repairers Technicians
Automotive Service Technicians and Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records
49-3023 Mechanics 29-2098 Specialists, and Health Technologists and

21




PWDB Target Occupations

SOC* Code | Target Occupation SOC* Code Target Occupation
Technicians, All Other
Bookkeeping, Accounting, and
43-3031 Auditing Clerks
49-3031 Bus and Truck Mechanic and Diesel 252020 Middle School Teachers, Except Special
Engine Specialists and Career/Technical Education
47-2031 Carpenters 49-3042 Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics
51-9011 Chemical Equipment Operators and Network and Computer Systems
Tenders 15-1244 Administrators
39-9011 Childcare Workers 31-1014 Nursing Assistants
15-1151 Computer User Support Specialists 23-2011 Paralegals and Legal Assistants
499012 Control and Valve Installers and 51-8093 Petroleum Pump System Operators,
Repairers, Except Mechanical Door Refinery Operators, and Gaugers
29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians
47-2111 Electricians 31-9097 Phlebotomists
Elementary School Teachers, Except
25-2021 Special and Career/Technical 31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants
Education
29-2041 Emergen.c y Medical Technicians and 47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters
Paramedics
33-2011 Firefighters 33-3051 Police and Sheriff’s Patrol Officers
51-9199 Production Workers, All Other
. 13-1198 Project Management Specialists and
11-9051 Food Service Managers Business Operations Specialists, All Other
11-1021 General and Operations Managers 29-2053 Psychiatric Technicians
49-9021 Heat.l ne, A.lr COI’Idlthl:lll’lg, and 29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians
Refrigeration Mechanics
49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics 29-1141 Registered Nurses
29-1126 Respiratory Therapists
. . Secondary School Teachers, Except
15-1212 Information Security Analysts 25-2031 Special and Career/Technical Education
29-2061 Licensed Vocational Nurses 53-3032 Truck Drivers, Heavy/Tractor-Trailer
51-4041 Machinists 51-4121 Weldets, Cutters, Soldetets,

and Brazers

*Standard Occupational Code

e The employment needs of employers in the Panhandle region are subject to the so-called “brain
drain” that many other regions experience, with the added challenge of the varying pay scales
customary in other states and other parts of Texas. Regional unemployment levels have
consistently remained among the lowest in the State, presenting unique challenges to companies
in recruiting and hiring qualified workers. The PWDB is committed to and is actively engaged in
creating greater employer engagement first through accurately identifying and pinpointing local
employers’ specific workforce needs. By soliciting and compiling results from employer surveys
and input from community partners, combined with TWC Labor Market and Career Information
(LMCI) data resources, critical elements are brought together to obtain an accurate picture.
Secondly, using this information to educate and train a “right-skilled” workforce, including

22




incumbent workers, includes funding employer-specific training to bring worker skills up to the
level needed by area employers.

Through customized training initiatives, such as the Skills Development Grant Partnership,
training opportunities for incumbent workers have increased, and are producing a more highly
qualified and well-compensated workforce. In February, the PWDB executed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with Plains Dairy, a leading provider of high-quality milk and dairy
products in the region. The company is dedicated to producing milk from local farmers and
distributing it to customers in the area. They have a state-of-the-art processing facility that allows
them to turn raw milk into a variety of products, including milk, cheese, butter, and ice cream.
The PWDB is developing an application for a SDF Project that will invest in measurable skills
development to train approximately 100 employees of Plains Dairy, utilizing a customized Safe
Quality Food (SQF) food safety and quality management system that provides guidelines for the
production, processing, packaging, and distribution of food products.

The PWDB further pursues employer engagement through facilitating completion of Panhandle
occupational and industrial-based certification profiles for the identification and validation of
industry-based certifications that will allow students to pursue the credentials that will lead to
valuable careers.

The WSP Business Services team utilizes monthly surveys and engages local employers to report
on technology and employment trends in their industries, skill shortages, and recruiting
challenges, and solicits suggestions for services that could help address labor force needs.
Economic development organizations, school districts, elected officials, and the public are
solicited to share ideas and provide input as well.

Information is also gleaned from labor market assessments conducted by the AEDC to determine
the needs of Amarillo employers, along with information obtained from independent school
districts (ISDs), postsecondary institutions, adult education providers, and other workforce
partner organizations.

To identify demographic, industrial and employment trends and potential skill shortages, data is
pulled from multiple sources, including TWC LMCI tools, and additional resources from other
providers, such as Help Wanted Online.

Assessment of employers’ needs is also conducted through the involvement of WSP staff with
businesses, collaborative activities with community colleges and local organizations, and input
received from employers and community leaders. WSP staff share their front-line experience
working with employers, job seekers and students to add practical, current and “real-life”
information.

B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2))

Employer engagement is the key to meeting the myriad of Panhandle regional workforce needs.
Identifying appropriate operational strategies that lead to attainment of the Panhandle’s goals involves
examining gaps in skills and services in the local labor market. To understand these challenges,
PWDB staff conducts analyses of local, state and national data identifying demographic, industrial
and employment trends, and potential skill shortages, using a variety of economic tools provided by
TWC, other State agencies, and federal and local resources.

The WSP Business Services team continues to develop solutions that successfully address local labor
force challenges such as assessment of employers’ skill needs, implementation of low-cost, effective

23



and timely methods that match capable workers with job openings, and collaboration with educators,
economic developers and community partners.

Monitoring local and regional job openings in the Panhandle using such tools as WorkInTexas.com,
MyTXCareer.com, AmarilloHelpWanted.com, and the Amarillo Globe-News classified listings,
confirms that a majority of Panhandle employers continue to seek qualified individuals in the
Specialized Freight Trucking and Transportation-related Industries with Commercial Truck Drivers
(CDL); and in the Healthcare-related Industries, which remain on the Panhandle’s In-Demand
Industries and Target Occupations. The region’s training providers keep CDL classes full of students,
many of whom are hired as soon as they complete the training. Workforce Solutions Panhandle staff
develop career pathways in the healthcare field to match customers’ skills along the entire spectrum
of the regional employers’ needs, from the Target Occupations such as Medical Assistants to Licensed
Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses, and Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians. The
region’s two major hospitals, as well as multiple Outpatient Care Centers and Home Health Care
Services providers, also hire these students as soon as they complete their training.

Replacing retiring workers in skilled trades, despite fewer young adults seeking entry into long- term
apprenticeship programs in technical occupations remains a challenge. Aligning resources and
focusing on “right-skilling” will not only replace workers, but will ensure the replacement workers
have the enhanced technical skills to meet the unique requirements created by the increasing demands
of an exceptionally complex and specialized business environment.

C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends (WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3))

The size and scale of the Panhandle region, with its 26 counties encompassing 26,000 square miles,
present obvious geographic limitations. The rural areas with the most need for workers have the
smallest labor force. The regional downturn in oil and gas production have impacted the rural areas
the most, with substantial layoffs and few new jobs to replace those lost. Skills in this industry are
often not transferrable to other industries, and many former oil field workers are reluctant to take a
lower paying job and hold out in hopes that production will ramp up again in more areas.

The population of individuals with barriers to employment in the Panhandle region is sizable. Poverty
levels are relatively high, as many families and individuals receive some type of public assistance,
and teenage pregnancy rates have also remained high. A growing homeless population, including
veterans and individuals with disabilities, adds to the strain on available resources and services, and
presents its own unique set of challenges.

Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, the unemployment rate for the Panhandle Workforce Development
Area was at 2.9% according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The most current statistics available at
the time of the writing of this Plan (December 2022) show that the rate is now at 2.7% which is still
well below the rate of 3.6% for the State of Texas. While a low rate is desirable in many ways, it can
pose underlying difficulties, such as the ability for employers to match the availability of workers to
job openings. With less people available for work, employers have to increase their wages to find,
and keep, employees. This can cause some organizations to settle for less-talented workers, which can
reduce the productivity of the employer as a whole, and employers may see an increase in employee
turnover when workers have ample opportunities from which to choose.

While most Panhandle workers who want to work are able to find jobs, underemployment remains an
issue. The lowest paying jobs seem to have the most growth, due in part to the abundance of
restaurants, eating establishments, and hotels/motels per capita. This impacts increasing poverty
numbers in the region due to the relatively lower wages paid in these occupations.

24



The need exists, in the Panhandle, for stable jobs which pay a self-sufficient wage. The dual challenge
is to find and engage a well-qualified workforce to meet employers’ needs for highly skilled, stable
workers. With a younger (median age below age 35), more educated (82% with a HS diploma), and
growing regional labor force (15%), the pool of available workers in the region offers the potential
for realizing economic growth and future stability for employers and workers alike.

In addition to creating new employment opportunities, a key element in the Panhandle is motivating
skilled workers to remain in or return to the Panhandle area. This can be achieved by developing and
implementing a targeted approach to overcoming challenges inherent in virtual employment.
Coordinating with system partners like the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce, AEDC, and local
colleges to promote the economically and personally rewarding benefits of staying in or returning to
Amarillo, is an effective approach.

Local labor market needs provide the core direction for Panhandle workforce investments. To
understand the region’s skill needs, PWDB and WSP staff combine a broad analysis of local, state
and national data, with local information gained from employers’ input and workforce professionals’
experience delivering services. Conducting market research and analysis, developing and
implementing a regional business engagement plan, and creating and improving opportunities for
developing and implementing skills development initiatives, especially among small employers, and
employers in demand industry sectors and occupations, are priorities for the PWDB.

The extensive geography of the Texas Panhandle presents a daunting challenge to the delivery of vital
workforce services to the populace, compounded by the existence of only one full-service rural WSP
office in Borger and one itinerate location, on the campus of Amarillo College in Hereford. Rural
communities continue to have the most need for workers, and yet have the smallest labor force. The
acquisition and operation of a donated Workforce Mobile Unit several years ago led the PWDB to
purchase a second, smaller mobile unit, which is more cost effective to operate.

The Texas Panhandle has a very diverse economy. When analyzing the industries and associated
occupations of the PWDA, the list is long with small percentages of job openings in each field.
However, two areas stand out when all of the statistics are compiled — Truck Drivers and healthcare-
related occupations. At the time of the writing of this Plan, out of a sample of 750 job openings, 36
were specifically for Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers (5%). Job Openings for Registered
Nurses were 138 (18%) and job openings categorized in other healthcare-related fields, such as
Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics; Home Health Aides, Licensed Practical and
Vocational Nurses; Nursing Assistants; Pharmacists and Pharmacy Technicians; Physical and
Respiratory Therapists; Radiologic Technicians; Surgical Technologists; and Other Healthcare
Practitioners, Technical Workers, and Support Workers, totaled 153 (20%) demonstrating the vast
need for employees in these areas and why these occupations make up such a large portion of training
programs available, from regional training providers, to customers of WSP and the PWDA.

Several employers in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) that continue their
operations and some that have released plans for potential manufacturing industry projects prompted
the addition of the occupation of Production Workers, All Others (SOC 51-9199) to the Target
Occupations List.

Following the COVID-19 Pandemic, employers in the Healthcare Industry in the PWDA began
discovering the increased need for Mental Health services and approached the PWDB with a proposal
to develop a credential program with Amarillo College for Psychiatric Technicians. In its February,
2022 Board meeting, the PWDB approved adding this occupation to its High-Demand Occupations
and Target Occupations Lists. The Amarillo College program was then added to the Eligible Training
Provider System (ETPS) and WSP has enrolled WIOA customers in the program.

25



D. Workforce Development Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))

The strengths of workforce activities in the Panhandle region are the innovative employment and
training opportunities developed through the creation of new partnerships with businesses and
employers in emerging industries in the Panhandle, such as wind energy, manufacturing, and
industrial production, through renewing alliances with existing entities including aviation and child
care services, and with other local employers that have maintained a steady presence in the area job
market. Additional successes include:

e Industry-Recognized Skills Certification Initiative Grant funds utilized through training workers
at local community colleges for employment at a large food processing plant in the region;

e Collaboration between a major local employer with business locations throughout the region to
provide management level training to incumbent workers and a local community college, offering
opportunities for career growth and increased earning potential; and

e Partnering with employers to fund basic truck driver instruction and licensure, followed by job
placement with an experienced driver to complete required over-the-road training.

One of the greatest challenges to improving delivery of workforce services in our region was the
mandated relocation of the Amarillo WSP office, the largest office in the area and the primary resource
for workforce services for Panhandle area employers and job seekers. Due to the increased costs
associated with transitioning from a state-owned building with virtually negligible costs, to leasing
suitable office space in an expensive commercial environment, with marginal cost offset, workforce
service delivery has been severely impacted. Securing a new facility, however, achieved a long-
desired goal of co-housing local VR Services staff with WSP staff to provide enhanced workforce
services to individuals with disabilities, such as quality employment services and suitable job
referrals, appropriate occupational training opportunities. WSP and local employers have had the
opportunity to increase their education and knowledge of VR, and the unique employment issues
individuals, who have disabilities, regularly encounter.

Collaboration and joint planning with VR Services and TWC continues providing a seamless
approach for access to integrated workforce services, literacy education, vocational rehabilitation, and
in-demand workplace skills that lead to self-sufficient employment and advancement for individuals
with disabilities. Promoting partnerships with employers and system stakeholders will overcome
barriers to meeting workforce needs through creative use of technology and innovation. Following a
period of adjustment and settling in to the new paradigm, additional strategies and methods will be
developed and implemented based on examination of the successes and lingering challenges observed,
and will be designed to increase the quality and effectiveness of workforce services provided to this
priority population. Additional strategies include:

e Identifying individual’s barriers to employment, including veterans and youth with disabilities,
and prioritizing services provided to enhance skill levels, complete credentials, and increase
earnings potential;

e Overcoming obstacles encountered in developing short term training opportunities, such as paid
or unpaid work experience, internships, apprenticeships, and other work-based training options
like On—the—Job—Training (OJT). Individuals may be reluctant to work without pay, despite the
inherent opportunities available at the completion, and employers may be reluctant to take a chance
on a relatively unskilled, untested worker, whether or not the training is subsidized, both of which
must be addressed;

e Outreaching and engaging older, out-of-school youth, and re-connecting them with the local job
26



market and employers, is an important focus. By fostering quality internships and skills
development projects in Target Occupations, and encouraging and assisting area community
colleges in the development of, and application for, Skills Development grants, including
implementation, students will be connected with employers who offer self-sufficient wages, as
well as effective mentoring to encourage continued participation.

Actively supporting initiatives which integrate language, basic education, and occupational skills
training, such as Amarillo College’s existing pilot instructional programs for Limited English
speakers in Target and In-Demand Occupations like Certified Nurse Aide, Machinist, and Auto
Mechanic, reinforce the PWDB’s goals of creating a qualified, vital workforce.

WSP staff continue to collaborate with VR staff to provide work-based learning opportunities for
students with disabilities through the Summer Earn and Learn (SEAL) program, and are providing
participants with foundational employment skills and better preparing them for successful
transition to postsecondary education and employment, and work. Developing opportunities for
these students to continue gaining valuable work experience and soft skills through other avenues,
builds their resumes as well as their employment tool box.

Efforts continue in earnest to gather consensus among appropriate local stakeholders and partners
to build a network that will work towards achieving the goals put forth in the 60x30TX Initiative
that are specific to the PWDB, such as strengthening our local economy by better preparing young
people for the workforce demands of our diversified, employer-driven local economy, and
developing and improving opportunities for individuals to enter into career pathways designed to
offer living wages with the potential for increased future earnings. The goal of the 60x30TX
Initiative, that 60% of Texans ages 25-34 will have a degree, certificate, or other post-secondary
credential of value by 2030, continues with the Governor’s Tri-Agency Workforce Initiative, a
collaboration among the Texas Education Agency (TEA), the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board, and TWC. The PWDB is coordinating with Region 16 and West Texas A&M
University, to respond to a TEA grant opportunity, the 2022-2024 Tri-Agency Grant for Regional
Conveners, which provides funding to establish the infrastructure needed to support planning and
implementation of high-quality career and education pathways across the workforce development
area. Designated regional conveners will join the Texas Regional Pathways Network (TRPN), a
growing community of regional partners committed to building regional talent pipelines to
targeted industries that will spur economic growth across the state.

Increasing awareness and educating older youth and parents in realizing that a four-year college
degree is not necessarily the only path to success in the job market;

Increasing collaboration with local AEL partners to consolidate intake, referral, and service
strategies that focus on attaining necessary credentials, completing training, and entering
employment with the ultimate goal of self-sufficiency; and

Developing relevant career pathways based on data driven decisions that serve the needs of
individuals in removing barriers to employment, attaining credentials, and enhancing skill levels
and earning potential.

Part 3: Core Programs

A. Workforce Development System (WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1))

Required partner/programs included in the Workforce Development system are:

27



WIOA adult, dislocated worker, and youth programs;

Wagner-Peyser Employment Service program,;

Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) program;

Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) program;

Unemployment Insurance (UI) program;

Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) program;

Choices, the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) employment and training
program;

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) Employment and Training programs;
Subsidized Child Care programs;

Apprenticeship programs (Texas Education Code, Chapter 133);

Veterans’ employment and training programs;

National and Community Service Act of 2007 program,;

Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP); and

Non-Certificate Postsecondary Career and Technology Training programs.

AV N N N N NN

AV N N N N NN

Facilitating core programs and other workforce development programs to support
alignment to provide services, including programs of study authorized under the Carl D.
Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, that support the strategy identified
in the State Plan under WIOA §102(b)(1)(E). The Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education
Act of 2006, as amended by the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act
(Perkins V), was signed into law on July 31, 2018. The act provides an increased focus on the academic
achievement of career and technical education students and emphasizes alignment with state-level and
local needs. The Panhandle’s workforce development system is comprised of the organizations and
activities that assist job seekers with finding employment, help workers advance in their careers, provide
access to occupational and educational training that leads to self-sufficient employment, improve basic
literacy skills among youth and adults, and ensure a skilled workforce exists to support local industry and
the local economy over time. This workforce system includes local organizations that serve the adults
and youth who may need help preparing for and succeeding in the workforce. The PWDB will support
the TWC State Plan strategy through continued and strong collaboration among WSP staff, local
employers and industry, training providers and educational institutions, service and advocacy
organizations, and other local organizations critical to supporting and delivering effective, integrated
workforce services through the core programs.

The PWDB continues to partner with regional Economic Development Corporations (EDCs) to apply for
High Demand Job Training grant funding to match the EDCs sales tax investments in a dollar-for dollar
match, for WIOA-allowable, high demand job training activities which may include individual participant
recruitment, skills assessment, job search skills improvement, job search, job referral, equipment and
minor renovation of facilities used for program-related job training. While the PWDB has utilized its
awarded grant funds mostly to purchase equipment for regional community colleges and Independent
School Districts (ISDs), future applications are planned to include a combination of all the allowable
activities to supplemented Career & Technology Education (CTE) training programs throughout the
PWDA. This will include Dual-Credit and Career Technical Education Programs as aligning with TWC’s
Strategic Planning which utilizes funding “to support, create and expand dual-credit and CTE programs
that are highly technical in nature, address local demands for high-skill, in-demand and high-wage
industries, and allow high school students to complete college credit hours. These programs respond to
industry demands for skilled workers in technical fields, while helping high school students prepare for
employment or education opportunities.”

28



B.

Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access (WIOA
§108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(2))

Expanding access to employment, training, education, and support services for eligible
individuals, particularly eligible individuals with barriers to employment: WSP Business
Services and PWDB staff will continue to provide assistance to community colleges and
businesses to obtain training resources to increase students’ and workers’ skills, and build
educational capacity in the region, including the Skills Development and Self-Sufficiency Fund,
and other grant opportunities which expand capacity. Workforce resources pledged to such
prospective projects includes labor market information, grant writing assistance, building
employer consortia, assistance with eligible students’ tuition, fees and materials costs, and job
placement. To respond to continued employer input regarding deficiencies in the work-
readiness/soft skills of job applicants and employees, additional work-readiness training options
will be made available to job seekers and targeted populations through new tools to be provided
in the WSP office in Amarillo and online on the updated WSP website. The PWDB and WSP
continue to offer training using Online Learning Management Systems (OLMS), such as
MATRIX LMS.

Facilitating the development of career pathways and co-enrollment, as appropriate, in core
programs, including specific career pathways: WSP case management staff are well-trained
in assessing customer workforce needs and collaborating with customers to develop employment
plans which meet the customers immediate and future needs. Staff work diligently to identify
and develop effective career pathways which reflect realistic employment goals that can involve
occupational training, as well as work-based training, designed to meet the prescribed objectives
of the plan. Staff is made aware of sources for labor market and career information, and to look
for every opportunity for co-enrollment and integrated case management to enhance desired
outcomes. PWDB policy exists for exploring community partners and agencies which may assist
in meeting the needs of customers for training and employment. The PWDB is collaborating
with both Amarillo College and the Panhandle Community Partnership in the development of
tools, such as a Career Maps website, to be available soon.

Improving access to activities leading to postsecondary credential or industry recognized
credential: The availability of short-term training options, that can lead to occupations in
demand, is limited in the Panhandle. Working with postsecondary institutions to develop more
training opportunities involves identifying training needs of employers, assisting colleges with
grant applications to generate funding for curriculum development, and covering tuition
expenses for eligible students. Integrated language, basic education and occupational skills
training are also limited in the region. Most of the occupations that have been targeted for
training require a relatively high level of basic education for successful completion of certificates
and degrees. However, Amarillo College has piloted instructional programs for Limited-English
speakers in the In-Demand Occupation of Certified Nurse Aide, and the Target Occupations of
Machinist and Auto Mechanics. Additional funding will be needed to sustain these programs
and expand training for more occupations. WSP staff will assist postsecondary providers in
pursuing these opportunities.

The PWDB is actively striving towards the objective of the Texas Industry Cluster Initiative,
which is to stimulate long-term sustained growth and focus the allocation of state resources on
key industry clusters identified to be engines of job creation and economic development in the
21st century. "Industry cluster" means a concentration of businesses and industries in a

29



geographic region that are interconnected by the markets they serve, the products they produce,
their suppliers, the trade associations to which their employees belong, and the educational
institutions from which their employees or prospective employees receive training. The Texas
target industry clusters are:

v' Advanced Manufacturing

Aerospace, Aviation and Defense
Biotechnology and Life Sciences
Corporate Services

Creative Industry

Energy

Information Technology

Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products

AN NI N N NN

While the PWDB continues to collaborate with regional employers in several of these industry
clusters, such as in Aerospace, Aviation and Defense with Bell (Textron), in Energy with the
Pantex Plant in Amarillo, and Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products with the Phillips
66/Cenovus Refinery in Borger, a main focus has been placed in the industry cluster of Advanced
Manufacturing.

Several employers in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) that continue their
operations and some that have released plans for potential manufacturing industry projects
prompted the addition of the occupation of Production Workers, All Others (SOC 51-9199) to
the Target Occupations List. These projects include:

v" Cacique Foods, a leading Hispanic foods company and the #1 brand of authentic Mexican-
style cheeses, cremas and chorizos in the United States, is expecting to open their new
200,000 sq. ft. dairy facility in April, 2023. The company has partnered with AmTech
Career Academy and Amarillo College;

v" Ecolomondo Corporation, a cleantech company commercializing its proprietary recycling
technology, Thermal Decomposition Process (“TDP”) and specializing in the building and
operation of turnkey TDP facilities, announced plans in January, 2022, to build and operate
a six-reactor turnkey TDP facility in Shamrock. This will be the Company’s first US-based
waste-to-resources TDP plant capable of processing and recycling end-of-life tires (“ELT”)
into saleable recycled commercial resources for re-use. At peak production, Ecolomondo
expects to create approximately 70 direct and 140 indirect jobs.

v" Chemical Vapor Metal Refining (CVMR) will build a $1.5 billion, 540-acre rare-carth
refinery in Amarillo after the city and Potter County agreed to economic incentives for the
project, according to a June 21 press release.

v' Caviness Beef Packers operates two Panhandle facilities:

1) Beef harvest, fabrication, rendering, and hides processing in Hereford. In 2020,
Caviness completed approximately 130,000 sq ft of plant additions in Hereford which
allowed them to add a second shift to the operations, and expanded upon from coolers,
freezers, dry goods, employee welfare, hides, rendering and wastewater complex.

2)  Ground beef and patty processing, in Amarillo producing approximately 1,500,000
pounds of ground beef chubs and patties weekly.

v SSI Foods is a beef patty manufacturing company located in Amarillo, manufacturing
hamburger products that meet the core menu needs of quick service and casual dining

30



restaurants by utilizing four patty processing lines with Tomahawk TM26 patty formers, with
expansion capability to six lines.

v" SciCron Technologies’ state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in Amarillo specializes in
applying high-quality, high-performance coatings to plastics, with expertise in coating large,
clear sheet products, and coating fabricated, molded, and formed plastic parts, and plastic film
products.

Following the COVID-19 Pandemic, employers in the Healthcare Industry in the PWDA began
discovering the increased need for Mental Health services and approached the PWDB with a
proposal to develop a credential program with Amarillo College for Psychiatric Technicians. In
its February, 2022 Board meeting, the PWDB approved adding this occupation to its High-
Demand Occupations and Target Occupations Lists. The Amarillo College program was then
added to the Eligible Training Provider System (ETPS) and WSP has enrolled WIOA customers
in the program.

Multiple projects have been completed utilizing High Demand Job Training (HDJT) grant
funding, which matches to local economic development sales tax funding, on a dollar-for-dollar
basis. The PWDB has facilitated the purchase of equipment for occupational training of students
at the post-secondary level at Clarendon College’s Childress, Clarendon, Pampa, and Shamrock
Centers; and at Frank Phillips College’s Rahll Campus in Dalhart, Allen Campus in Perryton, and
its main campus in Borger. The PWDB has also facilitated the purchase of equipment for
occupational training of students in Career & Technology Education (CTE) for the local
Independent School Districts (ISDs) of Bushland, Canyon, Highland Park, and River Road; and
for the Amarillo ISD’s AmTech Career Academy.

Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery

A. One-Stop Service Delivery System (WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5))

Customer Service and Satisfaction: The PWDB understands that the workforce system must
have the capacity to meet the needs of all current and future customers: employers, system
program and service providers, and workers, wherever they are in their careers. Customers must
be assured that wherever they enter the workforce system, there is a pathway through the system
by instituting a “no-closed door” culture to ensure successful outcomes or referrals for customers
of the workforce system programs and services. Any point of entry provides access to the full
continuum of programs and services. The ability to accurately assess customer satisfaction with
and across workforce system elements and translate this data into useful actions is essential to
best meet the needs of workforce system customers. Two innovative products that the PWDB
and WSP have recently deployed in the area of customer service:

v" WSP is incorporating Quick Response (QR) Code technology into its Customer Satisfaction
Survey process. This technology allows customers to access the optic label provided on
WSP printed and digital media and, in a streamlined, convenient, and confidential method,
respond on their customer service experience.

v" The PWDB has purchased the digital communication management (DCM) software
Granicus GovDelivery to enable WSP to build content to be shared with job seekers and
connect/distribute through a number of different mediums, including email, Short Message
Service (SMS)/text messages, Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds, and social media
integration, including, but not limited to, a monthly newsletter.

31



Data-Driven Program Improvement: The collection of key data, as well as the reporting and
analysis of that data, in a consistent and useful manner, are essential in demonstrating outcomes,
determining if changes are required or desired, and establishing benchmarks for future
performance. The PWDB is committed to working with its partners to promote the building or
modification of existing data systems to improve the flow of data, increase the relevance of data,
and facilitate analysis that supports effective decision-making across the full spectrum of data
users, to achieve effective and efficient programs, services, and outcomes.

The PWDB recognizes the efforts and the recommendations of the Regional Workforce Strategy
Working Group representing the Workforce Solutions Alamo, Capital Area and Rural Capital
Area. This group was formed to strengthen the alignment of regional workforce planning with
economic development to create a data-driven, scalable model to maximize the capacity for
Workforce Development Boards to meet the needs of employers in the State and reconnect
Texans to the workforce in a way that supports long-term prosperity in urban, suburban, and
rural communities. The PWDB is exploring and will support the strategies put forth in the Texas
Talent and Economic Growth Pilot Project and Statewide Action Plan to strengthen the
alignment between regional workforce planning and economic development.

Continuous Improvement and Innovation: As identified in the Texas Workforce Investment
Council’s strategic planning process, the PWDB will continue to identify opportunities and
develop solutions for improving performance and outcomes that have cross-partner implications
and hold significant strategic value to the overall success of the workforce system’s ability to
meet its vision and mission.to

v Facilitate effective and efficient transitions and enhance transition services;

v Increase employment outcomes;

v' Expand partnerships with system stakeholders and promote collaboration and joint
planning;

Incorporate/expand options for dual credit and/or licensure and certification;

Increase business and industry involvement;

Align programs and services;

Share timely data and information;

Promulgate promising practices and reduce duplication;

Recruit and/or provide professional development;

Ensure portable and transferrable options;

Address skills shortages; and

Institutionalize alternative service delivery methods.

N SANENE NE N N NE NEN

The PWDB continues to endeavor to connect job seekers and other populations with barriers to
employment to numerous career and training resources and opportunities to prepare them for
entry or reentry into the workforce in high-growth industry sectors, and improve customer
opportunities for growth. The PWDB and its partner agencies continue to cultivate emerging
industries, support existing businesses and enhance the skills development of the workforce
taking advantage of strategic opportunities provided by swift economic change.

In alignment with the TWC Strategic Plan, the PWDB continues to strive for improved access
and efficiency, along with value-added services, to benefit customers of the workforce system.
The PWDB recognizes that along with system partners, it is responsible for the delivery of
twenty workforce education and training programs and related services, as well as education
programs that support career preparation and advancement. The PWDB, WSP, and community
partners continue to follow the principal of full integration of core programs, with a strategy of

32



alignment, coordination, and integration of education, employment and training programs. The
PWDB continues its objective of structuring collaboration of programs, initiatives and outcomes,
to avoid duplication with strategic plans of partner agencies. The PWDB and its partners are
committed to customer satisfaction, data-driven program improvement, and continuous
improvement and innovation.

The PWDB continues to support TWC’s goal, as stated in in 2021-2025 TWC Strategic Plan to
prepare individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equips individuals
with in-demand skills as identified by employers by:

v" Continuing ongoing support of education programs for students that inform them and
prepare them for high-skill, high-demand jobs through identification and allocation of
available programs and resources;

v Addressing the workforce training needs of employers by leveraging Skills Development
Fund (SDF) grants; Texas Industry Partnership (TIP) program grants, which support
collaborations between the Board and industry partners through the leveraging of matching
contributions of cash or qualifying expenditures for occupation training focusing on the
Texas Industry Cluster Initiative; and other available resources to support in-demand job
training;

v' Continuing to support work-based learning opportunities through internships, mentorships,
and job shadowing, and

v" Continue to coordinate and collaborate with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating
Board and the Texas Education Agency to support and develop objectives for increasing
the percentage of Texans with post-secondary degrees or certification.

Continuous Improvement of Eligible Providers: The PWDB adopted local performance
requirements for the determination of initial eligibility of Eligible Training Provider System
(ETPS) program applications per TWC’s annual publication of state performance standards that
meet the state performance standards. A training provider may apply for certification for any of
its programs. However, if the program does not prepare students for employment in an
occupation on the Board's Target Occupations list, the school must justify inclusion by
demonstrating that the occupation is indeed in demand.

Appropriate documentation demonstrating a projected minimum of ten total openings in the 26
counties of the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (WDA) in each of the next five years
must be submitted to the Board. Schools are encouraged to submit validating information for
Board review. Such documentation must consist of at least three sources, including, but not
limited to: recent economic statistics; information provided by employers, e.g., letters; posted
job openings; newspaper articles; information provided by professional organizations related to
the occupation or industry; local employer-based, industry-specific advisory groups; and/or other
appropriate information verifying demand.

WIOA emphasizes the importance of training services providers to afford the highest quality
training services and be responsive to In-Demand and emerging industries. Training provider
evaluation criteria must include documentation of partnerships with employers related to the
particular training program, WIOA Section 122(b)(4)(D)(i1). To comply with this requirement,
documentation must take the following forms, and will be maintained by the PWDB: letter of
support from a local employer or employers; evidence of the existence of an employer-based
advisory committee; or other means acceptable to the Board as set forth in policy adopted in a
public meeting. Providers must also document financial stability through submission of the most
recently completed financial statements to the Board. Submissions must include Balance Sheets,

33



Income Statements (Profit & Loss), and Auditor’s Notes.

The PWDB uses several strategies to increase the number of providers and training options for
customers, and to assure that local training is available, as follows:

v

The inclusion of public training providers in the membership of the Board’s Labor Market
Information (LMI) Committee and public notice of those sessions (considered public
meetings) assures communication to local providers of training gaps and potential employer
collaborations;

Positive relationships are sustained in the region with all local providers that offer training
in Target and In-demand occupations. Various standing agreements exist, including the
options of provider application to the ETPS (1) for all programs that prepare students for
the Target occupations, (2) when a student in interested in a particular program, thereby
limiting the demand on the provider’s staff time, or (3) not at all, but other resources may
be leveraged to allow customers to receive training (e.g., apprenticeship programs);

Maximum flexibility is provided to training providers that wish to certify programs for
WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker customer training. At application, training providers
certify that their programs lead to specified occupations, including those targeted by the
PWDB. Programs that consistently produce student completions that lead to training-related
employment are retained on the ETPS;

Those programs with at least five WIOA-enrolled participants per year are evaluated for
this outcome. If a substantial percentage of the WIOA participants do not complete the
program or cannot obtain training-related employment after graduation, PWDB staff will
conduct an evaluation with the provider and the WSP staff to determine what improvements,
if any, are necessary to increase the program’s WIOA student success rate;

To ensure continuous improvement of ETPS-certified programs, labor market information
is provided to training providers, including input from employers and other workforce
customers. In addition, periodic meetings are held with training providers and employers to
discuss labor market skill and training needs, prior to the submission to the PWDB for
updates to the Target Occupations list; and

To ensure that training is available and the need for skills is communicated to the public,
skilled trades occupations with workers who are expected to retire faster than they can be
replaced are included on the Target Occupations list. These occupations include high-
demand opportunities in Construction trades such as Construction Equipment Operators,
Carpenters, Electricians and Plumbers; repair workers such as Auto Mechanics, Diesel
Mechanics, Heating, Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Mechanics, Industrial Machinery
Mechanics, and Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics; Industrial Truck & Tractor
Operators, and manufacturing technicians such as Machinists and Welders. Registered
apprenticeship provides some of the local training for these occupations, including those in
Construction. Referrals are made to apprenticeship opportunities by WSP staff.

Remote areas and technology: With 26 counties encompassing 26,000 square miles, the size
and scale of the Texas Panhandle presents a daunting challenge to the delivery of vital workforce
services to the populace, compounded by the existence of only one full-service rural Workforce
Solutions Panhandle office in Borger and one itinerate location in Hereford. An additional
component to this challenge is the fact that our rural communities continue to have the most need
for workers, and yet have the smallest labor force. The PWDB’s newer, smaller mobile

34



workforce unit is more cost effective to operate and staff. Following the placement of the new
mobile unit into service, the older mobile unit is available to be stationed at a specified rural
location, with the option of limited transport to other rural communities for employer hiring
related functions, such as job fairs, career exploration events, and other opportunities specifically
aimed at connecting rural employers with job seekers, and strengthening linkages to workforce
services.

Fully utilizing both mobile workforce units, that offer a comprehensive menu of workforce
services on a consistent basis to customers in rural areas of the Panhandle who have had limited
to no workforce services activity in their area, requires additional approaches. A Rural Business
Services Representative is primarily responsible for conducting business services activities with
a primary focus on connecting with, and serving, rural employers, by working closely with WSP
staff operating the mobile units to conduct activities that promote full utilization of both units in
the rural communities. Coordinating planning schedules will ensure employers in rural
communities are introduced to, and delivered, essential workforce services. Increased employer
awareness of workforce services will increase job placement opportunities, and advance the
potential for developing work-based training and internships.

Additionally, access to workforce services for rural communities is increased and enhanced
through specific technology improvements, such as continued updates to the WSPanhandle.com
website, acquisition and implementation of innovative website elements, improving current
online connectivity, and creating access to virtual services. A logical step in achieving these aims
is applying a strategy for improvements in rural wireless Internet connectivity, through such
methods as creating MiFi hotspots throughout the region, and identifying, and advertising,
appropriate rural locations which offer free Wi-Fi, such as libraries and courthouses. Increased
and improved access to Internet-based applications for career exploration and job matching and
information about occupational and work-based training opportunities can expand and enhance
service delivery to rural customers who do not reside within reasonable travel distance to any
WSP office. Further strategies include:

v Outreaching workforce services to the public through multiple electronic sources, primarily
web-based media. This will include the continued development of social media utilization,
to promote services and provide immediate responses to customer needs, and increase social
media presence on the most popular websites and web applications that appeal to, and will
reach, the younger population;

v Maintaining personal contact through the WSP Business Services team with employers in
rural communities, assessing needs and developing customized solutions which address
recruiting challenges and skills gaps;

v Regularly updating the WSP website with more interactive and easily accessed resources,
such as job search training videos, and maintaining relevant content;

v Continuing to host successful hiring events at rural locations;

v Expanding the quality and quantity of focused job fairs and career fairs in the rural
communities, including involving specialized education programs as hosts;

v" Continuing utilization of analysis and local wisdom gained through practical experience
enhancing the set of operational strategies for serving rural communities to be implemented.
Investments will continue to be made to market services to the public through multiple
technologies and electronic media. Continued efforts of WSP’s social media specialist to

35



guide the development and utilization of this resource, in collaboration with the WSP
Business Services team, in promoting workforce services throughout the region, will be
supported. Targeted social media will be further identified and developed to provide an
additional venue for customers—both employers and job seekers to communicate needs and
generate appropriate staff responses;

v" Including hiring events for job openings, carcer fairs, and job fairs focusing on rural
communities. The WSP website has been redesigned to provide remote users services that
are like those offered in the brick-and-mortar offices. New resources available on the website
include an improved user interface, more interactive activities such as job search training
videos, additional methods for direct, real-time communication to obtain staff assistance, and
a fresh new approach to reach and engage disconnected youth using appealing smartphone
web applications that offer youth the same multitude of services available on the website,
and at WSP offices; and

v Supporting WSP Business Services members and other key staff continuing to visit
employers in our rural communities, assessing needs face-to-face and developing customized
solutions which address recruiting and skills gaps. Rural partners will continue to provide
itinerant locations for staff to meet with customers throughout the region, including
community-based organizations such as Panhandle Community Services, as well as libraries,
colleges, independent school districts and public offices. Combined with regularly scheduled
staff visits to more rural locations utilizing the second mobile unit, offering computer access
with Internet connectivity for accessing WorkInTexas.com and other employment services,
will assure rural customers that WSP still has a demonstrated rural presence and can provide
services in their communities.

WIOA §188 and the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act (ADAAA) of 2008: The
PWDB has the opportunity to better serve the workforce needs of individuals with disabilities,
and ensure compliance with WIOA §188 and the ADA, through the ongoing transition of Texas
Workforce Solutions VR Services programs and staff into the WSP office in Amarillo. While
the physical and financial issues associated with co-location and integration of VR Services staff
and WSP staff is a challenge, the intention is for all of the Panhandle region’s offices to grow in
the capacity to serve individuals who have disabilities by common appointment scheduling and
regularly scheduled visits to many rural locations by the mobile units. Through continued
collaboration and joint planning with VR Services, an effective transition plan reflecting the
shared goals of providing a seamless approach for access to integrated workforce services,
literacy education, vocational rehabilitation, and in-demand workplace skills that lead to self-
sufficient employment and advancement for individuals with disabilities, and promoting
partnerships with employers and system stakeholders which overcome barriers to meeting
workforce needs through creative use of technology and innovation, can be achieved. Following
a period of adjustment and settling in to the new paradigm, additional strategies and methods
will be developed and implemented based on examination of the successes and lingering
challenges observed, and will be designed to increase the quality and effectiveness of workforce
services provided to this priority population.

VR Services include counseling, training, medical treatment, assistive devices, job placement
assistance, and other services to assist individuals with disabilities prepare for or maintain their
independence. Integration of these services affords the local workforce system with increased
opportunities to better serve individuals with disabilities in our region, and improve overall
employment outcomes for the employers and the potential for self-sufficiency for the individuals

36



served.

VR Services staff will provide:

v
v
v

ASANENENEN

Information on program eligibility;

Assessment for referrals from WSP staff to determine eligibility for VR Services;

Delivery of vocational rehabilitation services, including diagnostics, guidance and
counseling, adaptive skills training, vocational training, and pre- and post- employment
services;

Consultation on rehabilitative technology for workforce customers;

Training of WSP staff on disability sensitivity and awareness;

Assessment of adaptive technology needs at WSP offices;

Information about all programs and services available; and

Information and assistance with compliance with all Federal laws and regulations regarding
individual with disabilities.

The PWDB and WSP will:

NS NENENEN

<]

AN

v

Advertise and promote VR Services as part of the entire array of services offered;

Integrate VR Services staff into workforce service delivery;

Improve and streamline the referral process for individuals with disabilities;

Coordinate with VR Services in providing information on the full range of employment
services offered including job matching services utilizing WorkInTexas.com;

Share timely labor market information and provide a critical link to employers including job
leads, job fairs, and hiring events;

Coordinate with VR Services staff on co-hosting or supporting VR Services special events;
Provide intensive and training services under WIOA as appropriate and applicable, and move
towards jointly managing common case files and staffing customers;

Actively identify and promote opportunities for co-enrollment to maximize funds and create
shorter pathways to achieving training and employment goals;

Participate in disability sensibility and awareness training to staff;

Request consultation on appropriate rehabilitation technology for workforce customers with
disabilities; and

Provide additional adaptive equipment, as determined necessary.

Workforce partners’ roles and resource contributions: The PWDB coordinates with
hundreds of public agencies, nonprofit organizations and private sector businesses in the region
to carry out its mission, such as:

v

The region’s three community colleges, Amarillo College, Clarendon College and Frank
Phillips College, and the public university, West Texas A&M University, are essential, as
these institutions provide most postsecondary education supported by the Board and
numerous methods of support to help students be successful;

The PWDB supports the community colleges’ Skills Development Fund, Self Sufficiency
Fund, and High Demand Job Training Project applications that support key industries and
those associated by cluster relationships, and training for occupations in demand and/or
essential to those industries. In addition, staff collaborates with schools and local employers
to develop training solutions that meet specific training needs;

Amarillo College houses the region’s adult basic education program, overseeing Adult Basic
Education (ABE), General Educational Development (GED), and ESL instruction

37



throughout the area, delivered both by onsite teachers and distance learning. ABE services
include assessment of workforce customers with limited English skills;

v Region 16 Education Service Center (ESC):

a) Continues to partner with the PWDB and WSP to promote TWC’s Externship for
Teachers Initiative which unites workforce, industry and education representatives to
promote an effective workforce system. During the summer, teachers are assigned to a
partner business and shadow workers to the teachers better understand work-based
applications of what they teach. This experience is designed to strengthen the connection
between business and education, helping teachers learn what skills are critical to small
and large businesses and promoting lesson plans that demonstrate how classroom skills
are used at work. PWDB Grant funding is utilized for providing stipends to participating
teachers.

b) Is also responsible for the area’s Head Start and Early Head Start program, offering free,
high-quality child development services to income eligible families with children ages 0-
5 years old. Head Start and Early Head Start is child-focused learning, but also provides
comprehensive services to the child's family;

v' The Texas Health and Human Services Commission’s (HHSC’s) Texas Works Program
provides financial support to welfare and SNAP families and supports WSP staff efforts to
help these customers locate, enter and retain employment;

v The area’s Independent School Districts collaborate with the PWDB to help at-risk youth
complete their high school diplomas, prepare for careers and transition to postsecondary
education. Alternative secondary school, tutoring, career exploration and assessment, child
care and other services may be provided;

v’ Literacy councils play an essential role in workforce development by helping extremely low-
skilled readers gain a level of proficiency that will allow them to improve their employment
prospects and benefit from further adult education offered by the community colleges;

v' The Panhandle’s Economic Development Corporations (EDCs) and related organizations
provide financial support for occupational training and related equipment, and business
development that leads to increased numbers of jobs. EDC involvement, in the High Demand
Job Training Projects, assures workforce system alignment with local economic development
resources to the extent possible;

v WSP coordinates with the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) to provide
information to local Parole Division Officers, regarding Job Seeker services for its Releasees,
to enable the Officers to make referrals to WSP to help these individuals locate, enter and
retain employment; and

v' Many other local organizations and agencies, such as Panhandle Community Services,
Catholic Family Services, Inc., the Salvation Army, Panhandle Independent Living Center,
and Amarillo’s Downtown Women’s Center, provide significant employment and related
services. WSP staff coordinate with over 100 faith- and community-based governmental and
private organizations in the region to leverage resources on behalf of customers.

B. Cooperative Agreements (WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))

Cooperative agreements explain how all local service providers, including additional providers, will

38



carry out the requirements for integration of and access to the entire set of services available in the
local one-stop delivery system. This includes cooperative agreements (as defined in WIOA
§107(d)(11)) between the Board or other local entities described in §101(a)(11)(B) of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 721(a)(11)(B)) and the local office of a designated state agency
or designated state unit that administers programs that are carried out under Title I of the
Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 720 et seq.) (other than §112 or part C of that title (29 USC 732, 741)
and are subject to §121(f)) in accordance with §101(a)(11) of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC
721(a)(11)) with respect to efforts that will enhance the provision of services to individuals who have
disabilities and to other individuals, such as cross training of staff, technical assistance, use and
sharing of information, cooperative efforts with employers, and other efforts.

Cooperative Agreement means a legal instrument of financial assistance between a Federal awarding
agency or pass-through entity and a non-Federal entity that, consistent with 31 U.S.C. 6302-6305:
(1) Is used to enter into a relationship the principal purpose of which is to transfer anything of value
from the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity to the non-Federal entity to carry out a
public purpose authorized by a law of the United States (see 31 U.S.C. 6101(3)); and not to acquire
property or services for the Federal government or pass-through entity's direct benefit or use; (2) Is
distinguished from a grant in that it provides for substantial involvement between the Federal
awarding agency or pass-through entity and the non-Federal entity in carrying out the activity
contemplated by the Federal award.

This is not applicable as no Boards in Texas have these cooperative agreements in place. Given that
VR falls under the purview of TWC and as based on TWC guidance, a Letter of Agreement with VR
is not required.

C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program
Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3))

Employer engagement is the key to meeting our regional workforce needs. The PWDB’s Business
Advisory Committee assists and informs the PWDB regarding the design and delivery of services
based on business and industry needs, as well as enhancing employer engagement, and supporting
industry partnerships under WIOA. Comprised of PWDB and non-Board members, private sector,
Board staff, and WSP staff, this industry partnership endeavors to:

Facilitate and increase employer engagement;

Pursue creative ideas and methods to improve program service delivery design;

Identify skill needs;

Develop and validate career pathways;

Collaborate to create youth initiatives such as apprenticeships to connect youth with careers in
demand;

Align educational curriculum to meet industry needs;

e Identify and develop cost-effective training solutions for companies involving employers and
the Business Advisory Committee as incumbent worker intermediaries to leverage Skills
Development Grant funds;

Provide work-based learning opportunities;

Identify barriers to “entry level employment” and develop strategies to remove those barriers;
Identify and address organizational and Human Resource challenges;

Increase productivity;

Promote communication networks between companies, between managers and workers, and

39



between companies and their communities and educational institutions;

e Identify and develop business intermediaries to facilitate identifying and meeting employers’
immediate hiring and training needs; and

e Expand the utilization of high-quality work-based training by collaborating with PWDB staff in
revising policies for customized training and OJT, and providing training to workforce and
including business services staff on methods of seeking opportunities for these types of training
situations which offer the highest potential for success. This includes developing training
contracts which produce highly desirable outcomes in the shortest amount of time and with the
least expenditures.

In an effort to develop and strengthen linkages between the workforce system and unemployment
insurance programs, the PWDB is working with its Business Advisory Committee to assist the
PWDB in designing and delivering services based on business and industry needs, including those
of customers recently separated from employment.

D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services (WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))

Many Texas Panhandle job seekers need job search assistance, career and labor market information,
training in skills that make them more employable, support services such as child care, and referral
to community resources. Job seekers include the unemployed, underemployed, and recently laid off
workers, as well as special populations such as disabled individuals, and individuals with barriers to
employment and literacy skills deficiencies, who may need additional, more specialized assistance
in securing employment leading to self-sufficiency.

Workforce services for job seekers focus on activities that lead to finding and retaining self-

sufficient employment. Successfully delivery of workforce services and linking job seekers to

employers remains the PWDB’s most important function, including improving access to services for

individuals receiving unemployment benefits, individuals with barriers to employment. Individuals

whose skills are not likely to generate employment or self-sufficient wages may be provided training

assistance or referrals. Supportive services such as child care and transportation assistance are

offered to eligible job seekers and students to facilitate their efforts to enter and retain employment

that meets their families’ needs. Such services include:

¢ Information provided to job seekers about available workforce services and programs;

e Training job seekers to effectively build a record in WorkInTexas.com and complete job matches
based on their profile;

e Staff-directed matching of applicants to job openings, using WorkinTexas.com;

e Virtual personal assistance for job seekers through phone, email or online access;

Seminars and workshops to help job seekers find and retain employment, such as general job

search, resume writing and interviewing;

Work readiness preparation;

Public access computers, software, fax machines, copiers, and phones for job search;

Assessment resources for self-evaluation of labor market information and options;

Maintaining current information on availability of services from and referral to local community

resources whenever and wherever possible to maximize WIOA funds and prevent duplication of

services;

e Individualized placement services for eligible job seekers, including job development, by
building on existing employer relationships and using electronic tools such as job aggregators,
which collect job openings from multiple sources and makes them available to be searched all

40



in one location;

Providing information about Work Opportunity Tax Credits (WOTC) to individuals who are
target group members, to promote themselves to prospective employers;

Employment planning, by mapping successful career pathways which include the steps needed
to prepare for and/or enter employment;

Rapid Response services for workers after a layoff announcement and/or closure, including all
the above services and assessment of transferable skills, reemployment planning and referral to
training/training assistance as needed,

Financial assistance needed by eligible job seekers to find and retain employment, including
support for transportation, child care and other services; and

Increased utilization of the City of Amarillo increased public transportation capacity and
expansion of bus routes.

Career and labor market information provided to job seekers includes the following:

Self-assessment tools for determining transferable skills and work preferences;
Information about occupations in demand;
Information about local employers and their skills needs;

Referral to personalized career planning assistance—either internal for eligible job seekers or
external;

Seminars for dislocated workers (Rapid Response); and
Work-based career exploration for eligible youth and adults.

E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management (WIOA §108(b)(21); 20

CFR §679.560(b)(20))

Mastering current technology, and exploring emerging technology, the keys to creating and
conducting an effective technology based integrated system for customer intake and case
management, will:

Improve availability of integrated workforce services throughout the region through innovative
technology application, coordination with regional and local organizations, and other effective,
efficient methods of service delivery;

Enhance virtual services readily available through upgrading the WSP website, and marketing
the availability of all workforce resources through social media; and

Complete understanding and application of current capabilities enabling full utilization of
existing tools, primarily WorkInTexas.com, and TWIST. Adopting and adapting additional,
more efficient technologies, such as a real-time customer tracking system, supplies WSP staff
with the means to quickly and accurately assess customer needs and provide seamless service
delivery, while maintaining service priority requirements.

Critical to this process is engaging the services of individuals with the newest, most relevant
computer programming and coding skills to create and implement new systems and applications,
conduct staff training and ongoing technical assistance to maintain high levels of staff performance.

Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities
A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities (WIOA §108(b)(5);

20 CFR §679.560(b)(4))

41



In alignment with the State WIOA Plan, PWDB staff actively participate in a Regional Workforce
Network (RWN), collaborating with five other Board areas in West Texas for the purpose of sharing
information to further build capacity for seamless workforce operations and service delivery to
workforce to customers. Topics discussed in face-to-face meetings range from best practices for
developing and fostering successful working partnerships with local entities, to cost sharing,
procurements, and budgets, as well as special projects to identify opportunities to leverage critical
resources designed to promote economic development in the Panhandle region.

This RWN has developed a project focused on identifying best practices for assessing skills training
of job seekers and employers to pinpoint relevant credentials necessary for successful job placement
and retention, which includes the participation of several employers and multiple local colleges.
Three Board areas in this RWN have collaborated to support the workforce needs resulting from the
declining oil and gas industry in the Permian Basin/Cline Shale areas. In addition, the RWN is
working to develop new partnerships with out-of-state partners in adjacent states such as Oklahoma
and New Mexico, to share “labor sheds”, develop a strategic approach to producing regional labor
market information, and host combined regional job fairs and other events which support workforce
development, respond to economic development challenges, and ultimately better serve the
workforce customers in these adjacent areas.

B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7))

The WSP Business Services team provides Rapid Response services to employers considering, or
planning, a layoff or closure. Services are designed to minimize the cost of the layoff to the
employer, encourage customized training or other services to limit or prevent job losses, or quickly
transition workers into other employment. Services are delivered onsite or in a location convenient
for workers, and may include a broad range of services, including but not limited to: unemployment
insurance information and referral, assistance with accessing customized training to help workers
adjust to technical advances and prevent layoffs, seminars to assist workers to manage their
dislocation and find other employment, and worker referral to training resources.

The designated Rapid Response Coordinator for the PWDB is also the lead Business Services staff
member, ensuring that any employer that has announced a layoff or closure will receive business-
focused support. The Coordinator ensures that the employer receives needed services, and facilitates
communication between the employer, TWC, and WSP staff in serving affected workers. Once
services are initiated for workers, WIOA program staff are available to assist in providing
assessment, reemployment planning, and connection to the local ABE provider if language skills,
adult basic education and GED preparation are needed, as well as providing career guidance and
occupational skill development, and to access job development and supportive services, as
determined appropriate for each worker.

Rapid Response activities in rural areas may require temporary, onsite or local offices where WSP
staff can meet the needs of affected workers. Both employers and job seekers will have access to
“back office” staff who can respond quickly to telephone and electronic communications, in order
to provide services to customers who prefer not to go to a WSP office or who are not based in
Amarillo. The PWDB continues to explore paperless recordkeeping options, to effectively utilize
staff time while providing customer services outside the WSP offices.

C. Youth Activities and Services (WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))

42



The PWDB and WSP have developed a new staff position to enhance youth and young adult
activities. This Career Outreach Specialist will focus on innovative technology in Virtual Career
Exploration. The PWDB is purchasing Virtual Reality headsets, along with library of occupational
videos, which transport the user into an interactive environment to participate in performing tasks in
a specific job. The Career Outreach Specialist will host events, both in area schools and in WSP
offices, guiding students in exploration of potential occupations and careers in their areas of interest.

The PWDB’s Youth program is primarily focused on Out-of-School Youth who need postsecondary
education and/or work experience to achieve self-sufficiency. Disconnected youth, parenting youth,
first-generation college students, foster youth, and youth who have other barriers to employment,
are the priority youth populations determined most likely to benefit from local workforce services.

Increasing the number and quality of work-based training opportunities for at-risk youth such as paid
internships for college students and graduating high school seniors that are directly related to
students’ career interests. Many youth served in workforce programs must be engaged in an
occupational component, so paid internships will offer competitive wages to encourage
participation. These internships will include mentoring by supervisors trained by workforce staff to
provide appropriate encouragement and career exploration.

WSP and PWDB staff fully support the local “No Limits, No Excuses” Panhandle Community
Partnership, which assists students in the local school districts with accessing information on
colleges and universities, and mapping out a plan for success after high school graduation. This
project is building community partnerships that result in an increase in the number of low-income,
young adults who complete employer-recognized and valued certificates and degrees, and has led to
the implementation of two major youth-serving strategies in which workforce resources have been
committed.

The PWDB continues its collaboration with the Texas Panhandle Rural Alliance (TPRA), a group
of important partners from different sectors who strive to create a common agenda and apply the
concept of “collective impact” as an effective approach for solving specific community social
problems, focused on rural communities in the Panhandle. Through research and stakeholder
engagement, this collaboration helps to ensure the Panhandle’s vitality of a sustainable population
of working age people, through five objectives:

e Support the Panhandle’s homegrown talent to stay or return to the region;

e Establish workplace conditions for workers of all ages to thrive in jobs and continue to build
their skills;

e Create supportive conditions for learners to pursue and complete the post-secondary education
or training of their choice;

e Raise learners’ aspirations early and strengthen education-career pathways; and

e Close the achievement gap for minorities and English language learners.

Because transitioning low-income students from high school to college has been found to be not as
difficult as retaining them in postsecondary training until they successfully complete, WSP Youth
Program staff provide case management and mentoring to help current students address barriers that
arise during their studies, to facilitate college retention and completion.

WSP staff continue to coordinate and expand efforts between schools and businesses to offer job
fairs and career fairs, preferably held in the morning and in the afternoon on the same day in rural
locations, maximizing the available audience for youth and the employers, and resulting in highly
increased attendance and participation by both parties.

43



One excellent example of collaboration is the one between WSP staff and the AmTech Career
Academy, which has proven to be the kind of targeted, well-prepared approach to conducting
meaningful youth job/career fairs, that was the missing link. The nearly unanimous positive
comments from employer surveys received demonstrated the event is most valuable for two primary
reasons: 1) the Principal of AmTech effectively uses social media to promote the event, and 2) the
Principal’s exceptional preparation of the students to meet employers, including presenting a highly
professional appearance and attitude.

In addition to continuing to serve low-income youth, homeless youth, youth who have disabilities,
foster youth, and youth who have barriers to employment, refocusing efforts to outreach and engage
out of school youth in successful work-based training opportunities is the primary goal of the PWDB,
related to youth services. This cannot be accomplished without employing innovative and
imaginative current technologies to reach this population. One immediate example is using existing
or creating inventive new smartphone applications to engage disconnected youth with the local job
market and promote successful job seeking. Critical to this process is soliciting input and feedback
from youth for these projects, as well as ideas for updating the WSP website in a way that appeals
to them and creates interest in using the website as a source for job market information. Local
Information Technology (IT) staff must have the skills to keep this approach fresh and relevant to
youth.

The WIOA youth program, in the Panhandle, includes developing career pathways which lead to
self-sufficiency, while meeting required performance measures. The fourteen WIOA youth program
elements are key to the overall success of youth program participants. WSP staff determine which
elements would be most effective for youth through initial assessment, develop individualized
service plans, and identify career pathways. Staff identify and engage local resources which provide
access to, or directly offer, services related to the youth elements.

Creating a meaningful attachment to the workforce is a critical factor for success and is accomplished
through fostering relationships with community-based organizations which serve local youth, and
creating new connections to local employers who have the desire and the labor needs that will afford
youth with meaningful work-based training opportunities. Collaboration with the WSP Business
Services team to identify these employers helps to facilitate this process.

The overall goal of the Youth programs in the Panhandle is to create the means for Youth program
participants to first arrive at data-driven choices, and then develop appropriate and successful career
pathways for youth that align with demand. Combining classroom occupational training with short-
term work experience opportunities or internships, with an occupational education component, and
utilizing all applicable Youth program elements, provides a vital connection to the job market and
employers, leading to enhanced performance, successful outcomes, and preparing youth to succeed
in the job market and in life. Youth providers in the region are the three community colleges
(Amarillo College, Clarendon College, and Frank Phillips College) one university (West Texas
A&M University), and local employers that provide work-based training such as career-related
internships.

Ensuring the WIOA Youth elements available include linking youth with the appropriate sources,
partner agencies, and community providers, by:

e Focusing on outreach and engagement of Out of School Youth and youth disconnected from the
workforce, including a streamlined approach to eligibility, identifying appropriate services and
career pathways, and developing effective service strategies encompassing educational and
employment goals;

44



Transitioning low-income youth from high school to college to prepare for many of the jobs
being created in Texas and nationally for “middle-skill” occupations, including those that require
postsecondary education leading to attainment of certificate and associate degrees;

Accessing alternative secondary school services or dropout recovery services when determined
appropriate and necessary to keep youth engaged and connected;

Tutoring, remedial skills training, and instruction for dropout prevention and leading to attaining
a secondary school diploma or recognized equivalent;

Retaining low-income youth in postsecondary training until completion, and providing short
term work experience and paid internship opportunities that enhance completion and transition;

Providing paid and unpaid short-term work experience opportunities with an occupational
education component resulting in a vital connection to the job market and employers, leading to
enhanced performance and successful outcomes;

Ensuring appropriate supportive services which assist youth in completing program activities,
including work based or occupational training, and obtaining and retaining employment are
provided under WIOA;

Providing adult mentoring during and after program participation for a period of at least 12
months to prevent youth from falling through the gaps or becoming disconnected;

Arranging leadership development opportunities such as community service and other similar
activities which encourage youth to give back to their community, and builds confidence,
maturity, and self-esteem;

Affording appropriate guidance and referrals for counseling including drug or alcohol abuse to
address and resolve individual needs of youth program participants;

Providing ready access to current relevant labor market information including PWDB specific
demand occupations and industries, and career counseling and exploration;

Assisting youth with improving and increasing financial literacy by providing relevant and
relatable online instruction geared towards youth participants; and

Exploring and tapping into local entrepreneurship ventures including a university-sponsored
small business incubator program.

D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs (WIOA §108(b)(10);

20 CFR §679.560(b)(9))

Strategies include the following:

Making available financial aid information and referrals to training providers;

Providing career and training plan assistance for eligible individuals, including individuals with
barriers to employment, developing successful career pathways and program co-enrollment
wherever appropriate and beneficial;

Coordinating Adult Literacy, ESL, basic education, and GED preparation—either by referral or
intensive short-term classes, for eligible individuals;

Developing a menu of activities leading to achievement of post-secondary, recognized

45



credentials;

e Supporting local ISDs and community colleges to pursue skills development grant opportunities
including Apprenticeship programs and to apply for and obtain grants such as the Texas
Workforce Commission’s JET (Jobs and Education for Texas) and the High Demand Job
Training (HDJT) grants;

e Collaborating on Innovation partnership grants to upgrade skills and earning potential for
incumbent workers, and Industry-Recognized Skills Certification Initiative Grants which
provide short term courses through local colleges leading to certification completion and
enhanced job placement opportunities; and

e Facilitating Postsecondary occupational skills training at community colleges, career colleges or
universities.

E. Child Care and Early Learning (40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services)

Many Texas Panhandle job seekers need support services such as child care, offered to eligible job
seekers and students to facilitate their efforts to enter and retain employment that meets their families’
needs. Child care can be cost-prohibitive for low-income families. Many WSP customers are right
on that line of having their entire paycheck only being enough to cover the child care expense. In
cases like this, the customer many times will:

e Give up the job to stay home with the child, and become dependent on public assistance;

e Choose to leave the child in an unsafe situation such as in the care of another, only slightly older
child or individuals who lack adequate training in early childhood development, and health and
safety practices; or

e Leave a child alone.

High-quality child care has many positive impacts on children, such as increased safety and school
readiness, as well as impacts on the parents in obtaining and keeping a job, or completing job training.
Child care assistance promotes long-term self-sufficiency by enabling parents to work, attend school
or attend job skills training, and increase educational levels. To address this issue and implement the
following strategies, the PWDB:

e Seeks out additional opportunities to further expand classroom capacity;

e Continues to phase in increases to the maximum reimbursement rates paid with workforce
resources to providers caring for eligible children;

e Sustains efforts to support training and professional development for child care administrators
and workers;

e Provides follow up training and monitor delivery of recently purchased child care curricula
intended to provide an organized and managed approach to promoting critical areas of
development;

e Ensures monitors and assessors continue regular observation and review of providers to identify
areas which need improvement, and assist providers to initiate or improve TRS (Texas Rising
Star) rating levels thus continually improving quality of care and potentially increase
reimbursement rates; and

e Looks for and invest in projects which improve child care quality.

The Panhandle’s Child Care program gets children school ready. The PWDB utilizes funding it
receives from TWC in assisting customers in enrolling children in a quality licensed child care facility

46



that:

Ensures children are safe and in a learning environment while parents work or are in training;
Utilizes early childhood development, which includes high quality curriculum;

Provides a structured learning environment, with specially trained teachers and safe, healthy
food;

Supports the child’s physical, social, emotional and intellectual development, and

Prepares children for their education/school, work/career and ultimately, self-sufficiency in their
adult lives.

WSP’s new staff position of Child Care Business Coach under a new Child Care Industry Support
Division will assist Child Care Provider owners and managers, as needed, to increase quality and
capacity of existing businesses, in creating new business and in connecting to resources available to
help increase the likelihood of success. Primary duties will include:

Connecting child care providers with TWC’s child care provider expansion entity/entities;
Connecting child care providers with TWC’s funded business coaching and business training;
Connecting child care providers with Texas Health and Human Service Commission’s Child Care
Regulation department to learn about Texas’ regulatory requirements for child care operations;
Connecting child care providers with the Texas Department of Agriculture to learn about the
Child and Adult Care Food Program;

Assisting child care providers with understanding how WSP can help them hire support and other
workforce assistance services;

Assisting child care providers with understanding how to participate in the Child Care Services
program and the Texas Rising Star quality rating system; and

Assisting child care providers with understanding how the use the Texas Child Care Availability
Portal and the Texas Early Childhood Professional Development System.

The Texas Early Learning Council acts as the State’s advisory council on early childhood education
and care for children from birth to school entry as required by the Improving Head Start for School
Readiness Act of 2007. TWC, as part of an Interagency Implementation Support Team, provided
recommendations in the development of the Texas Early Learning Strategic Plan 2020-2025. The
PWDB and WSP will continue to align with the goals, strategies and action plans discussed in the
Early Learning Strategic Plan and in TWC’s Child Care Workforce Strategic Plan 2023-2025, as
follows:

Supporting the Texas Early Childhood Professional System (TECPDS); and
Identifying opportunities to stabilize the child care workforce and promote the hiring and
retention of high-quality early educators, such as:

v Improving the infant and toddler child care workforce through continued support of the Texas
Infant and Toddler Specialist Network (ITSN);

v" Supporting early childhood education (ECE) workforce initiatives, including those providing
wage supports;

v" Incorporating strategies to support early childhood educators by promoting the expansion of
Career Technology Education (CTE) programs of study in the ECE field, including the
attainment of Child Development Associate (CDA) certification, and dual credit options; and

v Supporting the development of additional early childhood Registered Apprenticeship
Programs.

In alignment with the intent of House Bill 619 (HB619) to improve the quality of the infant, toddler,

47



preschool, and school-age child care workforce in Texas, a portion of TWC’s Child Care and
Development Fund (CCDF) funding for the PWDB is set aside annually for the purpose of Child
Care Quality Improvement (CCQI) activities to be utilized in assisting Child Care providers in
becoming Texas Rising Star (TRS)-certified or assisting TRS-certified providers in achieving higher
levels of TRS certification. The PWDB and WSP continue to follow a Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan by supporting:

e Secondary educational attainment for caregivers and administrators;

e Professional development to assist with teacher/child interactions, curriculum, classroom
management and child development;

Professional development for child care program managers, directors and assistant directors;
Programs with TRS incentives;

Classroom content delivery with early learning digital platform;

Curriculum content delivery with evaluation and assessment tools; and

e Programs with TRS mentor assistance and support.

While TWC annually allocates what is referred to as “Formula” funds to the PWDB for the purpose
of subsidizing the cost of child care, there is also an opportunity of leveraging even more funds into
the Panhandle area through a process of “matching funds” with Federal dollars. In collaborations
with Amarillo College, Texas Tech University and West Texas A&M University, each of which
certify allowable child care related expenditures at their institutions, and through an agreement for a
donation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding provided to the PWDB by the
City of Amarillo, TWC is able to draw down, for every dollar, an addition two dollars, that is passed
directly through to the PWDB for the Subsidized Child Care Program. Each year, these partners give
a big boost to the children and parents of the Panhandle.

F. Transportation and Other Support Services (WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10))

Supportive services for eligible job seekers utilizing appropriate program funds for eligible
individuals required to obtain or retain employment, or to enter and complete subsidized training,
include the following:

e Residential assistance with rent, mortgage, and utilities,

e Transportation assistance in the form of fuel cards, mileage reimbursement, or auto repair, for
personal vehicles, and bus tickets for accessing public transportation;

e Assistance with work or training related items or services; and
e Subsidized child care.

G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) (WIOA §108(b)(13); 20 CFR
§679.560(b)(12))

In 2017, the PWDB was enlisted to provide review of the Proposal for the Adult Education and
Literacy (AEL) Service Provider Grant, submitted to TWC by Amarillo College, as required under
TWC’s Workforce Development (WD) Letter 20-17. In its August 2017 Board Meeting, the PWDB
authorized creation of an AEL Grant Application Review Committee for the purpose of providing to
TWC, recommendations related to the alignment of AEL Local Provider Grant proposals with the
PWDA Integrated Plan under WIOA regulation §463.20. Committee members reviewed the Proposal
from Amarillo College and provided the Review and Comments to TWC, as required. The comments
confirmed that the application was consistent with WIOA and the Board Plan. Amarillo College was
48



awarded the Contract as the Panhandle’s AEL Service Provider in 2018, and has the potential of being
awarded renewals of the Contract through 2023.

The PWDB continues to develop, facilitate, and expand innovative partnerships between the Board
and employers, community colleges, AEL providers, WSP and other stakeholders, to leverage
resources for the provision and integration of an array of workforce and AEL services. The PWDB
has fostered an excellent ongoing relationship with Amarillo College in collaborating on skills
development initiatives, incumbent worker training, and achievement of industry recognized
credentials, as well as traditional classroom based occupational training programs. Building on this
relationship, AEL staff from the college regularly meet with PWDB and WSP staff to exchange
information, improve processes and methods to assist AEL students with arriving at appropriate and
effective career pathways and subsequent enrollment including co-enrollment whenever determined
beneficial, or necessary, to completion. One key to the success of this collaboration is the
development of a new digital customer referral tool by Amarillo College, to enhance the collaboration
with the PWDB and WSP, in performing intake, determining program eligibility, assisting with
enrollment in classes, coordinating supportive services as needed, and facilitating the process of
connecting customers in order to provide English language, math, reading, and writing instruction to
help students acquire the skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high school equivalency,
or enter college or career training. This helps to streamline and improve the referral process and track
customer participation and success. Other important strategies include:

e Improving data collection methods which streamline customer intake and assessment processes,
and which efficiently and accurately pinpoint intrinsic needs of eligible adult customers;

e Identifying and developing career pathways and integrated employment plans that create data
driven career choices that are aligned with demand, and deliver appropriate and necessary services
under WIOA;

e Enhancing AEL customers’ educational and career advancement through the organization of
appropriate AEL activities, work readiness and job preparation activities, occupational training,
and other services specifically designed to meet the identified needs of adult individuals;

e Strengthening coordination and collaboration on partnerships which increase access to essential
services for adults who are basic skills deficient, low income, have other barriers to employment,
and are otherwise unprepared and ill equipped to enter employment or successfully retain
employment;

e Increasing the number of low-income customers and individuals with barriers to employment
who engage in short-term training leading to employment, and increase the number and quality
of work-based training opportunities including work experience and customized OJT;

e C(Closing the information gap and promote where the jobs are by focusing primarily on industries
that are net exporters of goods and services, and include occupations that provide a broad range
of high-demand career opportunities for eligible adults;

e Increasing potential for customer success by ensuring AEL activities are integrated with and
relevant to workforce training, are aligned with common learning objectives and activities
identified, and will enhance successful personal outcomes and program completion rates for work
based and occupational training;

e (Concentrating focus on completion of a recognized postsecondary credential in an In-Demand or
Target Occupation, to assist an individual in entering or advancing within a specific In-Demand
or Target Occupation, or In-Demand Industry, as determined by the Board, and aligned with local
and regional economic and labor market analysis;

e Utilizing co-enrollment and simultaneous participation in basic skills education and occupational

49



training to accelerate customer progress on a pathway to successfully entering a high demand
occupation and ultimately achieving self- sufficiency;

Developing innovative methods for using current technology to increase customer access to AEL
services, including virtual learning and online classes;

Designing and delivering educational services that meet the particular needs of individual adults,
such as accommodating schedules with multiple entry and exit points, flexible non-semester
based scheduling, and alternative class times and locations; and

Continuing to fine-tune strategies for creating employment opportunities for filling skills gaps in
emerging industrial and STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics)
occupations by identifying demographic, industrial, and employment trends and potential STEM
skill shortages, using TWC Labor Market Career Information and solicited employer input, such
as connecting area employers with TWC’s Registered Apprenticeship programs to establish
industrial machinery manufacturing and repair training opportunities which require STEM skills.
Offering grant writing and application assistance to area employers and colleges for the Skills
Development and Self- Sufficiency Fund, and other grant opportunities, will expand capacity as
well.

The TWC AEL Strategic Plan Fiscal 2021 to 2026 calls for, as one of its goals, to enhance customer
experience with increased coordination. In alignment, the PWDB and WSP will continue to support
the objectives and action items set forth in the AEL Plan as follows:

Align TWC AEL workforce development service policies to enhance the workforce customer
experience to promote co-enrollment and referral efforts with the PWDB;

Support development of career pathway ladders, and distribution of career pathway resources,
with AEL, VR and the PWDB; and

Support 60x30TX goals and share information with the Tri-Agency Workforce Initiative.

As well, the PWDB and WSP will continue to support the TWC Goals as outlined in the Texas
Workforce Consolidated Strategic Plan, that align with the AEL Strategic Plan, by:

Supporting a workforce system that allows employers and workers to achieve and sustain
economic prosperity;

Preparing individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equip them with
in-demand skills as identified by employers; and

Fostering systems that enhance early education, support strong families, advance the growth of
the at-risk workforce to accelerate their employment opportunities, and help support personal and
family stability.

The PWDB and WSP will also continue to support the Texas Tri-Agency Workforce Initiative
strategies outlined in the AEL Strategic Plan by:

Identifying students’ most efficient paths to attaining high-value credentials;

Strengthening and streamlining collaboration among key education and workforce system
stakeholders who are developing pathways at the regional level;

Expanding opportunities for work-based learning experiences;

Ensuring students and families have the support, tools, and resources needed to achieve education
and career success;

Expanding access to effective college and career advising;

Reducing financial barriers in education; and

Aligning statewide education and workforce systems with statewide priorities and goals.

50



Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services

A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training (WIOA §108(b)(7); 20 CFR
§679.560(b)(6))

Per WIOA, individualized training, career, and education services will be given on a priority basis,
regardless of funding levels, to public assistance recipients, other low-income adults, and individuals
who are basic skills deficient. Veterans and eligible spouses will continue to receive first priority of
service for all Department of Labor (DOL) funded job training programs, which include WIOA
programs. To ensure priority service is given, WSP staff will be thoroughly trained and will maintain
proficiency in the following areas:

e Initial identification of customer status and information gathering;

e Assessment of customer information including employment and training needs;

e Determination of appropriate workforce services, including co-enrollment;

e Suitable referral and timely follow up; and

e Documentation of entire process in the Workforce Information System of Texas (TWIST), and
WorkInTexas.com, as appropriate.

The PWDB continues to focus on training as a successful method to help individuals become self-
sufficient and ensure that employers have the qualified pool of skilled local workers needed to
succeed in a highly competitive business climate. To sustain and improve training and education
services, the PWDB:

e Strives to increase the number and quality of work-based training opportunities for job seekers
and students, including youth internships, work experience, and customized OJT training;

e Provides increased work-readiness training options to job seekers;

e Continues to develop and facilitate innovative partnerships with community colleges, businesses,
and other stakeholders, assisting them with planning and preparation for training grants that will
increase workers’ skills and build educational capacity in the region, including utilization of the
Skills Development Fund to develop customized job training, and other such opportunities;

e Maintains collaborations with regional employers and colleges to increase training and education
opportunities and utilize innovative partnership grants to upgrade skills and earning potential for
incumbent workers, and to meet the changing needs of local business and industry (such as an
Incumbent Worker Training Project, in the Fall of 2022 with the City of Canyon to train Solid
Waste Truck Operators); and

e Works to close the information gap and promote where the jobs are by focusing primarily on
industries that are net exporters of goods and services, and include occupations that provide a
broad range of high-demand career opportunities for eligible adults and dislocated workers.

B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals (20 CFR
§679.560(b)(21))

Local workforce development area policies and procedures ensure that priority in coordinating
programs and delivering services for targeted populations, including veterans, individuals with
disabilities, at-risk youth, Foster Youth, individuals with barriers to employment, and workers at all
skill and occupational levels is paramount, so that these groups receive the resources to be
successfully employed, become self-sufficient, and prepared for long-term career growth, and
comprise a qualified labor pool available for local employers. Information and training received

51



from Vocational Rehabilitation Services staff will enhance and improve the strategies developed
and applied for individuals with disabilities.

PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD POLICY
Chapter 2-WIOA

Section 2.1 All WIOA Program Participants
Subsection 2.1.2 WIOA Priority of Service-Update Effective 12-09-2020

PURPOSE:

To update policy regarding the federal requirement that WIOA programs are administered in a manner
that is not discriminatory based on a disability. Updated information in this policy revision is
highlighted in bold typeface.

BACKGROUND:

While WIOA (Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act) adult eligibility requirements remain
mostly consistent with WIA (Workforce Investment Act), there are some significant changes to the
service priority provisions. Consistent with WIA, priority for adult services must be given to
recipients of public assistance and other low-income individuals, with added priority for individuals
who are basic skills deficient. Under WIA, this priority applies only when adult funds are restricted.
Under WIOA, however, priority access to services by members of this group applies automatically.
Boards are no longer allowed to make a declaration of restricted or unrestricted funds.

29 CFR 38.12(h) requires that licensing and certification programs are administered in a manner
that is not discriminatory based on a disability.

29CFR 38.12(i) states recipients must not impose or apply eligibility criteria that screen out or tend
to screen out individuals with disabilities or any class of individuals with disabilities from fully and
equally enjoying any aid, benefit, service, training, program, or activity, unless such criteria can be
shown to be necessary for the provision of any aid, benefit, service, training, program, or activity
being offered.

29 CFR 38.12(k) prohibits recipients from placing a surcharge on a particular individual with a
disability, or any group of individuals with disabilities, to cover the costs of measures, such as the
provision of auxiliary aids or program accessibility, that are required to provide that individual or
group with the nondiscriminatory treatment required by WIOA Title I or this part.

29 CFR 38.12(0)(1) states that nothing in this part requires an individual with a disability to accept
any accommodation, aid, benefit, service, training, or opportunity provided under WIOA Title I or
this part that such individual chooses not to accept.

29 CRF 38.14(a): With regard to any aid, benefit, service, training, and employment, recipients
must provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities who are
applicants, registrants, eligible applicants/registrants, participants, employees, or applicants for
employment, unless providing the accommodation would cause undue hardship.

PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD POLICY:

Consistent with WIOA, individualized career services and training services will be given on a priority
basis, regardless of funding levels. In addition, WSP will administer programs and services in a
manner that is not discriminatory based on a disability, per the cited references in 29 CFR 38.12.
Veterans and eligible spouses will continue to receive priority of service for all federal and state funded
job training programs, which include WIOA programs. The existing guidance on priority of service for

52



veterans remains in effect. (See WD Letter 25-15, issued on October 26, 2015, Applying Priority of
Service and Identifying and Documenting Eligible Veterans and Transitioning Service Members.)
Under state law, foster youth and former foster youth, as defined below, will also be given priority in
the receipt of federal and State funded services. (See WD Letter 43-11 as amended, Priority of Service
for Eligible Foster Youth, for additional details.)

In addition to the eligibility criteria that all participants are required to meet, some programs also
have priorities that establish a rank order to be observed in enrolling or serving participants. These
priorities can be of two types: a) statutory; or, b) discretionary. The following provides guidance
on how priority of service interacts with these two types of priorities.

Programs with Statutory Priorities

Some programs are required by law to provide a priority or preference for a particular group of
individuals or require the program to spend a certain portion of program funds on a particular group
of persons. An example of this type of priority is the priority for low-income individuals and for
recipients of public assistance for the WIOA adult formula programs. For programs with this type
of mandatory priority, program operators must determine the status of each individual person in a
priority group and apply priority of service. Priority for WIOA individualized career services and
training services must be provided in the following order:

1. Eligible veterans and eligible spouses (as defined in WD Letter 25-15) who are also recipients
of public assistance, low-income, or basic skills deficient.

2. Foster youth and former foster youth, as defined in WD Letter 43-11, issued on November 3,
2011, and entitled, “Priority of Service for Eligible Foster Youth”, who are also recipients of public
assistance, low income, or basic skills deficient.

3. All other individuals who are recipients of public assistance, low-income, or basic skills
deficient.

4. All other eligible veterans and eligible spouses.

5. All other foster youth and former foster youth.

6. All other individuals, including any local priority groups established by the Panhandle Workforce
Development Area (WDA) Board.

The local priority group established by the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (WDA) Board
is all adults who at the time of WIOA enrollment have not completed a high school diploma, GED,
or other high school equivalency, and have not completed a GED, nor are currently attending GED
or equivalency classes.

Priority of service means that a person is given priority in order of the priority groups over non-
covered persons for the receipt of employment, training, and placement services provided under a
qualified WIOA program. Priority means that a person in a priority group is entitled to precedence
over non-covered persons for services. This means that a person in a priority group either receives
access to a service earlier in time than a non-covered person or, if the resource is limited, the person
in a priority group receives access to the service instead of or before the non-covered person.

For services such as classroom training, priority of service applies to the selection procedure, as
follows:

e First, if there is a waiting list for the formation of a training class, priority of service is intended
to require a person in a priority group to go to the top of that list.

e Second, priority of service applies up to the point at which an individual is both approved for
funding and accepted or enrolled in a training class.

53



Therefore, once a non-covered person has been both approved for funding and accepted/enrolled
in a training class, priority of service is not intended to allow a person in a priority group who is
identified subsequently to "bump" the non-covered person from that training class.

The application of priority of service varies by program depending on the eligibility requirements
of the particular program. Qualified job training programs fall into two basic categories: universal
access programs and programs that require prospective participants to meet specified eligibility
criteria.

Universal Access Programs

For workforce programs that operate or deliver services to the public as a whole without targeting
specific groups, a person in a priority group must receive priority of service over all other program
participants. For example, the primary universal access services are the "core" services delivered
through the One-Stop system under the Wagner-Peyser and WIOA programs. A person in a priority
group will receive the first level of priority in universal access programs. For example, an eligible
priority person requests universal services, however, all seats in the resource area are being used
by non-eligible persons and there are several non-eligible persons in line. In this case, the eligible
priority person would receive priority by being moved to the front of the line, but would not displace
one of the non-eligible persons already using a computer.

Programs with Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility criteria identify basic conditions that each and every participant in a specific program is
required to meet. A person in a priority group must first meet any and all of the statutory eligibility
criteria in order to be considered eligible for enrollment in the program, receipt of priority for
enrollment in the program, and priority for receipt of services. For example, for services such as
classroom training, priority of service applies to the selection procedure as follows: First, if there is a
waiting list for the formation of a training class, the eligible veteran will receive priority by being moved
to the top of that list. Second, priority of service applies when an individual is both approved for funding
and accepted or enrolled in a training class. Therefore, once a non-eligible person has been both
approved for funding and accepted or enrolled in a training class, an eligible veteran who is identified
subsequently will not take the place of the non-eligible person from that training class.

Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts
A. Fiscal Agent (WIOA §108(b)(15); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(14))

The Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC) is the grant recipient and administrative entity
for the PWDB and its partner group of chief elected officials, the Panhandle Workforce Development
Consortium’s Governing Body. These entities are responsible for the disbursal of grant funds
described in WIOA §107(d)(12)(B)(i)(II), as determined by the CEOs or the governor under WIOA

§107(d)(12)(B)(1).
B. Sub-Grants and Contracts (WIOA §108(b)(16); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(15))

PRPC’s Procurement Manual is aligned with TWC’s Financial Manual for Grants & Contracts
(FMGC), to ensure that competitive processes are used to award grants and contracts. The Contractor
that staffs the WSP offices and delivers associated workforce and child care services is procured
through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process. RFPs are also utilized to solicit consulting and
professional services. Vendors which offer other services and items determine to be required to

54



complete training or obtain/retain employment are procured through competitive methods that are
tailored to the service(s) or item(s) to be purchased. PRPC makes payments directly to training
providers and other vendors for goods and services authorized by the WSP Contractor on behalf of
workforce customers. These payments include training costs, supportive services, and child care fees.

Part 8: Performance
A. Board Performance Targets (WIOA §108(b)(17); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(16))

The PWDB’s methods for evaluating program performance involve review of local, state and federal
expectations on a monthly, quarterly or annual basis. While TWC continues to define and determine
the applicable state performance measures under WIOA, the following methods for measuring and
tracking Panhandle performance are ongoing. Monthly performance reviews include the evaluation
of information shown below, which is provided to the Board after staff analysis of successes and
shortcomings:

Number of employers, job seekers, and program customers served;

Number of workforce program customers served by activity;

State-reported actual performance compared to expectations;

Funds expended compared to budgeted resources;

Locally established measures’ actual performance compared to expectations;
Performance goals with which private sector contractor profit is associated; and
Board staff monitoring results.

The following performance measures were set in accordance with WIOA § 116(c):
Adult Employed Quarter 2 Post Exit

Adult Median Earnings Quarter 2 Post Exit

Adult Employed Quarter 4 Post Exit

Adult Credential Rate

Adult Measurable Skills Gains

Dislocated Worker Employed Quarter 2 Post Exit

Dislocated Worker Median Earnings Quarter 2 Post Exit

Dislocated Worker Employed Quarter 4 Post Exit

Dislocated Worker Credential Rate

Dislocated Worker Measurable Skills Gains

Youth Employed/Enrolled Quarter 2 Post Exit

Youth Employed/Enrolled Quarter 4 Post Exit

Youth Median Earning Quarter 2 Post Exit

Youth Credential Rate

Youth Measurable Skills Gains

All Career & Training (C&T) Participants Employed/Enrolled Quarter 2 Post Exit
All Career & Training (C&T) Participants Employed/Enrolled Quarter 4 Post Exit
All Career & Training (C&T) Participants Credential Rate

Quarterly evaluations of trends in the areas listed above, as well as special grants and strategic
objectives, receive additional analysis by staff. Results of these reviews are reported to the PWDB
upon completion or incorporated into future plan or policy changes submitted to the group for
approval. Annual evaluation of contract results and progress toward achieving strategic objectives are

55



also reported to the Board upon completion or incorporated into policies submitted to the group for
approval.

Part 9: Training and Services
A. Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) (WIOA §108(b)(19); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(18))

Adults, dislocated workers, and Out of School youth ages 18-24 who have been determined eligible
for WIOA and need occupational training may access training with an ITA, which enables them to
choose among available training providers. Training and ITAs are handled in a tiered approach
following specific steps. Generally, individuals are expected to contribute toward their own support
and/or educational costs, as much as possible. Job seekers that have tested the labor market for
employment without success are identified by employment services staff in the WSP office, and may
be referred to program case management staff.

Initial assessment and objective assessment are conducted, and the information documented and
entered into the TWIST system. WSP staff and customers collaborate on development of an
individualized service plan. Customers deemed in need of basic skills are referred to literacy
programs, adult basic education, GED, and adult educational cooperatives. Referrals for occupational
skill classroom training may be made directly to the community colleges and university.

Customers eligible for workforce services that cover all or part of training costs are referred only after
comprehensive assessment and individual service plans document the need for training/employment.
WSP staff maintains a cooperative relationship with the Panhandle community colleges’ business and
industry programs to ensure that training provided meets local employers’ needs.

An ITA can only be used for training that leads to employment and is limited to training in a Target
Occupation as defined by the PWDB. Board staff compiles a list of training providers certified by
TWC through the ETPS. The ETPS website provides information about these providers and is made
available to each customer in WSP offices to provide maximum opportunity for customer choice. An
ITA covers tuition, fees, books and supplies. An ITA does not include the cost of supportive services
(based on assessment). WSP Program Case Managers decide the appropriate total value of each ITA,
based on the customer’s assessment and employment plan, and the certified training provider’s
published costs. The key issues with an ITA are:

e Customer choice, including increased information about eligible training programs made available
through the ETPS;

e Eligibility and suitability for an ITA determined accurately and effectively;

e Training in occupations, targeted by the PWDB, and most likely to offer local employment, career
growth, and self-sufficiency;

e (Consistently high performance and completion rate for eligible training providers;

e Cancellation/forfeiture of an ITA and recovery of unused funds; and

e Exceptions that allow non-ITA training.

B. ITA Limitations (20 CFR §663.420)

Limits on Duration and Amounts of ITA’s and coordination with other resources to maximize
customer choice include:

e Established monetary limits for the total WIOA funded cost per participant for training and support
services combined;
56



e No limit on the amount for an ITA based on individual training provider cost;

e Duration limited to the shortest length of time necessary to complete the level of occupational
education and training required to begin entry level employment in the chosen field; and

e Exceptions regarding how ITA’s are handled on an individual basis, per local policy.

Part 10: Apprenticeship
A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs

The PWDB is committed to reenergizing and refocusing efforts to create and utilize Registered
Apprenticeship (RA) programs to train individuals, for skilled trades in high demand and high wage
occupations, while they earn wages. RA combines on-the-jog- training under the supervision of
experienced journey workers with related classroom instruction. The best opportunities for
apprenticeship training in the Panhandle are in the fields of wind energy, industrial manufacturing,
and industrial machinery repair.

WSP staff and the Business Services team collaborate to develop and implement a detailed plan of
action which includes determining and applying effective methods to identify potential apprenticeship
candidates, especially veterans, actively seek out potential employers who would benefit from this
partnership, and create successful matches.

Staff strongly encourages and assists employers with new or existing local apprenticeship training
programs to register in the ETPS so that WIOA funds may be leveraged to assist with training costs.

B. ApprenticeshipTexas

The PWDBs’ strategy and commitment to Apprenticeship Texas is based on detailed information and
guidance personally provided by TWC Apprenticeship staff. WSP staff and the Business Services
team collaborate to develop a strategic approach which involves:

e Working to identify and actively outreach potential employers in both traditional and non-
traditional industries to participate in the Apprenticeship Texas initiative;

e Connecting employers with TWC Apprenticeship staff when appropriate and beneficial;

e Providing complete Apprenticeship Program information including tapping into available funds;
and

e Remaining in communication with and guiding employers through the entire apprenticeship
process through successful completion.

Part 11: Public Comment

On Wednesday, November 8, 2022, public meeting notices regarding requests for input and comments
on the two-year review and modification of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan for
Program Years 2021-2024, were published in the Texas Register, and on the https://wspanhandle.com/
and https://theprpc.org websites. Partners from regional training providers, businesses and individuals
were also invited by direct email to discuss topics, including the PWDB’s Target Occupations, In-
Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries lists. Public comments received in the meeting were
incorporated into the updates to the lists, which were approved by the PWDB and Consortium’s
Governing Body (CEOs) in the December 2022 meetings, and to the proposed draft Plan Modification
being presented to the bodies in the February 2023 meetings.
57



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING
COMMISSION

NOTICE OF MEETING

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal Regulations
§679.500-580), each Local Workforce Development Board is required to develop and submit to the State
a comprehensive four-year Board plan that identifies and describes policies and procedures as well as local
activities, and then, after two years, to review the local Board Plan and develop and submit modifications
to reflect labor market changes, economic conditions, and other factors affecting plan implementation.
One of the areas to be reviewed includes the Board’s Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and
In-Demand Industries lists.

A public meeting will be held at 10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, November 8, 2022, for comments on the two-
year review and modification of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan for Program Years
2021-2024. This meeting will be held in virtual format with videoconference available pursuant to Texas
Government Code Section 551.127.

Members of the public interested in attending this meeting may do so by logging onto:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84152487455?pwd=Y 2tROIQyY WRUL256bGRIZFBtaGl5Zz09

(Meeting ID: 841 5248 7455 - Password: 984317) or may participate by phone (346) 248-7799 (Meeting
ID: 841 5248 7455 - Password: 984317)

A copy of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan for Program Years 2021-2024 can be found
on the PRPC’s website at: https://www.theprpc.org/Programs/WorkforceDevelopment/default.html

AGENDA
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
3. ADJOURN
PUBLIC NOTICE

This notice complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 551, Open Meetings Act, Section 551.041 (Notice of Meeting Requirements); Section
551.043 (Time and Accessibility of Notice Requirements); and Section 551.053 (Notice Requirements of a Political Subdivision Extending into
Four or More Counties). The notice has been filed at least 72 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting with the Secretary of State's Office,
the Potter County Clerk's Office and has been posted in the Administrative Office of the Panhandle Regional Planning Commission.

Posted this 2™ day of November, 2022, at 415 Southwest Eighth Avenue, Amarillo, Texas, at 9:00 a.m.

Leslie Hardin

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER / PROGRAM
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities
Relay Texas: 711

58



Public meeting and legal notices regarding the proposed draft of the PWDB Plan 2023 Modification
were also published in the Texas Register, Amarillo Globe-News, on the wspanhandle.com website
and on the PRPC website, beginning on January 30, 2023 requesting public comment(s). No public
comments have been received to date.

LEGAL NOTICE

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal Regulations
§679.500-580), two years after its initial submission, each Local Workforce Development Board is
required to modify its comprehensive four-year Board plan that identifies and describes policies and
procedures as well as local activities, and submit it to the State. The Panhandle Regional Planning
Commission (PRPC), and the Panhandle Workforce Development Board (PWDB) will submit, to the
Texas Workforce Commission (TWC), the two-year modification of the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board Plan for Program Years 2021-2024, on March 1, 2023.

Interested parties may examine the proposed modification of the Board Plan on the PRPC website at:
http://theprpc.org/programs/workforcedevelopment/default.html. Copies may also be requested by
email using the contact information listed below.

PRPC will accept written public comments on the Board Plan submitted by February 28, 2023. Written
comments may be sent to Leslie Hardin, Workforce Development Program Manager, by email:
lhardin@theprpc.org., or by mail: Panhandle Regional Planning Commission, PO Box 9257, Amarillo,
TX 79105-9257.

Equal Opportunity Employer/Program
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities
Relay Texas: 711

59


http://theprpc.org/programs/workforcedevelopment/default.html
mailto:lhardin@theprpc.org
http://www.puc.state.tx.us/relaytexas/relay/CallTypes.aspx

WIOA Board Two-Year Plan Modification Form
Workforce Development (WD) Letter 18-22, Attachment 1

Overview

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Final Rule at 20 CFR §679.580 requires
that at the end of the first two years of the four-year local plan, Local Workforce Development
Boards (Boards) and their appropriate chief elected officials (CEOs) review their local plans and
prepare and submit modifications to reflect labor market changes, economic conditions, and other
factors affecting plan implementation. These factors may include, but are not limited to, changes to
the financing available to support WIOA Title I services and partner-provided WIOA services or a
need to revise strategies in order to meet local performance goals.

Instructions

Boards must respond to each of the following prompts and make corresponding changes to their
plans. When modifying their plans, Boards must use Track Changes for easy identification by the
Texas Workforce Commission during review. If no modifications are required, Boards must provide
a brief yet detailed explanation as to how the Board and its CEO(s) made that determination. For each
response, include all corresponding page numbers from the plan.

la. Describe any changes in labor market and economic conditions in the Board’s local workforce
development area, including changes to the employment needs of employers and changes to existing
and emerging in-demand industry sectors and occupations.

1) Several employers in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) that continue their
operations and some that have released plans for potential manufacturing industry projects prompted
the addition of the occupation of Production Workers, All Others (SOC 51-9199) to the Target
Occupations List. These projects include:

*Cacique Foods, a leading Hispanic foods company and the #1 brand of authentic Mexican-style
cheeses, cremas and chorizos in the United States, is expecting to open their new 200,000 sq. ft. dairy
facility in April, 2023. The new processing facility is being developed on 55 acres of land in the
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation’s (EDC) South Georgia Business Park. The company
has partnered with AmTech Career Academy and Amarillo College.

*Ecolomondo Corporation, a cleantech company commercializing its proprietary recycling
technology, Thermal Decomposition Process (“TDP”) and specializing in the building and operation
of turnkey TDP facilities, announced plans in January, 2022, to build and operate a six-reactor
turnkey TDP facility in Shamrock. This will be the Company’s first US-based waste-to-resources
TDP plant capable of processing and recycling end-of-life tires (“ELT”) into saleable recycled
commercial resources for re-use. At peak production, Ecolomondo expects to create approximately
70 direct and 140 indirect jobs.

*Chemical Vapor Metal Refining (CVMR) will build a $1.5 billion, 540-acre rare-earth refinery in
Amarillo after the city and Potter County agreed to economic incentives for the project, according to

a June 21 press release.
60




*Caviness Beef Packers operates two Panhandle facilities:

a) Beef harvest, fabrication, rendering, and hides processing in Hereford. In 2020, Caviness
completed approximately 130,000 sq ft of plant additions in Hereford which allowed them to add a
second shift to the operations, and expanded upon from coolers, freezers, dry goods, employee
welfare, hides, rendering and wastewater complex.

b) Ground beef and patty processing, in Amarillo producing approximately 1,500,000 pounds of
ground beef chubs and patties weekly.

*SSI Foods is a beef patty manufacturing company located in Amarillo, manufacturing hamburger
products that meet the core menu needs of quick service and casual dining restaurants by utilizing
four patty processing lines with Tomahawk TM26 patty formers, with expansion capability to six
lines.

*SciCron Technologies’ state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in Amarillo specializes in applying
high-quality, high-performance coatings to plastics, with expertise in coating large, clear sheet
products, and coating fabricated, molded, and formed plastic parts, and plastic film products.

2) Following the COVID-19 Pandemic, employers in the Healthcare Industry in the PWDA began
discovering the increased need for Mental Health services and approached the PWDB with a proposal
to develop a credential program with Amarillo College for Psychiatric Technicians. In its February,
2022 Board meeting, the PWDB approved adding this occupation to its High-Demand Occupations
and Target Occupations Lists. The Amarillo College program was then added to the Eligible
Training Provider System (ETPS) and WSP has enrolled WIOA customers in the program.

See pages 13-28, 30-31

1b. Describe any changes made to the Board’s Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-
Demand Industries lists since the four-year local plan was approved in July 2021 and include the
updated template (WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 3, WIOA Target Occupations, In-Demand
Occupations, and In-Demand Industries Template). If no changes were made to a list, submit the
current list with the current date. Describe the review process that the Board used to determine
whether the Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries lists required
modification. Cite all sources used.

On November 8, 2022, staff hosted a Public Meeting on behalf of the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board, to give its communities and partners an opportunity to provide input into the
development of modifications to the Board Plan pertaining to labor market changes, economic
conditions, and other factors affecting Plan implementation. Areas reviewed included the Board’s
Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries lists. Attendees representing
the Healthcare, Manufacturing and Education Industries robustly discussed current needs and future
trends for the Panhandle. The recommendations were taken to the Panhandle Workforce Development
Board, and the Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body (Chief Elected
Officials — CEOs) quarterly meetings on December 7 and 8", respectively.

61




1) Both bodies approved adding several Target Occupations, most notably, those aligning with the
Governor’s Texas Target Industry Cluster Initiative as follows:

* Advanced Manufacturing — Project Management Specialists and Business Operations Specialists
(13-1198); and Production Workers (51-9199)

* Biotechnology and Life Sciences — Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and Health
Technologists and Technicians (29-2098)

* Energy/Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products — Petroleum Pump System Operators, Refinery
Operators and Gaugers (51-8093)

* Information Technology — Information Security Analysts (15-1212)

2) To determine the occupations to be included on the Panhandle’s In-Demand Occupations List,
staff evaluated the Texas Labor Market Information (LMI) 2020-2030 Occupational Employment data
and, based upon the statistic of the number of Annual Job Openings equaling ten (10) openings or more,
compiled the proposed List which was presented in the Public Meeting described above. The number
of occupations recommended to be included on the List, presented to the public, and approved by both
of the Panhandle’s governing bodies, for this Plan Modification, nearly doubled from the previous List
in the 2021-2024 Board Plan, reflecting the major disruption in the labor force caused by the COVID-
19 Pandemic.

3) Industries operating in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area have always represented the
very diverse environment of the Texas Panhandle ranging from Agricultural, Construction, Healthcare,
Manufacturing, Service(s) and Transportation, to the U.S. Department of Energy’s mission at the
Pantex Plant, the Phillips 66/Cenovus Energy Refinery in Borger, and Amarillo’s Bell (Textron)
aerospace commercial/military Rotocraft production facility.

Prompted by TWC discussions of a Statewide shortage of Emergency Medical Technicians and
Paramedics, in May 2022, the In-Demand Industry of Other Ambulatory Health Care Services was
approved and added to the Panhandle’s In-Demand Industries List, and Emergency Medical
Technicians and Paramedics (29-2041) was added to the Target Occupations List. This Industry has
been added to the 2021 List for this Plan Modification. No other changes to the In-Demand Industries
have been made.

See pages 13-28, 31-36

2. Describe any changes in the financing available to support WIOA Title I services and partner-
provided WIOA services that have affected the implementation of the Board’s plan. For partner-
provided services, Boards should consider the roles and resource contributions of the Workforce
Solutions Offices, changes in partner infrastructure contributions, and whether any financial changes
have required the Board to revise a strategy that was described in the original plan. For example, if
reductions in federal funding or changes in the Board’s funding strategies have required the Board to
consider closing one or more Workforce Solutions Olffices or if a shift in how services are delivered

62




has changed the amount available for operating costs, Boards must include this information as part
of the two-year modification.

* In 2018, the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) announced its intention to divest itself of
ownership of its buildings statewide, which included the Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP)
facility at 1206 S.W. 7th Avenue, in Amarillo, where the Panhandle Workforce Development Board
(PWDB) has been delivering workforce development services for decades. During the same period,
TWC began planning to integrate its Texas Workforce Solutions Vocational Rehabilitation (VR)
Services staff into the WSP operations in the Panhandle. Over the following years, the PWDB
facilitated a relocation of WSP and VR services and staff, opening in a remodeled facility located at
3120 Eddy Street in Amarillo, in March, 2021. The move from a State-owned building, provided to
the PWDB at a nominal cost, into a privately-owned facility requiring commercial leasing costs, has
added a considerable infrastructure burden to the PWDB’s Service Delivery capabilities, with an
increase in Operating Costs of nearly 185%, and required a shifting of funding.

See pages 3-4, 26

* The PWDB continues to partner with regional Economic Development Corporations (EDCs) to
apply for High Demand Job Training grant funding to match the EDCs sales tax investments in a
dollar-for dollar match, to purchase equipment for regional community colleges and Independent
School Districts (ISDs). These $150,000 annual Grant Application opportunities have provided, to-
date, over $1,040,000 which were matched by the EDCs, for the PWDA. The PWDB plans to
continue requesting these WIOA Activities funds which have supplemented Career & Technology
Education (CTE) training programs throughout the PWDA.

See pages 7, 28, 31

3. Describe any changes made to the strategies used to meet local performance goals.

In alignment with the TWC Mission Strategic Plan Goals for 2023-2027, the PWDB continues to
strive for excellence in service delivery for the residents of the PWDA and has updated strategies in
several areas including, but not limited to:

Goal 1 — Ensuring the Texas workforce system supports employers and allows business and industry
to thrive, by (1.1.2) expanding recruiting and hiring services to help employers build and maintain a
robust workforce.

*The WSP Amarillo office relocated from a State-owned facility into a remodeled building in March
of 2021. The new facility doubled in size and offers, among its amenities, multiple public meeting
spaces of various capacities, which are available to employers for hiring events, interviews and
planning meetings. These opportunities for inviting the public into WSP have greatly enhanced
business connections and exposure of workforce and child care services that were limited in the
previous location. Several local and regional employers, including Pantex (Interviews & Testing),
Cacique (Additional Office Space, Onboarding, & Training), Texas Department of Criminal Justice
63




(Additional Office Space), West Texas Healthcare Association (Monthly Seminar), Panhandle
Human Resources Association (Board Meetings), Quick Quack Car Wash (Management Meetings),
Panhandle Community Partnership (Committee Meetings), and Express Personnel Employer
Seminars, schedule and utilize meeting rooms on a regular basis.

See pages 3-4, 28

Goal 2 — Ensuring a skilled workforce is prepared and equipped to fill critical in-demand jobs, both
now and in the future, by (2.2.1) expanding the development of high-quality work-based learning
opportunities that provide workers with the skills and experience needed to fill in-demand jobs and
ensure qualified workers are matched with hiring employers.

*The PWDB has partnered with several regional employers and training providers in taking
advantage of TWC’s Skills Development Fund (SDF) grants. In February, the PWDB executed a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Plains Dairy, a leading provider of high-quality milk
and dairy products in the region. The company is dedicated to producing milk from local farmers and
distributing it to customers in the area. They have a state-of-the-art processing facility that allows
them to turn raw milk into a variety of products, including milk, cheese, butter, and ice cream. The
PWDRB is developing an application for a SDF Project that will invest in measurable skills
development to train approximately 100 employees of Plains Dairy, utilizing a customized Safe
Quality Food (SQF) food safety and quality management system that provides guidelines for the
production, processing, packaging, and distribution of food products.

See page 23

Goal 3 — Providing exceptional customer service and support to all workforce system stakeholders,
by (3.1.2) enhancing the overall customer experience within the workforce system, providing multiple
integrated pathways for customers to choose how they interact with the system.

The PWDB understands that the workforce system must have the capacity to meet the needs of all
current and future customers: employers, system program and service providers, and workers,
wherever they are in their careers. Customers must be assured that wherever they enter the workforce
system, there is a pathway through the system by instituting a “no-closed door” culture to ensure
successful outcomes or referrals for customers of the workforce system programs and services. Any
point of entry provides access to the full continuum of programs and services. The ability to
accurately assess customer satisfaction with and across workforce system elements and translate this
data into useful actions is essential to best meet the needs of workforce system customers.

*WSP is incorporating Quick Response (QR) Code technology into its Customer Satisfaction Survey
process. This technology allows customers to access the optic label provided on WSP printed and
digital media and, in a streamlined, convenient, and confidential method, respond on their customer
service experience.

See pages 31-33
64




*The PWDB has purchased the digital communication management (DCM) software Granicus
GovDelivery to enable WSP to build content to be shared with job seekers and connect/distribute
through a number of different mediums, including email, Short Message Service (SMS)/text
messages, Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds, and social media integration, including, but not
limited to, a monthly newsletter.

See page 31

4. Describe any other factors affecting plan implementation.

The PWDB acknowledges the changes in the workforce environment from the COVID-19 pandemic.
Factors contributing to the Panhandle’s extremely tight labor market, which presented challenges
even before the economic shutdown, have continued, while a new set of circumstances has emerged.
Many workers have not returned to the labor market for several reasons that are not unique to the
Panhandle but are trending nationwide. Some workers moved in the direction of retirement, possibly
earlier than they might have planned; some, after receiving income support, made calculations to
adapt to an income level perhaps less than what pre-pandemic employment afforded, but considered
adequate; and some are considering career changes and weighing options. PWDA employers
struggle to fill positions, and with retention of a sufficient level of workers to maintain and grow
businesses. WSP drives outreach efforts, innovating methods and content, to entice individuals to
connect with staff who are eager to assist with re-introducing those who have been out of the
workforce, to the wide range of opportunities, and counseling those who have an interest in
improving their skills and earning potential.

See pages 24-25

65




Texas Workforce Investment Council Requirements

The Texas Workforce Investment Council (TWIC) is charged under Texas Government Code
§2308.101(5), 2308.302(a), and 2308.304(a)(b)(4), and the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity
Act of 2014 (WIOA) (Public Law 113-128) with recommending the plans of Local Workforce
Development Boards (Boards) to the governor for consideration for approval. TWIC reviews each
Board Plan to ensure that local goals and objectives are consistent with the statewide goals and
objectives in the system plan, The Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan FY 2016-FY 2023,

Additionally, state law charges TWIC with reporting annually to the governor and to the Texas
legislature on the implementation of the system’s strategic plan and monitoring the operation of the
state’s workforce system to assess the degree to which the system is effective in achieving state and
local goals and objectives. Therefore, TWIC also reviews Board Plans and plan modifications to
determine each Board’s progress in implementing strategies that align with the strategic plan for the
Texas workforce system. Following consideration for approval at a regularly scheduled quarterly
meeting, TWIC recommends the Board Plans to the governor for consideration for approval. Boards’
responses to the following planning elements are reviewed by TWIC for alignment and are the basis
for recommending approval.

The Texas Workforce Environment: Key Issues

During the development of the TWIC strategic plan, several key issues surfaced that factor into the
analysis on an ongoing basis. There are two distinct areas where issues arose: those occurring in the
workforce environment and those that are taking place within the integrated workforce system
framework. This plan considered both dimensions. These issues are taking place in the environment
within which the Texas workforce system resides and hold cross-partner implications. These issues
have been considered in the formation of system goals, objectives, and outcomes.

Educational Programs of Study

In Texas, career and technical education and programs of study are guided by federal and state law
and require consistent and ongoing collaboration by the Texas Education Agency and the Texas
Higher Education Coordinating Board. Administered through these two partner agencies, these
efforts are designed to ensure that the critical linkages between secondary and postsecondary career
pathways and dual credit are providing seamless transitions and transfer options. The goal of these
efforts is a higher completion and graduation rate, thereby increasing the number of individuals with
a diploma or degree, as well as nontraditional credentials that are in high demand in both today’s job
market and the future.

Programs of study are tied to coherent sequences of academic, career, and technical courses and
training. This sequencing is improving transfer options and will ultimately result in higher graduation
or completion rates in areas where workers are needed in the current job market. The national trend
is to implement a program of study as an effective method of career and technical education delivery
that provides students with practical experience to assist them to translate their academic experiences
into real-world applications.

While programs of study have not been fully implemented at the postsecondary level, a number of
elements are operational that are making progress in achieving an integrated pathway from secondary
to postsecondary, and between community and technical colleges. Texas must continue to develop

66


https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf

and integrate career and technical education programs of study within and across educational levels.
As the education landscape continues to evolve, opportunities exist to improve student education and
employment outcomes.

Adult Education

Adult education programs and services are important components of the Texas workforce system.
These programs are funded through a variety of federal, state, and local sources to improve literacy
and educational outcomes for adults who have not earned a high school diploma or who perform
below the high school level, thereby making postsecondary education, training, or employment
difficult. Through the provision of these programs and services, adult education improves
employability outcomes by ensuring a growing number of Texans who are prepared to attain some
form of postsecondary credential. Adult education programs and services are designed to coordinate,
deliver, and align postsecondary and workforce readiness training to ensure that all programs lead to
high school equivalency, further training, college or university, or employment.

In September 2013, mandated by Senate Bill 307 (83rd Texas Legislature), adult education programs
and services transitioned from the Texas Education Agency to the Texas Workforce Commission.
Through its contracts, the Texas Workforce Commission requires enhancements to service delivery
models supporting innovation and increased outcomes, including incentives for enrollment,
integration with workforce programs, and models focused on transitions to work or postsecondary
education. This approach allows continuity of services as programs build capacity and enhance
service delivery and curricula, while steadily supporting an upward trajectory in the program’s overall
direction toward increased employment and training outcomes consistent with the requirements in
Senate Bill 307.1

A key capacity to achieving the above stated goals is the referral capabilities and infrastructure
necessary to serve individuals seeking adult education programs and services to locate the most
appropriate program, regardless of where it resides within 1 Adult Education and Literacy Outcome
Report to the Texas Legislature for SFY14. Texas Workforce Commission (2014). 15 the adult
education domain. Improving this capacity and improving coordination among service providers are
essential components to serving these learners.

Changing Demand for Middle-Skill Workers

While concentrations of science, technology, engineering, and math (STEM) jobs vary region to
region, overall middle-skill STEM occupations generally pay high wages, tend to be prevalent in all
regions, and are growing in Texas. STEM workers at all levels of educational attainment experience
stronger employment outcomes and higher lifetime earnings. While workers tend to command higher
pay if they have knowledge in more than one STEM field, education and training programs tend to
focus on one specific domain of knowledge. Middle-skill STEM workers are projected to find broad
employment options. In fact, it is estimated that over the next decade over 60 percent of jobs in Texas
will be middle-skill and will require some form of postsecondary education.

A key aspect to understanding STEM-related employment is the growth of middles-killed STEM
employment. These middle-skill STEM jobs tend to require a high level of STEM technical
knowledge but often less than would be required for a four-year degree. As a result, middle-skill
STEM jobs tend to be more geographically dispersed across the state, whereas those requiring a four-
year degree tend to be concentrated in certain geographic regions.

Texas has developed an infrastructure from which to engage public and private sector stakeholders
to enhance, reinforce, and build a strong supply of STEM-capable workers across the state. The state

has also honed its ability to source, compete, and grow targeted industry clusters. Strategies
67



addressing middle-skill workers in the STEM area are an essential focus of this strategic plan.
Increasing Demand for Industry-based Certifications for Texas Workers

Over recent years, the role, purpose, and value of industry certifications has changed dramatically.
While licenses, certificates, and certifications all fall under the larger umbrella of workforce
credentials, the current workforce landscape in Texas points to the growing role that industry
certifications can play in improving workforce outcomes.

The distinction between licenses, certificates, and certifications is important because each play a vital
role in workforce development. As defined by the National Organization for Competency Assurance
standard 100, licenses and certificates are generally awarded by academic institutions or similar
groups and are generally based on education and/or training, whereas the primary focus of
certifications is on assessment by a third-party provider, based on industry-recognized standards.
Further, certification processes are independent from any one training or education provider.
Certifications are created, developed, sponsored, or operated through the private sector with little or
no participation by public institutions. Certification allows for greater portability of validation,
uniformity of standards, and applicability in high-demand and high-skill occupations that experience
rapidly changing industry standards.

Although all workforce credentials are important to successful outcomes for the Texas workforce
system, the role and impact of industry-based, third-party certifications is growing. The ability to
identify and track workers who have certifications, analyze demand trends, and provide feedback and
information to enhance workforce system decisions is an important capacity for the Texas workforce
system to build. As such, it is essential that the Texas workforce system place special emphasis on
industry-based certifications during the timeframe encompassed by this strategic plan.

Demand-Driven Programs and Services

The state continues to grow jobs in both middle- and high-skilled occupations across a number of
different employer sizes and industry sectors. The ability to fill these positions with properly skilled
workers by creating and implementing responsive programs and services is essential to successfully
meet employer needs. The Texas economy has been one of the strongest in the United States over the
past 15 years and national assessment measures from the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and the
Texas Leading Index point to continued economic health for the state. To sustain and increase
economic growth, a well-trained labor supply must be available for employers seeking to establish,
conduct, or expand business operations in Texas. The Texas workforce system partners must develop
and implement new and enhanced data systems and tools to better understand and respond to the
state’s dynamic workforce environment. Further, this information must be effectively translated into
effective and efficient delivery of services that meet the needs of Texas employers.

While the traditional baccalaureate degree is still viewed as the primary pathway to postsecondary
success, interest in middle-skill jobs has increased the desire and need for other avenues of education.
Middle-skill jobs are primarily occupations that require education or training beyond high school, but
not necessarily a bachelor’s degree.

Despite the increased interest in these jobs, it appears that there is a growing divide between the
number of qualified, technically skilled, and available job applicants and the 2 Tracking Industry-
Based Certifications: Promising Practices in Capturing Data on the Workforce Supply of Industry
Certified Workers. Texas Workforce Investment Council (2015). 17 number needed by Texas
employers. During the listening sessions conducted in advance of developing this plan, the Council
heard from both the U.S. Chamber of Commerce Foundation and a panel of Texas employers that it

is difficult to recruit and hire appropriately skilled employees. The central message was that
68



employers are having a difficult time finding certain types of employees—particularly in middle-skill
occupations—and that, as a result, sometimes job listings can go unfilled for long periods of time,
resulting in a direct cost to employers.

Education System Coordination and Alignment

As the Texas workforce system evolves, it must have the capacity to design, implement, and assess
aligned and integrated programs and services in a collaborative manner. This is particularly relevant
at transition points across system partners and programs. There are a vast array of needs and
expectations of customers in the Texas workforce system, ranging from adult education, career and
technical education, and college and work readiness. Educational and career transitions need to be
seamless and accessible from any point in the workforce system to ensure that customers are able to
navigate these wide-ranging options and opportunities efficiently and effectively, without
unnecessary duplication or experiencing gaps in services that hinder progress in

achieving the desired workforce education and training goal.

69



Demonstrating Alignment with Texas’ Strategic Plan for the Workforce System
WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 2

The four sections below list and describe the four system goals from The Texas Workforce System
Strategic Plan FY 2016-FY 2023 (2020 Update) that identify critical, high-priority system issues for
the state. Boards inform the development of strategic goals and objectives and are essential to the
implementation of the workforce system plan. Board plan responses apprise TWIC of innovative
practices and how key strategies in the system plan translate into local action to move the system
forward. Examples of select Board responses will be presented to TWIC under each goal. All 28
Boards will be represented in the briefing for the approval of the plans.

For each goal:

e briefly describe how the Board is working to fulfill the intent of the goal as specified in the
description; and

e include the corresponding page number(s) within your plan that further details the identified
strategy or initiative.

System Goal 1 and Rationale

Focus on Employers

Effective engagement with employers informs many system strategies and functions that address the

changing needs of industry as well as state and regional economies. Education and training are a
primary system function that may require multiple state and local entities to work with similar
employers to design instruction or adjust career and technical education program and delivery
options. Coordination and partnerships with employers are essential to gain insight and implement
initiatives while ensuring that industrial productivity continues.

System Goal 1—Local Board Response

Please describe how your local Board has improved employer engagement and efforts to
collaborate with any other entities that require input, participation, and/or partnership with
employers. Specifically, describe how you coordinate efforts to gain more comprehensive insight on
employer needs while reducing the demand on the employers who would otherwise be responding to
multiple requests. Identify the primary outcomes and, where relevant, list key entities involved and
type of information requests for each entity.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 4, 6, 12, 29-30

Identifying appropriate operational strategies involves examining local labor market skills and service
gaps by analyzing local, state and national data that identify demographic, industrial and employment
trends and potential skill shortages, using a variety of economic tools provided by TWC, other state
agencies, and federal, local, and private resources. The PWDB is committed to and is actively
engaged in creating greater employer engagement.

In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 1, the PWDB will continue:

e Expanding the number of apprentices in underserved populations;

e Developing training opportunities toward industry-based certifications to expand the number of
work-ready individuals in high demand occupations;

e Increasing the number of employers who participate in work-based learning programs;

e Engaging industry representatives to collaborate with community colleges in new program

70



development that incorporates national industry-based certifications into programs of study;

e  Assisting with aligning the Texas Education Agency (TEA) Texas Essential Knowledge and
Skills (TEKS) to Industry-based certifications, where applicable. (Reference:
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-
skills); and

e Assisting with aligning the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) with
identifying and implementing relevant industry-based certifications and licenses and
incorporating the occupational information into statewide career and technical education
programs.

The WSP Business Services Unit specialized division is tailored to meet employer's workforce needs.

The WSP Business Service Representatives (BSRs) work with employers and offer customized

business consulting services, such as addressing human resource challenges and identifying the skills

sets needed by industry. Workforce and Labor Market Information (LMI) is essential to the Texas

Panhandle’s economy, providing for the efficient operation of labor markets by supplying quality

labor market intelligence. Accurate, objective, relevant, timely, and accessible workforce and LMI is

critical for:

e Building a skilled workforce that spurs business competitiveness and economic growth;

e  Strengthening career pathways and guiding skill attainment for good jobs, economic opportunity,
and career growth;

e Understanding the rapidly changing nature of work and how it impacts the workforce and the
area’s economy; and

e Spending workforce training and education funds effectively.

WSP BSRs worked closely with Economic Development Corporations (EDCs), Colleges,
Universities, and employers. The largest consumers of WSP’s LMI Services were the Amarillo EDC
(9 total LMI projects), Amarillo College (LMI presentations at each campus throughout the Texas
Panhandle), Frank Phillips College and Clarendon College (both utilized LMI to choose new
educational programs at area campuses).

WSP Business Services staff, in cooperation with the Panhandle Community Partnership began work
on creating an interactive website to clearly visualize career pathway maps. This tool features Target
Occupations from the PWDA, including wage, education requirements, and up-to-date LMI.

System Goal 2 and Rationale

Engage in Partnerships

Workforce system partners leverage local and regional partnerships to enhance system alignment and
improve outcomes and reporting. Partnerships rely on a culture of collaboration and trust, deep
working relationships, and communication to provide a solid foundation on which to coordinate
planning, integrate processes, and develop the collective technical capacity to share needs, data, and
information.

System Goal 2—Local Board Response

Please describe your primary (top) partnerships, how you use them to address key strategies in
your plan, and the significant outcomes and progress related to the partnerships. In addition,
specifically describe partnerships that foster innovation and improved participant engagement and
outcomes in workforce development.

71


https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 4-10, 34-37, 52-57

In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 2, the PWDB will continue to expand partnerships with
system partners and stakeholders to promote collaboration, joint planning, and enhanced participant
outcomes by:

e Improving rehabilitation employment outcomes by establishing additional partnerships with
secondary and postsecondary entities, and employers;

e Increasing access to, referral between, and outcomes of adult education programs and services;

e Implementing a coordinated approach, with Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), to serving
employers, and to identifying opportunities and strategies for improved coordination and
enhanced participant outcomes;

e Participating in regional discussions with the Texas Education Agency about career pathway
expansion opportunities for high school students;

e Implementing case management that integrates data among multiple programs;

e Collaborating with State and community agencies for enhancing services to foster youth;

e Connecting more ex-offenders with adult education programs through better developed referral
processes and appropriate short-term integrated training options; and

e Promoting the importance of community and technical colleges to targeted adult education
services that transition adult learners to higher education.

The PWDB’s strategy to work with entities carrying out the core programs and with required partners
to align resources available to the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA), and to achieve
the vision and goals, includes developing and actively supporting dynamic industry partnerships. By
aligning and sharing resources through existing collaborations, the PWDB is assisted in designing
and delivering services based on business and industry needs, thus enhancing employer engagement.

*Businesses/Employers — The PWDB develops and actively supports dynamic partnerships by
aligning and sharing resources through existing collaborations, such as the Panhandle Board’s
Business Advisory Committee, comprised of Board and non-Board members, private sector
employers, area college representatives, Board staff, and contractor staff, to assist the Board in
designing and delivering services based on business and industry needs. The strengths of workforce
activities in the Panhandle region are the innovative employment and training opportunities
developed through the creation of new partnerships with businesses, employers, and training
providers in the Panhandle.

*Economic Development — Work continues to encourage and support local partners to pursue skills
development grant opportunities to apply for and obtain grants such as TWC’s Jobs and Education
for Texas (JET), and the High Demand Job Training (HDJT) grants. HDJT’s $150,000 annual Grant
Application opportunities have provided, to-date, over $1,040,000 which were matched by the EDCs,
for the PWDA. The PWDB plans to continue requesting these WIOA Activities funds which have
supplemented Career & Technology Education (CTE) training programs throughout the PWDA.

*Community Colleges — Continued collaboration with required partners in local business and
education, and with local community organizations, will enhance the PWDB’s workforce system
capacity for delivering effective employment and training services, while meeting required
performance. Successfully aligning resources and responding to expected shortages of workers in
skilled trades and technical occupations due to the skills gap created by employee turnover, combined
with the increasing demand for a highly-technically skilled workforce, are essential.

Amarillo College, the PWDA’s Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) Service Provider, is developing
a new digital customer referral tool, MyOneFlow, to enhance the collaboration with the PWDB and

72



WSP, in performing intake, determining program eligibility, assisting with enrollment in classes,
coordinating supportive services as needed, and facilitating the process of connecting customers in
order to provide English language, math, reading, and writing instruction to help students acquire the
skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high school equivalency, or enter college or career
training.

*Independent School Districts (ISDs) — One of the goals of the PWDB is to expand collaboration,
joint planning, and enhanced participant outcomes with regional ISDs. The PWDB and WSP will
strive to gain more access to benefit students through developing additional career pathways and
dual-credit training opportunities.

*Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) — Collaboration and joint planning with VR Services and TWC
continues for providing a seamless approach for access to integrated workforce services, literacy
education, vocational rehabilitation, and in-demand workplace skills that lead to self-sufficient
employment and advancement for individuals with disabilities. Promoting partnerships with
employers and system stakeholders will overcome barriers to meeting workforce needs through
creative use of technology and innovation.

*Chambers of Commerce — In addition to creating new employment opportunities, a key element
in the Panhandle is motivating skilled workers to remain in or return to the Panhandle area. This can
be achieved by developing and implementing a targeted approach to overcoming challenges inherent
in virtual employment. Coordinating with system partners like the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce,
AEDC, and local colleges to promote the economically and personally rewarding benefits of staying
in or returning to Amarillo, is an effective approach.*Ex-offenders — WSP coordinates with the Texas
Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) to provide information to local Parole Division Officers,
regarding Job Seeker services for its Releasees, to enable the Officers to make referrals to WSP to
help these individuals locate, enter and retain employment.

System Goal 3 and Rationale

Align System Elements

By improving transitions, aligning programs, and ensuring portability and transferability, Texas
improves access and the ability of all participants to complete programs of study, earn credentials,
transition to further education, and gain critical employability skills. Texas employers are better
positioned to find and hire the employees they need through an enhanced education and training
pipeline.

System Goal 3—Local Board Response

Please describe alignment efforts and the status, outcomes, and plan for continuous
improvement of system alignment in your region. In the description, include barriers,
considerations, and proposed actions to overcome the barriers.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 5-8, 13-22, 32-39

Through the implementation of a common technical core curriculum that is recognized statewide,

programs of study can enhance delivery efficiency, dual-credit effectiveness, and improve student

outcomes and transitions. In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 3, the PWDB will continue to:

e Improve and enhance services, programs, and policies to align with programs of study in
community and technical colleges with secondary programs;

e Enhance transition services for students and youth with disabilities to competitive integrated

73



employment or to postsecondary education and training followed by competitive integrated
employment, aligning with the Pathways to Careers Initiative (PCI);

e Develop and implement policies and processes to career and technical education opportunities for
dual credit; and

e Seek input from business and industry to identify essential knowledge, skills, and abilities they
require.

The PWDB continues to endeavor to connect job seekers and other populations with barriers to
employment to numerous career and training resources and opportunities to prepare them for entry
or reentry into the workforce in high-growth industry sectors, and improve customer opportunities
for growth. The PWDB and its partner agencies continue to cultivate emerging industries, support
existing businesses and enhance the skills development of the workforce taking advantage of strategic
opportunities provided by swift economic change.

In alignment with the TWC Strategic Plan, the PWDB continues to strive for improved access and
efficiency, along with value-added services, to benefit customers of the workforce system. The
PWDB recognizes that along with system partners, it is responsible for the delivery of twenty
workforce education and training programs and related services, as well as education programs that
support career preparation and advancement. The PWDB, WSP, and community partners continue
to follow the principal of full integration of core programs, with a strategy of alignment, coordination,
and integration of education, employment and training programs. The PWDB continues its objective
of structuring collaboration of programs, initiatives and outcomes, to avoid duplication with strategic
plans of partner agencies. The PWDB and its partners are committed to customer satisfaction, data-
driven program improvement, and continuous improvement and innovation.

Positive relationships are sustained by the PWDB with all local training providers that offer training
in target and in-demand occupations. PWDB staff continue to facilitate provider applications to the
ETPS for programs that will prepare students for the Target Occupations.

WSP staff provide connections to other resources that may be leveraged to allow customers to receive
training other than in a traditional classroom setting (e.g., apprenticeship programs). Well-trained and
committed case management staff deliver front line services including individual assessment and
collaborate with customers on the development of quality service plans that create career pathways
that lead to success.

The PWDB strives to connect workforce development staff with local ISDs in an active meaningful
way by establishing and maintaining a consistent workforce staff presence in middle schools and high
schools by assigning Outreach Specialists dedicated to connecting school counselors and students to
resources to access local labor market tools and career exploration information.

Strategies relating to the performance accountability measures based on performance indicators
described in WIOA §116(b)(2)(A) include collaboration with workforce system partners to align,
leverage, and combine local communities’ workforce resources. The PWDB continues to develop,
facilitate, and expand innovative partnerships between the Board and employers, community
colleges, AEL providers, WSP and other stakeholders, to leverage resources for the provision and
integration of an array of workforce services.

System Goal 4 and Rationale

Improve and Integrate Programs

Accelerate employment and improve efficiencies through shared resources that can be leveraged to

74



create new, relevant, and innovative opportunities that serve the needs of all stakeholders. By
addressing high-priority programmatic needs through an integrated strategy, decision-making at the
system, partner, and participant levels is improved and system service delivery is enhanced. The
changing economic and educational landscapes provide opportunities to share relevant data through
appropriate “push” mechanisms in an organized manner to key stakeholders who rely on information
generated by system partners.

System Goal 4—Local Board Response

Please describe local efforts to integrate processes and share resources across programs in your
region. Identify efficiencies realized and improved participant outcomes as a result. Describe how
this work can be leveraged to create new, relevant opportunities that serve the needs of all
stakeholders.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 5-10, 22-31, 46-50

In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 4, the PWDB will continue to:

e Identify and implement new, relevant technology and service delivery options to expand program
and service outcomes;

e Increase competitive integrated employment outcomes by increasing awareness of Vocational
Rehabilitation (VR) services and better serving underserved populations;

e Enhance quality of increase access to quality child care to support parents in obtaining and
retaining employment;

e Support professional development opportunities for child care providers;

e Promote increasing the number of child care providers certified as meeting Texas Rising Star
(TRS), or other recognized quality rating and improvement system standards, in the child care
system;

e Provide rural service delivery options through the use of mobile units and affiliate sites;

e Direct students to available training and career path options with onsite support at public middle
and high schools;

e Expand the use of technology for providing online services such as job fairs, eligibility
determination, and other interactions; and

e Improve service delivery methods to increase effectiveness of service delivery and achievement
of employment outcomes for underserved populations.

The PWDB continues to support TWC’s goal, as stated in in 2021-2025 TWC Strategic Plan to
prepare individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equips individuals with
in-demand skills as identified by employers by:

e Continuing ongoing support of education programs for students that inform them and prepare
them for high-skill, high-demand jobs through identification and allocation of available programs
and resources;

e Addressing the workforce training needs of employers by leveraging Skills Development Fund
(SDF) grants; Texas Industry Partnership (TIP) program grants, which support collaborations
between the Board and industry partners through the leveraging of matching contributions of cash
or qualifying expenditures for occupation training focusing on the Texas Industry Cluster
Initiative; and other available resources to support in-demand job training;

e Continuing to support work-based learning opportunities through internships, mentorships, and
job shadowing, and

e Continuing to coordinate and collaborate with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

75



and the Texas Education Agency to support and develop objectives for increasing the percentage
of Texans with post-secondary degrees or certification.

Mastering current and emerging technology are the keys to creating and conducting an effective
technology based integrated system for customer intake and case management. Complete
understanding and application of current capabilities enables full utilization of existing tools,
primarily WorkInTexas.com. Adopting and adapting additional, more efficient technologies, such as
a real-time customer tracking system, provides WSP staff with the means to quickly and accurately
assess customer needs and provide seamless service delivery, while maintaining service priority
requirements.

The PWDB has purchased the digital communication management (DCM) software Granicus
GovDelivery to enable WSP to build content to be shared with job seekers and connect/distribute
through a number of different mediums, including email, Short Message Service (SMS)/text
messages, Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds, and social media integration, including, but not
limited to, a monthly newsletter.

In addition to creating new employment opportunities, a key element in the PWDB is motivating
skilled workers to remain in or return to the Panhandle area. This can be achieved by developing and
implementing a targeted approach to overcoming challenges inherent in virtual employment. Since
college graduates drive economic development, redoubling efforts to coordinate with system partners
like the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce, Amarillo Economic Development Corporation, and local
colleges to promote the fact that staying in or returning to Amarillo, can be economically and
personally rewarding.

Strategic Opportunities to Drive Local Implementation

Before TWIC began the process to develop the new system strategic plan, Board directors were
invited to provide input on issues and opportunities for consideration in system planning. Please
consider the responses you provided (above) to local board area implementation of the four primary
goals in the current system plan and identify how the new system strategic plan can help future
implementation of your regional goals and strategies related to the following:

Increase engagement of target populations, including Opportunity Youth, Texans with
disabilities, foster youth, and sex-trafficking victims.

Describe Board strategies that support engagement of sometimes underserved populations.
Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 7-11, 43-44, 51-53

*Opportunity Youth are defined as youth between the ages of 16-24 who are disconnected from
education and the workforce. Prior to 2020, the national average of Opportunity Youth was 11%, in
Texas it was 13%, and in rural Texas, it was 27%. Although the broad impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic on this population are not yet fully understood, it is safe to assume that those percentages
went up rather than down. While there is no system currently in place for tracking these individuals
in the Texas Panhandle, we do know that after high school graduation we lose track of about half of
our students, meaning they do not go on to enroll in a postsecondary institution and they are not
trackable in the workforce.

The PWDB and WSP have developed a new staff position to enhance youth and young adult
activities. This Career Outreach Specialist will focus on innovative technology in Virtual Career

76



Exploration. The PWDB is purchasing Virtual Reality headsets, along with library of occupational
videos, which transport the user into an interactive environment to participate in performing tasks in
a specific job. The Career Outreach Specialist will host events, both in area schools and in WSP
offices, guiding students in exploration of potential occupations and careers in their areas of interest.

The PWDB’s Youth program is primarily focused on Out-of-School Youth who need postsecondary
education and/or work experience to achieve self-sufficiency. Disconnected youth, parenting youth,
first-generation college students, foster youth, and youth who have other barriers to employment, are
the priority youth populations determined most likely to benefit from local workforce services.

Increasing the number and quality of work-based training opportunities for at-risk youth such as paid
internships for college students and graduating high school seniors that are directly related to
students’ career interests. Many youth served in workforce programs must be engaged in an
occupational component, so paid internships will offer competitive wages to encourage participation.
These internships will include mentoring by supervisors trained by workforce staff to provide
appropriate encouragement and career exploration.

*Texans with Disabilities - The PWDB continues, through the Texas HireAbility campaign, to
engage a Student HireAbility Navigator to fulfil the stated purpose of this position “To improve
access to employment and training services and increase employment opportunities for job seekers
with disabilities”. The Panhandle’s Student HireAbility Navigator is fully involved in serving as a
resource in the PWDA by “supporting, expanding, and enhancing the provision of pre-employment
transition services that are provided by VR”, co-located in the WSP office in Amarillo. Through
active participation in numerous relevant local committee meetings, attending local job fairs and
transitional fairs, reaching more employers and service providers as well as educators, the Navigator
continually identifies and reaches out to crucial partners who have shared goals and objectives to
bring to the table. The Navigator is also focusing on building a knowledge base by attending statewide
workforce events such as the TWC Annual Workforce Conference, presenting information at the
Texas Business Conference about hiring students with disabilities, including discussing the
possibility of creating HireAbility Workshops in Amarillo, and participating in the collection and
completion of information for a resource guide for employers in hiring individuals with disabilities.
The Navigator promotes the Texas HireAbility Campaign at meetings with educators, employers and
community partners to increase the awareness of the benefits of hiring people with disabilities as well
as increasing access to pre-employment transition services.

United We Work, a half day of job shadowing for students with disabilities, was most recently held
on October 27, 2022 to help promote and raise awareness of National Disability Employment
Awareness Month. 28 students participated with hands-on work experience at eight different
employer sites including a veterinary clinic, restaurant, hair salon, automotive detailing center, and
an elementary school. Students also received training on how to prepare for a job interview, followed
by mock interviews from community business leaders.

EPIC Success College and Career Conference targets rural school districts with 19 schools and more
than 600 students participating. VR participates and shares resources with teachers, staff, students
and employers regarding the services available for students with disabilities.

*Foster Youth — Foster youth are a priority population. TWC funds transition centers serving both
current and former youth. The centers address critical life barriers facing youth who have or will
soon age out of the foster care system. They provide access to education, employment training and
services, life skills classes, mentoring opportunities, and appropriate support services.

WSP and the PWDB continue to develop and nurture successful partnerships with the Amarillo Foster
77



Youth Transition Center, at Buckner Children and Family Services, to improve and enhance the
collaborative process of connecting with foster youth and provide comprehensive workforce services,
including career exploration and occupational training or work-based training. Discussions continue
with Amarillo Children’s Home and the Turn Center, the only private, non-profit, 501(c)(3)
organization in the federal Medically Underserved Area (MUA) of the 26-county Texas Panhandle,
to create pathways that support Foster Youth who often have developmental delays or undiagnosed
disabilities transition from school into employment preparation and training.

*Sex-Trafficking Victims — Human trafficking affects both adults and children, men and women,
and people from all parts of Texas, the United States, and around the world. The Attorney General’s
Human Trafficking and Transnational/Organized Crime division assists law enforcement and
prosecutors on human trafficking cases, pursues civil litigation against traffickers and businesses,
assists victims with resources, engages the public through training, develops initiatives to enhance
the state’s support and coordination of human trafficking efforts, and facilitates collaboration between
federal, state, and local law enforcement and prosecutors. The Office of the Attorney General (OAG)
also presides over the Texas Human Trafficking Prevention Task Force and Coordinating Council.
Established to increase collaborative efforts across the state, the Task Force and Coordinating Council
bring together local, state, and federal agencies and nongovernmental partners to bring an end to
human trafficking in Texas and address its impact. The OAG’s Human Trafficking and Transnational
Organized Crime Section (HTTOC) is fighting to end human trafficking in the State of Texas through
aggressive criminal prosecution and civil actions to hold offenders accountable, and aims to raise
public awareness about the threat Human Trafficking presents to Texas by providing training,
educating lawmakers and partnering with community stakeholders.

Adult Sex Trafficking is trafficking of adults for sex by force, fraud, or coercion in strip clubs,
brothels, massage parlors, street prostitution, or internet prostitution. Child Sex Trafficking is
trafficking children, under the age of 18, by any means into the commercial sex industry.

All PWDB and WSP complete the mandatory training produced by the TWC Training and
Development Department in collaboration with the Office of the Attorney General, “Be the One (BCS
Version) in the Fight Against Human Trafficking”, which focuses on preventing, recognizing, and
reporting “Red Flag” behaviors for Human and Sex Trafficking.

Improve efficiency and outcomes through data-driven decision-making and investments.
Describe Board strategies that support data-driven decision-making and investments.
Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 32

The collection of key data, as well as the reporting and analysis of that data, in a consistent and useful
manner, are essential in demonstrating outcomes, determining if changes are required or desired, and
establishing benchmarks for future performance. The PWDB is committed to working with its
partners to promote the building or modification of existing data systems to improve the flow of data,
increase the relevance of data, and facilitate analysis that supports effective decision-making across
the full spectrum of data users, to achieve effective and efficient programs, services, and outcomes.

The PWDB recognizes the efforts and the recommendations of the Regional Workforce Strategy
Working Group representing the Workforce Solutions Alamo, Capital Area and Rural Capital Area.
This group was formed to strengthen the alignment of regional workforce planning with economic
development to create a data-driven, scalable model to maximize the capacity for Workforce
Development Boards to meet the needs of employers in the State and reconnect Texans to the
workforce in a way that supports long-term prosperity in urban, suburban, and rural communities.

78



The PWDB is exploring and will support the strategies put forth in the Texas Talent and Economic
Growth Pilot Project and Statewide Action Plan to strengthen the alignment between regional
workforce planning and economic development.

As identified in the Texas Workforce Investment Council’s strategic planning process, the PWDB
will continue to identify opportunities and develop solutions for improving performance and
outcomes that have cross-partner implications and hold significant strategic value to the overall
success of the workforce system’s ability to meet its vision and mission.to:

Facilitate effective and efficient transitions and enhance transition services;

Increase employment outcomes;

Expand partnerships with system stakeholders and promote collaboration and joint planning;
Incorporate/expand options for dual credit and/or licensure and certification;

Increase business and industry involvement;

Align programs and services;

Share timely data and information;

Promulgate promising practices and reduce duplication;

Recruit and/or provide professional development;

Ensure portable and transferrable options;

Address skills shortages; and

Institutionalize alternative service delivery methods.

79



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (e) (2)
Board Plan draft with “Tracked Changes”



Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan

Program Years 2021-2024

Updated for 2023 Two-Year Board Plan Modification

Table of Contents

Contents
T o [ ol o 1o T U 3
Part 1: Board Vision ANd SEtrAteQies ............eeeuueereeeenerreeeeiiireeeiirreeeniireeneessseneisssenssesssesssesssmnssssssnssssssennns 4
B. Board Strategies (WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(A)(6)) .....c.euuueeeeerrereereunnnecerrrererennnsneeesnennenns 6
C. High-Performing Board (WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17)) ...ceeveeeeerrrrrerueneceerreneeennnnnnnnns 10
Part 2. Economic and WOrKforce ANGIYSIS .........uueuueeeeeeueeeeeeneeeeeeeniereeeeiesseesissseessssseeasssssenssssssenssssssnnns 11
A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(1)) 11
B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2)).......ccccceevvvvrrrrrrrrrrnrnn. 29
C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends (WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3)) .....eeeveeuuecererunenrenes 30
D. Workforce Development Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))........c.cceeuuerererrrnnen 32
PArt 3: COIE PrOGIOMS........ccuuvveeiiineienneirisesisesirsussrsusissssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsss 34
A. Workforce Development System (WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1)).......cccceeerrrrreruunneraaanns 34
B. Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access (WIOA §108(b)(3); 20
CFR §679.560(D)(2)) ...cvvvuuunrreniiiiiiiiirnnnnreniisiissssssnssssessssssessssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssnas 35
Part 4: ONe-Stop Service DIIVErY ...........ccvuvuuiiiiruiiisiiniiissisuisissisuiiisiesisiissssisisssssssssssssisssssssssssssssssssnsns 37
A. One-Stop Service Delivery System (WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5)) .....cceeeeerrrrreruunnciannns 37
B. Cooperative Agreements (WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))......cccceuereeeirririrennncrsacssrnnenee 45
C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program
Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(D)(3)) ....ccevuuuerieerriiiirmnnniiisisiiinernnnssssesssesesnnansnsns 45
D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services (WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))................... 46
E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management (WIOA §108(b)(21); 20 CFR
§679.560(D)(20)) ...ttt aaa e s e s e s e s anan 47
Part 5: Workforce INVestment ACLIVILIES. ............ccceeeeeeeeeeneereeeeeeseeneeeserassessssassssssssssssssnsssesssnsssssssnsssnsens 48
A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities (WIOA §108(b)(5); 20 CFR
§679.560(D)(4)).cccccevininnunniiiiiiiiiiiiiitiieti s aa s s e s s s e s nan 48
B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7)) .........cccevvvvvveeeeens 48
C. Youth Activities and Services (WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))........cccvvrrrerrurssireririrennanses 49

D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs (WIOA §108(b)(10); 20 CFR
§679.560(D)(9))..ceuueeiiiiiiiirnniiiiiiiiiittieiesiierenans e s e sena s s s s s e e e s an e s e s s e e e asnnasssseseeaaannnssranssans 52



E. Child Care and Early Learning (40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services) ..............ccceeenn. 52

F. Transportation and Other Support Services (WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10)) .............. 54
G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) ......c.ccuueeeeireereeemenncceieeenerennnseessseneernnnssssssssenes 55
Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, ANd YOULR S@IVICES ..........eeueeeueeeeeeieeeieeeiresirereeesseesressmsssmsessseessennees 57
A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training .......ccccceiieuiiiiieniciiinniciinenie, 57
B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals ..........cccoeeiriienniiniennninnnenen. 58
Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and CONLIACES ...........c..eeeeeeereenieeeeniereeerriniereecernsserressessessesesssssnnes 61
WO LYot 1. Y= o | 61
B. Sub-Grants and CONEracts .........cieeieeuuiiiiiiiiiiieiin s s 61
Part 8: PErfOrMANCE........cuuueevveveniiiiieeniiniinnnisssissssissssssssisssssmsssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 62
A. Board Performance Targets.....ccciiiuiiiiiiuiiiiinnieiiimmieiienmsieiirmssieiesmssiesmsistsessssssssssssssesssssssessssssses 63
Part 9: Training GNM SEIVICES ........ccoveuureirrieeuiiiiivrniisiissssisssmsmsiississmsissssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 63
A. Individual Training ACCOUNTS (ITAS) ...ccceereeuuciiirieiereneneeeereeeeeransssceesseeeesnnssssessssessennnssssssessesssnnnnnns 63
B. ITA LIMItatioNns......cciiiiiiimeeiiiiiiiiiiieiiiinirrrreeiciin et erenesasses s s e e e sssessssssseesssssssssesssene 63
Part 10: APPIrentiCESRIP.........ceeeeeeeeneereurerenneereueerenserensserensseressesssssessnssesssssssnssesenssessnssssnssesensas 64
A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs........cciiveiiiiinuieiiinniiniinnnieiinmieiimmsiiesmseiiesmssmsssesesssssses 64
B. APPrentiCeShiPTeXaS.  cciiiiiuiiiiiieiiiiieniiiiieniiiiiesiiriessieriessistiesssstiessssstssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssennes 64
Part 11: PUBliC COMMENT .......ccceeueirrieeniiirriniiiiiiinnnsiisssssssisssssmsssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 64
Modification Form — WD Letter 18-22, AttaCAMENT L ..........eueeeererievrereeieeereerreseesressmssressasenssnans 68
Texas Workforce Investment Council ReEQUIremMents..............cceevvenesenreneesserssnesesssssessossssssssenesns 74
Demonstrating Alignment with Texas’ Strategic Plan — WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 2........... 78
FOCUS ON EMPIOYEIS ....eeeeiiiieeiiiieeeeiiieeeerreeaesesrennssesrennssssrenssssseenssssseensssssennsssssennsssssennsssssennssssnennns 78
ENgAage in Partnerships..ccccciiieciiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiieniiniieniniiesiiieesiiiiesseiiessisiiesssssisessssssssssssssssssssssannes 79
ALIgN SYStem Elements....cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieiirieiessseiesassestessssestesssssssessssssesssssssesssssssensssssses 81
Improve and INtegrate Programs.......c.ivcceiiiiieeiiiiiineiiiiieniiniiesiiniiesisisessssisssssssiesssssssessssssssssssssssnes 83

Strategic Opportunities to Drive Local Implementation .....ccciccereereireeireeermereireeireesinesrnesenssenssesssasens 85




Introduction

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 [20 Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) §679.500-580], each Local Workforce Development Board is required to develop and submit
to the state a comprehensive four-year Board plan that identifies and describes policies and procedures
as well as local activities which align with the following:

e The Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan FY 2016-FY 2023 2020 Update
https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf

o The Texas Workforce-Commission Consolidated 2021-2025 Strategic Plan
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twe/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-t0-2025-twc.pdf

e WIOA Combined State Plan Program Years 2020—-2023 Two Year Modifications

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission_meeting_material 02.15.22 item8b_
wioa_csp_2020-2023 2yr mod _I-1I_strategic elements.pdf

e Adult Education and Literacy Strategic Plan fer Adult Educationand Literacyforthe-Fiscal
Years-e£f2045-2020 2021 to 2026

2026-pdf-
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/adult-education-and-literacy-strategic-plan-2021-
2026-twe.pdf

o Te

xas Early Learning Council Early Learning Strategic Plan, 202

0-2025

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/tx-early-learning-strategic-plan-twc.pdf

e House Bill (HB) 619 Child Care Workforce Strategic Plan 2023-2025

https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission-meeting-materials-12.20.22-item7b-hb619-
strategic-plan-twc.pdf

Two years after the development of an initial Workforce Development Board Plan, Boards are
required to then submit a modification which reflects labor market changes, economic conditions and
other factors affecting plan implementation. Texas Government Code requires that the Board Plans
are aligned with the Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan, specifically the FY 2016-FY 2023,

2020 Update.

This document begins with the initial Board Plan for the Panhandle Workforce Development Area
(PWDA) and builds upon it with the modification information.

The Panhandle Workforce Development Board (PWDB) is a business-led group, the majority of
which is comprised of employers from the private sector, as well as representatives from community-
based organizations, labor, economic development, secondary and post-secondary education, adult
and continuing education, literacy, vocational rehabilitation, public employment services, and the
State department of human services. The PWDB is appointed by local elected officials, and oversees
workforce program services provided in the 26-county region of the Texas Panhandle. The PWDB
and its partners together implement the Board Plan, which directs local entities in their efforts to
build a labor force that sustains local communities and supports a positive economic climate.

3


https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/strategic-plan-fiscal-years-2021-to-2025-twc.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission_meeting_material_02.15.22_item8b_wioa_csp_2020-2023_2yr_mod_I-II_strategic_elements.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/twc/commission_meeting_material_02.15.22_item8b_wioa_csp_2020-2023_2yr_mod_I-II_strategic_elements.pdf
https://www.twc.texas.gov/files/partners/tx-early-learning-strategic-plan-twc.pdf

In 2018, Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) announced its intention to divest itself of ownership
of its buildings statewide, which included the Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP) facility at 1206
S.W. 7th Avenue, in Amarillo, where the PWDB has been delivering workforce development
services for decades. During the same period, TWC began planning to integrate its Texas Workforce
Solutions Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) Services staff into the WSP operations in the Panhandle.
Over the following years, the PWDB has-been+faeilitatingfacilitated a relocation of WSP and VR
services and staff, and-will-be-operatingout-ofanewlyopening in a remodeled facility located at
3120 Eddy Street in Amarillo,as-of in March-+*, 2021. The move from a State-owned building,
provided to the PWDB at a nominal cost, into a privately-owned facility requiring commercial leasing
costs, has added a considerable infrastructure burden to the PWDB’s Service Delivery capabilities,
with an increase in Operating Costs of nearly 185%, and required a shifting of funding.

Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies

A. Vision and Goals (WIOA §108(b)(1)(E); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(5))

The vision of the PWDB is to establish and enhance a workforce delivery system that serves the
needs of area employers, job seekers, and constituents with efficient and effective services by
promoting collaboration among stakeholders, creating partnerships with other community
organizations, and focusing on workforce issues. The PWDB also supports regional economic growth
and economic self-sufficiency that will guide the development and provision of services.

e Through engagement with employers, education and training providers, the PWDB collaborates
in career and technical education design, content, and delivery options that are aligned with
industry needs. In alignment with TWC’s System Goal Area 1 — Focus on Employers, the PWDB
will continue:

v _Expanding the number of apprentices in underserved populations;

v'_Developing training opportunities toward industry-based certifications to expand the number
of work-ready individuals in high demand occupations;

v Increasing the number of employers who participate in work-based learning programs;

v"_Engaging industry representatives to collaborate with community colleges in new program
development that incorporates national industry-based certifications into programs of study;

v Assisting with aligning the Texas Education Agency (TEA) Texas Essential Knowledge and
Skills (TEKS) to Industry-based certifications, where applicable. (Reference:
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-
skills); and

v Assisting with aligning with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) in
identifying and implementing relevant industry-based certifications and licenses, and
incorporating the occupational information into statewide career and technical education

programs.

e Through collaborative and transparent processes, the PWDB and its partners focus on outcomes
that improve the employability of program participants, from across a wide spectrum of
capabilities and experiences, to meet employer needs. In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 2,
Engage in Partnerships, the PWDB will continue to expand partnerships with system partners
and stakeholders to promote collaboration, joint planning, and enhanced participant outcomes by:
v"_Improving rehabilitation employment outcomes by establishing additional partnerships with

secondary and postsecondary entities, and employers;
v _Increasing access to, referral between, and outcomes of adult education programs and
services;

4


https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills

v' _Implementing a coordinated approach, with Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), to serving
employers, and to identifying opportunities and strategies for improved coordination and
enhanced participant outcomes;

v’ Participating in regional discussions with the Texas Education Agency about career pathway

expansion opportunities for high school students;

Implementing case management that integrates data among multiple programs;

Collaborating with State and community agencies for enhancing services to foster youth;

Connecting more ex-offenders with adult education programs through better developed

referral processes and appropriate short-term integrated training options; and

v'_Promoting the importance of community and technical colleges to targeted adult education
services that transition adult learners to higher education.

NN

e By improving transitions, aligning programs, and ensuring portability and transferability, the
workforce system improves access and the ability of all students to complete programs of study,
earn credential(s), transition to further education, and gain critical employability skills. Through
the implementation of a common technical core curriculum that is recognized statewide,
programs of study can enhance delivery efficiency, dual-credit effectiveness, and improve student
outcomes and transitions. Employers are better positioned to find and hire the employees they
need through an enhanced education and training pipeline. In alignment with TWC’s System
Goal 3, Align System Elements, the PWDB will continue to:

v' Improve and enhance services, programs, and policies to align with programs of study in
community and technical colleges with secondary programs;

v _Enhance transition services for students and youth with disabilities to competitive integrated
employment or to postsecondary education and training followed by competitive integrated
employment, aligning with the Pathways to Careers Initiative (PCI);

v Develop and implement policies and processes for career and technical education
opportunities for dual credit; and

v Seek input from business and industry to identify the essential knowledge, skills, and abilities,
that they require.

e By addressing high-priority programmatic needs through an integrated strategy, decision-making,
at the system, partner, and participant levels, is improved and system service delivery is enhanced.
In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 4, Improve and Integrate Programs, the PWDB will
continue to:
v Identify and implement new, relevant technology and service delivery options to expand
program and service outcomes;
v _Increase competitive integrated employment outcomes by increasing awareness of Vocational
Rehabilitation (VR) services and better serving underserved populations;
v _Enhance quality of increased access to quality child care, to support parents in obtaining and
retaining employment;
Support professional development opportunities for child care providers;
Promote increasing the number of child care providers certified as meeting Texas Rising Star
(TRYS), or other recognized quality rating and improvement system standards, in the child care
system;
Provide rural service delivery options through the use of mobile units and affiliate sites;
Direct students to available training and career path options with onsite support at public
middle and high schools;
v'_Expand the use of technology for providing online services such as job fairs, eligibility
determination, and other interactions; and

ANAN

ANAN




v

Improve service delivery methods to increase effectiveness of service delivery and

achievement of employment outcomes for underserved populations.

e PWDB goals for preparing an educated and skilled workforce, including early education services,
and services for youth and individuals with barriers to employment include:

v

v

v

Supporting a regional workforce system where individuals are empowered to embark on
career pathways leading to increased educational, occupational, and adult literacy skill levels,
attainment of recognized credentials, employment with self-sufficiency earnings, and
employment security, while meeting the immediate and future skills needs of employers;
Increasing the number of customers engaged in career services and short-term training that
leads to employment in high-wage, in-demand occupations;

Meeting local employers’ demand for skilled workers with an educated, highly skilled, and
well-qualified labor force;

Implementing effective employment placement and retention of veterans, individuals with
disabilities, individuals who have exhausted unemployment insurance benefits, dislocated
workers, the underemployed, and high-risk population groups such as welfare recipients,
disconnected youth and adults who have barriers to employment, including Foster Youth, and
for those individuals who are basic skills deficient;

Increasing the number of low-income customers and individuals who have barriers to
employment who engage in short-term training leading to employment; and

Creating new employment opportunities by motivating skilled workers to remain in or return
to the Panhandle Region.

e PWDB goals relating to the performance accountability measures based on performance
indicators described in WIOA §116(b)(2)(A) include collaboration with workforce system
partners to align, leverage, and combine local communities’ workforce resources by:

v
v
v
v
v

v

Identifying and effectively serving local employers’ skill needs and hiring expectations;
Meeting job seekers’ employment needs for placement, retention, and earnings;

Leveraging resources with education partners to address skill gaps including adult literacy
skills deficiencies;

Outreaching and re-engaging Out-of-School Youth and Older Youth in work-based training;
Increasing short-term occupational training opportunities leading to attaining recognized
credentials; and

Assisting students to successfully complete training which results in measurable skills gains,
recognized credentials, entered employment, retention, and earnings gains.

B. Board Strategies (WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(6))

The PWDB’s strategy to work with entities carrying out the core programs and with required partners
to align resources available to the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA), and to achieve
the vision and goals, includes developing and actively supporting dynamic industry partnerships. By
aligning and sharing resources through existing collaborations, such as the Board’s Business
Advisory Committee, comprised of Board and non-Board members, private sector employers, area
college representatives, PWDB staff, and WSP staff, the PWDB is assisted in designing and
delivering services based on business and industry needs, thus enhancing employer engagement.

e Continued collaboration with required partners in local business and education, and with local
community organizations, will enhance the PWDB’s workforce system capacity for delivering
effective employment and training services, while meeting required performance. Successfully
aligning resources and responding to expected shortages of workers in skilled trades and technical

6



occupations due to the skills gap created by employee turnover, combined with the increasing
demand for a highly-technically skilled workforce, are essential. WSP Career Services utilize
LinkedIn, the business and employment-focused social media platform that works through
websites and mobile apps, to connect with employers and potential job seekers. This platform
has proven effective in allowing job seekers to apply directly with companies, such as Cacique
Cheese, a leading Hispanic foods company expecting to open their new dairy facility in April
2023, in recruiting engineers and other key positions.

The PWDB continues to has-engaged a Student HireAbility Navigator to fulfil the stated purpose
of this position “To improve access to employment and training services and increase
employment opportunities for job seekers with disabilities”. The Panhandle’s Student HireAbility
Navigator is fully involved in serving as a resource in the PWDA by “supporting, expanding, and
enhancing the provision of pre-employment transition services that are provided by VR”, co-
located in the WSP office in Amarillo. Through active participation in numerous relevant local
committee meetings, attending local job fairs and transitional fairs, reaching more employers and
service providers as well as educators, the Navigator continually identifies and reaches out to
crucial partners who have shared goals and objectives to bring to the table. The Navigator is also
focusing on building a knowledge base by attending statewide workforce events such as the TWC
Annual Workforce Conference, presenting information at the Texas Business Conference about
hiring students with disabilities, including discussing the possibility of creating HireAbility
Workshops in Amarillo, and participating in the collection and completion of information for a
resource guide for employers in hiring individuals with disabilities. The Navigator promotes the
Texas HireAbility Campaign at meetings with educators, employers and community partners to
increase the awareness of the benefits of hiring people with disabilities as well as increasing
access to pre-employment transition services.

WSP has created a new staff position of Child Care Business Coach under a new Child Care
Industry Support Division. This staff will assist Child Care Provider owners and managers, as
needed, to increase quality and capacity of existing businesses, in creating new business and in
connecting to resources available to help increase the likelihood of success.

Work continues to encourage and support local partners to pursue skills development grant
opportunities to apply for and obtain grants such as TWC’s Jobs and Education for Texas (JET),
and the High Demand Job Training (HDJT) grants. HDJT’s $150.,000 annual Grant Application
opportunities have provided, to-date, over $1,040,000 which were matched by the EDCs, for the
PWDA. The PWDB plans to continue requesting these WIOA Activities funds which have
supplemented Career & Technology Education (CTE) training programs throughout the PWDA.

Identifying and developing effective career pathways, creating data-driven career choices that
align with demand, and delivering appropriate workforce services for Adults, Youth, and
Dislocated Workers under WIOA, are critical to achieving the PWDB’s workforce goals and
objectives. Utilizing resources such as CareerOneStop.com, a U.S Department of Labor (DOL)
tool which pulls datasets from DOL’s Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), and Employment and
Training Administration (ETA), which includes its trademark Occupational Information Network
(O*NET), the PWDB is building career pathway “roadmaps” for occupations on its Target
Occupations List. Where training gaps exist, options such as Local Activity Fund, Wagner-Peyser
grants available through the Governor’s office, and TWC Skills Development Fund (SDF) Grant
projects, may be pursued to fund curriculum development that initiates instructional availability.

To promote Apprenticeship programs between regional businesses, Independent School Districts

7



(ISDs) and community colleges, the PWDB maintains Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs)
with the Independent Electrical Contractors (IEC) of the Texas Panhandle, the Plumbers &
Pipefitters Local 404, the United Brotherhood of Carpenters Local 665, the West Texas Electrical
Joint Apprenticeship & Training Committee (JATC) and the International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 602. These MOUs formalize the responsibilities of the parties
to:

v'_ Provide information on apprenticeship and training opportunities to PRPC and WSP;
v'  Make employers and individuals seeking training aware of WSP resources and services and

provide appropriate referrals.

v'_Market the apprenticeship programs to businesses in the PWDA as a means to recruit and
train qualified workers;

v'_ Refer WSP customers to the apprenticeship programs;

v'_ Provide workforce center space to the apprenticeship providers for use in interviewing,
testing and conducting informational meetings associated with apprenticeship and training
opportunities; and

v'_ Provide automated links to apprenticeship-related websites through WSP public-use

computers.
Amarillo College (AC) is the PWDA’s Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) Service Provider,

which helps adult students gain the basic skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high
school equivalency, or enter college or career training. AC is developing a new digital customer
referral tool, MyOneFlow, to enhance the collaboration with the PWDB and WSP, in performing
intake, determining program eligibility, assisting with enrollment in classes, coordinating
supportive services as needed, and facilitating the process of connecting customers in order to
provide English language, math, reading, and writing instruction to help students acquire the
skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high school equivalency, or enter college or
career training.

In alignment with the Jobs for Veterans Act, the PWDB and WSP provide priority service to
veterans and spouses of certain veterans for the receipt of employment, training, and placement
services in any job training program directly funded, in whole or in part, by the U.S. Department
of Labor (DOL).

WSP continues to identify gaps in service to veterans and advance strategies to enhance their
education and employment opportunities to ensure seamless transition into the workforce.

WSP continues to host Texas Panhandle Region Employer hiring events at Fort Hood, connecting
Military Separation service members with employers from the PWDA, to potentially attract the
transitioning soldiers to the Panhandle. Most recently, employers traveled to the Lone Star
Convention Center and participated in the Fort Hood Mega Career Fair on January 10, 2023. The
employers included Albers Acrospace, Amarillo Economic Development Corporation,
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 602, International Aerospace
Coatings, Pantex, Talon LPE, and Valero.

The PWDB and WSP also utilize Wagner-Peyser Employment Services (ES) funding to support:

v TWC’s Panhandle Region Hiring Red, White & You! Annual Job Fairs in partnership with
the Texas Veterans Commission (TVC). The most recent event was held on November 11,
2022, hosted at WSP in Amarillo, with TWC’s Executive Director, Mr. Ed Serna, presiding.
A total of 35 employers participated in this event. Job seeker registration was at 141 job
seekers, with 35 veterans in attendance.




v"  TWC’s Texas Veterans Leadership Program (TVLP), which connects returning veterans
with the resources and tools needed to lead productive lives and enjoy the benefits of the
society they have served. The Regional manager for the program serves on the PWDB, is
provided access to resources in the WSP office in Amarillo, and assists WSP’s Business
Services team by referring new employers wanting to post job listings on WorkInTexas.com,
the comprehensive online job search resource and matching system developed and
maintained by TWC.

Foster youth are a priority population. TWC funds transition centers serving both current and
former youth. The centers address critical life barriers facing youth who have or will soon age
out of the foster care system. They provide access to education, employment training and
services, life skills classes, mentoring opportunities, and appropriate support services. WSP and
the PWDB continue to develop and nurture successful partnerships with the Amarillo Foster
Youth Transition Center, at Buckner Children and Family Services, to improve and enhance the
collaborative process of connecting with foster youth and provide comprehensive workforce
services, including career exploration and occupational training or work-based training.
Discussions continue with Amarillo Children’s Home and the Turn Center, the only private, non-
profit, 501(c)(3) organization in the federal Medically Underserved Area (MUA) of the 26-county
Texas Panhandle, to create pathways that support Foster Youth who often have developmental
delays or undiagnosed disabilities transition from school into employment preparation and

training.

Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP) provides training and employment
services to low-income job seekers age 55 and older to assist them in securing unsubsidized
employment in the public and private sectors. Program participants earn while they learn, gaining
competitive job skills and refining existing skills through paid, part-time, on-the-job training
assignments at non-profit organizations and government agencies. During training, participants
earn minimum wage and provide valuable community services. Utilizing designated office space
in WSP in Amarillo, Motivation Education & Training, Inc. (MET), serving as the Sponsor
Agency for the Senior Service America (SSAI), and as the Panhandle’s SCSEP grantee, provides
training, counseling, employment assistance, and paid, part-time community service assignments
designed to move older workers into unsubsidized employment, which ensures that job seekers
identified by WSP, are likely to benefit from services.

Motivation, Education and Training, Inc. (MET), referenced above, also serves as the Panhandle
region’s National Farmworker Jobs Program (NFJP) contractor, which includes mutual referrals
for services, coordination of the delivery career and intensive services co-enrollment of
individuals eligible for WIOA and NFJP who would benefit from the services of both programs.
Partnering activities, with WSP, include joint case management and employment planning, and
joint staff training.

The WSPetkferce Development Director forthe PWDA-serves-as-a-vital partner; engagesd in the
local No Limits/No Excuses (NL/NE) program initiative, Panhandle Community Partnership,
with more than 26 community partners dedicated to “Making pathways to post-secondary
credentials and living wage employment accessible for all individuals”. Working with business
and industry, the chief aims of Panhandle Community PartnershipNE=/ANE-greup are to connect
curriculum and training, create internships, and develop partnerships with education, community,
and employers, to provide living wage jobs that will keep talent in the PWDA.

Through collaboration with the Texas Panhandle Rural Alliance, a group of vital partners from

9



different sectors, who strive to create a common agenda, and to apply the concept of “collective
impact” as an effective approach for solving specific community social problems, effective
private and public partnerships are being utilized for many endeavors including increasing and
improving workforce development in the PWDA.

Panhandle Community Services (PCS) continues their partnership with the PWDB and WSP, to
enhance employment services to their customers. PCS identifies customers who need assistance
with workforce services to obtain full-time employment or complete short-term training leading
to self-sufficiency and makes referrals to WSP, to begin the process of determining an
individual’s career pathway. PSC’s work-based services include subsidized work experience
arrangements and referrals, when appropriate, to WSP, for short-term training. The partners
collaborate on the provision of supportive services to referred customers who are eligible to
participate in these activities, and job search assistance is provided when customers are job-ready.

C. High-Performing Board (WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17))

The PWDB continues refining ongoing “Best Practices” to remain a high-performing Board,
consistent with the factors developed by the Texas Workforce Investment Council (TWIC). Board
staff work closely with the WSP Contractor on a proactive basis to pinpoint performance shortfalls
and develop effective strategies to improve performance in targeted measures. These efforts
including implementing strategies to increase program spending by appropriate and allowable
methods, including:

Proactive analysis and implementation of state and federal rules and regulations;

Complete review/update of current Board policies compliant with WIOA requirements;
Development and implementation of clear, concise, and substantive new local policies;
Provision of guidance for achieving state mandated program performance standards;
Development of media directed opportunities for job seekers to access workforce services;
Enhancement of the WSP website and development of more effective user interfaces;
Development and implementation of innovative and productive ways to utilize the mobile
workforce units and expand workforce services to rural customers;

Maximization of opportunities through VR Services integration to provide the complete package
to job seekers who have disabilities, and eliminate barriers to employment;

Development and implementation of creative plans to engage disconnected youth, remove
barriers to employment, and produce successful career pathways;

Increase in short term work-based training opportunities leading to employment;

Continuation of improvement of business services team capabilities to assess employers’ skill
needs and match capable workers with job openings;

Engagement with local business leaders on a personal level to pinpoint employment needs;
Reinvigoration of alliances with educators, economic developers and community partners to
further mutual goals including developing apprenticeship initiatives;

Further cultivation of partnerships and collaborations with local colleges and universities, and
pool resources for occupational skills training opportunities;

Collaboration with existing programs and funds to provide increased Adult Education and
Literacy (AEL) skills;

Encouragement, creation, and support of labor market driven decisions for developing skills
training and addressing labor force challenges;

Strengthening of PWDB monitoring oversight focus to identify and address high risk areas;

10



o Sustainment of efforts to effectively place veterans, individuals with disabilities, and high-risk
population groups in employment and to retain employment;

e Identification of emerging In-Demand Industries and Occupations, and Target Occupations in
local job markets;

e Continuation of maintaining and improving two-way open lines of communication with WSP
management and staff;

e Provision of active support to WSP management and staff including technical assistance, training,
and guidance and clarification for PWDB policies;

e Communication to foster creative approaches to existing challenges and encourage inventive,
unique ideas;

e Deliverance of WSP staff training that is timely, current, and relevant; and

e Obtainment of training for PWDB staff to fill in program management and knowledge gaps.

In accordance with 40 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §802.62. monitoring activities should
ensure that programs achieve intended results, resources are efficiently and effectively used for
authorized purposes, and resources are protected from waste, fraud, and abuse.

The PWDB continues to ensure that the TWC Subrecipient Monitoring Division of Fraud Deterrence
and Compliance Monitoring is able to place reliance in the Panhandle’s Fiscal and Program (WIOA,
Child Care, and NCP) functions through a subcontracted external Fiscal Monitor and an internal
Program Monitor, and has re-certified the monitoring functions for the Board.

A benefit of the internal Program Monitor not being outsourced is that, in additional to overseeing
the specified attributes shared by TWC, this PWDB staff'is able to extend the oversight to encompass
more in-depth review of additional WSP actions, and is able to provide Technical Assistance on a
continuous basis, which provides for proactive and not reactive, faster resolution of issues.

Part 2. Economic and Workforce Analysis

A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(4); 20 CFR
§679.560(a)(1))

e With regards to the economic conditions of the Panhandle, the issue most likely to affect the
PWDB’s ability to accomplish its goals is the availability of public funding. Consistently low
unemployment compared to other regions in Texas and declining rural populations have resulted
in reduced State allocations. Additional federal budget cuts and reauthorization of legislation that
funds workforce programs may generate a lower level of resources for local use, especially if
States gain greater flexibility for the distribution of those resources.

Due to past funding limitations, all but two of the region’s rural WSP offices were closed,
affecting much of the 26 counties in the Texas Panhandle, and requiring significant changes in
business practices to facilitate continued services to these areas. Although a limited rural presence
has been reinstated, the Board’s continuing challenge is to ensure that employers, job seekers and
students in rural communities continue to access needed workforce services, despite the lack of
a constant, or limited physical presence.

According to the Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC), tremendous
opportunities for employment growth exist due to the Centerport Business Park, being developed
in downtown Amarillo, designed to be the region’s epicenter for manufacturing and distribution.
With eight initial tenants and a combined workforce of over 850 employees providing products
for global customers, the venture will support businesses that create and sustain a diversified local

11



economy. Investments in rail and road infrastructure make the park uniquely equipped for
continued development as Amarillo continues to serve as a truck and rail transportation hub.

A multitude of healthcare providers, facilities, and agencies offer broad range of medical services
and continue to serve as a major source of employment in the region. Continuing efforts to
identify and collaborate with these entities on innovative and successful skills development
initiatives, such as a Skills Development Fund Grant Partnership with TWC and two Amarillo
hospitals, which increased training for incumbent worker skills, are producing a highly qualified
and well-compensated workforce to administer care to patients throughout a multi-state region.

New home building has been steadily high, as business expansion and new business ventures in
hotels, retail, and restaurants keep construction activity elevated. Increased food production,
processing, and meat packing facilities offer opportunities for jobs involving industrial
mechanical repair. A large immigrant population primarily employed in the meat processing
sector of this industry presents unique challenges to provide basic literacy services, including
English as a Second Language (ESL), that offer opportunities for increased wage-earning
potential.

PWDB staff and WSP Business Services staff gather information on local labor market
developments and formulate recommendations on industries and occupations on which to focus
workforce resources. Small, medium and large employers, economic developers, chamber of
commerce representatives, educators, local elected officials, and other interested parties and
stakeholders have input.

The WSP Business Services Unit specialized division is tailored to meet employer's workforce

needs. The WSP Business Service Representatives (BSRs) work with employers and offer

customized business consulting services, such as addressing human resource challenges and

identifying the skills sets needed by industry. Workforce and Labor Market Information (LMI) is

essential to the Texas Panhandle’s economy, providing for the efficient operation of labor markets

by supplying quality labor market intelligence. Accurate, objective, relevant, timely, and

accessible workforce and LMI is critical for:

v'_ Building a skilled workforce that spurs business competitiveness and economic growth;

v'__ Strengthening career pathways and guiding skill attainment for good jobs, economic
opportunity, and career growth;

v"_Understanding the rapidly changing nature of work and how it impacts the workforce and
the area’s economy; and

v"_ Spending workforce training and education funds effectively.

WSP BSRs worked closely with Economic Development Corporations (EDCs), Colleges,
Universities, and employers. The largest consumers of WSP’s LMI Services were the Amarillo
EDC (9 total LMI projects), Amarillo College (LMI presentations at each campus throughout the
Texas Panhandle), Frank Phillips College and Clarendon College (both utilized LMI to choose
new educational programs at area campuses).

WSP Business Services staff, in cooperation with the Panhandle Community Partnership began
work on creating an interactive website to clearly visualize career pathway maps. This tool
features Target Occupations from the PWDA, including wage, education requirements, and up-
to-date LML

Data analysis on all information collected is used to identify high-growth and high-priority
industries. PWDB staff and WSP staff seek the information from representatives of those

12



industries about their businesses, and economic development professionals including: industrial
and occupational trends; education and training preferences; employee recruiting methods; and
specific gaps in employees’ skills.

PWDB In-Demand Industries and Associated Target Occupations

NAICS Code* In Demand Industry Associated Target Occupations**
Chemical Equipment Operators and Tenders
. . Maintenance Workers, Machinery
2111 Oil & Gas Extraction Petroleum Pump System Operators, Refinery
Operators, and Gaugers
2381 Foundation, Structure, and Building Carpenters
Exterior Contractors Welders, Cutters, Solderers, & Brazers
Electricians
2382 Building Equipment Contractors Heating, Air Conditioning, & Refrigeration Mechanics
and Installers
Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters
3116 Animal Slaughtering & Processing Industrial Machinery Mechanics
3327 Machine Shops, Turned Product, and | Machinists
Screw, Nut, and Bolt Manufacturing Production Workers, All Other
Agriculture, Construction, Indust.rl'al Machinery Mechanics
3331 & Minine Machi Machinists
Manuflllz:ltrlll%in achinery Production Workers, All Other
& Welders, Cutters, Solderers, & Brazers
. . Aircraft Mechanics & Service Technicians
336411 Aircraft Manufacturing Production Workers. All Other
Bus & Truck Mechanic & Diesel Engine Specialists
4842 Specialized Freight Trucking Db s el I Tl D mtias
Heavy and Tractor Trailer Truck Drivers
Accounting, Tax Preparation, Accguntants
412 Bookkeeping, and Payroll Services Auditors
PINg Y Bookkeeping, Accounting, & Auditing Clerks
. Computer User Support Specialists
5415 (s:;)rr:li leltser Systems Design & Related Information Security Analysts
Network & Computer Systems Administrators
Accountants & Auditors
Bookkeeping, Accounting & Auditing Clerks
. B e B
5511 %ﬁzagﬁgzm of Companies & Food Service Managers
P General & Operations Managers
Paralegals and Legal Assistants
Project Management Specialists and Business
Operations Specialists, All Other
Bookkeeping, Accounting & Auditing Clerks
5611 Office Administrative Services Support-Workers
Project Management Specialists and Business
Operations Specialists, All Other
Elementary, Middle, and Secondary llglergesntary S?\l/l[OOl Teachers, Except Special Education
6111 Schools, Public & Private 00C SCIVICE VIanagers

Middle School Teachers, Except Special and
Career/Technical Education

13




PWDB In-Demand Industries and Associated Target Occupations

NAICS Code*

In Demand Industry

Associated Target Occupations**

Secondary School Teachers, Except Special and
Career/Technical Education

6211

Offices of Physicians

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants

Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and

Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
lical s & 1k Ik . hnicians

Nursing Assistants

Radiologic Technologists and Technicians

Registered Nurses

6213

Offices of Other Health Practitioners

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants

Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and

Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Radiologic Technologists and Technicians

6214

Outpatient Care Centers

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants
Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and

Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
lical s & 1k Ik . hnicians

Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Registered Nurses

6216

Home Health Care Services

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical Assistants
Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and

Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Registered Nurses

AN
\S)
—
e}

Other Ambulatory Health Care
Services

Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics

6221

General Medical & Surgical
Hospitals,
Public & Private

Food Service Managers

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses
Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and

Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Pharmacy Technicians

Physical Therapist Assistants

Radiologic Technologists and Technicians
Registered Nurses

Respiratory Therapists

6233

Continuing Care Retirement
Communities and Assisted Living
Facilities for the Elderly

Food Service Managers
Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses

14




PWDB In-Demand Industries and Associated Target Occupations

NAICS Code* In Demand Industry Associated Target Occupations**

Medical Assistants

Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and
Health Technologists and Technicians, All Other
Nursing Assistants

Physical Therapist Assistants

Registered Nurses

6244 Child Day Care Services Childcare Workers

Automotive Body and Related Repairers
Automotive Service Technicians & Mechanics

8111 Automotive Repair & Maintenance Bus & Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine Specialists
Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics, Except Engines
Commercial and Industrial Control and Valve Installers and Repairers, Except
8113 Machinery and Equipment (except Mechanical Door
Automotive and Electronic) Repair Industrial Machinery Mechanics
and Maintenance Production Workers, All Other
Correctional Officers and Jailers
9000 Government: Federal, State, & Local | Firefighters

Police & Sheriff’s Patrol Officers

* North American Industry Classification System
** While only listed once above, some PWDB Target Occupations are associated with multiple PWDB In-Demand Industries.

In-Demand occupations meet the following criteria: Texas Workforce Commission projects +510 or
more annual openings, or 100 or more openings over the next 10 years. The Panhandle WDA includes
the following counties: Armstrong, Briscoe, Carson, Castro, Childress, Collingsworth, Dallam, Deaf
Smith, Donley, Gray, Hall, Hansford, Hartley, Hemphill, Hutchinson, Lipscomb, Moore, Ochiltree,
Oldham, Parmer, Potter, Randall, Roberts, Sherman, Swisher, and Wheeler.

PWDB In-Demand Occupations
8(C)ggPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 1(1\)1531;L
OPENINGS
45-2093 Farmworkers, Farm, Ranch, and Aquacultural Animals 2,047
35-3023 Fast Food and Counter Workers 1,257
41-2011 Cashiers 970
41-2031 Retail Salespersons 944
37-2011 Janitors and Cleaners, Except Maids and Housekeeping Cleaners 730
53-7065 Stockers and Order Fillers 589
53-3032 Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers 588
35-3031 Waiters and Waitresses 573
43-9061 Office Clerks, General 540
53-7062 Laborers and Freight, Stock, and Material Movers, Hand 521
11-1021 General and Operations Managers 354

15



PWDB In-Demand Occupations

8SSEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 13;%11;L
OPENINGS
35-2014 Cooks, Restaurant 351
43-4051 Customer Service Representatives 299
51-3023 Slaughterers and Meat Packers 285
47-2061 Construction Laborers 270
37-2012 Maids and Housekeeping Cleaners 260
49-9071 Maintenance and Repair Workers, General 258
51-3022 Meat, Poultry, and Fish Cutters and Trimmers 258
35-1012 First-Line Supervisors of Food Preparation and Serving Workers 257
41-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Retail Sales Workers 254
43-6014 Secretaries and Administrative Assistants, Except Legal, Medical, and 251
Executive
43-3031 Bookkeeping, Accounting, and Auditing Clerks 245
25-3031 Substitute Teachers, Short-Term 239
53-3033 Light Truck Drivers 217
29-1141 Registered Nurses 196
47-2111 Electricians 178
37-3011 Landscaping and Groundskeeping Workers 178
53-7051 Industrial Truck and Tractor Operators 173
47-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Construction Trades and Extraction Workers 172
39-9011 Childcare Workers 166
25-2021 Elementary School Teachers, Except Special Education 166
25-9045 Teaching Assistants, Except Postsecondary 165
43-6013 Medical Secretaries and Administrative Assistants 159
13-2011 Accountants and Auditors 157
31-1131 Nursing Assistants 153
51-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Production and Operating Workers 148
35-9021 Dishwashers 143
47-2073 Operating Engineers and Other Construction Equipment Operators 142
43-4171 Receptionists and Information Clerks 142
53-7064 Packers and Packagers, Hand 137
41-4012 Sales Representatives, Wholesale and Manufacturing, Except Technical and 136
Scientific Products
53-7061 Cleaners of Vehicles and Equipment 134
47-5071 Roustabouts, Oil and Gas 133
25-2031 Secondary School Teachers, Except Special and Career/Technical Education 125
35-3011 Bartenders 123
35-2012 Cooks, Institution and Cafeteria 121

16




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

881()ZEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE zg;%kL
OPENINGS
45-2091 Agricultural Equipment Operators 120
33-3012 Correctional Officers and Jailers 117
35-2021 Food Preparation Workers 116
31-9092 Medical Assistants 116
41-3091 Sales Representatives of Services, Except Advertising, Insurance, Financial 115
Services, and Travel
51-9061 Inspectors, Testers, Sorters, Samplers, and Weighers 112
47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 110
33-9032 Security Guards 110
49-3023 Automotive Service Technicians and Mechanics 109
43-4081 Hotel, Motel, and Resort Desk Clerks 105
29-2061 Licensed Practical and Licensed Vocational Nurses 104
41-2022 Parts Salespersons 104
49-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Mechanics, Installers, and Repairers 97
51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers, and Brazers 96
13-1198 Project Management Specialists and Business Operations Specialists, All Other 94
33-3051 Police and Sheriff's Patrol Officers 92
35-9031 Hosts and Hostesses, Restaurant, Lounge, and Coffee Shop 90
25-2022 Middle School Teachers, Except Special and Career/Technical Education 90
39-9032 Recreation Workers 90
53-3058 Passenger Vehicle Drivers, Except Bus Drivers, Transit and Intercity 88
11-9021 Construction Managers 87
43-3021 Billing and Posting Clerks 82
47-2031 Carpenters 77
49-3031 Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine Specialists 76
43-3071 Tellers 72
49-9051 Electrical Power-Line Installers and Repairers 71
21-1093 Social and Human Service Assistants 71
43-5061 Production, Planning, and Expediting Clerks 66
43-5071 Shipping, Receiving, and Inventory Clerks 64
51-4041 Machinists 59
45-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Farming, Fishing, and Forestry Workers 57
41-3021 Insurance Sales Agents 57
51-6011 Laundry and Dry-Cleaning Workers 57
51-9111 Packaging and Filling Machine Operators and Tenders 57
11-3031 Financial Managers 55

17




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

8SSEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE zg;%kL
OPENINGS
39-5012 Hairdressers, Hairstylists, and Cosmetologists 55
51-9198 Helpers--Production Workers 55
49-3042 Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics, Except Engines 55
41-2021 Counter and Rental Clerks 54
27-2022 Coaches and Scouts 50
29-2053 Psychiatric Technicians 50
31-9091 Dental Assistants 48
13-1071 Human Resources Specialists 47
47-2141 Painters, Construction and Maintenance 47
25-3097 Tutors and Teachers and Instructors, All Other 47
11.9111 Medical and Health Services Managers 45
11-9141 Property, Real Estate, and Community Association Managers 45
15-1232 Computer User Support Specialists 44
51-9011 Chemical Equipment Operators and Tenders 43
23-2011 Paralegals and Legal Assistants 43
47-5013 Service Unit Operators, Oil and Gas 43
21-1021 Child, Family, and School Social Workers 42
21-1012 Educational, Guidance, and Career Counselors and Advisors 42
29-1171 Nurse Practitioners 42
11-9032 Education Administrators, Kindergarten through Secondary 41
29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians 40
41-9022 Real Estate Sales Agents 40
45-2041 Graders and Sorters, Agricultural Products 39
49-9021 Heating, Air Conditioning, and Refrigeration Mechanics and Installers 39
13-1151 Training and Development Specialists 39
33-2011 Firefighters 37
11-9051 Food Service Managers 37
51-9124 Coating, Painting, and Spraying Machine Setters, Operators, and Tenders 35
15-1256 Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 35
53-4011 Locomotive Engineers 34
13-1161 Market Research Analysts and Marketing Specialists 34
43-5052 Postal Service Mail Carriers 34
41-3031 Securities, Commodities, and Financial Services Sales Agents 34
51-9161 Computer Numerically Controlled Tool Operators 33
29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians 33
53-7081 Refuse and Recyclable Material Collectors 33

18




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

881()ZEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 13;?JI;L
OPENINGS
47-3013 Helpers--Electricians 32
49-9099 Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Workers, All Other 32
53-4031 Railroad Conductors and Yardmasters 32
43-6011 Executive Secretaries and Executive Administrative Assistants 31
13-2072 Loan Officers 31
41-9099 Sales and Related Workers, All Other 31
25-2011 Preschool Teachers, Except Special Education 30
49-3093 Tire Repairers and Changers 30
45-2011 Agricultural Inspectors 29
43-9041 Insurance Claims and Policy Processing Clerks 29
43-4031 Court, Municipal, and License Clerks 28
37-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Housekeeping and Janitorial Workers 28
33-9092 Lifeguards, Ski Patrol, and Other Recreational Protective Service Workers 28
29-2098 Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists, and Health Technologists 28
and Technicians, All Other
11-3071 Transportation, Storage, and Distribution Managers 28
53-6031 Automotive and Watercraft Service Attendants 27
43-3011 Bill and Account Collectors 27
47-2051 Cement Masons and Concrete Finishers 27
49-9098 Helpers--Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Workers 27
25-9031 Instructional Coordinators 27
43-5032 Dispatchers, Except Police, Fire, and Ambulance 26
49-3041 Farm Equipment Mechanics and Service Technicians 26
35-3041 Food Servers, Non-restaurant 26
33-9098 School Bus Monitors and Protective Service Workers, All Other 26
35-2015 Cooks, Short Order 25
11-3051 Industrial Production Managers 25
13-1111 Management Analysts 25
29-2012 Medical and Clinical Laboratory Technicians 25
51-9199 Production Workers, All Other 25
51-8031 Water and Wastewater Treatment Plant and System Operators 25
13-2098 Financial and Investment Analysts, Financial Risk Specialists, and Financial 24
Specialists, All Other
43-4131 Loan Interviewers and Clerks 24
49-3021 Automotive Body and Related Repairers 23
51-3093 Food Cooking Machine Operators and Tenders 23
13-1041 Compliance Officers 22

19




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

881()ZEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 13;%11;L
OPENINGS
29-2041 Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics 22
15-1244 Network and Computer Systems Administrators 22
51-8093 Petroleum Pump System Operators, Refinery Operators, and Gaugers 22
11-2022 Sales Managers 22
43-4199 Information and Record Clerks, All Other 21
25-2012 Kindergarten Teachers, Except Special Education 21
49-9043 Maintenance Workers, Machinery 21
49-9012 Control and Valve Installers and Repairers, Except Mechanical Door 20
51-3099 Food Processing Workers, All Other 20
47-4051 Highway Maintenance Workers 20
11-9081 Lodging Managers 20
19-5011 Occupational Health and Safety Specialists 20
31-9096 Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory Animal Caretakers 20
25-2032 Career/Technical Education Teachers, Secondary School 19
17-3023 Electrical and Electronic Engineering Technologists and Technicians 19
51-3092 Food Batchmakers 19
21-1092 Probation Officers and Correctional Treatment Specialists 19
49-2098 Security and Fire Alarm Systems Installers 19
11-9151 Social and Community Service Managers 19
39-3091 Amusement and Recreation Attendants 18
17-2051 Civil Engineers 18
19-2041 Environmental Scientists and Specialists, Including Health 18
37-1012 First-Line Supervisors of Landscaping, Lawn Service, and Groundskeeping 18
Workers
41-1012 First-Line Supervisors of Non-Retail Sales Workers 18
31-9099 Healthcare Support Workers, All Other 18
17-2141 Mechanical Engineers 18
43-3051 Payroll and Timekeeping Clerks 18
31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants 18
51-7011 Cabinetmakers and Bench Carpenters 17
13-1051 Cost Estimators 17
49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics 17
25-1072 Nursing Instructors and Teachers, Postsecondary 17
43-5031 Public Safety Telecommunicators 17
41-4011 Sales Representatives, Wholesale and Manufacturing, Technical and Scientific 17
Products
47-2021 Brickmasons and Blockmasons 16

20




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

8SSEPATIONAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 13;%EL
OPENINGS
15-1211 Computer Systems Analysts 16
33-1011 First-Line Supervisors of Correctional Officers 16
17-2171 Petroleum Engineers 16
53-3051 Bus Drivers, School 15
51-9192 Cleaning, Washing, and Metal Pickling Equipment Operators and Tenders 15
33-9091 Crossing Guards and Flaggers 15
49-2094 Electrical and Electronics Repairers, Commercial and Industrial Equipment 15
17-2071 Electrical Engineers 15
13-1081 Logisticians 15
11-9179 Personal Service Managers, All Other; Entertainment and Recreation 15
Managers, Except Gambling; and Managers, All Other
29-1126 Respiratory Therapists 15
25-2052 Special Education Teachers, Kindergarten and Elementary School 15
53-7011 Conveyor Operators and Tenders 14
11-9033 Education Administrators, Postsecondary 14
43-4061 Eligibility Interviewers, Government Programs 14
43-4071 File Clerks 14
21-1022 Healthcare Social Workers 14
29-1051 Pharmacists 14
47-2221 Structural Iron and Steel Workers 14
25-1121 Art, Drama, and Music Teachers, Postsecondary 13
11-1011 Chief Executives 13
13-1031 Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and Investigators 13
47-4011 Construction and Building Inspectors 13
13-2041 Credit Analysts 13
51-9032 Cutting and Slicing Machine Setters, Operators, and Tenders 13
47-3015 Helpers--Pipelayers, Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 13
25-4022 Librarians and Media Collections Specialists 13
So=ll =hs
AL oL
el 939
Seeled e
detosd e
e el
S 20

21




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

2SSEPATI°NAL OCCUPATIONAL TITLE 13;%11;]4
OPENINGS
513022 =
372041 —
537062 ~
43-4951 -
399921 —
43-5081 334
43-6014 —
433031 —
201141 =
472061 —
519198 —
352014 =
372012 =t
H-1021 =
399011 —
311014 —~
411011 —
49-9071 =
436013 o~
352021 o
41-4012 -
252021 —
37304 -
413099 =
253098 7
339932 <
259041 —
53-3033 ot
252031 —
452091 =
333912 0
132041 6
431011+ e
513023 —
352012 e
537061 o




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

OCCUPATIONAL
CODE

OCCUPATIONAL TITLE

TOTAL
ANNUAL
OPENINGS

plnlnle||lele|elele|e|r|s|e|els el |8|R|E|IEIE|EIE|E|EIE|EIEIZIEIE|E




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

OCCUPATIONAL
CODE

OCCUPATIONAL TITLE

TOTAL
ANNUAL
OPENINGS

43-507+

R

475013

395012

hih|R|B|G|e|E|S|E|E|EIE(EIE|SIS B S| RF|E|E BB |E|EER|R|B|E|2|D|2




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

OCCUPATIONAL
CODE

OCCUPATIONAL TITLE

TOTAL
ANNUAL
OPENINGS

H-OHH

oaland Hoalth Sorvi

S

271026

43-60H+

RIRRIRIRIR|E|RIB|R|E|IB(R|R|E B |R|R|BIBIE|B|B|lE|E|E|E|B|B|E|E|B|B|E|E




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

OCCUPATIONAL
CODE

OCCUPATIONAL TITLE

TOTAL
ANNUAL
OPENINGS

43-30H

Bill-and-Account-Collectors

b

47404+

Hazardous Materials Removal- Workers

B3+

$ & |b|L|k|E|E|C|E|E|E|IEE|E|EIEIR|BIEIRIBIB|IEIBIR|E|EIBB|E|EIB|R|IRR




PWDB In-Demand Occupations

OCCUPATIONAL
CODE

OCCUPATIONAL TITLE

TOTAL
ANNUAL
OPENINGS

201426

H-9444

292057

S R Il Il el Il Il e N e e e N e e e - e el e el el el R e e

319996

&

Occupations designated as “Target” must meet specific criteria established by the PWDB including

the following:

1) Offer training completion within a two- to three-year timeframe,
2) Provide an average entry level hourly wage of $12 or more, and
3) Achieve total annual average job openings of 10 or more.

27




PWDB Target Occupations
SOC* Code | Target Occupation SOC* Code Target Occupation
13-2011 Accountants and Auditors 49-9043 Maintenance Workers, Machinery
493011 Aircraft Mechanics and Service 31-9092 Medical Assistants
Technicians
49-3001 Automotlve Body and Related 292012 Medlc.al.and Clinical Laboratory
- Repairers Technicians
Automotive Service Technicians and Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records
49-3023 . 29-2098 Specialists, and Health Technologists and
Mechanics I
Technicians, All Other
Bookkeeping, Accounting, and 29 2071 ciedienl Tocsede nnd Tlenleh Tnfopmansiens
43-3031 Auditing Clerks Fechnicians
49-3031 Bus and Truck Mechanic and Diesel 252022 Middle School Teachers, Except Special
Engine Specialists and Career/Technical Education
47-2031 Carpenters 49-3042 Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics
51-9011 Chemical Equipment Operators and +5-H42 Network and Computer Systems
Tenders 15-1244 Administrators
39-9011 Childcare Workers 31-1014 Nursing Assistants
15-1151 Computer User Support Specialists 23-2011 Paralegals and Legal Assistants
499012 Control and Valve Installers and 51-8093 Petroleum Pump System Operators,
— Repairers, Except Mechanical Door Refinery Operators, and Gaugers
Snool Dental Assistants 29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians
47-2111 Electricians 31-9097 Phlebotomists
Elementary School Teachers, Except
25-2021 Special and Career/Technical 31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants
Education
29-2041 Em-ergen'c Y Medical Technicians and 47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters
Paramedics
33-2011 Firefighters 33-3051 Police and Sheriff’s Patrol Officers
3164 F—H—&t—[:lﬂ%ﬂ-p%l%ﬁ@i’—s—@-ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%dﬂd— 51-9199 Production Workers, All Other
. 13-1198 Project Management Specialists and
11-9051 Food Service Managers Business Operations Specialists, All Other
11-1021 General and Operations Managers 29-2053 Psychiatric Technicians
49-9021 Heat.l ne, ‘A.‘lr Condltloplng, and 29-2034 Radiologic Technologists and Technicians
Refrigeration Mechanics
49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics 29-1141 Registered Nurses
e Dbl el md e o Do | 201126 Respiratory Therapists
L . . Secondary School Teachers, Except
15-1212 Information Security Analysts 25-2031 Special and Career/Technical Education
29-2061 Licensed Vocational Nurses 53-3032 Truck Drivers, Heavy/Tractor-Trailer
51-4041 Machinists 51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers,
and Brazers

*Standard Occupational Code

e The employment needs of employers in the Panhandle region are subject to the so-called “brain
drain” that many other regions experience, with the added challenge of the varying pay scales
customary in other states and other parts of Texas. Regional unemployment levels have

28



consistently remained among the lowest in the State, presenting unique challenges to companies
in recruiting and hiring qualified workers. The PWDB is committed to and is actively engaged in
creating greater employer engagement first through accurately identifying and pinpointing local
employers’ specific workforce needs. By soliciting and compiling results from employer surveys
and input from community partners, combined with TWC Labor Market and Career Information
(LMCI) data resources, critical elements are brought together to obtain an accurate picture.
Secondly, using this information to educate and train a “right-skilled” workforce, including
incumbent workers, includes funding employer-specific training to bring worker skills up to the
level needed by area employers.

Through customized training initiatives, such as the Skills Development Grant Partnership,
training opportunities for incumbent workers have increased, and are producing a more highly
qualified and well-compensated workforce. In February, the PWDB executed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with Plains Dairy, a leading provider of high-quality milk and dairy
products in the region. The company is dedicated to producing milk from local farmers and
distributing it to customers in the arca. They have a state-of-the-art processing facility that allows
them to turn raw milk into a variety of products, including milk, cheese, butter, and ice cream.
The PWDB is developing an application for a SDF Project that will invest in measurable skills
development to train approximately 100 employees of Plains Dairy, utilizing a customized Safe
Quality Food (SQF) food safety and quality management system that provides guidelines for the
production, processing, packaging, and distribution of food products.

The PWDB further pursues employer engagement through facilitating completion of Panhandle
occupational and industrial-based certification profiles for the identification and validation of
industry-based certifications that will allow students to pursue the credentials that will lead to
valuable careers.

The WSP Business Services team utilizes monthly surveys and engages local employers to report
on technology and employment trends in their industries, skill shortages, and recruiting
challenges, and solicits suggestions for services that could help address labor force needs.
Economic development organizations, school districts, elected officials, and the public are
solicited to share ideas and provide input as well.

Information is also gleaned from labor market assessments conducted by the AEDC to determine
the needs of Amarillo employers, along with information obtained from independent school
districts (ISDs), postsecondary institutions, adult education providers, and other workforce
partner organizations.

To identify demographic, industrial and employment trends and potential skill shortages, data is
pulled from multiple sources, including TWC LMCI tools, and additional resources from other
providers, such as Help Wanted Online.

Assessment of employers’ needs is also conducted through the involvement of WSP staff with
businesses, collaborative activities with community colleges and local organizations, and input
received from employers and community leaders. WSP staff share their front-line experience
working with employers, job seekers and students to add practical, current and “real-life”
information.

B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2))

Employer engagement is the key to meeting the myriad of Panhandle regional workforce needs.
Identifying appropriate operational strategies that lead to attainment of the Panhandle’s goals involves
29



examining gaps in skills and services in the local labor market. To understand these challenges,
PWDB staff conducts analyses of local, state and national data identifying demographic, industrial
and employment trends, and potential skill shortages, using a variety of economic tools provided by
TWC, other State agencies, and federal and local resources.

The WSP Business Services team continues to develop solutions that successfully address local labor
force challenges such as assessment of employers’ skill needs, implementation of low-cost, effective
and timely methods that match capable workers with job openings, and collaboration with educators,
economic developers and community partners.

Monitoring local and regional job openings in the Panhandle using such tools as WorkInTexas.com,
MyTXCareer.com, AmarilloHelpWanted.com, and the Amarillo Globe-News classified listings,
confirms that a majority of Panhandle employers continue to seek qualified individuals in the
Specialized Freight Trucking and Transportation-related Industries with Commercial Truck Drivers
(CDL); and in the Healthcare-related Industries, which remain on the Panhandle’s In-Demand
Industries and Target Occupations. The region’s training providers keep CDL classes full of students,
many of whom are hired as soon as they complete the training. Workforce Solutions Panhandle staff
develop career pathways in the healthcare field to match customers’ skills along the entire spectrum
of the regional employers’ needs, from the Target Occupations such as Medical Assistants to Licensed
Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses, and Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians. The
region’s two major hospitals, as well as multiple Outpatient Care Centers and Home Health Care
Services providers, also hire these students as soon as they complete their training.

Replacing retiring workers in skilled trades, despite fewer young adults seeking entry into long- term
apprenticeship programs in technical occupations remains a challenge. Aligning resources and
focusing on “right-skilling” will not only replace workers, but will ensure the replacement workers
have the enhanced technical skills to meet the unique requirements created by the increasing demands
of an exceptionally complex and specialized business environment.

C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends (WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3))

The size and scale of the Panhandle region, with its 26 counties encompassing 26,000 square miles,
present obvious geographic limitations. The rural areas with the most need for workers have the
smallest labor force. The regional downturn in oil and gas production have impacted the rural areas
the most, with substantial layoffs and few new jobs to replace those lost. Skills in this industry are
often not transferrable to other industries, and many former oil field workers are reluctant to take a
lower paying job and hold out in hopes that production will ramp up again in more areas.

The population of individuals with barriers to employment in the Panhandle region is sizable. Poverty
levels are relatively high, as many families and individuals receive some type of public assistance,
and teenage pregnancy rates have also remained high. A growing homeless population, including
veterans and individuals with disabilities, adds to the strain on available resources and services, and
presents its own unique set of challenges.

Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, the unemployment rate for the Panhandle Workforce Development
Area was at 2.9% according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The most current statistics available at
the time of the writing of this Plan (Eebruary2021December 2022) show that the rate hasrisente
53%is now at 2.7% which is still well below the rate of 7-2%-3.6% for the State of Texas. While a
low rate is desirable in many ways, it can pose underlying difficulties, such as the ability for employers
to match the availability of workers to job openings. With less people available for work, employers
have to increase their wages to find, and keep, employees. This can cause some organizations to settle

30




for less-talented workers, which can reduce the productivity of the employer as a whole, and
employers may see an increase in employee turnover when workers have ample opportunities from
which to choose.

While most Panhandle workers who want to work are able to find jobs, underemployment remains an
issue. The lowest paying jobs seem to have the most growth, due in part to the abundance of
restaurants, eating establishments, and hotels/motels per capita. This impacts increasing poverty
numbers in the region due to the relatively lower wages paid in these occupations.

The need exists, in the Panhandle, for stable jobs which pay a self-sufficient wage. The dual challenge
is to find and engage a well-qualified workforce to meet employers’ needs for highly skilled, stable
workers. With a younger (median age below age 35), more educated (82% with a HS diploma), and
growing regional labor force (15%), the pool of available workers in the region offers the potential
for realizing economic growth and future stability for employers and workers alike.

In addition to creating new employment opportunities, a key element in the Panhandle is motivating
skilled workers to remain in or return to the Panhandle area. This can be achieved by developing and
implementing a targeted approach to overcoming challenges inherent in virtual employment.
Coordinating with system partners like the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce, AEDC, and local
colleges to promote the economically and personally rewarding benefits of staying in or returning to
Amarillo, is an effective approach.

Local labor market needs provide the core direction for Panhandle workforce investments. To
understand the region’s skill needs, PWDB and WSP staff combine a broad analysis of local, state
and national data, with local information gained from employers’ input and workforce professionals’
experience delivering services. Conducting market research and analysis, developing and
implementing a regional business engagement plan, and creating and improving opportunities for
developing and implementing skills development initiatives, especially among small employers, and
employers in demand industry sectors and occupations, are priorities for the PWDB.

The extensive geography of the Texas Panhandle presents a daunting challenge to the delivery of vital
workforce services to the populace, compounded by the existence of only one full-service rural WSP
office in Borger and one itinerate location, on the campus of Amarillo College in Hereford. Rural
communities continue to have the most need for workers, and yet have the smallest labor force. The
acquisition and operation of a donated Workforce Mobile Unit several years ago led the PWDB to
purchase a second, smaller mobile unit, which is more cost effective to operate.

The Texas Panhandle has a very diverse economy. When analyzing the industries and associated
occupations of the PWDA, the list is long with small percentages of job openings in each field.
However, two areas stand out when all of the statistics are compiled — Truck Drivers and healthcare-
related occupations. At the time of the writing of this Plan, out of a sample of 750 job openings, 36
were specifically for Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers (5%). Job Openings for Registered
Nurses were 138 (18%) and job openings categorized in other healthcare-related fields, such as
Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics; Home Health Aides, Licensed Practical and
Vocational Nurses; Nursing Assistants; Pharmacists and Pharmacy Technicians; Physical and
Respiratory Therapists; Radiologic Technicians; Surgical Technologists; and Other Healthcare
Practitioners, Technical Workers, and Support Workers, totaled 153 (20%) demonstrating the vast
need for employees in these areas and why these occupations make up such a large portion of training
programs available, from regional training providers, to customers of WSP and the PWDA.

Several employers in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) that continue their
operations and some that have released plans for potential manufacturing industry projects prompted

31




the addition of the occupation of Production Workers, All Others (SOC 51-9199) to the Target
Occupations List.

Following the COVID-19 Pandemic, employers in the Healthcare Industry in the PWDA began
discovering the increased need for Mental Health services and approached the PWDB with a proposal
to develop a credential program with Amarillo College for Psychiatric Technicians. In its February,
2022 Board meeting, the PWDB approved adding this occupation to its High-Demand Occupations
and Target Occupations Lists. The Amarillo College program was then added to the Eligible Training
Provider System (ETPS) and WSP has enrolled WIOA customers in the program.

D. Workforce Development Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))

The strengths of workforce activities in the Panhandle region are the innovative employment and
training opportunities developed through the creation of new partnerships with businesses and
employers in emerging industries in the Panhandle, such as wind energy, manufacturing, and
industrial production, through renewing alliances with existing entities including aviation and child
care services, and with other local employers that have maintained a steady presence in the area job
market. Additional successes include:

e Industry-Recognized Skills Certification Initiative Grant funds utilized through training workers
at local community colleges for employment at a large food processing plant in the region;

e (ollaboration between a major local employer with business locations throughout the region to
provide management level training to incumbent workers and a local community college, offering
opportunities for career growth and increased earning potential; and

e Partnering with employers to fund basic truck driver instruction and licensure, followed by job
placement with an experienced driver to complete required over-the-road training.

One of the greatest challenges to improving delivery of workforce services in our region iwas the
mandated relocation of the Amarillo WSP office, the largest office in the area and the primary resource
for workforce services for Panhandle area employers and job seekers. Due to the increased costs
associated with transitioning from a state-owned building with virtually negligible costs, to leasing
suitable office space in an expensive commercial environment, with marginal cost offset, workforce
service delivery-wil-be has been severely impacted. Securing a new facility-will, however, effer-the
petential-to-achieved a long--desired goal of co-housing local VR Services staff with WSP staff to
provide enhanced workforce services to individuals with disabilities, such as quality employment
services and suitable job referrals, appropriate occupational training opportunities. Fhe—petential
exists—for-WSP-staff and local employers have had the opportunity to increase their education and
knowledge of VR, and the unique employment issues individuals, who have disabilities, regularly
encounter.

Collaboration and joint planning with VR Services and TWC continues en-an-effective-transitionplan
fer-providing a seamless approach for access to integrated workforce services, literacy education,
vocational rehabilitation, and in-demand workplace skills that lead to self-sufficient employment and
advancement for individuals with disabilities. Promoting partnerships with employers and system
stakeholders will overcome barriers to meeting workforce needs through creative use of technology
and innovation. Following a period of adjustment and settling in to the new paradigm, additional
strategies and methods will be developed and implemented based on examination of the successes
and lingering challenges observed, and will be designed to increase the quality and effectiveness of
workforce services provided to this priority population. Additional strategies include:

e Identifying individual’s barriers to employment, including veterans and youth with disabilities,

32



and prioritizing services provided to enhance skill levels, complete credentials, and increase
earnings potential,

Overcoming obstacles encountered in developing short term training opportunities, such as paid
or unpaid work experience, internships, apprenticeships, and other work-based training options
like On—the—Job—Training (OJT). Individuals may be reluctant to work without pay, despite the
inherent opportunities available at the completion, and employers may be reluctant to take a chance
on a relatively unskilled, untested worker, whether or not the training is subsidized, both of which
must be addressed,;

Outreaching and engaging older, out-of-school youth, and re-connecting them with the local job
market and employers, is an important focus. By fostering quality internships and skills
development projects in Target Occupations, and encouraging and assisting area community
colleges in the development of, and application for, Skills Development grants, including
implementation, students will be connected with employers who offer self-sufficient wages, as
well as effective mentoring to encourage continued participation.

Actively supporting initiatives which integrate language, basic education, and occupational skills
training, such as Amarillo College’s existing pilot instructional programs for Limited English
speakers in Target and In-Demand Occupations like Certified Nurse Aide, Machinist, and Auto
Mechanic, reinforce the PWDB’s goals of creating a qualified, vital workforce.

WSP staff continue to collaborate with VR staff to provide work-based learning opportunities for
students with disabilities through the Summer Earn and Learn (SEAL) program, and are providing
participants with foundational employment skills and better preparing them for successful
transition to postsecondary education and employment, and work. Developing opportunities for
these students to continue gaining valuable work experience and soft skills through other avenues,
builds their resumes as well as their employment tool box.

Efforts continue in earnest to gather consensus among appropriate local stakeholders and partners
to build a network that will work towards achieving the goals put forth in the 60x30TX Initiative
that are specific to the PWDB, such as strengthening our local economy by better preparing young
people for the workforce demands of our diversified, employer-driven local economy, and
developing and improving opportunities for individuals to enter into career pathways designed to
offer living wages with the potential for increased future earnings. The goal of the 60x30TX
Initiative, that 60% of Texans ages 25-34 will have a degree, certificate, or other post-secondary
credential of value by 2030, continues with the Governor’s Tri-Agency Workforce Initiative, a
collaboration among the Texas Education Agency (TEA), the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board, and TWC. The PWDB is coordinating with Region 16 and West Texas A&M
University, to respond to a TEA grant opportunity, the 2022-2024 Tri-Agency Grant for Regional
Conveners, which provides funding to establish the infrastructure needed to support planning and
implementation of high-quality career and education pathways across the workforce development
area. Designated regional conveners will join the Texas Regional Pathways Network (TRPN), a
growing community of regional partners committed to building regional talent pipelines to
targeted industries that will spur economic growth across the state.

Increasing awareness and educating older youth and parents in realizing that a four-year college
degree is not necessarily the only path to success in the job market;

Increasing collaboration with local AEL partners to consolidate intake, referral, and service
strategies that focus on attaining necessary credentials, completing training, and entering

33



employment with the ultimate goal of self-sufficiency; and

e Developing relevant career pathways based on data driven decisions that serve the needs of
individuals in removing barriers to employment, attaining credentials, and enhancing skill levels
and earning potential.

Part 3: Core Programs
A. Workforce Development System (WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1))

e Required partner/programs included in the Workforce Development system are:

WIOA adult, dislocated worker, and youth programs;

Wagner-Peyser Employment Service program;

Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) program;

Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) program;

Unemployment Insurance (UI) program;

Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) program;

Choices, the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) employment and training
program;

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) Employment and Training programs;
Subsidized Child Care programs;

Apprenticeship programs (Texas Education Code, Chapter 133);

Veterans’ employment and training programs;

National and Community Service Act of 2007 program,;

Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP); and

Non-Certificate Postsecondary Career and Technology Training programs.

AN N NN NN

AN N N N NN

e Facilitating core programs and other workforce development programs to support
alignment to provide services, including programs of study authorized under the Carl D.
Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, that support the strategy identified
in the State Plan under WIOA §102(b)(1)(E). The Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education
Act of 2006, as amended by the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act
(Perkins V), was signed into law on July 31, 2018. The act provides an increased focus on the academic
achievement of career and technical education students and emphasizes alignment with state-level and
local needs. The Panhandle’s workforce development system is comprised of the organizations and
activities that assist job seekers with finding employment, help workers advance in their careers, provide
access to occupational and educational training that leads to self-sufficient employment, improve basic
literacy skills among youth and adults, and ensure a skilled workforce exists to support local industry and
the local economy over time. This workforce system includes local organizations that serve the adults
and youth who may need help preparing for and succeeding in the workforce. The PWDB will support
the TWC State Plan strategy through continued and strong collaboration among WSP staff, local
employers and industry, training providers and educational institutions, service and advocacy
organizations, and other local organizations critical to supporting and delivering effective, integrated
workforce services through the core programs.

The PWDB continues to partner with regional Economic Development Corporations (EDCs) to apply for
High Demand Job Training grant funding to match the EDCs sales tax investments in a dollar-for dollar
match, for WIOA -allowable, high demand job training activities which may include individual participant
recruitment, skills assessment, job search skills improvement, job search, job referral, equipment and

34




B.

minor renovation of facilities used for program-related job training. While the PWDB has utilized its
awarded grant funds mostly to purchase equipment for regional community colleges and Independent
School Districts (ISDs), future applications are planned to include a combination of all the allowable
activities to supplemented Career & Technology Education (CTE) training programs throughout the
PWDA. This will include Dual-Credit and Career Technical Education Programs as aligning with TWC’s
Strategic Planning which utilizes funding “to support, create and expand dual-credit and CTE programs
that are highly technical in nature, address local demands for high-skill, in-demand and high-wage
industries, and allow high school students to complete college credit hours. These programs respond to
industry demands for skilled workers in technical fields, while helping high school students prepare for
employment or education opportunities.”

Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access (WI0OA
§108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(2))

Expanding access to employment, training, education, and support services for eligible
individuals, particularly eligible individuals with barriers to employment: WSP Business
Services and PWDB staff will continue to provide assistance to community colleges and
businesses to obtain training resources to increase students’ and workers’ skills, and build
educational capacity in the region, including the Skills Development and Self-Sufficiency Fund,
and other grant opportunities which expand capacity. Workforce resources pledged to such
prospective projects includes labor market information, grant writing assistance, building
employer consortia, assistance with eligible students’ tuition, fees and materials costs, and job
placement. To respond to continued employer input regarding deficiencies in the work-
readiness/soft skills of job applicants and employees, additional work-readiness training options
will be made available to job seekers and targeted populations through new tools to be provided
in the WSP office in Amarillo and online on the updated WSP website. The PWDB and WSP
continue to offer training using Online Learning Management Systems (OLMS), such as
MATRIX LMS.

Facilitating the development of career pathways and co-enrollment, as appropriate, in core
programs, including specific career pathways: WSP case management staff are well-trained
in assessing customer workforce needs and collaborating with customers to develop employment
plans which meet the customers immediate and future needs. Staff work diligently to identify
and develop effective career pathways which reflect realistic employment goals that can involve
occupational training, as well as work-based training, designed to meet the prescribed objectives
of the plan. Staff is made aware of sources for labor market and career information, and to look
for every opportunity for co-enrollment and integrated case management to enhance desired
outcomes. PWDB policy exists for exploring community partners and agencies which may assist
in meeting the needs of customers for training and employment._ The PWDB is collaborating
with both Amarillo College and the Panhandle Community Partnership in the development of
tools, such as a Career Maps website, to be available soon.

Improving access to activities leading to postsecondary credential or industry recognized
credential: The availability of short-term training options, that can lead to occupations in
demand, is limited in the Panhandle. Working with postsecondary institutions to develop more
training opportunities involves identifying training needs of employers, assisting colleges with
grant applications to generate funding for curriculum development, and covering tuition
expenses for eligible students. Integrated language, basic education and occupational skills
training are also limited in the region. Most of the occupations that have been targeted for

35



training require a relatively high level of basic education for successful completion of certificates
and degrees. However, Amarillo College has piloted instructional programs for Limited-English
speakers in the In-Demand Occupation of Certified Nurse Aide, and the Target Occupations of
Machinist and Auto Mechanics. Additional funding will be needed to sustain these programs
and expand training for more occupations. WSP staff will assist postsecondary providers in
pursuing these opportunities.

The PWDB is actively striving towards the objective of the Texas Industry Cluster Initiative,
which is to stimulate long-term sustained growth and focus the allocation of state resources on
key industry clusters identified to be engines of job creation and economic development in the
21st century. "Industry cluster" means a concentration of businesses and industries in a
geographic region that are interconnected by the markets they serve, the products they produce,
their suppliers, the trade associations to which their employees belong, and the educational
institutions from which their employees or prospective employees receive training. The Texas
target industry clusters are:

v Advanced Fechnologiesand Manufacturing

v Aerospace, Aviation and Defense

v~ Biotechnology and Life Sciences

v Corporate Services

Creative Industry

Energy

Information and-Cemputer-Technology

Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products

AN NI NN

While the PWDB continues to collaborate with regional employers in several of these industry
clusters, such as in Aerospace, Aviation and Defense with Bell Helicopter—(Textron), -and in
Energy with the Pantex Plant in Amarillo, and Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products with
the Phillips 66/Cenovus Refinery in Borger, a main focus has been placed in the industry cluster

of Advanced Technologiesand-Manufacturing.

Several employers in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) that continue their
operations and some that have released plans for potential manufacturing industry projects
prompted the addition of the occupation of Production Workers, All Others (SOC 51-9199) to
the Target Occupations List. These projects include:

v" Cacique Foods, a leading Hispanic foods company and the #1 brand of authentic Mexican-
style cheeses, cremas and chorizos in the United States, is expecting to open their new
200,000 sq. ft. dairy facility in April, 2023. The company has partnered with AmTech
Career Academy and Amarillo College:

v" Ecolomondo Corporation, a cleantech company commercializing its proprietary recycling
technology, Thermal Decomposition Process (“TDP”) and specializing in the building and
operation of turnkey TDP facilities, announced plans in January, 2022, to build and operate
a six-reactor turnkey TDP facility in Shamrock. This will be the Company’s first US-based
waste-to-resources TDP plant capable of processing and recycling end-of-life tires (“ELT”)
into saleable recycled commercial resources for re-use. At peak production, Ecolomondo
expects to create approximately 70 direct and 140 indirect jobs.

v" Chemical Vapor Metal Refining (CVMR) will build a $1.5 billion, 540-acre rare-earth
refinery in Amarillo after the city and Potter County agreed to economic incentives for the

36



project, according to a June 21 press release.

v'  Caviness Beef Packers operates two Panhandle facilities:

1)  Beef harvest, fabrication, rendering, and hides processing in Hereford. In 2020,
Caviness completed approximately 130,000 sq ft of plant additions in Hereford which
allowed them to add a second shift to the operations, and expanded upon from coolers,
freezers, dry goods, employee welfare, hides, rendering and wastewater complex.

2) Ground beef and patty processing, in Amarillo producing approximately 1,500,000
pounds of ground beef chubs and patties weekly.

v SSI Foods is a beef patty manufacturing company located in Amarillo, manufacturing

hamburger products that meet the core menu needs of quick service and casual dining
restaurants by utilizing four patty processing lines with Tomahawk TM26 patty formers, with
expansion capability to six lines.

v" SciCron Technologies’ state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in Amarillo specializes in

applying high-quality, high-performance coatings to plastics, with expertise in coating large,
clear sheet products, and coating fabricated, molded, and formed plastic parts, and plastic film

products.

Following the COVID-19 Pandemic, employers in the Healthcare Industry in the PWDA began
discovering the increased need for Mental Health services and approached the PWDB with a
proposal to develop a credential program with Amarillo College for Psychiatric Technicians. In
its February, 2022 Board meeting, the PWDB approved adding this occupation to its High-
Demand Occupations and Target Occupations Lists. The Amarillo College program was then
added to the Eligible Training Provider System (ETPS) and WSP has enrolled WIOA customers
in the program.

Multiple projects have been completed utilizing High Demand Job Training (HDJT) grant
funding, which matches to local economic development sales tax funding, on a dollar-for-dollar
basis. The PWDB has facilitated the purchase of equipment for occupational training of students
at the post-secondary level at Clarendon College’s Childress, Clarendon, Pampa, and Shamrock
Centers: and at Frank Phillips College’s Rahll Campus in Dalhart, Allen Campus in Perryton, and
its main campus in Borger. The PWDB has also facilitated the purchase of equipment for
occupational training of students in Career & Technology Education (CTE) for the local
Independent School DlStI‘lCtS (ISDs) of Bushland Canyon nghland Park and River Road; and

; relogy-for the

Amarlllo ISD’s neWLAmTech Career Academy

Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery

A. One-Stop Service Delivery System (WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5))

Customer Service and Satisfaction: The PWDB understands that the workforce system must

have the capacity to meet the needs of all current and future customers: employers, system
program and service providers, and workers, wherever they are in their careers. Customers must
be assured that wherever they enter the workforce system, there is a pathway through the system
by instituting a ““no-closed door” culture to ensure successful outcomes or referrals for customers
of the workforce system programs and services. Any point of entry provides access to the full
continuum of programs and services. The ability to accurately assess customer satisfaction with

37



and across workforce system elements and translate this data into useful actions is essential to
best meet the needs of workforce system customers. Two innovative products that the PWDB
and WSP have recently deployed in the area of customer service:

v'_ WSP is incorporating Quick Response (QR) Code technology into its Customer Satisfaction
Survey process. This technology allows customers to access the optic label provided on
WSP printed and digital media and, in a streamlined, convenient, and confidential method,
respond on their customer service experience.

v"  The PWDB has purchased the digital communication management (DCM) software
Granicus GovDelivery to enable WSP to build content to be shared with job seekers and
connect/distribute through a number of different mediums, including email, Short Message
Service (SMS)/text messages, Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds, and social media
integration, including, but not limited to, a monthly newsletter.

Data-Driven Program Improvement: The collection of key data, as well as the reporting and

analysis of that data, in a consistent and useful manner, are essential in demonstrating outcomes,
determining if changes are required or desired, and establishing benchmarks for future
performance. The PWDB is committed to working with its partners to promote the building or
modification of existing data systems to improve the flow of data, increase the relevance of data,
and facilitate analysis that supports effective decision-making across the full spectrum of data
users, to achieve effective and efficient programs, services, and outcomes.

The PWDB recognizes the efforts and the recommendations of the Regional Workforce Strategy
Working Group representing the Workforce Solutions Alamo, Capital Area and Rural Capital
Area. This group was formed to strengthen the alignment of regional workforce planning with
economic development to create a data-driven, scalable model to maximize the capacity for
Workforce Development Boards to meet the needs of employers in the State and reconnect
Texans to the workforce in a way that supports long-term prosperity in urban, suburban, and
rural communities. The PWDB is exploring and will support the strategies put forth in the Texas
Talent and Economic Growth Pilot Project and Statewide Action Plan to strengthen the
alignment between regional workforce planning and economic development.

Continuous Improvement and Innovation: As identified in the Texas Workforce Investment

Council’s strategic planning process, the PWDB will continue to identify opportunities and
develop solutions for improving performance and outcomes that have cross-partner implications
and hold significant strategic value to the overall success of the workforce system’s ability to
meet its vision and mission.to
v Facilitate effective and efficient transitions and enhance transition services;
v'_Increase employment outcomes;
v' _Expand partnerships with system stakeholders and promote collaboration and joint
planning;
Incorporate/expand options for dual credit and/or licensure and certification;
Increase business and industry involvement;
Align programs and services;
Share timely data and information;
Promulgate promising practices and reduce duplication;
Recruit and/or provide professional development;
Ensure portable and transferrable options;
Address skills shortages; and
Institutionalize alternative service delivery methods.
38

NAAAAAE




The PWDB continues to endeavor to connect job seekers and other populations with barriers to
employment to numerous career and training resources and opportunities to prepare them for
entry or reentry into the workforce in high-growth industry sectors, and improve customer
opportunities for growth. The PWDB and its partner agencies continue to cultivate emerging
industries, support existing businesses and enhance the skills development of the workforce
taking advantage of strategic opportunities provided by swift economic change.

In alignment with the TWC Strategic Plan, the PWDB continues to strive for improved access
and efficiency, along with value-added services, to benefit customers of the workforce system.
The PWDB recognizes that along with system partners, it is responsible for the delivery of
twenty workforce education and training programs and related services, as well as education
programs that support career preparation and advancement. The PWDB., WSP, and community
partners continue to follow the principal of full integration of core programs, with a strategy of
alignment, coordination, and integration of education, employment and training programs. The
PWDB continues its objective of structuring collaboration of programs, initiatives and outcomes,
to avoid duplication with strategic plans of partner agencies. The PWDB and its partners are
committed to customer satisfaction, data-driven program improvement, and continuous
improvement and innovation.

The PWDB continues to support TWC’s goal, as stated in in 2021-2025 TWC Strategic Plan to
prepare individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equips individuals
with in-demand skills as identified by emplovers by:

v'__Continuing ongoing support of education programs for students that inform them and
prepare them for high-skill, high-demand jobs through identification and allocation of
available programs and resources;

v'_ Addressing the workforce training needs of employers by leveraging Skills Development
Fund (SDF) grants; Texas Industry Partnership (TIP) program grants, which support
collaborations between the Board and industry partners through the leveraging of matching
contributions of cash or qualifying expenditures for occupation training focusing on the
Texas Industry Cluster Initiative; and other available resources to support in-demand job
training;

v'__ Continuing to support work-based learning opportunities through internships, mentorships,
and job shadowing, and

v'_ Continue to coordinate and collaborate with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating
Board and the Texas Education Agency to support and develop objectives for increasing
the percentage of Texans with post-secondary degrees or certification.

Continuous Improvement of Eligible Providers: The PWDB adopted local performance
requirements for the determination of initial eligibility of Eligible Training Provider System
(ETPS) program applications per TWC’s annual publication of state performance standards that
meet the state performance standards. A training provider may apply for certification for any of
its programs. However, if the program does not prepare students for employment in an
occupation on the Board's Target Occupations list, the school must justify inclusion by
demonstrating that the occupation is indeed in demand.

Appropriate documentation demonstrating a projected minimum of ten total openings in the 26
counties of the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (WDA) in each of the next five years
must be submitted to the Board. Schools are encouraged to submit validating information for
Board review. Such documentation must consist of at least three sources, including, but not
limited to: recent economic statistics; information provided by employers, e.g., letters; posted

39



job openings; newspaper articles; information provided by professional organizations related to
the occupation or industry; local employer-based, industry-specific advisory groups; and/or other
appropriate information verifying demand.

WIOA emphasizes the importance of training services providers to afford the highest quality
training services and be responsive to In-Demand and emerging industries. Training provider
evaluation criteria must include documentation of partnerships with employers related to the
particular training program, WIOA Section 122(b)(4)(D)(i1). To comply with this requirement,
documentation must take the following forms, and will be maintained by the PWDB: letter of
support from a local employer or employers; evidence of the existence of an employer-based
advisory committee; or other means acceptable to the Board as set forth in policy adopted in a
public meeting. Providers must also document financial stability through submission of the most
recently completed financial statements to the Board. Submissions must include Balance Sheets,
Income Statements (Profit & Loss), and Auditor’s Notes.

The PWDB uses several strategies to increase the number of providers and training options for
customers, and to assure that local training is available, as follows:

v" The inclusion of public training providers in the membership of the Board’s Labor Market
Information (LMI) Committee and public notice of those sessions (considered public
meetings) assures communication to local providers of training gaps and potential employer
collaborations;

v Positive relationships are sustained in the region with all local providers that offer training
in Target and In-demand occupations. Various standing agreements exist, including the
options of provider application to the ETPS (1) for all programs that prepare students for
the Target occupations, (2) when a student in interested in a particular program, thereby
limiting the demand on the provider’s staff time, or (3) not at all, but other resources may
be leveraged to allow customers to receive training (e.g., apprenticeship programs);

v' Maximum flexibility is provided to training providers that wish to certify programs for
WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker customer training. At application, training providers
certify that their programs lead to specified occupations, including those targeted by the
PWDB. Programs that consistently produce student completions that lead to training-related
employment are retained on the ETPS;

v Those programs with at least five WIOA-enrolled participants per year are evaluated for
this outcome. If a substantial percentage of the WIOA participants do not complete the
program or cannot obtain training-related employment after graduation, PWDB staff will
conduct an evaluation with the provider and the WSP staff to determine what improvements,
if any, are necessary to increase the program’s WIOA student success rate;

v' To ensure continuous improvement of ETPS-certified programs, labor market information
is provided to training providers, including input from employers and other workforce
customers. In addition, periodic meetings are held with training providers and employers to
discuss labor market skill and training needs, prior to the submission to the PWDB for
updates to the Target Occupations list; and

v To ensure that training is available and the need for skills is communicated to the public,
skilled trades occupations with workers who are expected to retire faster than they can be
replaced are included on the Target Occupations list. These occupations include high-
demand opportunities in Construction trades such as Construction Equipment Operators,

40



Carpenters, Electricians and Plumbers; repair workers such as Auto Mechanics, Diesel
Mechanics, Heating, Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Mechanics, Industrial Machinery
Mechanics, and Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics; Industrial Truck & Tractor
Operators, and manufacturing technicians such as Machinists and Welders. Registered
apprenticeship provides some of the local training for these occupations, including those in
Construction. Referrals are made to apprenticeship opportunities by WSP staff.

Remote areas and technology: With 26 counties encompassing 26,000 square miles, the size
and scale of the Texas Panhandle presents a daunting challenge to the delivery of vital workforce
services to the populace, compounded by the existence of only one full-service rural Workforce
Solutions Panhandle office in Borger and one itinerate location in Hereford. An additional
component to this challenge is the fact that our rural communities continue to have the most need
for workers, and yet have the smallest labor force. The PWDB’s newer, smaller mobile
workforce unit is more cost effective to operate and staff. Following the placement of the new
mobile unit into service, the older mobile unit is available to be stationed at a specified rural
location, with the option of limited transport to other rural communities for employer hiring
related functions, such as job fairs, career exploration events, and other opportunities specifically
aimed at connecting rural employers with job seekers, and strengthening linkages to workforce
services.

Fully utilizing both mobile workforce units, that offer a comprehensive menu of workforce
services on a consistent basis to customers in rural areas of the Panhandle who have had limited
to no workforce services activity in their area, requires additional approaches. A Rural Business
Services Representative is primarily responsible for conducting business services activities with
a primary focus on connecting with, and serving, rural employers, by working closely with WSP
staff operating the mobile units to conduct activities that promote full utilization of both units in
the rural communities. Coordinating planning schedules will ensure employers in rural
communities are introduced to, and delivered, essential workforce services. Increased employer
awareness of workforce services will increase job placement opportunities, and advance the
potential for developing work-based training and internships.

Additionally, access to workforce services for rural communities is increased and enhanced
through specific technology improvements, such as continued updates to the WSPanhandle.com
website, acquisition and implementation of innovative website elements, improving current
online connectivity, and creating access to virtual services. A logical step in achieving these aims
is applying a strategy for improvements in rural wireless Internet connectivity, through such
methods as creating MiFi hotspots throughout the region, and identifying, and advertising,
appropriate rural locations which offer free Wi-Fi, such as libraries and courthouses. Increased
and improved access to Internet-based applications for career exploration and job matching and
information about occupational and work-based training opportunities can expand and enhance
service delivery to rural customers who do not reside within reasonable travel distance to any
WSP office. Further strategies include:

v" Outreaching workforce services to the public through multiple electronic sources, primarily
web-based media. This will include the continued development of social media utilization,
to promote services and provide immediate responses to customer needs, and increase social
media presence on the most popular websites and web applications that appeal to, and will
reach, the younger population;

v" Maintaining personal contact through the WSP Business Services team with employers in
rural communities, assessing needs and developing customized solutions which address

41



recruiting challenges and skills gaps;

v' Regularly updating the WSP website with more interactive and easily accessed resources,
such as job search training videos, and maintaining relevant content;

v" Continuing to host successful hiring events at rural locations;

v' Expanding the quality and quantity of focused job fairs and career fairs in the rural
communities, including involving specialized education programs as hosts;

v" Continuing utilization of analysis and local wisdom gained through practical experience
enhancing the set of operational strategies for serving rural communities to be implemented.
Investments will continue to be made to market services to the public through multiple
technologies and electronic media. Continued efforts of WSP’s social media specialist to
guide the development and utilization of this resource, in collaboration with the WSP
Business Services team, in promoting workforce services throughout the region, will be
supported. Targeted social media will be further identified and developed to provide an
additional venue for customers—both employers and job seekers to communicate needs and
generate appropriate staff responses;

v" Including hiring events for job openings, carcer fairs, and job fairs focusing on rural
communities. The WSP website has been redesigned to provide remote users services that
are like those offered in the brick-and-mortar offices. New resources available on the website
include an improved user interface, more interactive activities such as job search training
videos, additional methods for direct, real-time communication to obtain staff assistance, and
a fresh new approach to reach and engage disconnected youth using appealing smartphone
web applications that offer youth the same multitude of services available on the website,
and at WSP offices; and

v' Supporting WSP Business Services members and other key staff continuing to visit
employers in our rural communities, assessing needs face-to-face and developing customized
solutions which address recruiting and skills gaps. Rural partners will continue to provide
itinerant locations for staff to meet with customers throughout the region, including
community-based organizations such as Panhandle Community Services, as well as libraries,
colleges, independent school districts and public offices. Combined with regularly scheduled
staff visits to more rural locations utilizing the second mobile unit, offering computer access
with Internet connectivity for accessing WorkInTexas.com and other employment services,
will assure rural customers that WSP still has a demonstrated rural presence and can provide
services in their communities.

WIOA §188 and the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act (ADAAA) of 19962008:
The PWDB has the opportunity to better serve the workforce needs of individuals with
disabilities, and ensure compliance with WIOA §188 and the ADA, through the ongoing
transition of Texas Workforce Solutions VR Services programs and staff into the WSP office in
Amarillo. While the physical and financial issues associated with co-location and integration of
VR Services staff and WSP staff is a challenge, the intention is for all of the Panhandle region’s
offices to grow in the capacity to serve individuals who have disabilities by common
appointment scheduling and regularly scheduled visits to many rural locations by the mobile
units. Through continued collaboration and joint planning with VR Services, an effective
transition plan reflecting the shared goals of providing a seamless approach for access to
integrated workforce services, literacy education, vocational rehabilitation, and in-demand
workplace skills that lead to self-sufficient employment and advancement for individuals with

42



disabilities, and promoting partnerships with employers and system stakeholders which
overcome barriers to meeting workforce needs through creative use of technology and
innovation, can be achieved. Following a period of adjustment and settling in to the new
paradigm, additional strategies and methods will be developed and implemented based on
examination of the successes and lingering challenges observed, and will be designed to increase
the quality and effectiveness of workforce services provided to this priority population.

VR Services include counseling, training, medical treatment, assistive devices, job placement
assistance, and other services to assist individuals with disabilities prepare for or maintain their
independence. Integration of these services affords the local workforce system with increased
opportunities to better serve individuals with disabilities in our region, and improve overall
employment outcomes for the employers and the potential for self-sufficiency for the individuals
served.

VR Services staff will provide:

v" Information on program eligibility;

v Assessment for referrals from WSP staff to determine eligibility for VR Services;

v Delivery of vocational rehabilitation services, including diagnostics, guidance and
counseling, adaptive skills training, vocational training, and pre- and post- employment
services;

Consultation on rehabilitative technology for workforce customers;

Training of WSP staff on disability sensitivity and awareness;

Assessment of adaptive technology needs at WSP offices;

Information about all programs and services available; and

Information and assistance with compliance with all Federal laws and regulations regarding
individual with disabilities.

The PWDB and WSP will:

Advertise and promote VR Services as part of the entire array of services offered;

Integrate VR Services staff into workforce service delivery;

Improve and streamline the referral process for individuals with disabilities;

Coordinate with VR Services in providing information on the full range of employment
services offered including job matching services utilizing WorkInTexas.com;

Share timely labor market information and provide a critical link to employers including job
leads, job fairs, and hiring events;

Coordinate with VR Services staff on co-hosting or supporting VR Services special events;
Provide intensive and training services under WIOA as appropriate and applicable, and move
towards jointly managing common case files and staffing customers;

v Actively identify and promote opportunities for co-enrollment to maximize funds and create
shorter pathways to achieving training and employment goals;

Participate in disability sensibility and awareness training to staff;

Request consultation on appropriate rehabilitation technology for workforce customers with
disabilities; and

v" Provide additional adaptive equipment, as determined necessary.

ASANENENEN

SR NI N NENEN

<]

Workforce partners’ roles and resource contributions: The PWDB coordinates with
hundreds of public agencies, nonprofit organizations and private sector businesses in the region
to carry out its mission, such as:

43



The region’s three community colleges, Amarillo College, Clarendon College and Frank
Phillips College, and the public university, West Texas A&M University, are essential, as
these institutions provide most postsecondary education supported by the Board and
numerous methods of support to help students be successful;

The PWDB supports the community colleges’ Skills Development Fund, Self Sufficiency
Fund, and High Demand Job Training Project applications that support key industries and
those associated by cluster relationships, and training for occupations in demand and/or
essential to those industries. In addition, staff collaborates with schools and local employers
to develop training solutions that meet specific training needs;

Amarillo College houses the region’s adult basic education program, overseeing Adult Basic
Education (ABE), General Educational Development (GED), and ESL instruction
throughout the area, delivered both by onsite teachers and distance learning. ABE services
include assessment of workforce customers with limited English skills;

Region 16 Education Service Center (ESC):

a) Continues to partner with the PWDB and WSP to promote TWC’s Externship for
Teachers Initiative which unites workforce, industry and education representatives to
promote an effective workforce system. During the summer, teachers are assigned to a
partner business and shadow workers to the teachers better understand work-based
applications of what they teach. This experience is designed to strengthen the connection
between business and education, helping teachers learn what skills are critical to small
and large businesses and promoting lesson plans that demonstrate how classroom skills
are used at work. PWDB Grant funding is utilized for providing stipends to participating
teachers.

b) Is also responsible for the area’s Head Start and Early Head Start program, offering free,
high-quality child development services to income eligible families with children ages 0-
5 years old. Head Start and Early Head Start is child-focused learning, but also provides
comprehensive services to the child's family;

The Texas Health and Human Services Commission’s (HHSC’s) Texas Works Program
provides financial support to welfare and SNAP families and supports WSP staff efforts to
help these customers locate, enter and retain employment;

The area’s Independent School Districts collaborate with the PWDB to help at-risk youth
complete their high school diplomas, prepare for careers and transition to postsecondary
education. Alternative secondary school, tutoring, career exploration and assessment, child
care and other services may be provided;

Literacy councils play an essential role in workforce development by helping extremely low-
skilled readers gain a level of proficiency that will allow them to improve their employment
prospects and benefit from further adult education offered by the community colleges;

The Panhandle’s Economic Development Corporations (EDCs) and related organizations
provide financial support for occupational training and related equipment, and business
development that leads to increased numbers of jobs. EDC involvement, in the High Demand
Job Training Projects, assures workforce system alignment with local economic development
resources to the extent possible;

WSP coordinates with the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) to provide
information to local Parole Division Officers, regarding Job Seeker services for its Releasees,
44




to enable the Officers to make referrals to WSP to help these individuals locate, enter and
retain employment; and

v' Many other local organizations and agencies, such as Panhandle Community Services,
Catholic Family Services, Inc., the Salvation Army, Panhandle Independent Living Center,
and Amarillo’s Downtown Women’s Center, provide significant employment and related
services. WSP staff coordinate with over 100 faith- and community-based governmental and
private organizations in the region to leverage resources on behalf of customers.

B. Cooperative Agreements (WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))

Cooperative agreements explain how all local service providers, including additional providers, will
carry out the requirements for integration of and access to the entire set of services available in the
local one-stop delivery system. This includes cooperative agreements (as defined in WIOA
§107(d)(11)) between the Board or other local entities described in §101(a)(11)(B) of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 721(a)(11)(B)) and the local office of a designated state agency
or designated state unit that administers programs that are carried out under Title I of the
Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 720 et seq.) (other than §112 or part C of that title (29 USC 732, 741)
and are subject to §121(f)) in accordance with §101(a)(11) of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC
721(a)(11)) with respect to efforts that will enhance the provision of services to individuals who have
disabilities and to other individuals, such as cross training of staff, technical assistance, use and
sharing of information, cooperative efforts with employers, and other efforts.

Cooperative Agreement means a legal instrument of financial assistance between a Federal awarding
agency or pass-through entity and a non-Federal entity that, consistent with 31 U.S.C. 6302-6305:
(1) Is used to enter into a relationship the principal purpose of which is to transfer anything of value
from the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity to the non-Federal entity to carry out a
public purpose authorized by a law of the United States (see 31 U.S.C. 6101(3)); and not to acquire
property or services for the Federal government or pass-through entity's direct benefit or use; (2) Is
distinguished from a grant in that it provides for substantial involvement between the Federal
awarding agency or pass-through entity and the non-Federal entity in carrying out the activity
contemplated by the Federal award.

This is not applicable as no Boards in Texas have these cooperative agreements in place. Given that
VR falls under the purview of TWC and as based on TWC guidance, a Letter of Agreement with VR
is not required.

C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program
Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3))

Employer engagement is the key to meeting our regional workforce needs. The PWDB’s Business
Advisory Committee assists and informs the PWDB regarding the design and delivery of services
based on business and industry needs, as well as enhancing employer engagement, and supporting
industry partnerships under WIOA. Comprised of PWDB and non-Board members, private sector,
Board staff, and WSP staff, this industry partnership endeavors to:

Facilitate and increase employer engagement;

Pursue creative ideas and methods to improve program service delivery design;
Identify skill needs;

Develop and validate career pathways;

45



e Collaborate to create youth initiatives such as apprenticeships to connect youth with careers in
demand;

e Align educational curriculum to meet industry needs;

e Identify and develop cost-effective training solutions for companies involving employers and

the Business Advisory Committee as incumbent worker intermediaries to leverage Skills

Development Grant funds;

Provide work-based learning opportunities;

Identify barriers to “entry level employment” and develop strategies to remove those barriers;

Identify and address organizational and Human Resource challenges;

Increase productivity;

Promote communication networks between companies, between managers and workers, and

between companies and their communities and educational institutions;

e Identify and develop business intermediaries to facilitate identifying and meeting employers’
immediate hiring and training needs; and

e Expand the utilization of high-quality work-based training by collaborating with PWDB staff in
revising policies for customized training and OJT, and providing training to workforce and
including business services staff on methods of seeking opportunities for these types of training
situations which offer the highest potential for success. This includes developing training
contracts which produce highly desirable outcomes in the shortest amount of time and with the
least expenditures.

In an effort to develop and strengthen linkages between the workforce system and unemployment
insurance programs, the PWDB is working with its Business Advisory Committee to assist the
PWDB in designing and delivering services based on business and industry needs, including those
of customers recently separated from employment.

D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services (WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))

Many Texas Panhandle job seekers need job search assistance, career and labor market information,
training in skills that make them more employable, support services such as child care, and referral
to community resources. Job seekers include the unemployed, underemployed, and recently laid off
workers, as well as special populations such as disabled individuals, and individuals with barriers to
employment and literacy skills deficiencies, who may need additional, more specialized assistance
in securing employment leading to self-sufficiency.

Workforce services for job seekers focus on activities that lead to finding and retaining self-

sufficient employment. Successfully delivery of workforce services and linking job seekers to

employers remains the PWDB’s most important function, including improving access to services for

individuals receiving unemployment benefits, individuals with barriers to employment. Individuals

whose skills are not likely to generate employment or self-sufficient wages may be provided training

assistance or referrals. Supportive services such as child care and transportation assistance are

offered to eligible job seekers and students to facilitate their efforts to enter and retain employment

that meets their families’ needs. Such services include:

e Information provided to job seekers about available workforce services and programs;

e Training job seekers to effectively build a record in WorkInTexas.com and complete job matches
based on their profile;

e Staff-directed matching of applicants to job openings, using WorkinTexas.com;

e Virtual personal assistance for job seekers through phone, email or online access;

46



Seminars and workshops to help job seekers find and retain employment, such as general job
search, resume writing and interviewing;

Work readiness preparation;

Public access computers, software, fax machines, copiers, and phones for job search;
Assessment resources for self-evaluation of labor market information and options;

Maintaining current information on availability of services from and referral to local community
resources whenever and wherever possible to maximize WIOA funds and prevent duplication of
services;

Individualized placement services for eligible job seekers, including job development, by
building on existing employer relationships and using electronic tools such as job aggregators,
which collect job openings from multiple sources and makes them available to be searched all
in one location;

Providing information about Work Opportunity Tax Credits (WOTC) to individuals who are
target group members, to promote themselves to prospective employers;

Employment planning, by mapping successful career pathways which include the steps needed
to prepare for and/or enter employment;

Rapid Response services for workers after a layoff announcement and/or closure, including all
the above services and assessment of transferable skills, reemployment planning and referral to
training/training assistance as needed;

Financial assistance needed by eligible job seekers to find and retain employment, including
support for transportation, child care and other services; and

Increased utilization of the City of Amarillo increased public transportation capacity and
expansion of bus routes.

Career and labor market information provided to job seekers includes the following:

Self-assessment tools for determining transferable skills and work preferences;

Information about occupations in demand;

Information about local employers and their skills needs;

Referral to personalized career planning assistance—either internal for eligible job seekers or
external;

Seminars for dislocated workers (Rapid Response); and

Work-based career exploration for eligible youth and adults.

E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management (WI0OA §108(b)(21); 20

CFR §679.560(b)(20))

Mastering current technology, and exploring emerging technology, the keys to creating and
conducting an effective technology based integrated system for customer intake and case
management, will:

Improve availability of integrated workforce services throughout the region through innovative
technology application, coordination with regional and local organizations, and other effective,
efficient methods of service delivery;

Enhance virtual services readily available through upgrading the WSP website, and marketing
the availability of all workforce resources through social media; and

Complete understanding and application of current capabilities enabling full utilization of
existing tools, primarily WorkInTexas.com, and TWIST. Adopting and adapting additional,

47



more efficient technologies, such as a real-time customer tracking system, supplies WSP staff
with the means to quickly and accurately assess customer needs and provide seamless service
delivery, while maintaining service priority requirements.

Critical to this process is engaging the services of individuals with the newest, most relevant
computer programming and coding skills to create and implement new systems and applications,
conduct staff training and ongoing technical assistance to maintain high levels of staff performance.

Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities

A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities (WIOA §108(b)(5);
20 CFR §679.560(b)(4))

In alignment with the State WIOA Plan, PWDB staff actively participate in a Regional Workforce
Network (RWN), collaborating with five other Board areas in West Texas for the purpose of sharing
information to further build capacity for seamless workforce operations and service delivery to
workforce to customers. Topics discussed in face-to-face meetings range from best practices for
developing and fostering successful working partnerships with local entities, to cost sharing,
procurements, and budgets, as well as special projects to identify opportunities to leverage critical
resources designed to promote economic development in the Panhandle region.

This RWN has developed a project focused on identifying best practices for assessing skills training
of job seekers and employers to pinpoint relevant credentials necessary for successful job placement
and retention, which includes the participation of several employers and multiple local colleges.
Three Board areas in this RWN have collaborated to support the workforce needs resulting from the
declining oil and gas industry in the Permian Basin/Cline Shale areas. In addition, the RWN is
working to develop new partnerships with out-of-state partners in adjacent states such as Oklahoma
and New Mexico, to share “labor sheds”, develop a strategic approach to producing regional labor
market information, and host combined regional job fairs and other events which support workforce
development, respond to economic development challenges, and ultimately better serve the
workforce customers in these adjacent areas.

B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7))

The WSP Business Services team provides Rapid Response services to employers considering, or
planning, a layoff or closure. Services are designed to minimize the cost of the layoff to the
employer, encourage customized training or other services to limit or prevent job losses, or quickly
transition workers into other employment. Services are delivered onsite or in a location convenient
for workers, and may include a broad range of services, including but not limited to: unemployment
insurance information and referral, assistance with accessing customized training to help workers
adjust to technical advances and prevent layoffs, seminars to assist workers to manage their
dislocation and find other employment, and worker referral to training resources.

The designated Rapid Response Coordinator for the PWDB is also the lead Business Services staff
member, ensuring that any employer that has announced a layoff or closure will receive business-
focused support. The Coordinator ensures that the employer receives needed services, and facilitates
communication between the employer, TWC, and WSP staff in serving affected workers. Once
services are initiated for workers, WIOA program staff are available to assist in providing
assessment, reemployment planning, and connection to the local ABE provider if language skills,

48



adult basic education and GED preparation are needed, as well as providing career guidance and
occupational skill development, and to access job development and supportive services, as
determined appropriate for each worker.

Rapid Response activities in rural areas may require temporary, onsite or local offices where WSP
staff can meet the needs of affected workers. Both employers and job seekers will have access to
“back office” staff who can respond quickly to telephone and electronic communications, in order
to provide services to customers who prefer not to go to a WSP office or who are not based in
Amarillo. The PWDB continues to explore paperless recordkeeping options, to effectively utilize
staff time while providing customer services outside the WSP offices.

C. Youth Activities and Services (WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))

The PWDB and WSP have developed a new staff position to enhance youth and young adult
activities. This Career Outreach Specialist will focus on innovative technology in Virtual Career
Exploration. The PWDB is purchasing Virtual Reality headsets, along with library of occupational
videos, which transport the user into an interactive environment to participate in performing tasks in
a specific job. The Career Outreach Specialist will host events, both in area schools and in WSP
offices, guiding students in exploration of potential occupations and careers in their areas of interest.

The PWDB’s Youth program is primarily focused on Out-of-School Youth who need postsecondary
education and/or work experience to achieve self-sufficiency. Disconnected youth, parenting youth,
first-generation college students, foster youth, and youth who have other barriers to employment,
are the priority youth populations determined most likely to benefit from local workforce services.

Increasing the number and quality of work-based training opportunities for at-risk youth such as paid
internships for college students and graduating high school seniors that are directly related to
students’ career interests. Many youth served in workforce programs must be engaged in an
occupational component, so paid internships will offer competitive wages to encourage
participation. These internships will include mentoring by supervisors trained by workforce staff to
provide appropriate encouragement and career exploration.

WSP and PWDB staff fully support the local “No Limits, No Excuses” Panhandle Community
Partnership, which assists students in the local school districts with accessing information on
colleges and universities, and mapping out a plan for success after high school graduation. This
project is building community partnerships that result in an increase in the number of low-income,
young adults who complete employer-recognized and valued certificates and degrees, and has led to
the implementation of two major youth-serving strategies in which workforce resources have been
committed.

Threugh-the PWDB-s continues its collaboration with the Texas Panhandle Rural Alliance (TPRA),
a group of important partners from different sectors who strive to create a common agenda and apply
the concept of “collective impact” as an effective approach for solving specific community social
problems, focused on rural communities in the Panhandle. Through research and stakeholder
engagement, this collaboration helps to ensure the Panhandle’s vitality of a sustainable population
of working age people, through five objectives:

e  Support the Panhandle’s homegrown talent to stay or return to the region:
e Establish workplace conditions for workers of all ages to thrive in jobs and continue to build
their skills:

e Create supportive conditions for learners to pursue and complete the post-secondary education

49



or training of their choice:
e Raise learners’ aspirations early and strengthen education-career pathways: and
e Close the achievement gap for minorities and English language learners.

ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ&l—ﬁd—%d—t&ﬂ@ﬂ%ﬁt&%&f@%%hg{blﬂ@&ﬂ%d—&dﬂ#s—Because trans1t10n1ng low -income

students from high school to college has been found to be not as difficult as retaining them in
postsecondary training until they successfully complete, WSP Youth Program staff provide case
management and mentoring to help current students address barriers that arise during their studies,
to facilitate college retention and completion.

WSP staff continue to coordinate and expand efforts between schools and businesses to offer job
fairs and career fairs, preferably held in the morning and in the afternoon on the same day in rural
locations, maximizing the available audience for youth and the employers, and resulting in highly
increased attendance and participation by both parties.

One excellent example of collaboratlon is the one between WSP staff and theAmaHHe—ArearGeﬂter
: AmTech Career
Academy Wthh has proven to be the klnd of targeted well-prepared approach to conducting
meaningful youth job/career fairs, that was the missing link. The nearly unanimous positive
comments from employer surveys received demonstrated the event is most valuable for two primary
reasons: 1) the A—A—GA—EPFGgFEHﬂ—D—]—F%GGG%’—PI’]HC]D&] of AmTech effectwely uses soc1al media to
promote the event pri : : i
#—is—engeing, and 2) the—Dﬂceeteic Prmmpal S except10na1 preparatlon of the students to meet
employers, including presenting a highly professional appearance and attitude.

In addition to continuing to serve low-income youth, homeless youth, youth who have disabilities,
foster youth, and youth who have barriers to employment, refocusing efforts to outreach and engage
out of school youth in successful work-based training opportunities is the primary goal of the PWDB,
related to youth services. This cannot be accomplished without employing innovative and
imaginative current technologies to reach this population. One immediate example is using existing
or creating inventive new smartphone applications to engage disconnected youth with the local job
market and promote successful job seeking. Critical to this process is soliciting input and feedback
from youth for these projects, as well as ideas for updating the WSP website in a way that appeals
to them and creates interest in using the website as a source for job market information. Local
Information Technology (IT) staff must have the skills to keep this approach fresh and relevant to
youth.

The WIOA youth program, in the Panhandle, includes developing career pathways which lead to
self-sufficiency, while meeting required performance measures. The fourteen WIOA youth program
elements are key to the overall success of youth program participants. WSP staff determine which
elements would be most effective for youth through initial assessment, develop individualized
service plans, and identify career pathways. Staff identify and engage local resources which provide
access to, or directly offer, services related to the youth elements.

Creating a meaningful attachment to the workforce is a critical factor for success and is accomplished
through fostering relationships with community-based organizations which serve local youth, and
creating new connections to local employers who have the desire and the labor needs that will afford
youth with meaningful work-based training opportunities. Collaboration with the WSP Business
Services team to identify these employers helps to facilitate this process.

The overall goal of the Youth programs in the Panhandle is to create the means for Youth program
50



participants to first arrive at data-driven choices, and then develop appropriate and successful career
pathways for youth that align with demand. Combining classroom occupational training with short-
term work experience opportunities or internships, with an occupational education component, and
utilizing all applicable Youth program elements, provides a vital connection to the job market and
employers, leading to enhanced performance, successful outcomes, and preparing youth to succeed
in the job market and in life. Youth providers in the region are the three community colleges
(Amarillo College, Clarendon College, and Frank Phillips College) one university (West Texas
A&M University), and local employers that provide work-based training such as career-related
internships.

Ensuring the WIOA Youth elements available include linking youth with the appropriate sources,
partner agencies, and community providers, by:

e Focusing on outreach and engagement of Out of School Youth and youth disconnected from the
workforce, including a streamlined approach to eligibility, identifying appropriate services and
career pathways, and developing effective service strategies encompassing educational and
employment goals;

e Transitioning low-income youth from high school to college to prepare for many of the jobs
being created in Texas and nationally for “middle-skill” occupations, including those that require
postsecondary education leading to attainment of certificate and associate degrees;

e Accessing alternative secondary school services or dropout recovery services when determined
appropriate and necessary to keep youth engaged and connected;

e Tutoring, remedial skills training, and instruction for dropout prevention and leading to attaining
a secondary school diploma or recognized equivalent;

e Retaining low-income youth in postsecondary training until completion, and providing short
term work experience and paid internship opportunities that enhance completion and transition;

e Providing paid and unpaid short-term work experience opportunities with an occupational
education component resulting in a vital connection to the job market and employers, leading to
enhanced performance and successful outcomes;

e Ensuring appropriate supportive services which assist youth in completing program activities,
including work based or occupational training, and obtaining and retaining employment are
provided under WIOA;

e Providing adult mentoring during and after program participation for a period of at least 12
months to prevent youth from falling through the gaps or becoming disconnected;

e Arranging leadership development opportunities such as community service and other similar
activities which encourage youth to give back to their community, and builds confidence,
maturity, and self-esteem;

e Affording appropriate guidance and referrals for counseling including drug or alcohol abuse to
address and resolve individual needs of youth program participants;

e Providing ready access to current relevant labor market information including PWDB specific
demand occupations and industries, and career counseling and exploration;

e Assisting youth with improving and increasing financial literacy by providing relevant and
relatable online instruction geared towards youth participants; and

51



Exploring and tapping into local entrepreneurship ventures including a university-sponsored
small business incubator program.

D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs (WIOA §108(b)(10);

20 CFR §679.560(b)(9))

Strategies include the following:

Making available financial aid information and referrals to training providers;

Providing career and training plan assistance for eligible individuals, including individuals with
barriers to employment, developing successful career pathways and program co-enrollment
wherever appropriate and beneficial;

Coordinating Adult Literacy, ESL, basic education, and GED preparation—either by referral or
intensive short-term classes, for eligible individuals;

Developing a menu of activities leading to achievement of post-secondary, recognized
credentials;

Supporting local ISDs and community colleges to pursue skills development grant opportunities
including Apprenticeship programs and to apply for and obtain grants such as the Texas
Workforce Commission’s JET (Jobs and Education for Texas) and the High Demand Job
Training (HDJT) grants;

Collaborating on Innovation partnership grants to upgrade skills and earning potential for
incumbent workers, and Industry-Recognized Skills Certification Initiative Grants which
provide short term courses through local colleges leading to certification completion and
enhanced job placement opportunities; and

Facilitating Postsecondary occupational skills training at community colleges, career colleges or
universities.

E. Child Care and Early Learning (40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services)

Many Texas Panhandle job seekers need support services such as child care, offered to eligible job
seekers and students to facilitate their efforts to enter and retain employment that meets their families’
needs. Child care can be cost-prohibitive for low-income families. Many WSP customers are right
on that line of having their entire paycheck only being enough to cover the child care expense. In
cases like this, the customer many times will:

Give up the job to stay home with the child, and become dependent on public assistance;
Choose to leave the child in an unsafe situation such as in the care of another, only slightly older
child or individuals who lack adequate training in early childhood development, and health and
safety practices; or

Leave a child alone.

High-quality child care has many positive impacts on children, such as increased safety and school
readiness, as well as impacts on the parents in obtaining and keeping a job, or completing job training.
Child care assistance promotes long-term self-sufficiency by enabling parents to work, attend school
or attend job skills training, and increase educational levels. To address this issue and implement the
following strategies, the PWDB:

52



Seeks out additional opportunities to further expand classroom capacity;

Continues to phase in increases to the maximum reimbursement rates paid with workforce
resources to providers caring for eligible children;

Sustains efforts to support training and professional development for child care administrators
and workers;

Provides follow up training and monitor delivery of recently purchased child care curricula
intended to provide an organized and managed approach to promoting critical areas of
development;

Ensures monitors and assessors continue regular observation and review of providers to identify
areas which need improvement, and assist providers to initiate or improve TRS (Texas Rising
Star) rating levels thus continually improving quality of care and potentially increase
reimbursement rates; and

Looks for and invest in projects which improve child care quality.

The Panhandle’s Child Care program gets children school ready. The PWDB utilizes funding it
receives from TWC in assisting customers in enrolling children in a quality licensed child care facility

that:

Ensures children are safe and in a learning environment while parents work or are in training;
Utilizes early childhood development, which includes high quality curriculum;

Provides a structured learning environment, with specially trained teachers and safe, healthy
food;

Supports the child’s physical, social, emotional and intellectual development, and

Prepares children for their education/school, work/career and ultimately, self-sufficiency in their
adult lives.

WSP’s new staff position of Child Care Business Coach under a new Child Care Industry Support

Division will assist Child Care Provider owners and managers, as needed, to increase quality and

capacity of existing businesses, in creating new business and in connecting to resources available to

help increase the likelihood of success. Primary duties will include:

Connecting child care providers with TWC’s child care provider expansion entity/entities:

Connecting child care providers with TWC’s funded business coaching and business training;

Connecting child care providers with Texas Health and Human Service Commission’s Child Care

Regulation department to learn about Texas’ regulatory requirements for child care operations;
Connecting child care providers with the Texas Department of Agriculture to learn about the

Child and Adult Care Food Program:
Assisting child care providers with understanding how WSP can help them hire support and other

workforce assistance services:
Assisting child care providers with understanding how to participate in the Child Care Services

program and the Texas Rising Star quality rating system: and
Assisting child care providers with understanding how the use the Texas Child Care Availability

Portal and the Texas Early Childhood Professional Development System.

The Texas Early Learning Council acts as the State’s advisory council on early childhood education

and care for children from birth to school entry as required by the Improving Head Start for School

Readiness Act of 2007. TWC, as part of an Interagency Implementation Support Team, provided

recommendations in the development of the Texas Early Learning Strategic Plan 2020-2025. The

PWDB and WSP will continue to align with the goals, strategies and action plans discussed in the

Early Learning Strategic Plan and in TWC’s Child Care Workforce Strategic Plan 2023-2025. as

53



follows:

e Supporting the Texas Early Childhood Professional System (TECPDS); and
e Identifying opportunities to stabilize the child care workforce and promote the hiring and
retention of high-quality early educators, such as:
v"_Improving the infant and toddler child care workforce through continued support of the Texas
Infant and Toddler Specialist Network (ITSN);
v Supporting early childhood education (ECE) workforce initiatives, including those providing
wage supports;
v"_Incorporating strategies to support early childhood educators by promoting the expansion of
Career Technology Education (CTE) programs of study in the ECE field, including the
attainment of Child Development Associate (CDA) certification, and dual credit options; and
v'_Supporting the development of additional early childhood Registered Apprenticeship

Programes.

In alignment with the intent of House Bill 619 (HB619) to improve the quality of the infant, toddler,
preschool, and school-age child care workforce in Texas, a portion of TWC’s Child Care and
Development Fund (CCDF) funding for the PWDB is set aside annually for the purpose of Child
Care Quality Improvement (CCQI) activities to be utilized in assisting Child Care providers in
becoming Texas Rising Star (TRS)-certified or assisting TRS-certified providers in achieving higher
levels of TRS certification. The PWDB and WSP continue to follow a Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan by supporting:

e Secondary educational attainment for caregivers and administrators:

e Professional development to assist with teacher/child interactions, curriculum, classroom
management and child development;

e Professional development for child care program managers, directors and assistant directors;

e Programs with TRS incentives;

e (Classroom content delivery with early learning digital platform;

e Curriculum content delivery with evaluation and assessment tools; and

e Programs with TRS mentor assistance and support.

While TWC annually allocates what is referred to as “Formula” funds to the PWDB for the purpose
of subsidizing the cost of child care, there is also an opportunity of leveraging even more funds into
the Panhandle area through a process of “matching funds” with Federal dollars. In collaborations
with Amarillo College, Texas Tech University and West Texas A&M University, each of which
certify allowable child care related expenditures at their institutions, and through an agreement for a
donation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding provided to the PWDB by the
City of Amarillo, TWC is able to draw down, for every dollar, an addition two dollars, that is passed
directly through to the PWDB for the Subsidized Child Care Program. Each year, these partners give
a big boost to the children and parents of the Panhandle.

F. Transportation and Other Support Services (WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10))

Supportive services for eligible job seekers utilizing appropriate program funds for eligible
individuals required to obtain or retain employment, or to enter and complete subsidized training,
include the following:

e Residential assistance with rent, mortgage, and utilities,
e Transportation assistance in the form of fuel cards, mileage reimbursement, or auto repair, for

54



personal vehicles, and bus tickets for accessing public transportation;
e Assistance with work or training related items or services; and
e Subsidized child care.

G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) (WIOA §108(b)(13); 20 CFR
§679.560(b)(12))

In 2017, the PWDB was enlisted to provide review of the Proposal for the Adult Education and
Literacy (AEL) Service Provider Grant, submitted to TWC by Amarillo College, as required under
TWC’s Workforce Development (WD) Letter 20-17. In its August 2017 Board Meeting, the PWDB
authorized creation of an AEL Grant Application Review Committee for the purpose of providing to
TWC, recommendations related to the alignment of AEL Local Provider Grant proposals with the
PWDA Integrated Plan under WIOA regulation §463.20. Committee members reviewed the Proposal
from Amarillo College and provided the Review and Comments to TWC, as required. The comments
confirmed that the application was consistent with WIOA and the Board Plan. Amarillo College was
awarded the Contract as the Panhandle’s AEL Service Provider in 2018, and has the potential of being
awarded renewals of the Contract through 2023.

The PWDB continues to develop, facilitate, and expand innovative partnerships between the Board
and employers, community colleges, AEL providers, WSP and other stakeholders, to leverage
resources for the provision and integration of an array of workforce and AEL services. The PWDB
has fostered an excellent ongoing relationship with Amarillo College in collaborating on skills
development initiatives, incumbent worker training, and achievement of industry recognized
credentials, as well as traditional classroom based occupational training programs. Building on this
relationship, AEL staff from the college regularly meet with PWDB and WSP staff to exchange
information, improve processes and methods to assist AEL students with arriving at appropriate and
effective career pathways and subsequent enrollment including co-enrollment whenever determined
beneficial, or necessary, to completion. One key to the success of this collaboration is the
development of a new digital customer referral tool by Amarillo College, to enhance the collaboration
with the PWDB and WSP, in performing intake, determining program eligibility, assisting with
enrollment in classes, coordinating supportive services as needed, and facilitating the process of
connecting customers in order to provide English language, math, reading, and writing instruction to
help students acquire the skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high school equivalency,
or enter college or career training. This helps to streamline and improve the referral process and track
customer participation and success. Other important strategies include:

e Improving data collection methods which streamline customer intake and assessment processes,
and which efficiently and accurately pinpoint intrinsic needs of eligible adult customers;

e Identifying and developing career pathways and integrated employment plans that create data
driven career choices that are aligned with demand, and deliver appropriate and necessary services
under WIOA;

e Enhancing AEL customers’ educational and career advancement through the organization of
appropriate AEL activities, work readiness and job preparation activities, occupational training,
and other services specifically designed to meet the identified needs of adult individuals;

e Strengthening coordination and collaboration on partnerships which increase access to essential
services for adults who are basic skills deficient, low income, have other barriers to employment,
and are otherwise unprepared and ill equipped to enter employment or successfully retain
employment;

55



Increasing the number of low-income customers and individuals with barriers to employment
who engage in short-term training leading to employment, and increase the number and quality
of work-based training opportunities including work experience and customized OJT;

Closing the information gap and promote where the jobs are by focusing primarily on industries
that are net exporters of goods and services, and include occupations that provide a broad range
of high-demand career opportunities for eligible adults;

Increasing potential for customer success by ensuring AEL activities are integrated with and
relevant to workforce training, are aligned with common learning objectives and activities
identified, and will enhance successful personal outcomes and program completion rates for work
based and occupational training;

Concentrating focus on completion of a recognized postsecondary credential in an In-Demand or
Target Occupation, to assist an individual in entering or advancing within a specific In-Demand
or Target Occupation, or In-Demand Industry, as determined by the Board, and aligned with local
and regional economic and labor market analysis;

Utilizing co-enrollment and simultaneous participation in basic skills education and occupational
training to accelerate customer progress on a pathway to successfully entering a high demand
occupation and ultimately achieving self- sufficiency;

Developing innovative methods for using current technology to increase customer access to AEL
services, including virtual learning and online classes;

Designing and delivering educational services that meet the particular needs of individual adults,
such as accommodating schedules with multiple entry and exit points, flexible non-semester
based scheduling, and alternative class times and locations; and

Continuing to fine-tune strategies for creating employment opportunities for filling skills gaps in
emerging industrial and STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics)
occupations by identifying demographic, industrial, and employment trends and potential STEM
skill shortages, using TWC Labor Market Career Information and solicited employer input, such
as connecting area employers with TWC’s Registered Apprenticeship programs to establish
industrial machinery manufacturing and repair training opportunities which require STEM skills.
Offering grant writing and application assistance to area employers and colleges for the Skills
Development and Self- Sufficiency Fund, and other grant opportunities, will expand capacity as
well.

The TWC AEL Strategic Plan Fiscal 2021 to 2026 calls for, as one of its goals, to enhance customer

experience with increased coordination. In alignment, the PWDB and WSP will continue to support

the objectives and action items set forth in the AEL Plan as follows:

Align TWC AEL workforce development service policies to enhance the workforce customer

experience to promote co-enrollment and referral efforts with the PWDB;
Support development of career pathway ladders, and distribution of career pathway resources,

with AEL. VR and the PWDB: and
Support 60x30TX goals and share information with the Tri-Agency Workforce Initiative.

As well, the PWDB and WSP will continue to support the TWC Goals as outlined in the Texas

Workforce Consolidated Strategic Plan, that align with the AEL Strategic Plan, by:

Supporting a workforce system that allows employers and workers to achieve and sustain

economic prosperity:
Preparing individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equip them with

in-demand skills as identified by emplovyers: and
Fostering systems that enhance early education, support strong families, advance the growth of

56



the at-risk workforce to accelerate their employment opportunities, and help support personal and
family stability.

The PWDB and WSP will also continue to support the Texas Tri-Agency Workforce Initiative

strategies outlined in the AEL Strategic Plan by:

e Identifying students’ most efficient paths to attaining high-value credentials;

e  Strengthening and streamlining collaboration among key education and workforce system
stakeholders who are developing pathways at the regional level;

e  Expanding opportunities for work-based learning experiences;

e Ensuring students and families have the support, tools, and resources needed to achieve education
and career success:;

e  Expanding access to effective college and career advising:

e  Reducing financial barriers in education; and

e Aligning statewide education and workforce systems with statewide priorities and goals.

Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services

A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training (WIOA §108(b)(7); 20 CFR
§679.560(b)(6))

Per WIOA, individualized training, career, and education services will be given on a priority basis,
regardless of funding levels, to public assistance recipients, other low-income adults, and individuals
who are basic skills deficient. Veterans and eligible spouses will continue to receive first priority of
service for all Department of Labor (DOL) funded job training programs, which include WIOA
programs. To ensure priority service is given, WSP staff will be thoroughly trained and will maintain
proficiency in the following areas:

e Initial identification of customer status and information gathering;

e Assessment of customer information including employment and training needs;

Determination of appropriate workforce services, including co-enrollment;

Suitable referral and timely follow up; and

Documentation of entire process in the Workforce Information System of Texas (TWIST), and
WorkInTexas.com, as appropriate.

The PWDB continues to focus on training as a successful method to help individuals become self-
sufficient and ensure that employers have the qualified pool of skilled local workers needed to
succeed in a highly competitive business climate. To sustain and improve training and education
services, the PWDB:

e Strives to increase the number and quality of work-based training opportunities for job seekers
and students, including youth internships, work experience, and customized OJT training;

e Provides increased work-readiness training options to job seekers;

e Continues to develop and facilitate innovative partnerships with community colleges, businesses,
and other stakeholders, assisting them with planning and preparation for training grants that will
increase workers’ skills and build educational capacity in the region, including utilization of the
Skills Development Fund to develop customized job training, and other such opportunities;

e Maintains collaborations with regional employers and colleges to increase training and education
opportunities and utilize innovative partnership grants to upgrade skills and earning potential for

57



incumbent workers, and to meet the changing needs of local business and industry (such as an
Incumbent Worker Training Project, in the Fall of 2022 with the City of Canyon to train Solid
Waste Truck Operators); and

e Works to close the information gap and promote where the jobs are by focusing primarily on
industries that are net exporters of goods and services, and include occupations that provide a
broad range of high-demand career opportunities for eligible adults and dislocated workers.

B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals (20 CFR
§679.560(b)(21))

Local workforce development area policies and procedures ensure that priority in coordinating
programs and delivering services for targeted populations, including veterans, individuals with
disabilities, at-risk youth, Foster Youth, individuals with barriers to employment, and workers at all
skill and occupational levels is paramount, so that these groups receive the resources to be
successfully employed, become self-sufficient, and prepared for long-term career growth, and
comprise a qualified labor pool available for local employers. Information and training received
from Vocational Rehabilitation Services staff will enhance and improve the strategies developed
and applied for individuals with disabilities.

58



PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD POLICY
Chapter 2-WIOA

Section 2.1 All WIOA Program Participants
Subsection 2.1.2 WIOA Priority of Service-Update Effective 12-09-2020

PURPOSE:

To update policy regarding the federal requirement that WIOA programs are administered in a manner
that is not discriminatory based on a disability. Updated information in this policy revision is
highlighted in bold typeface.

BACKGROUND:

While WIOA (Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act) adult eligibility requirements remain
mostly consistent with WIA (Workforce Investment Act), there are some significant changes to the
service priority provisions. Consistent with WIA, priority for adult services must be given to
recipients of public assistance and other low-income individuals, with added priority for individuals
who are basic skills deficient. Under WIA, this priority applies only when adult funds are restricted.
Under WIOA, however, priority access to services by members of this group applies automatically.
Boards are no longer allowed to make a declaration of restricted or unrestricted funds.

29 CFR 38.12(h) requires that licensing and certification programs are administered in a manner
that is not discriminatory based on a disability.

29CFR 38.12(i) states recipients must not impose or apply eligibility criteria that screen out or tend
to screen out individuals with disabilities or any class of individuals with disabilities from fully and
equally enjoying any aid, benefit, service, training, program, or activity, unless such criteria can be
shown to be necessary for the provision of any aid, benefit, service, training, program, or activity
being offered.

29 CFR 38.12(k) prohibits recipients from placing a surcharge on a particular individual with a
disability, or any group of individuals with disabilities, to cover the costs of measures, such as the
provision of auxiliary aids or program accessibility, that are required to provide that individual or
group with the nondiscriminatory treatment required by WIOA Title I or this part.

29 CFR 38.12(0)(1) states that nothing in this part requires an individual with a disability to accept
any accommodation, aid, benefit, service, training, or opportunity provided under WIOA Title I or
this part that such individual chooses not to accept.

29 CRF 38.14(a): With regard to any aid, benefit, service, training, and employment, recipients
must provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities who are
applicants, registrants, eligible applicants/registrants, participants, employees, or applicants for
employment, unless providing the accommodation would cause undue hardship.

PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD POLICY:

Consistent with WIOA, individualized career services and training services will be given on a priority
basis, regardless of funding levels. In addition, WSP will administer programs and services in a
manner that is not discriminatory based on a disability, per the cited references in 29 CFR 38.12.
Veterans and eligible spouses will continue to receive priority of service for all federal and state funded
job training programs, which include WIOA programs. The existing guidance on priority of service for
veterans remains in effect. (See WD Letter 25-15, issued on October 26, 2015, Applying Priority of
Service and Identifying and Documenting Eligible Veterans and Transitioning Service Members.)

59



Under state law, foster youth and former foster youth, as defined below, will also be given priority in
the receipt of federal and State funded services. (See WD Letter 43-11 as amended, Priority of Service
for Eligible Foster Youth, for additional details.)

In addition to the eligibility criteria that all participants are required to meet, some programs also
have priorities that establish a rank order to be observed in enrolling or serving participants. These
priorities can be of two types: a) statutory; or, b) discretionary. The following provides guidance
on how priority of service interacts with these two types of priorities.

Programs with Statutory Priorities

Some programs are required by law to provide a priority or preference for a particular group of
individuals or require the program to spend a certain portion of program funds on a particular group
of persons. An example of this type of priority is the priority for low-income individuals and for
recipients of public assistance for the WIOA adult formula programs. For programs with this type
of mandatory priority, program operators must determine the status of each individual person in a
priority group and apply priority of service. Priority for WIOA individualized career services and
training services must be provided in the following order:

1. Eligible veterans and eligible spouses (as defined in WD Letter 25-15) who are also recipients
of public assistance, low-income, or basic skills deficient.

2. Foster youth and former foster youth, as defined in WD Letter 43-11, issued on November 3,
2011, and entitled, “Priority of Service for Eligible Foster Youth”, who are also recipients of public
assistance, low income, or basic skills deficient.

3. All other individuals who are recipients of public assistance, low-income, or basic skills
deficient.

4. All other eligible veterans and eligible spouses.

5. All other foster youth and former foster youth.

6. All other individuals, including any local priority groups established by the Panhandle Workforce
Development Area (WDA) Board.

The local priority group established by the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (WDA) Board
is all adults who at the time of WIOA enrollment have not completed a high school diploma, GED,
or other high school equivalency, and have not completed a GED, nor are currently attending GED
or equivalency classes.

Priority of service means that a person is given priority in order of the priority groups over non-
covered persons for the receipt of employment, training, and placement services provided under a
qualified WIOA program. Priority means that a person in a priority group is entitled to precedence
over non-covered persons for services. This means that a person in a priority group either receives
access to a service earlier in time than a non-covered person or, if the resource is limited, the person
in a priority group receives access to the service instead of or before the non-covered person.

For services such as classroom training, priority of service applies to the selection procedure, as
follows:

e First, if there is a waiting list for the formation of a training class, priority of service is intended
to require a person in a priority group to go to the top of that list.

e Second, priority of service applies up to the point at which an individual is both approved for
funding and accepted or enrolled in a training class.

60



Therefore, once a non-covered person has been both approved for funding and accepted/enrolled
in a training class, priority of service is not intended to allow a person in a priority group who is
identified subsequently to "bump" the non-covered person from that training class.

The application of priority of service varies by program depending on the eligibility requirements
of the particular program. Qualified job training programs fall into two basic categories: universal
access programs and programs that require prospective participants to meet specified eligibility
criteria.

Universal Access Programs

For workforce programs that operate or deliver services to the public as a whole without targeting
specific groups, a person in a priority group must receive priority of service over all other program
participants. For example, the primary universal access services are the "core" services delivered
through the One-Stop system under the Wagner-Peyser and WIOA programs. A person in a priority
group will receive the first level of priority in universal access programs. For example, an eligible
priority person requests universal services, however, all seats in the resource area are being used
by non-eligible persons and there are several non-eligible persons in line. In this case, the eligible
priority person would receive priority by being moved to the front of the line, but would not displace
one of the non-eligible persons already using a computer.

Programs with Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility criteria identify basic conditions that each and every participant in a specific program is
required to meet. A person in a priority group must first meet any and all of the statutory eligibility
criteria in order to be considered eligible for enrollment in the program, receipt of priority for
enrollment in the program, and priority for receipt of services. For example, for services such as
classroom training, priority of service applies to the selection procedure as follows: First, if there is a
waiting list for the formation of a training class, the eligible veteran will receive priority by being moved
to the top of that list. Second, priority of service applies when an individual is both approved for funding
and accepted or enrolled in a training class. Therefore, once a non-eligible person has been both
approved for funding and accepted or enrolled in a training class, an eligible veteran who is identified
subsequently will not take the place of the non-eligible person from that training class.

Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts
A. Fiscal Agent (WIOA §108(b)(15); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(14))

The Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC) is the grant recipient and administrative entity
for the PWDB and its partner group of chief elected officials, the Panhandle Workforce Development
Consortium’s Governing Body. These entities are responsible for the disbursal of grant funds
described in WIOA §107(d)(12)(B)(i)(II), as determined by the CEOs or the governor under WIOA

§107(d)(12)(B)(1).
B. Sub-Grants and Contracts (WIOA §108(b)(16); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(15))

PRPC’s Procurement Manual is aligned with TWC’s Financial Manual for Grants & Contracts
(FMGC), to ensure that competitive processes are used to award grants and contracts. The Contractor
that staffs the WSP offices and delivers associated workforce and child care services is procured
through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process. RFPs are also utilized to solicit consulting and
professional services. Vendors which offer other services and items determine to be required to

61



complete training or obtain/retain employment are procured through competitive methods that are
tailored to the service(s) or item(s) to be purchased. PRPC makes payments directly to training
providers and other vendors for goods and services authorized by the WSP Contractor on behalf of
workforce customers. These payments include training costs, supportive services, and child care fees.

Part 8: Performance
A. Board Performance Targets (WIOA §108(b)(17); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(16))

The PWDB’s methods for evaluating program performance involve review of local, state and federal
expectations on a monthly, quarterly or annual basis. While TWC continues to define and determine
the applicable state performance measures under WIOA, the following methods for measuring and
tracking Panhandle performance are ongoing. Monthly performance reviews include the evaluation
of information shown below, which is provided to the Board after staff analysis of successes and
shortcomings:

Number of employers, job seekers, and program customers served;

Number of workforce program customers served by activity;

State-reported actual performance compared to expectations;

Funds expended compared to budgeted resources;

Locally established measures’ actual performance compared to expectations;
Performance goals with which private sector contractor profit is associated; and
Board staff monitoring results.

The following performance measures were set in accordance with WIOA § 116(c):
e Adult Employed Quarter 2 Post Exit
e Adult Median Earnings Quarter 2 Post Exit
e Adult Employed Quarter 4 Post Exit
o Adult Credential Rate
Adult Measurable Skills Gains
Dislocated Worker Employed Quarter 2 Post Exit
Dislocated Worker Median Earnings Quarter 2 Post Exit
Dislocated Worker Employed Quarter 4 Post Exit
Dislocated Worker Credential Rate
Dislocated Worker Measurable Skills Gains
Youth Employed/Enrolled Quarter 2 Post Exit
¢ Youth Employed/Enrolled Quarter 4 Post Exit
Youth Median Earning Quarter 2 Post Exit
e Youth Credential Rate
Youth Measurable Skills Gains
e All Career & Training (C&T) Participants Employed/Enrolled Quarter 2 Post Exit
e All Career & Training (C&T) Participants Employed/Enrolled Quarter 4 Post Exit
o All Career & Training (C&T) Participants Credential Rate

Quarterly evaluations of trends in the areas listed above, as well as special grants and strategic
objectives, receive additional analysis by staff. Results of these reviews are reported to the PWDB
upon completion or incorporated into future plan or policy changes submitted to the group for
approval. Annual evaluation of contract results and progress toward achieving strategic objectives are

62



also reported to the Board upon completion or incorporated into policies submitted to the group for
approval.

Part 9: Training and Services
A. Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) (WIOA §108(b)(19); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(18))

Adults, dislocated workers, and Out of School youth ages 18-24 who have been determined eligible
for WIOA and need occupational training may access training with an ITA, which enables them to
choose among available training providers. Training and ITAs are handled in a tiered approach
following specific steps. Generally, individuals are expected to contribute toward their own support
and/or educational costs, as much as possible. Job seekers that have tested the labor market for
employment without success are identified by employment services staff in the WSP office, and may
be referred to program case management staff.

Initial assessment and objective assessment are conducted, and the information documented and
entered into the TWIST system. WSP staff and customers collaborate on development of an
individualized service plan. Customers deemed in need of basic skills are referred to literacy
programs, adult basic education, GED, and adult educational cooperatives. Referrals for occupational
skill classroom training may be made directly to the community colleges and university.

Customers eligible for workforce services that cover all or part of training costs are referred only after
comprehensive assessment and individual service plans document the need for training/employment.
WSP staff maintains a cooperative relationship with the Panhandle community colleges’ business and
industry programs to ensure that training provided meets local employers’ needs.

An ITA can only be used for training that leads to employment and is limited to training in a Target
Occupation as defined by the PWDB. Board staff compiles a list of training providers certified by
TWC through the ETPS. The ETPS website provides information about these providers and is made
available to each customer in WSP offices to provide maximum opportunity for customer choice. An
ITA covers tuition, fees, books and supplies. An ITA does not include the cost of supportive services
(based on assessment). WSP Program Case Managers decide the appropriate total value of each ITA,
based on the customer’s assessment and employment plan, and the certified training provider’s
published costs. The key issues with an ITA are:

e Customer choice, including increased information about eligible training programs made available
through the ETPS;

e Eligibility and suitability for an ITA determined accurately and effectively;

e Training in occupations, targeted by the PWDB, and most likely to offer local employment, career
growth, and self-sufficiency;

e (Consistently high performance and completion rate for eligible training providers;

e Cancellation/forfeiture of an ITA and recovery of unused funds; and

e Exceptions that allow non-ITA training.

B. ITA Limitations (20 CFR §663.420)

Limits on Duration and Amounts of ITA’s and coordination with other resources to maximize
customer choice include:

e Established monetary limits for the total WIOA funded cost per participant for training and support
services combined;
63



e No limit on the amount for an ITA based on individual training provider cost;

e Duration limited to the shortest length of time necessary to complete the level of occupational
education and training required to begin entry level employment in the chosen field; and

e Exceptions regarding how ITA’s are handled on an individual basis, per local policy.

Part 10: Apprenticeship
A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs

The PWDB is committed to reenergizing and refocusing efforts to create and utilize Registered
Apprenticeship (RA) programs to train individuals, for skilled trades in high demand and high wage
occupations, while they earn wages. RA combines on-the-jog- training under the supervision of
experienced journey workers with related classroom instruction. The best opportunities for
apprenticeship training in the Panhandle are in the fields of wind energy, industrial manufacturing,
and industrial machinery repair.

WSP staff and the Business Services team collaborate to develop and implement a detailed plan of
action which includes determining and applying effective methods to identify potential apprenticeship
candidates, especially veterans, actively seek out potential employers who would benefit from this
partnership, and create successful matches.

Staff strongly encourages and assists employers with new or existing local apprenticeship training
programs to register in the ETPS so that WIOA funds may be leveraged to assist with training costs.

B. ApprenticeshipTexas

The PWDBSs’ strategy and commitment to Apprenticeship Texas is based on detailed information and
guidance personally provided by TWC Apprenticeship staff. WSP staff and the Business Services
team collaborate to develop a strategic approach which involves:

e Working to identify and actively outreach potential employers in both traditional and non-
traditional industries to participate in the Apprenticeship Texas initiative;

e Connecting employers with TWC Apprenticeship staff when appropriate and beneficial;

e Providing complete Apprenticeship Program information including tapping into available funds;
and

e Remaining in communication with and guiding employers through the entire apprenticeship
process through successful completion.

Part 11: Public Comment

On Wednesday, November 8, 2022, public meeting notices regarding requests for input and comments
on the two-year review and modification of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan for
Program Years 2021-2024, were published in the Texas Register, and on the https://wspanhandle.com/
and https://theprpc.org websites. Partners from regional training providers, businesses and individuals
were also invited by direct email to discuss topics, including the PWDB’s Target Occupations, In-
Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries lists. Public comments received in the meeting were
incorporated into the updates to the lists, which were approved by the PWDB and Consortium’s
Governing Body (CEQOs) in the December 2022 meetings. and to the proposed draft Plan Modification
being presented to the bodies in the February 2023 meetings.
64




PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING
COMMISSION

NOTICE OF MEETING

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal Regulations
§679.500-580), each Local Workforce Development Board is required to develop and submit to the State
a comprehensive four-year Board plan that identifies and describes policies and procedures as well as local
activities, and then, after two years, to review the local Board Plan and develop and submit modifications
to reflect labor market changes, economic conditions, and other factors affecting plan implementation.
One of the areas to be reviewed includes the Board’s Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and
In-Demand Industries lists.

A public meeting will be held at 10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, November 8, 2022, for comments on the two-
year review and modification of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan for Program Years
2021-2024. This meeting will be held in virtual format with videoconference available pursuant to Texas
Government Code Section 551.127.

Members of the public interested in attending this meeting may do so by logging onto:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84152487455?pwd=Y 2tROIQyY WRUL256bGRIZFBtaGl5Zz09

(Meeting ID: 841 5248 7455 - Password: 984317) or may participate by phone (346) 248-7799 (Meeting
ID: 841 5248 7455 - Password: 984317)

A copy of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plan for Program Years 2021-2024 can be found
on the PRPC’s website at: https://www.theprpc.org/Programs/WorkforceDevelopment/default.html

AGENDA
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
3. ADJOURN
PUBLIC NOTICE

This notice complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 551, Open Meetings Act, Section 551.041 (Notice of Meeting Requirements); Section
551.043 (Time and Accessibility of Notice Requirements); and Section 551.053 (Notice Requirements of a Political Subdivision Extending into
Four or More Counties). The notice has been filed at least 72 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting with the Secretary of State's Office,
the Potter County Clerk's Office and has been posted in the Administrative Office of the Panhandle Regional Planning Commission.

Posted this 2™ day of November, 2022, at 415 Southwest Eighth Avenue, Amarillo, Texas, at 9:00 a.m.

Leslie Hardin

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER / PROGRAM
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities
Relay Texas: 711

65



Public meeting and legal notices regarding the proposed draft of the PWDB Plan 20212024 2023
Modification were also published in the Texas Register, Amarillo Globe-News, and-placed on the
wspanhandle.com website stating—that—thePlan—weuld-bepublished and on the PRPC website,
begmmng on January 30, 2023Febmaﬂ42492—} requestmg Dubhc comment( s). Qﬂ—FebFuaﬁ—l—}

Meeﬁﬁg—eﬁ—Zeem—No pubhc comments have been recelved to date

LEGAL NOTICE

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal Regulations
§679.500-580), two years after its initial submission, each Local Workforce Development Board is
required to modify its comprehensive four-year Board plan that identifies and describes policies and
procedures as well as local activities, and submit it to the State. The Panhandle Regional Planning
Commission (PRPC), and the Panhandle Workforce Development Board (PWDB) will submit, to the
Texas Workforce Commission (TWC), the two-year modification of the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board Plan for Program Years 2021-2024, on March 1, 2023.

Interested parties may examine the proposed modification of the Board Plan on the PRPC website at:
http://theprpc.org/programs/workforcedevelopment/default.html. Copies may also be requested by
email using the contact information listed below.

PRPC will accept written public comments on the Board Plan submitted by February 28, 2023. Written
comments may be sent to Leslie Hardin, Workforce Development Program Manager, by email:
lhardin@theprpc.org., or by mail: Panhandle Regional Planning Commission, PO Box 9257, Amarillo,
TX 79105-9257.

Equal Opportunity Employer/Program
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities
Relay Texas: 711



http://theprpc.org/programs/workforcedevelopment/default.html
mailto:lhardin@theprpc.org
http://www.puc.state.tx.us/relaytexas/relay/CallTypes.aspx

1in

1o Hard
=eSHEeHraraih

Lesl

67



WIOA Board Two-Year Plan Modification Form
Workforce Development (WD) Letter 18-22. Attachment 1

Overview

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Final Rule at 20 CFR §679.580 requires
that at the end of the first two years of the four-year local plan, Local Workforce Development
Boards (Boards) and their appropriate chief elected officials (CEQOs) review their local plans and
prepare and submit modifications to reflect labor market changes, economic conditions, and other
factors affecting plan implementation. These factors may include, but are not limited to, changes to
the financing available to support WIOA Title I services and partner-provided WIOA services or a
need to revise strategies in order to meet local performance goals.

Instructions

Boards must respond to each of the following prompts and make corresponding changes to their
plans. When modifying their plans, Boards must use Track Changes for easy identification by the
Texas Workforce Commission during review. If no modifications are required, Boards must provide
a brief yet detailed explanation as to how the Board and its CEO(s) made that determination. For each
response, include all corresponding page numbers from the plan.

la. Describe any changes in labor market and economic conditions in the Board’s local workforce
development area, including changes to the employment needs of employers and changes to existing
and emerging in-demand industry sectors and occupations.

1) Several emplovers in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) that continue their

operations and some that have released plans for potential manufacturing industry projects prompted
the addition of the occupation of Production Workers, All Others (SOC 51-9199) to the Target
Occupations List. These projects include:

*Cacique Foods, a leading Hispanic foods company and the #1 brand of authentic Mexican-style
cheeses, cremas and chorizos in the United States, is expecting to open their new 200,000 sq. ft. dairy
facility in April, 2023. The new processing facility is being developed on 55 acres of land in the
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation’s (EDC) South Georgia Business Park. The company
has partnered with AmTech Career Academy and Amarillo College.

*Ecolomondo Corporation, a cleantech company commercializing its proprietary recycling
technology, Thermal Decomposition Process (“TDP”’) and specializing in the building and operation
of turnkey TDP facilities, announced plans in January, 2022, to build and operate a six-reactor
turnkey TDP facility in Shamrock. This will be the Company’s first US-based waste-to-resources
TDP plant capable of processing and recycling end-of-life tires (“ELT”) into saleable recycled

commercial resources for re-use. At peak production, Ecolomondo expects to create approximately
70 direct and 140 indirect jobs.

*Chemical Vapor Metal Refining (CVMR) will build a $1.5 billion, 540-acre rare-earth refinery in
Amarillo after the city and Potter County agreed to economic incentives for the project, according to
a June 21 press release.

68




*Caviness Beef Packers operates two Panhandle facilities:

a) Beef harvest, fabrication, rendering, and hides processing in Hereford. In 2020, Caviness
completed approximately 130,000 sq ft of plant additions in Hereford which allowed them to add a
second shift to the operations, and expanded upon from coolers, freezers, dry goods, employee
welfare, hides, rendering and wastewater complex.

b) Ground beef and patty processing, in Amarillo producing approximately 1,500.000 pounds of
ground beef chubs and patties weekly.

*SSI Foods is a beef patty manufacturing company located in Amarillo, manufacturing hamburger

products that meet the core menu needs of quick service and casual dining restaurants by utilizing

four patty processing lines with Tomahawk TM26 patty formers, with expansion capability to six
lines.

*SciCron Technologies’ state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in Amarillo specializes in applying
high-quality, high-performance coatings to plastics, with expertise in coating large, clear sheet
products, and coating fabricated, molded, and formed plastic parts, and plastic film products.

2) Following the COVID-19 Pandemic, employers in the Healthcare Industry in the PWDA began
discovering the increased need for Mental Health services and approached the PWDB with a proposal
to develop a credential program with Amarillo College for Psychiatric Technicians. In its February,
2022 Board meeting, the PWDB approved adding this occupation to its High-Demand Occupations
and Target Occupations Lists. The Amarillo College program was then added to the Eligible
Training Provider System (ETPS) and WSP has enrolled WIOA customers in the program.

See pages 13-28, 36-37

1b. Describe any changes made to the Board’s Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-
Demand Industries lists since the four-year local plan was approved in July 2021 and include the
updated template (WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 3, WIOA Target Occupations, In-Demand
Occupations, and In-Demand Industries Template). If no changes were made to a list, submit the
current list with the current date. Describe the review process that the Board used to determine
whether the Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries lists required
modification. Cite all sources used.

On November 8, 2022, staff hosted a Public Meeting on behalf of the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board, to give its communities and partners an opportunity to provide input into the
development of modifications to the Board Plan pertaining to labor market changes, economic
conditions, and other factors affecting Plan implementation. Areas reviewed included the Board’s
Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries lists. Attendees representing
the Healthcare, Manufacturing and Education Industries robustly discussed current needs and future
trends for the Panhandle. The recommendations were taken to the Panhandle Workforce Development
Board, and the Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body (Chief Elected
Officials — CEOs) quarterly meetings on December 7" and 8", respectively.

69




1) Both bodies approved adding several Target Occupations, most notably, those aligning with the
Governor’s Texas Target Industry Cluster Initiative as follows:

* Advanced Manufacturing — Project Management Specialists and Business Operations Specialists
(13-1198): and Production Workers (51-9199)

* Biotechnology and Life Sciences — Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records Specialists and Health
Technologists and Technicians (29-2098)

* Energy/Petroleum Refining and Chemical Products — Petroleum Pump System Operators, Refinery
Operators and Gaugers (51-8093)

* Information Technology — Information Security Analysts (15-1212)

2) To determine the occupations to be included on the Panhandle’s In-Demand Occupations List,
staff evaluated the Texas Labor Market Information (LMI) 2020-2030 Occupational Employment data
and, based upon the statistic of the number of Annual Job Openings equaling ten (10) openings or more,
compiled the proposed List which was presented in the Public Meeting described above. The number
of occupations recommended to be included on the List, presented to the public, and approved by both
of the Panhandle’s governing bodies, for this Plan Modification, nearly doubled from the previous List
in the 2021-2024 Board Plan, reflecting the major disruption in the labor force caused by the COVID-
19 Pandemic.

3) Industries operating in the Panhandle Workforce Development Area have always represented the
very diverse environment of the Texas Panhandle ranging from Agricultural, Construction, Healthcare,
Manufacturing, Service(s) and Transportation, to the U.S. Department of Energy’s mission at the
Pantex Plant, the Phillips 66/Cenovus Energy Refinery in Borger, and Amarillo’s Bell (Textron)
aerospace commercial/military Rotocraft production facility.

Prompted by TWC discussions of a Statewide shortage of Emergency Medical Technicians and
Paramedics, in May 2022, the In-Demand Industry of Other Ambulatory Health Care Services was
approved and added to the Panhandle’s In-Demand Industries List, and Emergency Medical
Technicians and Paramedics (29-2041) was added to the Target Occupations List. This Industry has
been added to the 2021 List for this Plan Modification. No other changes to the In-Demand Industries
have been made.

See pages 13-28, 31, 36-37

2. Describe any changes in the financing available to support WIOA Title I services and partner-
provided WIOA services that have affected the implementation of the Board’s plan. For partner-
provided services, Boards should consider the roles and resource contributions of the Workforce
Solutions Offices, changes in partner infrastructure contributions, and whether any financial changes
have required the Board to revise a strategy that was described in the original plan. For example, if
reductions in federal funding or changes in the Board’s funding strategies have required the Board to
consider closing one or more Workforce Solutions Offices or if a shift in how services are delivered

70




has changed the amount available for operating costs, Boards must include this information as part
of the two-year modification.

* In 2018, the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) announced its intention to divest itself of
ownership of its buildings statewide, which included the Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP)
facility at 1206 S.W. 7th Avenue, in Amarillo, where the Panhandle Workforce Development Board
(PWDB) has been delivering workforce development services for decades. During the same period,
TWC began planning to integrate its Texas Workforce Solutions Vocational Rehabilitation (VR)
Services staff into the WSP operations in the Panhandle. Over the following years, the PWDB
facilitated a relocation of WSP and VR services and staff, opening in a remodeled facility located at
3120 Eddy Street in Amarillo, in March, 2021. The move from a State-owned building, provided to
the PWDB at a nominal cost, into a privately-owned facility requiring commercial leasing costs, has
added a considerable infrastructure burden to the PWDB’s Service Delivery capabilities, with an
increase in Operating Costs of nearly 185%, and required a shifting of funding.

See pages 3-4, 32

* The PWDB continues to partner with regional Economic Development Corporations (EDCs) to
apply for High Demand Job Training grant funding to match the EDCs sales tax investments in a

dollar-for dollar match, to purchase equipment for regional community colleges and Independent
School Districts (ISDs). These $150,000 annual Grant Application opportunities have provided, to-
date, over $1,040,000 which were matched by the EDCs, for the PWDA. The PWDB plans to
continue requesting these WIOA Activities funds which have supplemented Career & Technology
Education (CTE) training programs throughout the PWDA.

See pages 7, 34, 37

3. Describe any changes made to the strategies used to meet local performance goals.

In alienment with the TWC Mission Strategic Plan Goals for 2023-2027. the PWDB continues to
strive for excellence in service delivery for the residents of the PWDA and has updated strategies in
several areas including, but not limited to:

Goal 1 — Ensuring the Texas workforce system supports employers and allows business and industry

to thrive, by (1.1.2) expanding recruiting and hiring services to help employers build and maintain a

robust workforce.

*The WSP Amarillo office relocated from a State-owned facility into a remodeled building in March

0of 2021. The new facility doubled in size and offers, among its amenities, multiple public meeting

spaces of various capacities, which are available to employers for hiring events, interviews and

planning meetings. These opportunities for inviting the public into WSP have greatly enhanced

business connections and exposure of workforce and child care services that were limited in the

previous location. Several local and regional employers, including Pantex (Interviews & Testing),

Cacique (Additional Office Space, Onboarding, & Training), Texas Department of Criminal Justice
71




(Additional Office Space), West Texas Healthcare Association (Monthly Seminar), Panhandle
Human Resources Association (Board Meetings), Quick Quack Car Wash (Management Meetings),
Panhandle Community Partnership (Committee Meetings), and Express Personnel Employer
Seminars, schedule and utilize meeting rooms on a regular basis.

See pages 3-4, 32

Goal 2 — Ensuring a skilled workforce is prepared and equipped to fill critical in-demand jobs, both
now and in the future, by (2.2.1) expanding the development of high-quality work-based learning
opportunities that provide workers with the skills and experience needed to fill in-demand jobs and
ensure qualified workers are matched with hiring employers.

*The PWDB has partnered with several regional employers and training providers in taking
advantage of TWC’s Skills Development Fund (SDF) grants. In February, the PWDB executed a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Plains Dairy, a leading provider of high-quality milk
and dairy products in the region. The company is dedicated to producing milk from local farmers and
distributing it to customers in the area. They have a state-of-the-art processing facility that allows
them to turn raw milk into a variety of products, including milk, cheese, butter, and ice cream. The
PWDB is developing an application for a SDF Project that will invest in measurable skills
development to train approximately 100 employees of Plains Dairy, utilizing a customized Safe
Quality Food (SQF) food safety and quality management system that provides guidelines for the
production, processing, packaging, and distribution of food products.

See page 29

Goal 3 — Providing exceptional customer service and support to all workforce system stakeholders,
bv (3.1.2) enhancing the overall customer experience within the workforce system, providing multiple

integrated pathways for customers to choose how they interact with the system.

The PWDB understands that the workforce system must have the capacity to meet the needs of all
current and future customers: employers, system program and service providers, and workers,
wherever they are in their careers. Customers must be assured that wherever they enter the workforce
system, there is a pathway through the system by instituting a “no-closed door” culture to ensure
successful outcomes or referrals for customers of the workforce system programs and services. Any
point of entry provides access to the full continuum of programs and services. The ability to
accurately assess customer satisfaction with and across workforce system elements and translate this
data into useful actions is essential to best meet the needs of workforce system customers.

*WSP is incorporating Quick Response (QR) Code technology into its Customer Satisfaction Survey
process. This technology allows customers to access the optic label provided on WSP printed and
digital media and, in a streamlined, convenient, and confidential method, respond on their customer

service experience.

See pages 37-39

72




*The PWDB has purchased the digital communication management (DCM) software Granicus
GovDelivery to enable WSP to build content to be shared with job seekers and connect/distribute
through a number of different mediums, including email, Short Message Service (SMS)/text
messages, Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds, and social media integration, including, but not
limited to, a monthly newsletter.

See page 38

4. Describe any other factors affecting plan implementation.

The PWDB acknowledges the changes in the workforce environment from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Factors contributing to the Panhandle’s extremely tight labor market, which presented challenges
even before the economic shutdown, have continued, while a new set of circumstances has emerged.

Many workers have not returned to the labor market for several reasons that are not unique to the
Panhandle but are trending nationwide. Some workers moved in the direction of retirement, possibly

earlier than they might have planned; some, after receiving income support, made calculations to
adapt to an income level perhaps less than what pre-pandemic employment afforded, but considered
adequate; and some are considering career changes and weighing options. PWDA employers
struggle to fill positions, and with retention of a sufficient level of workers to maintain and grow
businesses. WSP drives outreach efforts, innovating methods and content, to entice individuals to
connect with staff who are eager to assist with re-introducing those who have been out of the
workforce, to the wide range of opportunities, and counseling those who have an interest in
improving their skills and earning potential.

See pages 30-31

73




Appendix:-Texas Workforce Investment Council Requirements
Loeal Workf Devel Board-S e Planni

The Texas Workforce Investment Council (TWIC) is charged under Texas Government Code
§2308.101(5), 2308.302(a), and 2308.304(a)(b)(4), and the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity
Act of 2014 (WIOA) (Public Law 113-128) with recommending the plans of Local Workforce
Development Boards (Boards) to the governor for consideration for approval. TWIC reviews each
Board Plan to ensure that local goals and objectives are consistent with the statewide goals and
objectives in the system plan, The Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan FY 2016-FY 2023, swwhich

Additionally, state law charges TWIC with reporting annually to the governor and to the Texas
legislature on the implementation of the system’s strategic plan and monitoring the operation of the
state’s workforce system to assess the degree to which the system is effective in achieving state and
local goals and objectives. Therefore, TWIC also reviews Board Plans and plan modifications to
determine each Board’s progress in implementing strategies that align with the strategic plan for the
Texas workforce system. Following consideration for approval at a regularly scheduled quarterly
meeting, TWIC recommends the Board Plans to the governor for consideration for approval. Boards’
responses to the following planning elements are reviewed by TWIC for alignment and are the basis
for recommending approval.

The Texas Workforce Environment: Key Issues

During the development of the TWIC strategic plan, several key issues surfaced that factor into the
analysis on an ongoing basis. There are two distinct areas where issues arose: those occurring in the
workforce environment and those that are taking place within the integrated workforce system
framework. This plan considered both dimensions. These issues are taking place in the environment
within which the Texas workforce system resides and hold cross-partner implications. These issues
have been considered in the formation of system goals, objectives, and outcomes.

Educational Programs of Study

In Texas, career and technical education and programs of study are guided by federal and state law
and require consistent and ongoing collaboration by the Texas Education Agency and the Texas
Higher Education Coordinating Board. Administered through these two partner agencies, these
efforts are designed to ensure that the critical linkages between secondary and postsecondary career
pathways and dual credit are providing seamless transitions and transfer options. The goal of these
efforts is a higher completion and graduation rate, thereby increasing the number of individuals with
a diploma or degree, as well as nontraditional credentials that are in high demand in both today’s job
market and the future.

Programs of study are tied to coherent sequences of academic, career, and technical courses and
training. This sequencing is improving transfer options and will ultimately result in higher graduation
or completion rates in areas where workers are needed in the current job market. The national trend
1s to implement a program of study as an effective method of career and technical education delivery
that provides students with practical experience to assist them to translate their academic experiences
into real-world applications.

While programs of study have not been fully implemented at the postsecondary level, a number of

74



https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-Plan-Update.pdf

elements are operational that are making progress in achieving an integrated pathway from secondary
to postsecondary, and between community and technical colleges. Texas must continue to develop
and integrate career and technical education programs of study within and across educational levels.
As the education landscape continues to evolve, opportunities exist to improve student education and
employment outcomes.

Adult Education

Adult education programs and services are important components of the Texas workforce system.
These programs are funded through a variety of federal, state, and local sources to improve literacy
and educational outcomes for adults who have not earned a high school diploma or who perform
below the high school level, thereby making postsecondary education, training, or employment
difficult. Through the provision of these programs and services, adult education improves
employability outcomes by ensuring a growing number of Texans who are prepared to attain some
form of postsecondary credential. Adult education programs and services are designed to coordinate,
deliver, and align postsecondary and workforce readiness training to ensure that all programs lead to
high school equivalency, further training, college or university, or employment.

In September 2013, mandated by Senate Bill 307 (83rd Texas Legislature), adult education programs
and services transitioned from the Texas Education Agency to the Texas Workforce Commission.
Through its contracts, the Texas Workforce Commission requires enhancements to service delivery
models supporting innovation and increased outcomes, including incentives for enrollment,
integration with workforce programs, and models focused on transitions to work or postsecondary
education. This approach allows continuity of services as programs build capacity and enhance
service delivery and curricula, while steadily supporting an upward trajectory in the program’s overall
direction toward increased employment and training outcomes consistent with the requirements in
Senate Bill 307.1

A key capacity to achieving the above stated goals is the referral capabilities and infrastructure
necessary to serve individuals seeking adult education programs and services to locate the most
appropriate program, regardless of where it resides within 1 Adult Education and Literacy Outcome
Report to the Texas Legislature for SFY14. Texas Workforce Commission (2014). 15 the adult
education domain. Improving this capacity and improving coordination among service providers are
essential components to serving these learners.

Changing Demand for Middle-Skill Workers

While concentrations of science, technology, engineering, and math (STEM) jobs vary region to
region, overall middle-skill STEM occupations generally pay high wages, tend to be prevalent in all
regions, and are growing in Texas. STEM workers at all levels of educational attainment experience
stronger employment outcomes and higher lifetime earnings. While workers tend to command higher
pay if they have knowledge in more than one STEM field, education and training programs tend to
focus on one specific domain of knowledge. Middle-skill STEM workers are projected to find broad
employment options. In fact, it is estimated that over the next decade over 60 percent of jobs in Texas
will be middle-skill and will require some form of postsecondary education.

A key aspect to understanding STEM-related employment is the growth of middles-killed STEM
employment. These middle-skill STEM jobs tend to require a high level of STEM technical
knowledge but often less than would be required for a four-year degree. As a result, middle-skill
STEM jobs tend to be more geographically dispersed across the state, whereas those requiring a four-
year degree tend to be concentrated in certain geographic regions.

Texas has developed an infrastructure from which to engage public and private sector stakeholders
75




to enhance, reinforce, and build a strong supply of STEM-capable workers across the state. The state
has also honed its ability to source, compete, and grow targeted industry clusters. Strategies
addressing middle-skill workers in the STEM area are an essential focus of this strategic plan.

Increasing Demand for Industry-based Certifications for Texas Workers

Over recent years, the role, purpose, and value of industry certifications has changed dramatically.
While licenses, certificates, and certifications all fall under the larger umbrella of workforce
credentials, the current workforce landscape in Texas points to the growing role that industry
certifications can play in improving workforce outcomes.

The distinction between licenses, certificates, and certifications is important because each play a vital
role in workforce development. As defined by the National Organization for Competency Assurance
standard 100, licenses and certificates are generally awarded by academic institutions or similar
groups and are generally based on education and/or training, whereas the primary focus of
certifications is on assessment by a third-party provider, based on industry-recognized standards.
Further, certification processes are independent from any one training or education provider.
Certifications are created, developed, sponsored, or operated through the private sector with little or
no participation by public institutions. Certification allows for greater portability of validation,
uniformity of standards, and applicability in high-demand and high-skill occupations that experience
rapidly changing industry standards.

Although all workforce credentials are important to successful outcomes for the Texas workforce
system, the role and impact of industry-based, third-party certifications is growing. The ability to
identify and track workers who have certifications, analyze demand trends, and provide feedback and
information to enhance workforce system decisions is an important capacity for the Texas workforce
system to build. As such, it is essential that the Texas workforce system place special emphasis on
industry-based certifications during the timeframe encompassed by this strategic plan.

Demand-Driven Programs and Services

The state continues to grow jobs in both middle- and high-skilled occupations across a number of
different employer sizes and industry sectors. The ability to fill these positions with properly skilled
workers by creating and implementing responsive programs and services is essential to successfully
meet employer needs. The Texas economy has been one of the strongest in the United States over the
past 15 years and national assessment measures from the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and the
Texas Leading Index point to continued economic health for the state. To sustain and increase
economic growth, a well-trained labor supply must be available for employers seeking to establish,
conduct, or expand business operations in Texas. The Texas workforce system partners must develop
and implement new and enhanced data systems and tools to better understand and respond to the
state’s dynamic workforce environment. Further, this information must be effectively translated into
effective and efficient delivery of services that meet the needs of Texas employers.

While the traditional baccalaureate degree is still viewed as the primary pathway to postsecondary
success, interest in middle-skill jobs has increased the desire and need for other avenues of education.
Middle-skill jobs are primarily occupations that require education or training beyond high school, but
not necessarily a bachelor’s degree.

Despite the increased interest in these jobs, it appears that there is a growing divide between the
number of qualified, technically skilled, and available job applicants and the 2 Tracking Industry-
Based Certifications: Promising Practices in Capturing Data on the Workforce Supply of Industry
Certified Workers. Texas Workforce Investment Council (2015). 17 number needed by Texas

emplovyers. During the listening sessions conducted in advance of developing this plan, the Council
76




heard from both the U.S. Chamber of Commerce Foundation and a panel of Texas employers that it
i1s_difficult to recruit and hire appropriately skilled employees. The central message was that
employers are having a difficult time finding certain types of employees—particularly in middle-skill
occupations—and that, as a result, sometimes job listings can go unfilled for long periods of time,
resulting in a direct cost to employers.

Education System Coordination and Alienment

As the Texas workforce system evolves, it must have the capacity to design, implement, and assess
aligned and integrated programs and services in a collaborative manner. This is particularly relevant
at_transition points across system partners and programs. There are a vast array of needs and
expectations of customers in the Texas workforce system, ranging from adult education, career and
technical education, and college and work readiness. Educational and career transitions need to be
seamless and accessible from any point in the workforce system to ensure that customers are able to
navigate these wide-ranging options and opportunities efficiently and effectively, without
unnecessary duplication or experiencing gaps in services that hinder progress in

achieving the desired workforce education and training goal.

77



Demonstrating Alignment with Texas’ Strategic Plan for the Workforce System
WD Letter 18-22, Attachment 2

The four sections below list and describe the four system goals from The Texas Workforce System
Strategic Plan FY 2016-FY 2023 (2020 Update) that identify critical, high-priority system issues for
the state. Boards inform the development of strategic goals and objectives and are essential to the
implementation of the workforce system plan. Board plan responses apprise TWIC of innovative
practices and how key strategies in the system plan translate into local action to move the system
forward. Examples of select Board responses will be presented to TWIC under each goal. All 28
Boards will be represented in the briefing for the approval of the plans.

For each goal:
e  briefly describe how the Board is working to fulfill the intent of the goal as specified in the
description; and

e include the corresponding page number(s) within vour plan that further details the identified
strategy or initiative.

System Goal 1 and Rationale

Focus on Employers

Effective engagement with employers informs many system strategies and functions that address the
changing needs of industry as well as state and regional economies. Education and training are a
primary system function that may require multiple state and local entities to work with similar
employers to design instruction or adjust career and technical education program and delivery
options. Coordination and partnerships with employers are essential to gain insight and implement
initiatives while ensuring that industrial productivity continues.

System Goal 1—Local Board Response

Please describe how vour local Board has improved employer engagement and efforts to
collaborate with any other entities that require input, participation, and/or partnership with
employers. Specifically, describe how you coordinate efforts to gain more comprehensive insight on
employer needs while reducing the demand on the employers who would otherwise be responding to
multiple requests. Identify the primary outcomes and, where relevant, list key entities involved and
type of information requests for each entity.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 4. 6, 12. 29-30

Identifying appropriate operational strategies involves examining local labor market skills and service
gaps by analyzing local, state and national data that identify demographic, industrial and employment
trends and potential skill shortages, using a variety of economic tools provided by TWC, other state
agencies, and federal, local, and private resources. The PWDB is committed to and is actively
engaged in creating greater employer engagement.

78



In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 1, the PWDB will continue:

e  Expanding the number of apprentices in underserved populations;

e Developing training opportunities toward industry-based certifications to expand the number of
work-ready individuals in high demand occupations;

e Increasing the number of employers who participate in work-based learning programs:;

e  Engaging industry representatives to collaborate with community colleges in new program
development that incorporates national industry-based certifications into programs of study;

e  Assisting with aligning the Texas Education Agency (TEA) Texas Essential Knowledge and
Skills (TEKS) to Industry-based certifications, where applicable. (Reference:
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-
skills); and

e  Assisting with aligning the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) with
identifying and implementing relevant industry-based certifications and licenses and
incorporating the occupational information into statewide career and technical education
programs.

The WSP Business Services Unit specialized division is tailored to meet employer's workforce needs.

The WSP Business Service Representatives (BSRs) work with employers and offer customized

business consulting services, such as addressing human resource challenges and identifying the skills

sets needed by industry. Workforce and Labor Market Information (LMI) is essential to the Texas

Panhandle’s economy, providing for the efficient operation of labor markets by supplying quality

labor market intelligence. Accurate, objective, relevant, timely, and accessible workforce and LMI is

critical for:

e  Building a skilled workforce that spurs business competitiveness and economic growth;

e Strengthening career pathways and guiding skill attainment for good jobs, economic opportunity,
and career growth;

e Understanding the rapidly changing nature of work and how it impacts the workforce and the
area’s economy; and

e Spending workforce training and education funds effectively.

WSP BSRs worked closely with Economic Development Corporations (EDCs), Colleges,
Universities, and employers. The largest consumers of WSP’s LMI Services were the Amarillo EDC
(9 total LMI projects), Amarillo College (LMI presentations at each campus throughout the Texas
Panhandle), Frank Phillips College and Clarendon College (both utilized LMI to choose new
educational programs at area campuses).

WSP Business Services staff, in cooperation with the Panhandle Community Partnership began work
on creating an interactive website to clearly visualize career pathway maps. This tool features Target
Occupations from the PWDA., including wage, education requirements, and up-to-date LMI.

System Goal 2 and Rationale

Engage in Partnerships



https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills
https://tea.texas.gov/academics/curriculum-standards/teks/texas-essential-knowledge-and-skills

Workforce system partners leverage local and regional partnerships to enhance system alignment and
improve outcomes and reporting. Partnerships rely on a culture of collaboration and trust, deep
working relationships, and communication to provide a solid foundation on which to coordinate
planning, integrate processes, and develop the collective technical capacity to share needs, data, and
information.

System Goal 2—Local Board Response

Please describe your primary (top) partnerships, how you use them to address key strategies in
vour plan, and the significant outcomes and progress related to the partnerships. In addition,
specifically describe partnerships that foster innovation and improved participant engagement and
outcomes in workforce development.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 4-10, 34-37., 52, 55-57

In alienment with TWC’s System Goal 2, the PWDB will continue to expand partnerships with
system partners and stakeholders to promote collaboration, joint planning, and enhanced participant
outcomes by:

e Improving rehabilitation employment outcomes by establishing additional partnerships with
secondary and postsecondary entities, and employers;

e Increasing access to, referral between, and outcomes of adult education programs and services;

e Implementing a coordinated approach, with Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), to serving
employers, and to identifying opportunities and strategies for improved coordination and
enhanced participant outcomes;

e Participating in regional discussions with the Texas Education Agency about career pathway
expansion opportunities for high school students;

e Implementing case management that integrates data among multiple programs:

e Collaborating with State and community agencies for enhancing services to foster youth:

e Connecting more ex-offenders with adult education programs through better developed referral
processes and appropriate short-term integrated training options; and

e  Promoting the importance of community and technical colleges to targeted adult education
services that transition adult learners to higher education.

The PWDB’s strategy to work with entities carrying out the core programs and with required partners
to align resources available to the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA), and to achieve
the vision and goals, includes developing and actively supporting dynamic industry partnerships. By
aligning and sharing resources through existing collaborations, the PWDB is assisted in designing
and delivering services based on business and industry needs, thus enhancing employer engagement.

*Businesses/Employers — The PWDB develops and actively supports dynamic partnerships by
aligning and sharing resources through existing collaborations, such as the Panhandle Board’s
Business Advisory Committee, comprised of Board and non-Board members, private sector
employers, area college representatives, Board staff, and contractor staff, to assist the Board in
designing and delivering services based on business and industry needs. The strengths of workforce
activities in the Panhandle region are the innovative employment and training opportunities
developed through the creation of new partnerships with businesses, employers, and training
providers in the Panhandle.

80



*Economic Development — Work continues to encourage and support local partners to pursue skills
development grant opportunities to apply for and obtain grants such as TWC’s Jobs and Education
for Texas (JET), and the High Demand Job Training (HDJT) grants. HDJT’s $150.000 annual Grant
Application opportunities have provided, to-date, over $1,040.000 which were matched by the EDCs,
for the PWDA. The PWDB plans to continue requesting these WIOA Activities funds which have
supplemented Career & Technology Education (CTE) training programs throughout the PWDA.

*Community Colleges — Continued collaboration with required partners in local business and
education, and with local community organizations, will enhance the PWDB’s workforce system
capacity for delivering effective employment and training services, while meeting required
performance. Successfully aligning resources and responding to expected shortages of workers in
skilled trades and technical occupations due to the skills gap created by employee turnover, combined
with the increasing demand for a highly-technically skilled workforce, are essential.

Amarillo College, the PWDA’s Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) Service Provider, is developing
a new digital customer referral tool, MyOneFlow, to enhance the collaboration with the PWDB and
WSP. in performing intake, determining program eligibility, assisting with enrollment in classes,
coordinating supportive services as needed, and facilitating the process of connecting customers in
order to provide English language, math, reading, and writing instruction to help students acquire the
skills needed to succeed in the workforce, earn a high school equivalency, or enter college or career

training.

*Independent School Districts (ISDs) — One of the goals of the PWDB is to expand collaboration,
joint planning, and enhanced participant outcomes with regional ISDs. The PWDB and WSP will
strive to gain more access to benefit students through developing additional career pathways and
dual-credit training opportunities.

*Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) — Collaboration and joint planning with VR Services and TWC
continues for providing a seamless approach for access to integrated workforce services, literacy
education, vocational rehabilitation, and in-demand workplace skills that lead to self-sufficient
employment and advancement for individuals with disabilities. Promoting partnerships with
employers and system stakeholders will overcome barriers to meeting workforce needs through
creative use of technology and innovation.

*Chambers of Commerce — In addition to creating new employment opportunities, a key element
in the Panhandle is motivating skilled workers to remain in or return to the Panhandle area. This can
be achieved by developing and implementing a targeted approach to overcoming challenges inherent
in virtual employment. Coordinating with system partners like the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce,
AEDC, and local colleges to promote the economically and personally rewarding benefits of staying
in or returning to Amarillo, is an effective approach.

*Ex-offenders — WSP coordinates with the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) to provide
information to local Parole Division Officers, regarding Job Seeker services for its Releasees, to
enable the Officers to make referrals to WSP to help these individuals locate, enter and retain

employment.

System Goal 3 and Rationale

Align System Elements




By improving transitions, aligning programs, and ensuring portability and transferability, Texas
improves access and the ability of all participants to complete programs of study, earn credentials,
transition to further education, and gain critical employability skills. Texas employers are better
positioned to find and hire the employees they need through an enhanced education and training
pipeline.

System Goal 3—Local Board Response

Please describe alienment efforts and the status, outcomes, and plan for continuous
improvement of system aliecnment in vour region. In the description, include barriers,
considerations, and proposed actions to overcome the barriers.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 5-8, 13-22, 38-39, 55-57

Through the implementation of a common technical core curriculum that is recognized statewide,
programs of study can enhance delivery efficiency, dual-credit effectiveness, and improve student
outcomes and transitions. In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 3, the PWDB will continue to:

e Improve and enhance services, programs, and policies to align with programs of study in
community and technical colleges with secondary programs;

e FEnhance transition services for students and youth with disabilities to competitive integrated
employment or to postsecondary education and training followed by competitive integrated
employment, aligning with the Pathways to Careers Initiative (PCI);

e Develop and implement policies and processes to career and technical education opportunities for
dual credit; and

e Seek input from business and industry to identify essential knowledge, skills, and abilities they

require.

The PWDB continues to endeavor to connect job seekers and other populations with barriers to
employment to numerous career and training resources and opportunities to prepare them for entry
or reentry into the workforce in high-growth industry sectors, and improve customer opportunities
for growth. The PWDB and its partner agencies continue to cultivate emerging industries, support
existing businesses and enhance the skills development of the workforce taking advantage of strategic
opportunities provided by swift economic change.

In alignment with the TWC Strategic Plan, the PWDB continues to strive for improved access and
efficiency, along with value-added services, to benefit customers of the workforce system. The
PWDB recognizes that along with system partners, it is responsible for the delivery of twenty
workforce education and training programs and related services, as well as education programs that
support career preparation and advancement. The PWDB, WSP. and community partners continue
to follow the principal of full integration of core programs, with a strategy of alignment, coordination,
and integration of education, employment and training programs. The PWDB continues its objective
of structuring collaboration of programs, initiatives and outcomes, to avoid duplication with strategic
plans of partner agencies. The PWDB and its partners are committed to customer satisfaction, data-
driven program improvement, and continuous improvement and innovation.

Positive relationships are sustained by the PWDB with all local training providers that offer training
in target and in-demand occupations. PWDB staff continue to facilitate provider applications to the
ETPS for programs that will prepare students for the Target Occupations.

82



WSP staff provide connections to other resources that may be leveraged to allow customers to receive
training other than in a traditional classroom setting (e.g., apprenticeship programs). Well-trained and
committed case management staff deliver front line services including individual assessment and
collaborate with customers on the development of quality service plans that create career pathways
that lead to success.

The PWDB strives to connect workforce development staff with local ISDs in an active meaningful
way by establishing and maintaining a consistent workforce staff presence in middle schools and high
schools by assigning Outreach Specialists dedicated to connecting school counselors and students to
resources to access local labor market tools and career exploration information.

Strategies relating to the performance accountability measures based on performance indicators
described in WIOA §116(b)(2)(A) include collaboration with workforce system partners to align,
leverage, and combine local communities’ workforce resources. The PWDB continues to develop,
facilitate, and expand innovative partnerships between the Board and employers, community
colleges, AEL providers, WSP and other stakeholders, to leverage resources for the provision and
integration of an array of workforce services.

System Goal 4 and Rationale

Improve and Integrate Programs

Accelerate employment and improve efficiencies through shared resources that can be leveraged to
create new, relevant, and innovative opportunities that serve the needs of all stakeholders. By
addressing high-priority programmatic needs through an integrated strategy, decision-making at the
system, partner, and participant levels is improved and system service delivery is enhanced. The
changing economic and educational landscapes provide opportunities to share relevant data through
appropriate “push” mechanisms in an organized manner to key stakeholders who rely on information
generated by system partners.

System Goal 4—Local Board Response

Please describe local efforts to integrate processes and share resources across programs in your
region. Identify efficiencies realized and improved participant outcomes as a result. Describe how
this work can be leveraged to create new, relevant opportunities that serve the needs of all
stakeholders.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 5-10, 41-42., 52-54

In alignment with TWC’s System Goal 4, the PWDB will continue to:

e Identify and implement new, relevant technology and service delivery options to expand program
and service outcomes:

e Increase competitive integrated employment outcomes by increasing awareness of Vocational
Rehabilitation (VR) services and better serving underserved populations;

e Enhance quality of increase access to quality child care to support parents in obtaining and
retaining employment;

e Support professional development opportunities for child care providers:

e Promote increasing the number of child care providers certified as meeting Texas Rising Star

83




(TRS), or other recognized quality rating and improvement system standards, in the child care
system;

e Provide rural service delivery options through the use of mobile units and affiliate sites;

e Direct students to available training and career path options with onsite support at public middle
and high schools;

e Expand the use of technology for providing online services such as job fairs, eligibility
determination, and other interactions; and

e Improve service delivery methods to increase effectiveness of service delivery and achievement
of employment outcomes for underserved populations.

The PWDB continues to support TWC’s goal, as stated in in 2021-2025 TWC Strategic Plan to
prepare individuals for employment by supporting education and training that equips individuals with
in-demand skills as identified by employers by:

e Continuing ongoing support of education programs for students that inform them and prepare
them for high-skill, high-demand jobs through identification and allocation of available programs
and resources;

e Addressing the workforce training needs of employers by leveraging Skills Development Fund
(SDF) grants; Texas Industry Partnership (TIP) program grants, which support collaborations
between the Board and industry partners through the leveraging of matching contributions of cash
or _qualifying expenditures for occupation training focusing on the Texas Industry Cluster
Initiative; and other available resources to support in-demand job training;

e Continuing to support work-based learning opportunities through internships, mentorships, and
job shadowing, and

e Continuing to coordinate and collaborate with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
and the Texas Education Agency to support and develop objectives for increasing the percentage
of Texans with post-secondary degrees or certification.

Mastering current and emerging technology are the keys to creating and conducting an effective
technology based integrated system for customer intake and case management. Complete
understanding and application of current capabilities enables full utilization of existing tools,
primarily WorkInTexas.com. Adopting and adapting additional, more efficient technologies, such as
a real-time customer tracking system, provides WSP staff with the means to quickly and accurately
assess customer needs and provide seamless service delivery, while maintaining service priority
requirements.

The PWDB has purchased the digital communication management (DCM) software Granicus
GovDelivery to enable WSP to build content to be shared with job seekers and connect/distribute
through a number of different mediums, including email, Short Message Service (SMS)/text
messages, Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds, and social media integration, including, but not
limited to, a monthly newsletter.

In addition to creating new employment opportunities, a key element in the PWDB is motivating
skilled workers to remain in or return to the Panhandle area. This can be achieved by developing and
implementing a targeted approach to overcoming challenges inherent in virtual employment. Since
college graduates drive economic development, redoubling efforts to coordinate with system partners
like the Amarillo Chamber of Commerce, Amarillo Economic Development Corporation, and local
colleges to promote the fact that staying in or returning to Amarillo, can be economically and
personally rewarding.

84



Before TWIC began the process to develop the new system strategic plan, Board directors were
invited to provide input on issues and opportunities for consideration in system planning. Please
consider the responses you provided (above) to local board area implementation of the four primary
goals in the current system plan and identify how the new system strategic plan can help future
implementation of your regional goals and strategies related to the following:

Increase engagement of target populations, including Opportunity Youth, Texans with
disabilities, foster vyouth, and sex-trafficking victims.

Describe Board strategies that support engagement of sometimes underserved populations.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 5-9, 39, 49-52, 58-60

*Opportunity Youth are defined as youth between the ages of 16-24 who are disconnected from
education and the workforce. Prior to 2020, the national average of Opportunity Youth was 11%. in
Texas it was 13%, and in rural Texas, it was 27%. Although the broad impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic on this population are not yet fully understood, it is safe to assume that those percentages
went up rather than down. While there is no system currently in place for tracking these individuals
in the Texas Panhandle, we do know that after high school graduation we lose track of about half of
our students, meaning they do not go on to enroll in a postsecondary institution and they are not
trackable in the workforce.

The PWDB and WSP have developed a new staff position to enhance youth and young adult
activities. This Career Outreach Specialist will focus on innovative technology in Virtual Career
Exploration. The PWDB is purchasing Virtual Reality headsets, along with library of occupational
videos, which transport the user into an interactive environment to participate in performing tasks in
a specific job. The Career Outreach Specialist will host events, both in area schools and in WSP
offices, guiding students in exploration of potential occupations and careers in their areas of interest.

The PWDB’s Youth program is primarily focused on Out-of-School Youth who need postsecondary
education and/or work experience to achieve self-sufficiency. Disconnected youth, parenting youth,
first-generation college students, foster youth, and youth who have other barriers to employment, are
the priority youth populations determined most likely to benefit from local workforce services.

Increasing the number and quality of work-based training opportunities for at-risk youth such as paid
internships for college students and graduating high school seniors that are directly related to
students’ career interests. Many youth served in workforce programs must be engaged in an
occupational component, so paid internships will offer competitive wages to encourage participation.
These internships will include mentoring by supervisors trained by workforce staff to provide
appropriate encouragement and career exploration.

*Texans with Disabilities - The PWDB continues, through the Texas HireAbility campaign, to
engage a Student HireAbility Navigator to fulfil the stated purpose of this position “To improve
access to employment and training services and increase employment opportunities for job seekers
with disabilities”. The Panhandle’s Student HireAbility Navigator is fully involved in serving as a
resource in the PWDA by “supporting, expanding, and enhancing the provision of pre-employment
transition services that are provided by VR”, co-located in the WSP office in Amarillo. Through
active participation in numerous relevant local committee meetings, attending local job fairs and
transitional fairs, reaching more employers and service providers as well as educators, the Navigator
continually identifies and reaches out to crucial partners who have shared goals and objectives to

85




bring to the table. The Navigator is also focusing on building a knowledge base by attending statewide
workforce events such as the TWC Annual Workforce Conference, presenting information at the
Texas Business Conference about hiring students with disabilities, including discussing the
possibility of creating HireAbility Workshops in Amarillo, and participating in the collection and
completion of information for a resource guide for employers in hiring individuals with disabilities.
The Navigator promotes the Texas HireAbility Campaign at meetings with educators, employers and
community partners to increase the awareness of the benefits of hiring people with disabilities as well
as increasing access to pre-employment transition services.

United We Work, a half day of job shadowing for students with disabilities, was most recently held
on October 27, 2022 to help promote and raise awareness of National Disability Employment
Awareness Month. 28 students participated with hands-on work experience at eight different
employer sites including a veterinary clinic, restaurant, hair salon, automotive detailing center, and
an elementary school. Students also received training on how to prepare for a job interview, followed
by mock interviews from community business leaders.

EPIC Success College and Career Conference targets rural school districts with 19 schools and more
than 600 students participating. VR participates and shares resources with teachers, staff, students
and emplovers regarding the services available for students with disabilities.

*Foster Youth — Foster youth are a priority population. TWC funds transition centers serving both
current and former youth. The centers address critical life barriers facing youth who have or will
soon age out of the foster care system. They provide access to education, employment training and
services, life skills classes, mentoring opportunities, and appropriate support services.

WSP and the PWDB continue to develop and nurture successful partnerships with the Amarillo Foster
Youth Transition Center, at Buckner Children and Family Services, to improve and enhance the
collaborative process of connecting with foster youth and provide comprehensive workforce services,
including career exploration and occupational training or work-based training. Discussions continue
with Amarillo Children’s Home and the Turn Center, the only private, non-profit, 501(c)(3)
organization in the federal Medically Underserved Area (MUA) of the 26-county Texas Panhandle,
to create pathways that support Foster Youth who often have developmental delays or undiagnosed
disabilities transition from school into employment preparation and training.

*Sex-Trafficking Victims — Human trafficking affects both adults and children, men and women,
and people from all parts of Texas, the United States, and around the world. The Attorney General’s
Human Trafficking and Transnational/Organized Crime division assists law enforcement and
prosecutors on human trafficking cases, pursues civil litigation against traffickers and businesses,
assists victims with resources, engages the public through training, develops initiatives to enhance
the state’s support and coordination of human trafficking efforts, and facilitates collaboration between
federal, state, and local law enforcement and prosecutors. The Office of the Attorney General (OAG)
also presides over the Texas Human Trafficking Prevention Task Force and Coordinating Council.
Established to increase collaborative efforts across the state, the Task Force and Coordinating Council
bring together local, state, and federal agencies and nongovernmental partners to bring an end to
human trafficking in Texas and address its impact. The OAG’s Human Trafficking and Transnational
Organized Crime Section (HTTOC) is fighting to end human trafficking in the State of Texas through
aggressive criminal prosecution and civil actions to hold offenders accountable, and aims to raise
public awareness about the threat Human Trafficking presents to Texas by providing training,
educating lawmakers and partnering with community stakeholders.

Adult Sex Trafficking is trafficking of adults for sex by force, fraud, or coercion in strip clubs,

86



brothels, massage parlors, street prostitution, or internet prostitution. Child Sex Trafficking is
trafficking children, under the age of 18, by any means into the commercial sex industry.

All PWDB and WSP complete the mandatory training produced by the TWC Training and
Development Department in collaboration with the Office of the Attorney General, “Be the One (BCS
Version) in the Fight Against Human Trafficking”, which focuses on preventing, recognizing, and
reporting “Red Flag” behaviors for Human and Sex Trafficking.

Improve efficiency and outcomes through data-driven decision-making and investments.

Describe Board strategies that support data-driven decision-making and investments.

Board response and corresponding plan page number(s): 38

The collection of key data, as well as the reporting and analysis of that data, in a consistent and useful
manner, are essential in demonstrating outcomes, determining if changes are required or desired, and
establishing benchmarks for future performance. The PWDB is committed to working with its
partners to promote the building or modification of existing data systems to improve the flow of data,
increase the relevance of data, and facilitate analysis that supports effective decision-making across
the full spectrum of data users, to achieve effective and efficient programs, services, and outcomes.

The PWDB recognizes the efforts and the recommendations of the Regional Workforce Strategy
Working Group representing the Workforce Solutions Alamo, Capital Area and Rural Capital Area.
This group was formed to strengthen the alignment of regional workforce planning with economic
development to create a data-driven, scalable model to maximize the capacity for Workforce
Development Boards to meet the needs of employers in the State and reconnect Texans to the
workforce in a way that supports long-term prosperity in urban, suburban, and rural communities.
The PWDB is exploring and will support the strategies put forth in the Texas Talent and Economic
Growth Pilot Project and Statewide Action Plan to strengthen the alignment between regional
workforce planning and economic development.

As identified in the Texas Workforce Investment Council’s strategic planning process, the PWDB
will continue to identify opportunities and develop solutions for improving performance and
outcomes that have cross-partner implications and hold significant strategic value to the overall
success of the workforce system’s ability to meet its vision and mission.to:

e Facilitate effective and efficient transitions and enhance transition services;

e Increase employment outcomes;

e Expand partnerships with system stakeholders and promote collaboration and joint planning;
Incorporate/expand options for dual credit and/or licensure and certification;
Increase business and industry involvement;
Align programs and services;
Share timely data and information;
Promulgate promising practices and reduce duplication;
Recruit and/or provide professional development;
Ensure portable and transferrable options;
e Address skills shortages:; and
e Institutionalize alternative service delivery methods.

87




PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (f)
Board Monitoring Report



PANHANDLE

REGIONAL
PLANNING
COMMISSION
MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 22, 2023
TO: Members of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board and

The Panhandle Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body
FROM: Marin Rivas, Workforce Development Director
SUBJECT:  Report on Monitoring Reviews

In its role as administrative and fiscal agent for the Panhandle Workforce Development Board
(PWDB), the Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC) is required to oversee
administration, fiscal, and program monitoring for the delivery of Workforce Development and
Child Care Services, under the Panhandle Workforce Development Area (PWDA) Service
Delivery System Contract.

As the current One-Stop Service Delivery System contractor, Huxford Group, LLC, is responsible
for delivery of Workforce Development and Child Care Services to residents of the Panhandle
Workforce Development Area, under the auspices of the Panhandle Workforce Development
Board. Federal and State legislation requires evaluations of the application of funds to recipients
of Federal and State funds. The Workforce Development Programs Funding sources are
comprised of Federal and State funds available through funding streams from the U.S. Department
of Labor, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, and the U.S. Department of Agriculture
for the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families (TANF) Employment Services, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Employment and Training Services (SNAP E&T), Employment Services (ES) authorized by the
Wagner-Peyser Act, Child Care and Development funds, and the Jobs for Veterans Act of 2002.

As Federal and State legislation and policies require recipients of federal funds to conduct a
financial evaluation of the application of these funds on at least an annual basis, the following
measurements were conducted in the fiscal monitoring review:

= The degree of compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies and procedures.

= Adequacy of management controls.

= Reliable information is captured, reported, and used to improve decision-making.

= Resources are efficiently and effectively used and protected from waste, fraud, and abuse.

= Past, current and projected effectiveness and efficiency of program administration.

* Financial and program performance relevant to organizational goals.



The scope of this financial evaluation included a review of the following:
= Audit
= (Cash Management
= Cost Allocation
= Disbursements
* Financial Reporting
= Insurance

The following areas were reviewed with instances of non-compliance or otherwise reportable
conditions:

= Disbursements

* Financial and Other Reporting

The following detailed report lists updated statuses for the reviews of the current Workforce
Solutions Panhandle (WSP) sub-recipient, Huxford Group, LLC’s Service Delivery, since the last
report provided to the Board at the August 2022 meeting.

REPORT ON THE PWDA’S MONITORING REVIEWS
October 2022 — March 2023

Administration of Fiscal Control Monitoring
Conducted by External Monitor — Christine H. Nguyen, CPA

Monitoring Review Date of review Period Covered Status

October 31, 2022 — October 2021 — Final Report -

Fiscal Operating Systems November 4, 2022 September 2022 | All items resolved

Administration of United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Food
and Nutrition Service (FNS) Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(SNAP) Employment and Training (E&T) overview of the management
evaluation (ME) review system and target areas

Conducted by Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC)

Monitoring Review Date of review Period Covered Status

Access, Eligibility Services,
Orientation and Case File
testing for Able-Bodied Adult
Without Dependents
(ABAWD)/General Population

February 13, 2023~ July 2022 —

February 17, 2023 December 2022 Ongoing




Administration of Fiscal and Program Control Monitoring
Conducted by Texas Workforce Commission (TWC)

Monitoring Review Date of review Period Covered Status
Fiscal and Program Operating | February 27, 2023 — January 2022 — .
Systems March 3, 2023 December 2022 Upcoming
Child Care Eligibility/Improper | February 27, 2023 — October 2021 — Upcomin
Payment Monitoring Testing March 3, 2023 September 2022 p £

Workforce Development and Child Care Services Program Monitoring
Conducted by Internal Monitor — Kathy Cabezuela, Program Specialist

Monitoring Review Date of review Period Covered Status
. November 1, 2022 — January 2022 — .
Program Operating Systems February 24, 2023 September 2022 Ongoing
Program Operating Systems March 1, 2023 - October 2022 ~ Upcomin
g p gy May 31, 2023 December 2022 p g

*Please note; text above that is in blue font designates updated information from the previous reports.



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4 ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (g)

Child Care Quality Purchases



Child Care Quality Purchases

The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) has contracted with the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board (PWDB) / Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC) to utilize
Child Care and Development Funds to provide Quality Improvement activities such as technical
assistance, professional development and education materials for Texas Panhandle Child Care
Providers in an effort to enroll providers as initial Texas Rising Star (TRS) status or help current
TRS providers maintain and advance their current TRS status. The PWDB has tasked its sub-
recipient, Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP) with assisting local Child Care Providers who
are in the process of obtaining, or raising their current level of, TRS certification.

The TRS program is a quality-based rating system of Child Care Providers participating in
TWC’s Subsidized Child Care program. TRS certification is available to Licensed and
Registered facilities that exceed the State’s Minimum Child Care Regulation Standards and meet
the certification criteria in such categories as Director and Staff qualifications, teacher-child
interactions, age-appropriate curricula and indoor/outdoor environments. State and federal
legislation is increasingly underscoring the need for curricula and learning materials and lesson
plans designed to reflect variations in children’s needs, skills, and interests in flexible ways.
After mentoring staff visits it was noted our providers lack of a comprehensive, research-based
and validated curricula, learning materials and outdoor environments as a substantial barrier in
these Providers’ ability to achieve their certification goals.

In December 2022, on behalf of Child Care Providers who are in the process of obtaining, or
raising their current level or TRS certification, WSP staff researched appropriate preschool
educational learning materials and age-appropriate outdoor learning materials and equipment.
Kaplan Early Learning Company was selected as the vendor for the preschool educational
learning materials due to the company’s offering of “Little Learners” preloaded tablets for
preschool content including those in the STEM area, social/emotional, and language. Kaplan
Early Learning Company was also selected as the vendor for the outdoor learning materials and
equipment due to their product offering compared to other companies. Teaching Strategies was
selected as the vendor for the curricula as we have previously researched the curricula and found
their curricula comprehensive for all ages from infant/toddler to preschool. With the Teaching
Strategies purchase it also allows the curricula to remain consistent across the Panhandle TRS
providers. WSP staff also identified curricula from Teaching Strategies, previously purchased for
providers, for additional purchases at this time.

On August 27, 2020, the PRPC Board of Directors approved an Interlocal Agreement with The
Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) for PRPC to gain access to the TIPS purchasing contracts.
TIPS is a department of the Education Service Center Region 8, and a governmental public entity
created by the Texas Legislature, authorized to enter into interlocal agreements with other
governmental entities for the purpose of performing governmental functions on behalf of the
parties to the interlocal agreement. It conducts competitive procurements with in-house
personnel and legal counsel to enable government agencies to make purchases using its
purchasing contracts.

The purchases for all of the projects described above were made through the TIPS purchasing
process. The total cost for all three projects is $431,408.36 and funds for this purchase would
come from existing Workforce Development Child Care Quality and Child Care Quality CRRSA
funds.



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING
COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (h)

Career and Education Outreach Specialist



MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 22, 2023

TO: Members of the Panhandle Workforce Development Board and the Panhandle
Workforce Development Consortium’s Governing Body

FROM: Marin Rivas, Workforce Development Director
SUBJECT: Workforce Career and Education Outreach Specialist Program

In July 2018, the Texas Workforce Commission’s (TWC) three-member Commission approved the
Workforce Career and Technical Education Outreach Specialist Pilot Program using Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) statewide reserve funds. This two-year initiative was designed
to provide Texas students with information about educational opportunities, local labor market demand,
and career information to help them make sound career decisions that lead to marketable skills after
graduation.

By the end of the first year of this initiative, Workforce Career and Education Outreach Specialists
conducted 4,859 presentations for Texas students and provided 1,591 partner/teacher presentations.
These efforts resulted in 223,086 students attending a career event, and, of those students, 122,552
received hands-on career engagement with a Workforce Career and Education Outreach Specialist.

Staff is proposing to utilize TANF Choices funds to establish a Workforce Career and Education
Outreach Specialists program to provide career guidance, career preparation, and workforce information
to participating students regarding:
e high-growth, high-demand occupations;
opportunities and training in middle-skill jobs;
pre-apprenticeship and Registered Apprenticeship (RA) programs;
internships;
technical and/or community colleges; and
career-readiness preparation.

To initiate this program, the WSP Contractor will be responsible for, at a minimum:
e organizing training workshops on LMI data;
e providing career support workshops for students, parents, and guardians;
o fostering employer—ISD collaboration and encouraging employers to provide internship
opportunities and serve as mentors; and
e organizing job development and career fairs.

Staff is also proposing to purchase Virtual Reality headset/goggles to be used as a career exploration
tool. The estimated cost of the headset/goggles is $3,000 per set and the Board plans to purchase ten
(10) sets initially.

Through the implementation of this new program and the purchase of the Virtual Reality
headset/goggles students will be exposed to a variety of career paths giving them the opportunity to
make a more fully informed decision for their future career.



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

4 ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (i)

SKills Development Fund Application



Memorandum of Understanding
Between the Panhandle Workforce Development Board and Plains Dairy

PARTIES

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Panhandle Workforce
Development Board (PWDB), and Plains Dairy.

Other stakeholders referenced in this agreement:

e Texas Workforce Commission (TWC), agency of the State of Texas providing services
related to employment to eligible individuals and businesses;

e Workforce Solutions Panhandle (WSP), serves as the PWDB’s Service Delivery
Contractor;

e Panhandle Regional Planning Commission (PRPC) serves as administrative and fiscal
agent for the PWDB; and

e Mr. Jody Holland, Skills and Operational Training Program Provider for Safe Quality
Food (SQF) Implementation in a milk processing plant such as Plains Dairy.

PURPOSE

The PWDB oversees workforce development program services provided in the 26-county
region of the Panhandle. In this capacity, one of the roles of the PWDB is to partner with
businesses and training providers to develop and implement site-specific, customized,
“upskilling” training opportunities for the region’s businesses and their employees, to
increase skill levels and wages, such as through the TWC Skills Development Fund (SDF).

Plains Dairy, located in Amarillo, is a leading provider of high-quality milk and dairy
products in the region. The company is dedicated to producing milk from local farmers and
distributing it to customers in the area. They have a state-of-the-art processing facility that
allows them to turn raw milk into a variety of products, including milk, cheese, butter, and
ice cream. Plains Dairy is proposing to take advantage of SDF funding for training to invest
in measurable skills development of its employees, through a Training Program provided by
Mr. Jody Holland.

The PWDB, in partnership with Plains Dairy, and with input from WSP, is submitting an
application for a TWC SDF Funding Request for Training. This MOU binds PRPC and
Plains Dairy to specify the roles and responsibilities of each party, which each party will
provide toward the Training Program.

Memorandum of Understanding
Panhandle Regional Planning Commission / Plains Dairy
Page 1



PERIOD

This Agreement shall be effective as of February 8, 2023, and shall remain in effect through
September 30, 2024, or until amended or terminated by the parties hereto. This agreement
may be modified at any time as mutually agreed upon by PRPC and Plains Dairy and may
be terminated by either party with thirty (30) days advance written notice.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

It is understood by the parties that each should be able to fulfill its responsibilities under this
Agreement in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations which govern their
activities. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to negate, or otherwise render ineffective,
any such provisions or operating procedures. If at any time either party is unable to perform
its functions under this Agreement, consistent with such party’s statutory and regulatory
mandates, the affected party shall immediately provide written notice to the other to establish
a date for mutual resolution of the conflict; provided, however, notwithstanding any such
resolution, each party shall be relieved of any duties hereunder to the extent they conflict

with applicable law.

e Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the Parties hereto understand
and agree that PRPC’s obligations for costs incurred or performances rendered under
this Agreement are contingent upon receipt of adequate funds from federal and State
sources to meet PRPC liabilities hereunder. This Agreement is subject to revision upon
actual receipt of grant funds from federal or State sources.

e The Parties hereto understand and agree that any recipients of grant funds may not
knowingly enter into any agreement with any corporation that has any unpaid Federal
tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability.

e The parties will comply with Chapter 2264 of the Texas Government Code. Pursuant to
Texas Government Code §2264.051, a business that applies to receive a public subsidy
from a state agency shall certify that the business, or a branch, division, or department
of the business does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker as
defined in Texas Government Code, §2264.001(4).

e All parties to this agreement shall comply with:

v" Section 188 of the WIOA Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity Regulations (29
CFR Part 38; Final Rule, published December 2, 2016);
v’ Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352);

Memorandum of Understanding
Panhandle Regional Planning Commission / Plains Dairy
Page 2



Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,;

The Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act (ADAAA) of 2008 (Public Law
110-325);

The Jobs for Veterans Act (Public Law 107-288) pertaining to priority of service in
programs funded by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL);

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 37-14, Update on Complying
with Nondiscrimination Requirements: Discrimination Based on Gender Identity,
Gender Expression and Sex Stereotyping are Prohibited Forms of Sex Discrimination
in the Workforce Development System and other guidance related to implementing
WIOA Sec. 188;

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34
CFR part 99);

All requirements in federal and State law for safeguarding Personally Identifying
Information (PII) and maintaining the confidentiality of any information that
identifies or may be used to identify any participant. All releases of information shall
be in accordance with The National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)
Guide to Protecting the Confidentiality of PII available online at:
http://nvlpubs.nist.gov/nistpubs/Legacy/SP/nistspecialpublication800-122.pdf; and
All requirements imposed by the regulations issued pursuant to these acts and all
amendments to each.

Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, the parties’ obligations hereunder are
in all respects limited by applicable law (whether now existing or hereafter arising),
including without limitation, the Texas Public Information Act, the Texas Open Meetings
Act, and document retention laws and regulations.

RESPONSIBILITIES

In accordance with their mutual goals and objectives, the parties hereto agree that their
responsibilities under this agreement will be as specified below:

The PWDB and PRPC agree to:

Develop, complete and submit to TWC, an SDF Funding Application for an SDF Grant
Project to train approximately 100 employees of Plains Dairy utilizing a customized Safe
Quality Food (SQF) food safety and quality management system that provides guidelines
for the production, processing, packaging, and distribution of food products, following
a training outline developed by Jody Holland;

Act as the primary point of contact and coordinate requests for information or assistance
relating to the Grant or this Agreement;

Memorandum of Understanding
Panhandle Regional Planning Commission / Plains Dairy
Page 3



o Act as the primary fiscal and programmatic agent responsible for administration of State and
federal funding allocated toward the Grant and maintain all related records;

e Manage grant funding awarded for the project and process billing invoices from Jody
Holland; and

o Fulfill TWC’s grant reporting requirements as contracted in any grant award utilized towards
this program.

Plains Dairy agrees to acknowledge and assure that:

o All project participants are full-time employees prior to receiving training with Grant funds;

e It is contributing and will continue to contribute Texas Unemployment Insurance taxes for
any participant that receives training with Grant funds;

o By the completion of the training project, the wages paid to the project participants meet or
exceed the hourly wage or wage range corresponding to their respective job titles, as
included and approved in the SDF application;

e By the completion of the training project, the wages paid to the project participants will
average a 1% wage increase,

e Tt will employ the project participants for at least ninety (90) days after the completion of
training;

e It will document and provide project participant data as required or requested by TWC;

e It will reasonably cooperate with the PWDB and PRPC to operate with regard to the Grant
policies and interpretations from PWDB and PRPC;

o It will retain records and information relating to this Agreement and the Grant;

e It will ensure the security and privacy of personally-identifiable information of Grant
participants that comes into Plains Dairy’s possession; and

o It will ensure that information regarding this Agreement and the Grant is available for review
by federal and State auditors and monitors, as needed upon request.

APPROVAL

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties related to the subject matter hereof
and may not be varied by oral agreements or representations, regardless when made.

Panhandle Workforce Development Board Plains Dairy

By: /// L / - By: ﬁjf—/‘"’_”

Mr. Marm Rlvas
Workforce Development Director

Memorandum of Understanding
Panhandle Regional Planning Commission / Plains Dairy
Page 4



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
n PLANNING
4+ ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (K)

Director’s Report



{ TEXAS

&l e 2

Labor Market S it

. 155
Information
Panhandle Workforce Development Area December 2022
WDA Labor Force Statistics
\:I Dec-22| Nov-22 Dec-21 Yearly Change]
Dallam Sheman Hansford | Ochiltree | Lipscomb Civilian Labor Force 205,803 205,514 206,000 -197|
Employed 200,209 199,470 199,812 397
Unemployed 5,594 6,044 6,188 -594]
Unemployment Rate 2.7%)| 2.9% 3.0%] -0.3%)
Hartley Moore Hutchinson Roberts Hemphill Texas Labor Force Statistics
Dec-22| Nov-22) Dec-21 Yearly Change]
Civilian Labor Force 14,720,000 14,704,057 14,369,567 350,433]
o - r— aray - Employed 14,189,378 14,160,174 13,761,548 427,830
Unemployed 530,622 543,883 608,019 -77,397]
Unemployment Rate 3.6%)| 3.7%)] 4.2%) -0.6%)
US Labor Force Statistics
Deaf Smith Randall Armstrong Donley Collingsworth Dec-22| Nov-22 Dec-21 Yearly Change
Civilian Labor Force 164,224,000 164,272,000 161,696,000 2,528,000
Employed 158,872,000 158,749,000 155,732,000 3,140,000
parmer Castro Swisher Briscoe - S Unemployed 5,352,000 5,523,000 5,964,000 -612,000]
Unemployment Rate 3.3%| 3.4% 3.7%] -0.4%)
Continued Claims for the Week of the 12th

Dec-22| Nov-22) Dec-21 Yearly Change]
IWDA 554 560 636 -82)
Texas 88,368 80,935 81,952 6,416

Historical Unemployment Rates

16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%

o,
2%

0%

N 00O WMOVOVOVOVODDDDDNDODONNDNOOO0O00000000O0 T "~ - - NNANNNNNNNNNN
B B L L L L E L B L AL L Y Y Y Y Y Y NN Y YNNI ANDTY
Ocaoss>cSsOoaR Ocass>xcSsO0oaR c o = = = e >Scs5 00 c o = 5 +3
T o =] O B T O =] SN T o =] O B T o =] O D T o =] O ©
BSP228337302882828332382859328337352852828332538283922833238628
M Texas m US mPanhandle
Projected Top Ten Fastest Growing Industries in WDA (% Growth 2020- Employment by Size Class (2nd Quarter 2022)
2030)
/— 1-4:5.2%
Tviti ()
Supportachies  so% 1000+ : 21.8% 5-9:63%
Utility system ! 30.19% / 10-19: 8.4%
construction 1 \
Dairy product | 37.6% o
manufacturing ™ 500-999:6.9% — - . o
Office administrative ] 36.7% ( 20-49:15.2%
services 250-499 : 8.0% -
Natural resources 1 35.69
and mining i 100-249 : 15.0% J \- 50-99 : 12.9%
Management of companies 1 35.1%
and enterprises 1"
C°mpgfé zz‘tee’é‘sssrfnsc'g’; | 34.7% Employment by Ownership (2nd Quarter 2022)
Nonresidential building | St Federal
construction s Government 1.6%
Residential DUldiNG |y o0 State
construction o " Government 3.1%
Home health = oo ,\ Local
care services | | | | | Government 14.0%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%
Average Weekly Wage (2nd Quarter 2022)
Q2 2022 Q1 2022 Q2 2021 Quarterly Change| Yearly Change|
WDA $1,006) $1,017] $968) $-11 $38 Private 81.3% /
Texas $1,284 $1,368 $1,210] $-84 $74]
Us $1,294| $1,374 $1,241 $-80) $53
Employment by Industry (2nd Quarter 2022, Percent Change) Employment by Industry (2nd Quarter 2022)
Public
% of % Quarterly % Yearly L .
Industry Employment Total Change Change Administration 4.3% Natural Resources
— Other and Mining 8.2%
Natural Resources and Mining 15,248 8.2% 4.8% 3.5%) Services 2.9% o
Construction 11,392 6.1%) -1.7% -1.7% Leisure and +— Construction 6.1%
Manufacturing 23,160  12.4%) 2.9% -8.9% Hospitality 107% -
Trade, Transportation and Ultilities 39,397, 21.1% 0.5% 3.0% \\ Manufacturing 12.4%
Information 1,688 0.9% 0.1% -1.0%
Financial Activities 8,108]  4.3% 0.1% 9% Hea:fﬁ‘g;g‘g:g‘; g% —
greorf/?s:isonal and Business 11,696 6.3% -0.1%) 4.7% Professulnnal and ° 4
4 i Business Services 6.3% \ Trade, Transportation
Ed.ucatlon and Heglth Services 42,517 22.8% 0.1% 2.2% Financial \ and Utilities 21.1%
Leisure and Hospitality 19,892 10.7%! 7.4% 5.4% Activities 4.3% \_ Information 0.9%
Other Services 5,494 2.9% 2.5% 2.6% e
Public Administration 8,017 4.3% 2.0% -5.1%
Page 1 of 5 2/9/2023 12:36:22 PM



O TEXAS

Labor Market
Information
WDA Labor Force Statistics Texas Labor Force Statistics
. CLF . Employed . Unemployed . Rate . CLF . Employed . Unemployed . Rate
250,000 - 3.05 16,000,000 . 43
3 r4.2
o\ 14,000,000 1
200,000 - 295 4
12,000,000 1 L4
29 & 8
. & = 39 ©
8 150,000 | $ 285 | § 10000000 $ T
S - 3|5 > 138 &
L 2 28 E|“ 8000000 g £
] 2 o| o Q L37 ©
S 100,000 | 3 275 2|3 8 s
= & §| soo000 & 136 §
27 S =]
4,000,000 35
50,000 - 2.65 L34
26 2,000,000 | 33
0- +2.55 0 32
Dec 2021 Nov 2022 Dec 2022 Dec 2021 Nov 2022 Dec 2022
Dec-22 Nov-22 Dec-21 Yearly Change Dec-22 Nov-22 Dec-21 Yearly Change
Civilian Labor Force 205,803 205,514 206,000 -197 [Civilian Labor Force 14,720,000 14,704,057 14,369,567 350,433
Employed 200,209 199,470 199,812 397 [Employed 14,189,378 14,160,174 13,761,548 427,830
Unemployed 5,594 6,044 6,188 -594 [Unemployed 530,622 543,883 608,019 77,397
Unemployment Rate 2.7% 2.9% 3.0% -0.3% |Unemployment Rate 3.6% 3.7% 4.2% -0.6%
US Labor Force Statistics Continued Claims for the Week of the 12th
. CLF . Employed . Unemployed . Rate . Texas . WDA
180,000,000 - 38 100,000 - .
160,000,000 - la7 90,000 - 1
80,000 - 1
140,000,000 - a6
Q 4 4
120,000,000 - — 3 70,000 .
] § 35 218 60000 g |
S 100,000,000 - > |5 >
v E 134 E|% 50,000 g
2 80,000,000 | = 2|2 3
] g a3 E[S 40,000 - &
60,000,000 5 30,000 - 1
3.2
40,000,000 - 20,000 |
20,000,000 - 34 10,000 .
0- -3 0- ‘ | |
Dec 2021 Nov 2022 Dec 2022 Dec 2021 Nov 2022 Dec 2022
Dec-22 Nov-22 Dec-21 Yearly Change Dec-22 Nov-22 Dec-21 Yearly Change
Civilian Labor Force 164,224,000 164,272,000 161,696,000 2,528,000
Employed 158,872,000 158,749,000 155,732,000 3,140,000 | WDA 554 560 636 -82
Unemployed 5,352,000 5,523,000 5,964,000 -612,000
Unemployment Rate 3.3% 3.4% 3.7% 0.4% | Texas 88,368 80,935 81,952 6,416

Historical Unemployment Rates

16% -
14% -
12%
10%
8%
6% -
4%

o,
2% -

0%

Page 2 of 5

2/9/2023 12:36:22 PM



O TEXAS

Labor Market
Information
Months WDA Texas us
Dec-22 2.7 3.6 858
Nov-22 29 37 3.4
Oct-22 3.0 3.8 3.4
Sep-22 2.9 3.8 3.3
Aug-22 3.1 4.2 3.8
Jul-22 3.2 43 3.8
Jun-22 3.3 4.4 3.8
May-22 238 3.8 3.4
Apr-22 26 37 33
Mar-22 238 3.9 3.8
Feb-22 35 47 4.1
Jan-22 35 4.8 4.4
Dec-21 3.0 42 37
Nov-21 33 45 3.9
Oct-21 35 4.8 43
Sep-21 3.6 5.1 46
Aug-21 3.9 55 53
Jul-21 4.1 5.8 5.7
Jun-21 45 6.3 6.1
May-21 3.8 5.7 55
Apr-21 &) 58 5.7
Mar-21 45 6.5 6.2
Feb-21 48 6.8 6.6
Jan-21 49 7.0 6.8
Dec-20 46 6.7 6.5
Nov-20 45 6.8 6.4
Oct-20 4.2 6.6 6.6
Sep-20 45 76 7.7
[Aug-20 46 7.9 8.5
Jul-20 5.8 9.8 10.5
Jun-20 6.6 10.5 112
May-20 6.9 11.8 13.0
Apr-20 7.0 12.1 14.4
Mar-20 4.0 5.4 45
Feb-20 26 3.4 3.8
Jan-20 238 37 4.0
Dec-19 24 3.2 3.4
Nov-19 26 3.3 3.3
Oct-19 25 3.3 3.3
Sep-19 26 35 3.3
Aug-19 2.8 3.7 3.8
Jul-19 3.0 3.9 4.0
Jun-19 29 338 3.8
May-19 23 3.1 3.4
Apr-19 23 3.1 3.3
Mar-19 2.7 3.5 3.9
Feb-19 2.9 3.8 4.1
Jan-19 3.1 42 4.4
Dec-18 27 36 37
Nov-18 27 35 35
Oct-18 27 36 35
Sep-18 238 3.8 3.6
Aug-18 3.0 4.0 3.9
Jul-18 3.1 4.1 4.1
Jun-18 3.2 43 4.2
May-18 26 36 36
Apr-18 27 37 37
Mar-18 3.0 4.1 4.1
Feb-18 3.1 4.2 4.4
Jan-18 3.1 4.3 4.5
Dec-17 2.8 3.8 3.9

Page 3 of 5 2/9/2023 12:36:22 PM



O TEXAS

@ Labor Market
Information

Projected Top Ten Fastest Growing Industries in WDA (% Growth 2020-2030)

Support activities for mining 80%
Utility system construction 39.1%
Dairy product manufacturing 37.6%
Office administrative services 36.7%
Natural resources and mining 35.6%
Management of companies and enterprises 35.1%
Computer systems design and related services 34.7%
Nonresidential building construction 32.4%
Residential building construction 30.5%
Home health care services 29%
0“% 16% 20‘% 3(;% 46% 56% 6(;% 7(;% 86% 96%
Industry Title Percent Change
Support activities for mining 80
Utility system construction 39.1
Dairy product manufacturing 37.6
Office administrative services 36.7
Natural resources and mining 35.6
Management of companies and enterprises 35.1
Computer systems design and related services 34.7
Nonresidential building construction 32.4
Residential building construction 30.5
Home health care services 29

Page 4 of 5

2/9/2023 12:36:22 PM



{ TEXAS S
@ Labor Market *‘5}4 \g\g
Information MisS

Average Weekly Wage (2nd Quarter 2022)

1,600
1,400 -
1,200 -
. Q2 Q1 Q2 Quarterly Yearly
1,000 1 g 2022| 2022 2021 Change Change
800 2
1 § WDA | $1,006| $1,017| $968 $-11 $38
<]
600 1 o Texas $1,284| $1,368| $1,210 $-84 $74
400 us $1,294 | $1,374| $1,241 $-80 $53
200 -
0- T -
Q22021 Q12022 Q2 2022
B woA [ Texas [l Us
Employment by Size Class (2nd Quarter 2022) Employment by Ownership (2nd Quarter 2022)
. 5 90, Federal Government : 1.6%
) ) /— -4 5592/% 3% I- — State Government : 3.1%
1000+ : 21.8% AN / Local Government : 14.0%
/ 10-19:8.4% 4
500-999 :6.9% —
T~ 20-49:15.2%
250-499 : 8.0%
100-249 : 15.0% J \- 50-99: 12.9%
Number of Employees in Firm Percentage Private : 81.3% /
1-4 5.2%
5-9 6.3% -
10-19 8.4% Ownership Percentage
20-49 15.2% | Federal Government 1.6%
50-99 12.9%
100-249 15.0% | State Government 3.1%
250-499 8.0% Local Government 14.0%
500-999 6.9%
1000+ 21.8% | Private 81.3%
Employment by Industry (2nd Quarter 2022)
Public Administration : 4.3%
Other Services : 2_9% ] Natural Resources and Mining : 8.2%
Leisure and Hospitality : 10.7% / Construction : 6.1%
\ / — Manufacturing : 12.4%
Education and Health Services : 22.8% -~
Professional and Business Services : 6.3% —— \ Trade, Transportation and Utilities : 21.1%
Financial Activities : 4.3% — Information : 0.9%
Industry Q2 2022 Employment | % of Total | Q12022 Employment | % of Total | Q22021 Employment | % of Total | Quarterly Change | Yearly Change
Natural Resources and Mining 15,248 8.2% 14,552 7.9% 14,731 7.9% 4.8% 3.5%
Construction 11,392 6.1% 11,585 6.3%) 11,592 6.3% -1.7% -1.7%
Manufacturing 23,160 12.4% 22,500 12.3%) 25,425 13.7%) 2.9% -8.9%
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 39,397 21.1% 39,193 21.4% 38,251 20.6% 0.5% 3.0%
Information 1,688 0.9% 1,686 0.9%) 1,705 0.9%) 0.1%) -1.0%
Financial Activities 8,108 4.3% 8,120 4.4% 8,269 4.5% -0.1% -1.9%
Professional and Business Services 11,696 6.3% 11,704 6.4% 11,166 6.0% -0.1% 4.7%
Education and Health Services 42,517 22.8% 42,474 23.1% 41,596 22.4% 0.1%) 2.2%
Leisure and Hospitality 19,892 10.7%! 18,520 10.1%) 18,868 10.2% 7.4% 5.4%
Other Services 5,494 2.9% 5,359 2.9% 8.357 2.9% 2.5% 2.6%
Public Administration 8,017 4.3% 7,863 4.3%) 8,446 4.6% 2.0%) -5.1%

Page 5 of 5 2/9/2023 12:36:22 PM



PANHANDLE
REGIONAL
PLANNING

« ™ COMMISSION

ITEM 6 (1)
PWDB Membership List



PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
CURRENT MEMBERSHIP
JULY 1, 2022 - JUNE 30, 2023

PRIVATE SECTOR (CITY OF AMARILLO)

*kkkkk

Ms. Kristi Hanes
Co-Owner/Director

Night & Day, Care & Play Inc.

2831 Mays Street

Amarillo, Texas 79109

(806) 352-2186 / (806) 322-0986 fax
nightandday@arn.net

PRIVATE SECTOR (CITY OF AMARILLO)

Ms. Betty Bara

Co-Owner

La Fiesta Grande

4704 Van Winkle Drive

Amarillo, Texas 79119

(806) 376-3689 / (806) 355-2826 fax
bettybara@aol.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (CITY OF AMARILLO)

(VACANT)

PRIVATE SECTOR (CITY OF AMARILLO)

Mr. Jason Henderson *** [ *****

Vice President — Assembly Operations
Bell

P.O. Box 482

Fort Worth, Texas 76101

(817) 280-8957
jhenderson@bellflight.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (CITY OF AMARILLO)

Mr. David Parker

Chief Operating Officer
Harwell & Cook Orthodontics
3420 Thornton Drive
Amarillo, Texas 79109

(806) 353-3593
david@harwellcook.com

PY2022 -1-

Industry Represented: Services (62)
TWC ID #: 075710160

Firm Size: 29 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/F

Term Expires: June 30, 2025

Industry Represented: Food (72)
TWC ID #: 021762288

Firm Size: 84

Ethnicity/Gender: W/F

Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Industry Represented:
TWC ID #:

Firm Size:
Ethnicity/Gender:
Term Expires:

Industry Represented: Manufacturing (31)
TWC ID #: 002639157

Firm Size: 4,954 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Industry Represented: Healthcare (62)
TWC ID #: 07-895859-6

Firm Size: 41 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2025

2/22/2023


mailto:nightandday@arn.net
mailto:bettybara@aol.com
mailto:jhenderson@bellflight.com
mailto:david@harwellcook.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (AREA | - DALLAM,
HARTLEY, MOORE, OLDHAM AND SHERMAN

COUNTIES)

Mr. Michael Wright **/ ***] ****
Publisher

Moore County News - Press

P.O. Box 757

Dumas, Texas 79029

(806) 935-4111 / (806) 935-2438 fax
mwright@moorenews.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (AREA Il - HANSFORD,
HEMPHILL, HUTCHINSON, LIPSCOMB,
OCHILTREE AND ROBERTS COUNTIES)

Ms. Michelle Griffin * / ***

President — Borger Branch

Amarillo National Bank

P. O. Box 949

Borger, Texas 79008

(806) 275-5025 / (806) 274-4533 fax
michelle.griffin@anb.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (AREA |l - BRISCOE,
CASTRO, DEAF SMITH, PARMER AND
SWISHER COUNTIES)

Mr. Art Martinez

Owner

Whiteface Heating & Air, Inc.
127 Main Street

Hereford, Texas 79045
(806) 364-4122
whitefaceha@wtrt.net

PRIVATE SECTOR (AREA IV - ARMSTRONG,
CARSON, POTTER AND RANDALL COUNTIES)

Ms. Amy Rambo

Senior Human Resource Business Partner
BSA Health System

1600 Wallace Blvd.

Amarillo, Texas 79106

(806) 212-2989 / (806) 212-1600 fax
amy.rambo@bsahs.org

PY2022 -2-

Industry Represented: Information (51)
TWC ID #: 08-099770-1

Firm Size: 11 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/M

Term Expires: June 30,2025

Industry Represented: Finance (52)
TWC ID #: 000422070

Firm Size: 865 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/F

Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Industry Represented: Wholesale Trade (42)
TWC ID #: 130532764

Firm Size: 5 employees

Ethnicity/Gender: H/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Industry Represented: Healthcare (62)
TWC ID #: 138513173

Firm Size: 2,429 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/F

Term Expires: June 30, 2024

2/22/2023


mailto:mwright@moorenews.com
mailto:michelle.griffin@anb.com
mailto:whitefaceha@wtrt.net
mailto:amy.rambo@bsahs.org

PRIVATE SECTOR (AREAYV - CHILDRESS,
COLLINGSWORTH, DONLEY, GRAY, HALL AND
WHEELER COUNTIES)

Mr. Ryan Bradley

Plant Manager

Hunting Titan Inc.

11785 Hwy 152

Pampa, Texas 79076

(806) 665-3781
Ryan.Bradley@hunting-intl.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (AT LARGE)

Mr. Kevin Caddell
Owner

Furniture Fashions, LTD
1603 Tennessee Blvd.
Dalhart, Texas 79022
(806) 244-5551
Kevin@furnfash.com

PRIVATE SECTOR (AT LARGE)

Mr. Charlie Rivas ***

Chief Executive Officer

Rivas Environmental Consultants
200 Winery Road

Amarillo, Texas 79118

(806) 622-2255 / (806) 622-2257 fax

rivas@arn.net

PRIVATE SECTOR (AT LARGE)

Mr. Francisco Apodaca
Co-Owner

Apodaca Brothers

801 W. Francis Ave.

Pampa, TX 79065

(806) 669-1169 / (806) 669-1169
12280ehwy60@gmail.com

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATIONS

Ms. Crystal Hermesmeyer

Economic Development Director

Shamrock Economic Development Corporation
207 N. Main Street

Shamrock, TX 79079

(806) 256-2516

shamrockedc@gmail.com

PY2022 -3-

Industry Represented: Manufacturing (31)
TWC ID: 143344908

Firm Size: 552 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Industry Represented: Retail (44)
TWC ID #: 109626740

Firm Size: 8 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: W/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2025

Industry Represented: Services (54)
TWC ID #: 012394527

Firm Size: 0 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: H/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Industry Represented: Construction (23)
TWC ID #: 119858119

Firm Size: 8 employees
Ethnicity/Gender: H/M

Term Expires: June 30, 2024

Ethnicity/Gender: W/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

2/22/2023


mailto:Ryan.Bradley@hunting-intl.com
mailto:Kevin@furnfash.com
mailto:rivas@arn.net
mailto:12280ehwy60@gmail.com
mailto:shamrockedc@gmail.com

SECONDARY EDUCATION

Mr. Jay Barrett ***
Principal

AmTech Career Academy
3601 Plains Blvd.
Amarillo, Texas 79102
(806) 326-2800
jay.barrett@amaisd.org

POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION

Mr. Texas D. “Tex” Buckhaults ****
President

Clarendon College

P. O. Box 968

Clarendon, Texas 79226

(806) 874-3571
Tex.Buckhaults@clarendoncollege.edu

ADULT BASIC AND CONTINUING EDUCATION

Dr. Tamara Clunis

Vice President of Academic Affairs
Amarillo College

P. O. Box 447

Amarillo, Texas 79178

(806) 371-5296 / (806) 354-5891 fax
ttclunis@actx.edu

LITERACY ORGANIZATIONS

Ms. Lisa White

Literacy Coordinator

Amairillo Public Library

413 E. 4th

Amairillo, Texas 79101

(806) 378-3043 / (806) 378-9327 fax
lisa.white@amarillolibrary.org

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION
ORGANIZATIONS

Ms. Geneva Tiller

Unit Support Coordinator

Texas Workforce Solutions
Vocational Rehabilitation Services

3120 Eddy St.

Amarillo, TX 79106

(806) 372-5521

genevatiller@twc.state.tx.us

PY2022

Ethnicity/Gender: W/M
Term Expires: June 30, 2025

Ethnicity/Gender: W/M
Term Expires: June 30, 2025

Ethnicity/Gender: B/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Ethnicity/Gender: W/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2025

Ethnicity/Gender: W/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

2/22/2023


mailto:jay.barrett@amaisd.org
mailto:Tex.Buckhaults@clarendoncollege.edu
mailto:ttclunis@actx.edu
mailto:lisa.white@amarillolibrary.org
mailto:valarie.robbins@twc.state.tx.us

COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS

Ms. Magi York ****

Executive Director

Panhandle Community Services
1309 West Eighth Avenue
Amairillo, Texas 79120-2150
(806) 342-6150 / (806) 373-8143
magi.york@pcsvces.org

COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS

Ms. Jahnel McClain

Human Resource Manager

Goodwill Industries of Northwest Texas
1904 Bell Street

Amarillo, Texas 79106

(806) 331-6890 / (806) 331-7207 fax
jmcclain@ginwtx.org

LABOR ORGANIZATIONS

Mr. Paul Salazar

Training Director, JATC

West Texas Electrical Joint Apprenticeship
& Training Committee

102 South Bowie Street

Amairillo, Texas 79106

(806) 372-1581 / (806) 331-6718 fax

psalazarjatc@wtxjatc.org

LABOR ORGANIZATIONS

Mr. John Roberts

Council Business Representative

Central South Carpenters Regional Council
12180 Tascosa Road

Amairillo, Texas 79124

(806) 373-4574 / (806) 374-4437 fax
jroberts@cscouncil.net

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT AGENCY

Mr. Norman Bearden *****
Veterans Resource Coordinator
Texas Workforce Commission
2002 West Loop 289, Suite 117
Lubbock, Texas 79407

(806) 765-5038 ext.2129
norman.bearden@twc.texas.gov

PY2022

Ethnicity/Gender: W/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Ethnicity/Gender: W/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Ethnicity/Gender: H/M
Term Expires: June 30, 2024

Ethnicity/Gender: W/M
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

Ethnicity/Gender: W/M
Term Expires: June 30, 2023

2/22/2023


mailto:magi.york@pcsvcs.org
mailto:jmcclain@ginwtx.org
mailto:psalazarjatc@wtxjatc.org
mailto:jroberts@cscouncil.net
mailto:norman.bearden@twc.

STATE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Ms. Lisa Lillard

Program Manager

Texas Health and Human Services Commission
Region 1 - P.O. Box 3369, 79008

301 West 6 Street 401

Borger, Texas 79007

(806) 273-4446 / (806) 274-5028 fax

Lisa.Lillard@hhs.texas.gov

*

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Executive Committee Member
Cybersecurity Council Member

Also serves as Veterans Representative
ek Also serves as Child Care Representative

*%
*k%k
*kkk

*kkkk

PY2022

Ethnicity/Gender:  W/F
Term Expires: June 30, 2025

2/22/2023


mailto:Lisa.Lillard@hhs.texas.gov

	1 CGB Cover
	2 CGB Meeting Calendar
	CGB Item 1 - Agenda PWDCGB
	CGB Item 3a - Cover
	CGB Item 3b - CGB Minutes 12-8-22
	CGB Item 4a - Cover
	CGB Item 4b - GOV BODY PY2022 rev 12-8-22
	CGB Item 5 - ACover
	CGB Item 5 - APPOINTMENT TO THE PWDB February 23 2023
	CGB Item 6a 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6a 1 - WDB Minutes 12-7-22
	CGB Item 6a 2 - Cover
	CGB Item 6a 2 - Cybersecurity Council Minutes 1-18-23
	CGB Item 6b - Cover
	CGB Item 6b 2 - Board Report
	CGB Item 6b 3 - Board Report
	CGB Item 6c - Cover
	CGB Item 6c - Cybersecurity Council 2023-2025
	LABOR OrganizationS
	Community-Based OrganizationS

	CGB Item 6e 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6e 1 - Panhandle WD Board Plan 2021-2024 draft
	Introduction
	Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies
	B.   Board Strategies (WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(6))
	C. High-Performing Board (WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17))

	Part 2. Economic and Workforce Analysis
	A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(1))
	B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2))
	C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends (WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3))
	D. Workforce Development Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))

	Part 3: Core Programs
	A.  Workforce Development System (WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1))
	B.  Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access (WIOA §108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(2))

	Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery
	A. One-Stop Service Delivery System (WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5))
	B.  Cooperative Agreements (WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))
	C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3))
	D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services (WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))
	E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management (WIOA §108(b)(21); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(20))

	Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities
	A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities (WIOA §108(b)(5); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(4))
	B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7))
	C. Youth Activities and Services (WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))
	D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs (WIOA §108(b)(10); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(9))
	E. Child Care and Early Learning (40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services)
	F. Transportation and Other Support Services (WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10))

	PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD POLICY
	Chapter 2-WIOA
	Section 2.1 All WIOA Program Participants
	Subsection 2.1.2               WIOA Priority of Service-Update         Effective 12-09-2020
	WIOA Board Two-Year Plan Modification Form
	Workforce Development (WD) Letter 18-22, Attachment 1
	Overview
	Instructions


	CGB Item 6e 2 - Cover
	CGB Item 6e 2 - Panhandle WD Board Plan 2021-2024 (revised)
	Introduction
	Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies
	B.   Board Strategies (WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(6))
	C. High-Performing Board (WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17))

	Part 2. Economic and Workforce Analysis
	A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(1))
	B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2))
	C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends (WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3))
	D. Workforce Development Analysis (WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))

	Part 3: Core Programs
	A.  Workforce Development System (WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1))
	B.  Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access (WIOA §108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(2))

	Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery
	A. One-Stop Service Delivery System (WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5))
	B.  Cooperative Agreements (WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))
	C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3))
	D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services (WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))
	E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management (WIOA §108(b)(21); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(20))

	Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities
	A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities (WIOA §108(b)(5); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(4))
	B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination (WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7))
	C. Youth Activities and Services (WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))
	D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs (WIOA §108(b)(10); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(9))
	E. Child Care and Early Learning (40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services)
	F. Transportation and Other Support Services (WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10))

	PANHANDLE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD POLICY
	Chapter 2-WIOA
	Section 2.1 All WIOA Program Participants
	Subsection 2.1.2               WIOA Priority of Service-Update         Effective 12-09-2020
	WIOA Board Two-Year Plan Modification Form
	Workforce Development (WD) Letter 18-22, Attachment 1
	Overview
	Instructions


	CGB Item 6f 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6f 2 - Board Monitoring Report - February 2023
	CGB Item 6g 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6g 2 - WF Board Memo CCQ
	CGB Item 6h 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6h 2 - Career Outreach
	CGB Item 6i 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6i 2 - Plains Dairy
	CGB Item 6k 1 - Cover
	CGB Item 6k 2 - All Pages Report_ WDA
	CGB Item 6l - Cover
	CGB Item 6l - WFD BOARD PY2022 Rev022223
	POST-SECONDARY Education
	Adult Basic AND Continuing Education
	Literacy ORGANIZATIONS
	Community-Based OrganizationS
	Labor ORGANIZATIOnS
	Labor ORGANIZATIOnS


